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REFORMING THE WRIGHT AMENDMENT

Wednesday, July 12, 2006

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, SUBCOMMITTEE ON AVIATION,
COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION AND INFRASTRUCTURE,
WASHINGTON, D.C.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to call, at 2:02 p.m., in room
2167, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. John L. Mica [Chair-
man of the subcommittee] Presiding.

Mr. MicA. Good afternoon. I would like to call this hearing of the
House Aviation Subcommittee to order. Welcome everybody here
today. Today the subcommittee will hear testimony about the ef-
forts to reform the Wright amendment. That is the subject of our
hearing. The order of business will be opening statements from
members of the subcommittee, and then we will hear from a panel
of Members of Congress who are interested in today’s subject. Most
of them are from Texas, then we have a second panel and a third
panel, so a full schedule today. With those comments, and let me
say also, if anyone would like to add testimony to the record of this
hearing, they can do so through the Chair at the request of the
committee, and Mr. Costello moves that we keep the record open
for a period of 2 weeks. Without objection so ordered.

So we welcome members and others who have comments they
want immediate part of the official proceedings to be included
through request of the Chair. So I will start the proceedings, and
I have got a hopefully brief statement and then we will yield to
other members. Today our subcommittee will hear testimony on a
locally initiated and locally approved so-called agreement that
seeks to change and eventually proposes to eliminate the long-
standing Wright amendment. As most of us know, the Wright
amendment has restricted commercial air passenger service out of
Dallas Love Field for now some 3 decades. Today we will examine
the terms of a June 15 compromise reached by the cities of Dallas
and Fort Worth Texas, and also hear from the affected airlines,
American Airlines and Southwest Airlines, which, among other
things, you will find will lift existing geographic restrictions on
commercial air service at Love Field after some 8 years, and that,
I think, stretches out to 2014. The Wright amendment, as modified
by Congress over the years, currently restricts commercial air serv-
ice out of Love Field to cities in Texas and some 8 surrounding
States. Enacted in 1979, the Wright amendment was essentially a
legislative compromise crafted by the cities of Dallas and Fort
Worth Texas and Fort Worth International Airport, DFW, South-
west Airlines, and others.
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The Wright amendment was intended to end a long-standing
legal dispute over Southwest’s desire to provide inner State service
out of Love Field, and at the same time, help spur growth at the
then new regional airport DFW. In my 13 years in Congress, I have
been a strong advocate and defender of public policy that promotes
free markets and economic deregulation. I have long believed that
the Wright amendment, along with other existing barriers should
be repealed. These types of restrictions, in my opinion, constitute
undue Federal interference with the market’s ability to reflect con-
sumer preferences. However, because the Wright amendment was
locally generated many years ago in a different time and cir-
cumstances, it is fitting that it is unraveling now as being gen-
erated in a different time and under different circumstances by a
locally generated agreement, and this is tough, especially for Mem-
bers of Congress, to bring agreements before us and have us try to
sort of divide the pie up and the baby, so to speak, and we are
pleased that there has been these generations from the local level
of an agreement.

It is clearly in the best interest of consumers for the invisible
hands of the marketplace, not the heavy hands of Congress or the
Federal bureaucrats, to set air fares and service options. I believe
we should remove this barrier as soon as we can, and we should
not stop just with what we are doing today. As part of next year’s
FAA reauthorization legislation, we should address other onerous
anti competitive service restrictions that are currently on the books
and eliminate any remaining Federal laws and regulations that
prohibit airlines from serving the routes sought by competitive car-
riers and the travelling public. As I suggested earlier, I prefer to
see the Wright amendment repealed immediately. However, the po-
litical reality is that without the Love Field, the proposal that is
coming forth today and being considered here today, the 35-year-
old Cold War waged by the affected cities, airlines and commu-
nities will continue indefinitely, and that is something we do not
want.

By ultimately eliminating one of the most significant remaining
barriers to domestic aviation competition albeit some 8 years, the
Wright amendment compromise could help set the stage for com-
plete deregulation of our domestic aviation system, which would be
for the benefit of consumers and community across the country. Be-
fore legislation to implement some of the terms of the agreement
can be crafted, it is incumbent upon this panel to ensure that the
safety implications of any increased operations in the air space
around Love Field and DFW airports is also addressed. I must
point out that some have suggested this agreement only benefits
two airlines and could be interpreted as somewhat anti competi-
tive. I look forward to hearing from our witnesses today, and I
think it is appropriate that we have a full open hearing on all of
these issues, and I would like to yield to our ranking member, Mr.
Costello.

Mr. CoSTELLO. Mr. Chairman, thank you and I welcome our wit-
nesses today, our colleagues and other witnesses who will be testi-
fying here at this hearing. Mr. Chairman, I will be brief. I will sub-
mit my statement for the record. As I said, we have a number of
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witnesses, so I am hoping that members on our side will be brief
as well and submit their full statement for the record.

Mr. Chairman, I will not go over the history of the Wright
amendment. We all know how it came about with a 1979 agree-
ment between the cities of Dallas and Fort Worth. Since then, the
Wright amendment at the time was a logical step in my opinion
when enact in 1979 to bring stability to the north Texas air mar-
ket. Further, it allowed southwest to carve a niche at Love Field,
while American built, its hub at Dallas Fort Worth. I have sup-
ported the Wright amendment as the proper way to enhance the
Dallas Fort Worth growth and development. The airport, in turn,
has done its part by fueling the regional economy.

However, today, Dallas Fort Worth is far from a small regional
airport. As an international airport, its influence is far reaching
and has become a major player in markets that other airlines could
not serve from Love Field. As a result, for many years, people have
sought to repeal the Wright amendment. But it has been my belief
that if we were going to consider changes to the Wright amend-
ment, that it should come from local officials at the local level, from
mayors, county officials, and other interested parties.

And if they, in fact, reached an agreement then and only then
should Congress become involved. The piecemeal approach that we
have seen in the past for years with certain States being exempted
or repealed from the Wright amendment, in my judgment, has been
ineffective and is poor public policy.

On June 15, the parties that we will hear from today reached an
agreement. They have all agreed to seek full repeal of the Wright
amendment with several conditions. Soon after Chairman Young,
Mr. Oberstar, yourself, Mr. Chairman, and other members of this
subcommittee had the opportunity to sit down with our colleagues
from Texas and other local elected officials and others to be briefed
on the agreement.

This is a significant compromise, and I think as our friend Herb
Kellaher said it at our briefing, he said if we can come together all
of these parties and reach an agreement, surely we can achieve
world peace. I want to tell you that I am pleased that we are fol-
lowing regular order, that we are going through the process of this
hearing today, going through the authorizing process. There are
many who have criticized the Wright amendment for restraining
free market competition. I have heard from others who believe that
this new agreement poses similar competitive hurdles.

I am interested in hearing from our witnesses and their re-
sponses to those concerns about any restrictive hurdles on competi-
tion. Further, I know that our colleagues, Mr. Oberstar, who has
been involved with the Wright amendment since the very first day
it was enacted, has major concerns about the safety aspect of this
agreement and I am sure that we will hear from him concerning
those concerns as far as safety is concerned in the agreement. And
I thank you once again, Mr. Chairman, for calling this hearing and
look forward to hearing from our witnesses.

Mr. MicA. Thank you, Mr. Costello.

Mr. Duncan.

Mr. DUNCAN. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, and thank
you for calling this hearing and bringing everyone together. This
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is an important step in this process. Mr. Costello just mentioned
that Mr. Oberstar goes back to the very beginning of this. I do not
go back nearly that far, but I have been on this subcommittee for
18 years, and in all that time, I have had almost every years dis-
cussions or meetings about the Wright amendment. In fact, just a
few weeks ago, Mr. Kellaher came to my office and we had a very
fine meeting I thought and I told him at that time, I hope some
type of a compromise could be reached. So I am very encouraged
by being to the point where we are today.

In no significant legislation does anyone get everything that they
want or desire, but it seems that people are being a little more rea-
sonable now than perhaps at any time before this, and I will say
that my own major airport in Knoxville that has had concerns
about this all along has told me that they support the agreement,
at least as far as it goes to this point.

So I just wanted to be very brief in my comments and say that
I commend everyone who has worked so hard to help us reach
what appears to be a compromise that is acceptable to a great ma-
jority of the people, but we will listen to any concerns that anyone
has and see if this agreement needs to be tweaked or modified in
some way. But I thank you for calling this hearing and I look for-
ward to hearing the witnesses. Thank you.

Mr. MicA. Thank you, Mr. Duncan. One of those affected from
Texas, Mrs. Bernice Johnson, a senior member of our panel.

Ms. JOHNSON OF TEXAS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and thank
you, Mr. Ranking Member and chairman of the subcommittee, and
all of those who are present. In addition to your representative sub-
committee staff, my staff and the Senate staff of Senator Hutch-
inson have been working continually attempting to get this legisla-
tion done. In using the instructions of the agreement, this is very,
very important to the north Texas area, and we appreciate all the
courtesies that have been extended. Of course, less than a month
ago, the city of Dallas, city of Fort Worth, Southwest Airlines,
American Airlines, and DFW International Airport, reached an
agreement to resolve long-standing issues regarding the Wright
amendment.

As you know, the Wright amendment imposes long haul flight re-
strictions to and from Dallas Love Field airport locate within the
heart of my Congressional district. Of course, the original agree-
ment said it would phase out. That was what was agreed to be-
tween the cities of Dallas and Fort Worth in the beginning so they
were doing pretty well to be flying at all because of the Wright
amendment. But the agreement marks an important milestone as
efforts to repeal the restrictions over the past decades has served
as a major points of contention in the north Texas stake holders.

And I know, Mr. Subcommittee Chair, that I have always known
your attitude about this Wright amendment, so I am glad it didn’t
come before you, but we had it blocked at the other end. To have
all the aforementioned entities in solidarity behind this amend-
ment that ultimately lifts long haul flight restrictions in Dallas
Love Field is nothing really short of amazing.

As my north Texas colleagues will elaborate on many of the key
aspects of the agreement, I will not be repetitive. However, I would
like to impress upon the following, my fellow subcommittee mem-
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bers. It is important to note that the Wright amendment was the
direct result of a community-crafted compromise between Dallas,
Fort Worth regarding two north Texas airports. 32 years ago, north
Texas, upon the recommendation of the Civil Aeronautics Board,
decided that DFW airport would be the region’s primary travel in-
vestment. This decision is captured in the 1968 Regional Airport
Concurrent Bond Ordinance adopted by the cities of Dallas and
Fort Worth. I will ask unanimous consent to enter that into the
record.

At this time, Mr. Chairman, I ask you also for unanimous con-
sent to enter some other correspondence here from various cham-
bers that are supporting this agreement.

Mr. MicA. Without objection so ordered.

Ms. JoHNSON OF TEXAS. Thank you. I will forego most of my
written testimony and ask unanimous consent to put it in the
record. I support the agreement. I support the agreement because
I think that it has been made by the proper entities involved. It
requires give and take. I doubt if any of the stakeholders got all
that they wanted, but that is what an agreement and a com-
promise is and those of us who sit here know that. So many of the
home owners and constituents groups that reside within the Love
Field area also support the agreement, and I am going to ask, Mr.
Chairman, unanimous consent to enter the written testimony sub-
mitted by Miss Laurie Palmer on behalf of the Love Field Citizens
Action Committee.

Mr. MicA. Without objection so ordered.

Ms. JOHNSON OF TEXAS. It is a coalition of residents and neigh-
borhoods in the Love Field impact area. The organization was es-
tablished in 1980 to address the airport’s adverse environmental
impact on the large and densely populated community that sur-
rounds the airport. Also, there are many schools in the area, and
I think that as long as we address the safety, the historical mem-
ber of this committee has made that a number one concern, and it
is mine as well, and I think that we will have language that will
meet the guidelines of the FAA.

So I am hoping that all of us would listen attentively, and then
next week when we have the markup, hopefully it will be some-
thing we all can support. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Mica. I thank the gentlewoman. We will now hear from an-
other distinguished member of our panel, a gentleman from Texas,
and that is Mr. Marchant.

Mr. MARCHANT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We appreciate the
fact that you are taking this bill in regular order, and very much
appreciate the fact that you have expedited this hearing to accom-
modate us. Thank you to the mayors for being here today and the
members of the north Texas community, the debate over the
Wright amendment and its repeal in this committee has been a
great concern in my district.

My district is basically composed of the Dallas Fort Worth Inter-
national Airport and the surrounding towns and cities. American
Airlines supports 7,300 jobs in my district. The airport itself sup-
ports 268,000 jobs in the greater Dallas Fort Worth area. The
metroplex depends very heavily on DFW Airport as does my dis-
trict. Therefore, it should come as no surprise to you today that
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this is the number one business issue in district 24. The debate has
put airline against airline, airport against airport, and city against
city and even split the opinions of our very close-knit north Texas
delegation.

Since elected to Congress a year ago, a year and a half ago, and
up until this agreement was reached, I have been firmly in favor
of the keeping the Wright amendment in place. However, I have
also stated that if we are going to come to an agreement on any
change to the Wright amendment, it should be worked out on a
local level. Due to the hard work of the mayors of Dallas and Fort
Worth and along with the elected officials and business leaders
that are here that will testify later today, the agreement has been
presented to Congress and has my support.

I believe this agreement is a good compromise between the stake-
holders. All parties gave some ground on all issues, and all parties
have something to lose if they break the agreement. In a word, this
agreement is balanced. The fact that this agreement is balanced is
a positive in that it encourage all parties involved with the two air-
ports to support it. However, the flip side of this is if one cog in
the machine is moved or taken out of place by Congress, the whole
agreement is in jeopardy.

Hopefully very soon, identical bills mirroring the agreement to
repeal the Wright amendment will go to the House and Senate. I
have no doubt that every step along the way, attempts will be
made to change these bills. I would like to take this opportunity
to urge the Members of Congress to respect the agreement as it has
been reached and allow these bills to become law without becoming
significantly changed. Only then will we be able to put this debate
behind in our area.

Mr. Chairman, thank you for the opportunity to give a state-
ment, but I will have to say that in the last 2 days, I have had
several meetings, and it appears that there has been one issue that
has surfaced that we as a north Texas delegation have not been
able to discuss, and it is the 80-mile rule. And I am looking forward
to the testimony today to help me as a committee member clarify
the impact of the 80-mile rule. Thank you.

Mr. MicA. Thank you. Mr. Holden from Pennsylvania.

Mr. HOLDEN. Thank you. I thank you and the ranking member
for having this hearing today, and I want to commend our col-
leagues sitting before us today for coming to this agreement re-
garding the permanent rules at Love Field. With that said, I do
have some concerns, Mr. Chairman. There are only three airports
with perimeter rules, Washington National, LaGuardia and Love
Field. US Airways, one of our Nation’s leading airlines, had one of
the perimeter rules at National and LaGuardia removed for years,
and have long urged that the issue of perimeters be dealt with at
one time.

However, here we are suddenly having Congress about to alter
conditions for Love Field only removing a barrier on ticketing for
another of our Nation’s leading airlines, Southwest, and setting a
time for the abolishment of the perimeter rule and tearing down
of some gates. The perimeter rule at Washington National has long
been a problem for US Airways, and I ask the chairman to con-
sider, as we move forward, in trying to help our colleagues at Love
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Field that we consider the perimeter rules at Washington National
and LaGuardia as well. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I yield back.

Mr. MicA. Thank you, Mr. Ehlers.

Mr. EHLERS. Thank you. Mr. Chairman, when I first arrived in
the Congress 12 years ago, I learned two things, and one is never
get crosswise with a bunch of Texans, and secondly, that the
Wright amendment is a very strange document. It only makes
sense in the context of the times, but probably should never have
been adopted. In spite of the first rule, I am still going to speak
up and say I think this agreement is a major problem.

Well, let me add another principal that I have, and that is to
never interfere with free enterprise unless you can do it in a totally
fair way with all parties involved. The proposal, as I read it, is not
totally fair in all ways. It favors some airlines over other airlines,
and my colleague from Pennsylvania just said basically the same
thing. I think we have to proceed very, very carefully and very de-
liberatively on this proposal and examine the ramifications beyond
Texas, beyond Love Field, beyond Dallas Fort Worth Airport.

It is a complex issue that is going to affect several different air-
lines frankly in a negative way as a result of the way the agree-
ment is formulated and written, and I certainly want very thor-
ough and complete examination of all the implications of this be-
fore we proceed. Maybe he can be persuaded, but I certainly have
to know a lot more about the impact on other airlines before I could
favorably look upon this document. With that, I would yield back.

Mr. FILNER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I do want to say I know
Jim Wright. Jim Wright is a friend of mine, but the Wright amend-
ment is wrong. And I know the chairman will find great difficulty
in believing this, but we agree on the fact that this amendment
should be abolished. This amendment does not only affect Texas,
with all due respect, to my Texan friends. California is affected
also.

I represent the city of San Diego, I should say as a disclaimer
I have as many frequent flyer miles on American as I do on South-
west. But San Diego has a love affair with Southwest Airlines. It
has taken a cul-de-sac city as we really may be geographically and
opened all of California and much of the country to our citizens for
quick and effective airplane travel and low prices. We could go up
to L.A. or San Francisco for lunch and be back to another city for
dinner and be back in time to go to sleep in San Diego because of
Southwest. So we were anxious to have it repealed. But if this com-
promise is as the chairman said, what we all can agree on then
let’s go forward with it.

Mr. MicA. I have one more Texan, Mr. Poe, who is on our panel
and then I will try to get to you all who are waiting.

Mr. Poe.

Mr. PoE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for having these hearings.
This really has become a family feud and the families sat down to-
gether and broken bread and called a truce. And I do not want to
be another Texas within involved in this family feud that has ap-
parently been settled so I agree with the compromise, the truce,
the truce that has been agreed upon among the family and I think
it should be approved. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I yield back.
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Mr. MicA. Thank you. Mr. Oberstar is the ranking member of
the Committee on Transportation and Infrastructure.

Mr. OBERSTAR. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It is important for
this committee to deal with this issue legislatively to have this
hearing rather than have the Love Field Wright amendment issue
eroded piecemeal as it has been over a period of years without a
view to the larger national aviation context in which this issue
must be discussed, but a good deal of talk about stakeholders.
Stakeholders are not just the cities of Dallas and Fort Worth, nor
the airlines or the airport authorities. The stakeholders are all
Americans. If you approve a law in Massachusetts it does not do
much for traffic in California, but if you improve an airport, if you
add a 5,700 foot runway at Logan field it does make traffic from
the west coast more accessible to the east coast to Boston because
of the nature of the air travel.

Similarly, dealing with the Dallas DFW Airport and the Love
Field Airport is a national aviation matter. It is not just a local
issue. And we have to be very careful and very thoughtful about
how we approach this issue. And I will not go back and recite the
history of the agreement between Dallas and Fort Worth nego-
tiated by Najib Halaby when he was administrator of FAA, and
under President Kennedy when Kennedy had just started the in-
crease in funding for aviation to invest in airport and runway and
taxiway improvement to expand aviation in the United States.
That history is told in hearings that I held in 1991 in great deal
with Najib Halaby himself testifying.

There are two issues. One is safety, the second is competition.
There is a fairness issue that Jim Wright attempted to deal with
in what we know as the Wright amendment holding both cities to
the agreement they negotiated rather than let one run out on it
and the other be stuck with an economic problem on its hands.
That is now being resolved by the two cities who have come to an
agreement.

The safety issues is a real concern. Now, DFW has gone to a
four-corner, four-post approval sequencing that has made it much
safer for operations at Love Field that are only 8 miles away from
DFW, and aircraft are only 2 miles apart from each other on arriv-
al and departure patterns, and that has been adequately docu-
mented in the hearings we held in 1991.

The FAA will be here, I hope, with some slides that will show
and I have those documents it will show that they can manage the
air space safely. Do not forget Love Field is not just a little hick
airport. It has 235,000 operations a year. That would be the envy
of any other airport in the country except for a handful. And there
is well over 300, 400,000 at DFW and headed upward.

So first is managing that air space safely. The FAA will testify
that they are able to do that. The second is managing the competi-
tion safely. This agreement says we are going to have only 20
gates, terminate others, raises questions about who is going to
come in and compete in this future opened up competitive airport,
Love Field. In the Wright amendment, we legislated a limitation on
service and competition. But if the agreement entered into by the
community is ratified in law, then we will, for the first time in this
country have legislated the number of operations at an airport. We
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will have legislated the amount of competition that can be entered
into at an airport. We have seen the effects of the cap on oper-
ations at O’Hare Airport, at LaGuardia, at National Airport, and
the slot rules resulted in something totally perverse.

Airlines acquired financial interest and equity in the slots that
they owned, they were able to buy and sell slots. They were able
to trade them as part of their equity and acquire monetary value.
Will the same thing occur with those gates? And how will new com-
petition come into Love Field? How will the next generation of low
fair competitive airlines come in to challenge the brilliant South-
west Airlines or the gigantic American Airlines? Where is room for
competition? I want to hear this. We are going to have a very lively
discussion about it later on as we proceed with this hearing. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. MicA. Thank you, if I may take, I still have a request from
one of our members here to speak. I know Mr. Barton is engaged
in a markup, and I think we could extend a courtesy to Chairman
Barton to present his statement at this time. Then I will come back
and then we will go to Mr. Hall and down the panel if we could.
Mr. Barton you are recognized. Thank you.

TESTIMONY OF THE HON. JOE BARTON, A REPRESENTATIVE
IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF TEXAS

Mr. BARTON OF TEXAS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It is a privi-
lege to appear before what appears to be a majority of the House
of Representatives on your subcommittee. If you get any bigger,
you will have to meet on the House floor, which you are probably
already doing any way.

I am going to ask that my statement, formal statement be sub-
mitted to the record.

Mr. MicA. Without objection, so ordered.

Mr. BARTON OF TEXAS. I am going to be very brief because I do
have a markup in my committee we are chairing, on adding a
bitterant to anti freeze to make it impossible or more difficult for
children and animals to drink it and be poisoned.

I do not think it has been any secret that I have been a pro-
ponent of keeping the Wright amendment as it is. I think it has
been good public policy for the last 30-some odd years. I think it
would continue to be good public policy if we were not to amend
it in any way. Having said that, the stakeholders in the DFW area
have come together in a good faith effort after strenuous negotia-
tion and come to a proposed agreement that I think should super-
sede the Wright amendment. The gist of it has got three basic legs.
One, you will have ultimate repeal of the Wright amendment in 8
years, so those of you that are for repeal, you get it. You just do
not get it today. You get it 8 years from now.

Second, since you do not get total repeal right away you get
through ticketing at Southwest out of Love Field and any other air-
line that serves Love Field, that should have an immediate impact
on competitive pricing at all airports in the region. In order to give
some certainty to the DFW Airport, there would be an agreement
that Love Field would never have more than 20 gates in operation.
They have a master plan at Love Field that could allow for, I be-
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lieve, as many as 42 gates before DFW. Love Field, at one time,
I believe, had 55 gates. There are currently 15 or 16 gates in oper-
ation, so the 20-gate limitation would give some ability to expand
at Love Field, but it would not give it the ability to expand to a
huge amount. Those will be the main components. Through
ticketing immediately, 8-year repeal, 20-gate limitation.

The strongest reason to support this agreement, in my opinion,
is because of the parties that have negotiated it. You have the may-
ors of both the cities of Dallas who owns 2/3 of DFW and 100 per-
cent of Love Field supporting it. You have the mayor of Fort Worth,
and I should say the city council of both cities. I believe they have
both formally endorsed the agreement. You have the two airlines
that are headquartered in the DFW area, Southwest in Dallas, and
American in Fort Worth that have also strongly endorsed the
agreement. It is my understanding that Continental, that is
headquartered in Houston, Texas, while they are not a signatory
to the agreement, is supportive of the agreement.

If we accept this, I think what you are going to see is the cre-
ation of what I would call a superregional airport. You will have
five terminals at DFW, A, B, C, D, and E, and you will have one
terminal at Love Field.

As the crow flies, that is a distance of about 9 miles, but by
Texas standards I know people who have bigger back yards than
that. So what you are going to have is five terminals at DFW, and
one terminal at Love. You are going to have the ability for through
ticket. You are going to have the ability for other low cost airlines
to come in, certainly to DFW, and I would love to have Southwest
go out to DFW. So we will get a good regional airport, we will get
a superregional international airport, and we will have peace and
harmony for all the American flying public, not just the DFW area.

There are some issues outstanding. Mr. Oberstar has raised an
issue on safety. It is my understanding that language is being
shared between Mr. Oberstar and Mr. Mica and the FAA that we
can hopefully resolve that. We have an 80-mile perimeter enforce-
ment portion of the agreement that there are some members that
have concerns about we are trying to find a way to work on that.
Having said that, this is a strong agreement. It has been thought-
fully worked out. I would strongly encourage the committee, and
ultimately the full committee, to endorse it legislatively. I look for-
ward to working with the members of this subcommittee and full
committee for doing that. Thank you for the courtesy and allowing
me to testify.

Mr. MicA. Mr. Bachus, you had a quick opening statement, and
then I will get Mr. Hall in before this vote at least.

Mr. BacHUS. Thank you. I would like to associate— I read the
members’ statements. I would like to associate myself, I know Ms.
Granger, I think probably everything you said in your statement I
agree with. I was kind of concerned with what some of the mem-
bers said about this clause 6. I think Congressman Hall and Con-
gressman Burgess had some concerns about some of the outlying
airports, but the bottom line is the parties have agreed to this.

Actually, I am from Alabama, and this may actually hurt us, be-
cause flights used to skip down in Birmingham and then go on to
other places, but I think obviously the traveling public is best
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served by this agreement, and I have to compliment the parties
and plan to enthusiastically support it.

Mr. MicA. Mr. Bachus yields the balance of his time to Ms. Berk-
ley, and then we will get Mr. Hall.

Ms. BERKLEY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Very quickly I would
like to submit my opening statement for the record, with the excep-
tion of saying this thing publicly. The Wright amendment is not
the only barrier to competition in place in the airline industry. Fed-
eral law currently limits flight, as we all know, in and out of
Reagan National Airport in Washington to a distance of 1,250
miles, Las Vegas, which I represent, lies outside of this parameter,
and we are therefore at a substantial disadvantage, exemptions
have been granted over the years, but my constituents and those
wishing to visit my wonderful city and enjoy our wholesome family
entertainment are currently limited to one nonstop flight per day
on this route.

I want to congratulate those that are here today who have come
to an agreement on the Wright amendment that we can hopefully
serve as a basis for legislative action, but I am also hopeful that
Congress, and this subcommittee in particular, will act to address
other anti competitive rules that currently are in place, and thank
you all very much for being here.

Mr. MicA. Thank you. You can see this has a lot of interest not
just in Texas. Mr. Hall, I appreciate your waiting patiently. You
are recognized.

TESTIMONY OF THE HON. RALPH HALL, A REPRESENTATIVE
IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF TEXAS

Mr. HALL. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and members and my col-
leagues from Texas. I want to thank you for holding the hearing.
I have been watching Love Field probably longer than anyone in
this room. I remember the days when you could get aboard a plane
at Dallas if you were going to Austin, you would stop at Fort
Worth, you would stop in Waco, and you would finally make the
long trip on in to Austin. There have been some changes since that
time, but we have always had a great airport there. I think the air-
ports are great, Love Field and DFW. And like most Members of
Congress, especially the Texas delegation, we have hoped for a
compromise.

We have wanted a compromise. We have prayed for a com-
promise, because in my district, as I go from county to county, and
people I would ask about the Wright amendment, I found out 80
percent of them were for it and about 80 percent were against it.
And that is not a very good feeling for a guy that is looking for 51
percent. So I am pleased that we are having the hearing.

On Thursday, June 15, the cities of Dallas and Fort Worth,
American Airlines, Southwest Airlines, Love Field and DFW an-
nounced they had reached a deal regarding the Wright amend-
ment, and I have long said that the parties should get together and
broker than agreement. This pursuit has taken place, and is still
taking place. Up to 10 minutes ago, in my office, as I started down
here, we were still working on it. It was an overall agreement that
I desperately want to support. In reading over the agreement, how-
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ever, I have some concerns that I am hoping that the committee
addresses in the legislation.

Section 6 has been alluded to of the agreement that states that
the cites of Dallas and Fort Worth will oppose—basically this says
as I state, “"Efforts to initiate commercial passenger air service at
any area airport other than DFW during the 8-year period to the
extent any other airport within an 80-mile radius seeks to initiate
scheduled commercial passenger service within this 8-year period,
both cities agree to work diligently to bring that service to DFW,
or if that effort fails, then airports owned by the city of Dallas and/
or Fort Worth.”

It is, of course, not surprising that cities compete to bring new
air service to their communities. If another airport in the greater
region were to seek commercial air service, one would expect that
Dallas and Fort Worth would aggressively compete for that busi-
ness. If Dallas and Fort Worth were to work together to oppose the
growth of commercial passenger air service at other airports in the
region, it seems more logical to me that they should do this by pri-
vate agreement between the cities and/or between the airlines and
even record this decision in the city council’s and commissioner’s
court hearings, all supported by their own Chambers of Commerce,
and not give Federal approval and recognition to such an agree-
ment. It should not be encompassed in Federal legislation.

The airports affected by such restriction are not parties to this
agreement and any such disagreement should be between the par-
ties, be it Fort Worth, Dallas, American Airlines or Southwest.

Accordingly, Mr. Chairman, Congress should not give legislative
authority to an otherwise private agreement and send a signal to
the FAA that those not privy to the contract and signers thereof
agree with the 80-mile prohibition. I represent a district that has
seven airports that fall within the statutory 80-mile radius. The
mayors, county judges, airport directors and Chambers of Com-
merce representing these airports strongly oppose this section of
the agreement. And they are strongly working to work it out as is
the Senate.

The Senate sponsors are working hard to work this out. And we
want to work with them and have some give and take and try to
get this thing reconciled. They are rightly alarmed that any at-
tempt to legislate an agreement that restricts their ability to ex-
pand their markets is of great consequence. And Mr. Chairman, I
have letters from all of these people, and I ask unanimous consent
that they be submitted into the record.

Mr. MicA. Without objection, so ordered.

Mr. HALL. While I have a fond regard for Dallas and Fort Worth,
I have been sent to Congress to represent the people in my district.
Many towns in my district have airports. Some small, others have
dreams of growing to midsized facilities. Some of these facilities
have dreams to compete and grow in Northeast Texas. Indeed
Collin and Rockwell Counties are some of the fastest growing coun-
ties in the Nation. This agreement could potentially harm these
communities if Congress legislates these terms, and I cannot sup-
port a bill that harms the citizens I represent, but I want des-
perately to support a bill.
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The American dream does not prohibit competition. It energizes
it. Much of my Congressional district, and especially Rockwell and
Collin Counties are located in the shadow of Dallas County line. I
have always been pro-Dallas, pro-Terrent county. It gives me no
solace to oppose an agreement that I have long hoped for.

In closing, I would just say I would hope that I would not be
forced to make a decision to vote against either city or either air-
line. I am grateful to those who worked out this compromise. I sim-
ply need this one adjustment. I urge the committee to reject legisla-
tion that codifies section 6 of this agreement. I look forward to
working with members of this committee, and Members of the en-
tire Congress, to ensure that the American spirit of competition
thrives. I do thank you and yield back my time.

Mr. Mica. Thank you. Mr. Johnson, we have about 7 minutes.
Did you want to give it 3 or 4 or would you like to come back?

Mr. SAM JOHNSON OF TEXAS. I am willing to try.

Mr. Mica. I will give you about a 3-minute warning. Then we
have three votes, so it will be about 3:15 before we reconvene. Mr.
Johnson, you are recognized.

TESTIMONY OF THE HON. SAM JOHNSON, A REPRESENTATIVE
IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF TEXAS

Mr. Sam JOHNSON OF TExaS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, Mr.
Costello. You know we have come a long way in a short time. Only
last May, Jeb Hensarling and I introduced the Right to Fly Act.
Our bill called on Congress to immediately repeal the Wright
amendment. The bill met intense enthusiasm from travellers living
both inside and outside of Texas, so I am thrilled to be here today,
barely one year later, testifying on the future repeal of the Wright
amendment. Jeb and I introduced the bill because we felt that the
cornerstone of free enterprise is the freedom to fly. We introduced
the bill because the 1979 Wright amendment law had outlived its
usefulness. And we introduced the bill because, as you said, Wright
is wrong.

Mr. Chairman, it is not just a handful of Texas members and
thousands of our constituents who think that way. In just a year,
55 representatives from all across America have co-sponsored our
bill and so called “Southwest effect” brought to their cities.

Today’s hearings on the current proposal drawn up by the cities
of Dallas and Fort Worth as well as American and Southwest air-
lines is much needed. That is because this is not an automatic in
my book. It seems to me that the cost of getting Dallas Fort Worth
and the two airlines to agree on the solution to the Wright amend-
ment meant new restrictions on other cities around the region,
none of which had a seat at the table, none of which could have
predicted that they would be dragged into this. So essentially, for
the third district, we are looking at what looks like to me the
Wright amendment all over again, or as I have come to call it,
Wright-lite.

Nearly every single one of our constituents encounters the
Wright amendment, that is why I am going to move forward cau-
tiously and thoughtfully. The two biggest concerns I have to do
with are the agreement’s impact on the number of other airports
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in the region, specifically Collin County Regional Airport, and
McKinney. Colin County Regional Airport is a general aviation air-
port that is 27 miles from Love Field that serves as a reliever air-
port for DFW. Under the agreement, specifically in sections 6 and
7, it states the cities of Dallas and Fort Worth would work together
over the next 8 years to oppose any new commercial aviation serv-
ice to any airport within 80 miles of Love Field.

What troubles me is that Dallas and Fort Worth should not be
asking Congress to pass laws that hamstring other cities or coun-
ties. That is just unAmerican. The last thing we need is Congress
giving any city a competitive advantage over another. Creating an
uneven playing field is the wrong thing to do. Free markets do
work. Communities thrive when we keep our nose out of their busi-
ness.

My other concern comes under sections 10 and 11 and under
those sections, the cities state that Southwest and American would
be penalized should they decide to operate commercial air service
at any other airport within 80 miles of Love Field. At first glance
and knowing that the two airlines agreed to these terms, I thought
that I might be able to live with it, but that was before I realized
that will this restriction would not just be in place until the 8 years
repeal. This restriction would be in place until 2025. That is 19
years from now, after the Wright amendment would be repealed.
That is just wrong. That is replacing one unnecessary restriction
with another.

We have a duty to preserve our national aviation system and
Love Field should be no exception. We deregulated the airlines and
it worked. America stands for freedom and free enterprise, not
more government interference. It is my hope that any legislation
we draft and potentially pass through the Congress is written in
such a way to remove Wright-lite proposals on other counties and
cities.

Before I close, I would like to request permission to insert the
testimony from the McKinney mayor, Bill Whitfield.

Mr. MicA. Without objection so ordered.

Mr. SAM JOHNSON OF TEXAS. Thank you, sir. Let’s give America
the right to fly.

Mr. MicA. Thank you, Mr. Johnson. Other members, we have
less than 3 minutes to vote. So if you could keep that path clear
and let the members exit to the left, we will reconvene at 3:15. We
have three votes. This hearing stands in recess.

[recess.]

Mr. MicA. I would like to call the subcommittee back to order,
welcome everyone back. I apologize. Took a little bit longer than we
expected, but if we have to stay here through the night until tomor-
row, we are going to hear this thing through.

The very distinguished gentlelady from Texas, Ms. Granger, if
you are ready to go, we are ready to go. You are welcome and rec-
ognized.

TESTIMONY OF THE HON. KAY GRANGER, A REPRESENTATIVE
IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF TEXAS

Ms. GRANGER. Thank you very much, Chairman Mica and rank-
ing members and to the members of this committee. I appreciate
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your agreeing to hold this important hearing to hear about the
local aviation issue. It is an issue, of course, you know so much
about, I have talked to you personally about, Mr. Chairman. It has
developed into a national debate and certainly affects consumers
all across the United States, and we recognize that.

I have been intimately involved with this now for more than 15
years, both as Mayor of Fort Worth and now as a Member of Con-
gress, and wrestled with this, as have the two cities and the air-
lines and the airport. And I am certainly proud the community has
come up with a local solution that will also better serve the na-
tional traveling public, and I think that is exactly what will hap-
pen.

Over the last several months, north Texas has shown both dis-
cipline and cooperation in assembling a thoughtful, comprehensive
solution that meets the aviation travel demand for today and for
the future. What has transpired since last fall has been arduous,
it has been intense, sometimes it has been even painful with all the
stakeholders involved, and as was said earlier, no entity got every-
thing they wanted to but they had to agree to provisions that may
have caused some discomfort in their boardrooms and city halls but
they came together with a good solution.

From my longtime experience with this complex issue, I have
witnessed the negotiations between mayors, airlines, airports and
between differing responsibilities in the Federal Government. In all
my years I have never seen a consensus like we now have before
you in this joint statement of the stakeholders.

I speak for several other mayors who were unable to do this. So
I certainly compliment the two mayors who came together to ham-
mer out this solution.

If you leave with one impression of this joint statement, may it
be this one. Accepting the provisions in a piecemeal fashion is not
a workable solution for achieving the needed critical balance for all
the stakeholders. It has to be adopted in its entirety.

To illustrate the critical nature of this balance I will address one
provision and how its inclusion directly affected the different stake-
holders. As you know, in this local agreement the Wright amend-
ment will be repealed outright 8 years from the enactment of this
Federal legislation. This time allowance is absolutely necessary to
provide operational certainty for the cities, for the airports, and for
the airlines.

The cities of Dallas and Fort Worth must be able to provide sta-
bility for supporting short- and long-term viability of their mutu-
ally shared airport, Dallas/Fort Worth International. The FW Air-
port is directly or indirectly responsible for over 200,000 jobs and
crucial to the north Texas economy. Immediate repeal of the
Wright amendment would cause detrimental effects for the cities as
they work toward keeping the FW strong and building its growth
for the future.

The airports must have time to adjust their master plans in
order to protect air safety and build one long-term business devel-
opment on their properties. This 8-year time period will enable
both Love Field and DFW to make the most of their assets with
considerable improvement to market certainty.
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The airlines must be afforded time to adapt service in existing
and new markets from both airports. Immediate repeal of Wright
could put the north Texas commercial air industry in an economi-
cally harmful state, and it would also deny airports and airlines
the opportunity to react to market changes and passenger pref-
erences after first implementing through-ticketing. In the long run,
a phaseout approach will allow increased choices and competitive
pricing for consumers.

Another important provision in this agreement is to codify the
number of gates out of which Love can operate. Limiting the num-
ber of Love Field gates at 20 operating service gates is important
for air safety, for noise and air pollution, and to the business and
residential community surrounding Love Field. It is also necessary
to keep commitments made by the two cities to each other when
DFW was built. Codifying the number of gates at Love Field was
a key piece to the agreement among the entities, and I support its
inclusion in any Federal legislation.

The Wright amendment and the situation with Love Field and
DFW Airport are unique and require a unique solution and I think
that is what we have. This clarification is important to note be-
cause the stakeholders were tasked with finding a local home-
grown solution to end the Wright amendment debate once and for
all. They found a solution that works for north Texas and to the
advantage of the American consumer.

As a former member of this committee I understand how this
committee works to not only solve issues but to thoughtfully estab-
lish long-term policy with the best interests of commerce and the
traveling public at heart. I believe the joint statement agreed to by
the stakeholders before you today meets those goals as well.

This agreement was reached with a holistic approach to solve the
debate once and for all, and I am very glad to support it and I
wholeheartedly do that. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. MicA. Thank you for your patience.

Now we will hear from another distinguished Texas Representa-
tive, Mr. Hensarling. Welcome, and you are recognized, sir.

TESTIMONY OF THE HON. JEB HENSARLING, A
REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF TEXAS

Mr. HENSARLING. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and Ranking Mem-
ber Costello. Thank you for holding this hearing and for inviting
me to speak.

Last year along with my colleague Sam Johnson, I introduced the
Right to Fly Act which would fully, completely, and immediately re-
peal the Wright amendment. Repeal is important for two reasons.

First, as we know, there are over 500 airports in the U.S. that
have commercial passenger air service. With the exception of
Reagan National which sits on Federal property, Congress in all of
its history has imposed distance limitations on just one airport,
Love Field, and it did it to protect DFW Airport from competition.
I sincerely believe that sort of protectionism is not and should not
be the role of the U.S. Congress.

Secondly, every study of the Wright amendment, regardless of
who commissions it, shows that fares will fall significantly with re-
peal. The U.S. Department of Transportation found that air travel
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in and out of north Texas costs about a third more than the na-

tional average. That is a lot of money our constituents could be

Eslilng to pay health care premiums, fill up a car, or pay a utility
ill.

Still, I understand reasonable minds can and have differed on
this subject for almost 30 years. Just witness this panel. Against
this backdrop, the cities of Dallas and Fort Worth as well as DFW
Airport, American Airlines, and Southwest Airlines entered into
negotiations that produced an historic agreement among them. I
salute Mayors Miller and Moncrief for their tenacity and leadership
in forging this consensus agreement.

I view their agreement as great progress. For the flying public,
though, I do not yet view it as a great success. Still, I have always
indicated a willingness to support other plans besides my own as
long as they meet a twofold test. One, the plan clearly benefits con-
sumers; and two, the plan removes Congress from the business of
airport protectionism.

Without seeing final legislative language, it is unclear to me
whether the local agreement will satisfy these criteria.

With respect to helping consumers, I am concerned that the prof-
fered agreement essentially constitutes an 8-year extension of the
Wright amendment. Most citizens in the area, I think, believe that
a 2- to 5-year gradual phaseout represents the reasonable com-
promise. The previously released Campbell-Hill study indicates
that consumers annually pay almost $700 million extra in airfares
due to the Wright amendment. Therefore, an 8-year extension
translates into another $5 billion loss to our constituents. Even by
Washington standards, Mr. Chairman, that is a big number and a
big burden to American families.

On the other hand, I am increasingly convinced that immediate
through-ticketing can positively impact competition in airfares. Al-
though hard data is hard to come by, American Airlines and South-
west Airlines recently commissioned a study on just this topic and
made it available to me yesterday and, Mr. Chairman, I would ask
that this report be made part of the record.

Mr. MicA. Without objection, so ordered.

Mr. HENSARLING. The conclusion of the joint Campbell-Hill and
SH&E study is as follows: Number one, through-ticketing will
produce 259 million in fare savings annually. Two, 2 million new
passengers will travel to and from the region. Number three, this
will create a $2 billion annual boost to the economy.

Now, while I cannot vouch personally for their methodology, 1
find this report most encouraging that consumers may see a signifi-
cant and immediate benefit from this part of the local agreement.

I am also concerned that under the agreement, the city of Dallas
has chosen to reduce the number of permissible gates at Love Field
from 33 to 20. Still, it is the city’s airport and I respect its right
to contractually bind itself to do just that. I am further concerned
that under the agreement Southwest Airlines has agreed, perhaps
unenthusiastically, to restrict their Love Field’s flights to the nine
permissible States for 8 years. Still, it is their airline and I respect
their right to contractually bind themselves to do just that.

The combination of the two clearly means that full and imme-
diate repeal will render far fewer consumer benefits than would
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otherwise be the case. Given all of this, if a bill comes to the floor
that grants immediate through-ticketing and full repeal 8 years
now, I will view it as solid progress and I intend to vote for it.

My second concern is getting Congress out of the airport protec-
tionism business once and for all. In the compromise agreement,
the airlines and cities make joint pledges in such areas as gate lim-
itations, international flights, initiating flights within 80 miles of
the airports, and the list goes on. Again, parties have the right to
make contracts but I see no compelling reason for Congress to cod-
ify into Federal law private contractual obligations that are en-
forceable in court. Congress would be replacing one complex set of
anticompetitive rules with another.

Using my colleague Sam Johnson’s phrase, we would end up with
"Wright Lite.” thus, if a bill comes to the floor that codifies these
specific obligations of the private parties into Federal law, I intend
to vote against it.

In closing, Mr. Chairman, for far too long the Wright amendment
has been a burden on both consumers and the national economy.
Only Congress can repeal Wright, and we should. But if we cannot
reach agreement on doing so today, and it appears we cannot, I do
stand ready to work with any and all parties to codify into Federal
law the immediate through-ticketing and 8-year repeal portions of
the local compromise. Thank you for the opportunity to testify.

Mr. MicA. Thank you for your testimony.

And now, waiting most patiently—and we probably need a Texas
physician to sum this up— Representative Burgess, you are recog-
nized.

TESTIMONY OF THE HON. MICHAEL BURGESS, A
REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF TEXAS

Mr. BURGESS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you for holding
this hearing. It is a pleasure to be back within the humble confines
of the T&I committee room, again the largest standing committee
in the Free World.

Previously it has been stated that for almost 30 years the Wright
amendment—Mr. Chairman, I would point out that is almost my
entire life—for almost 30 years the Wright amendment has pro-
tected a mutual agreement between the cities of Dallas and Fort
Worth. In fact, without the Wright amendment, look at Austin,
look at Denver, look at Atlanta; I am not certain what happened
in Fayetteville, Arkansas with the opening of the Northwest airport
there, but those cities lost their older airport because of agreements
that were entered into by those cities when they opened a larger,
new facility.

I believe in the integrity of the Wright amendment. I believe it
has enabled Dallas/Fort Worth Airport to become the economic en-
gine of north Texas. If we change the terms of the old agreement,
the new law must protect the lives and the livelihoods of tens of
thousands of people who depend on Dallas/Fort Worth Airport.

Our two mayors, Mayor Moncrief and Mayor Miller, have each
worked diligently along with major stakeholders, and I believe they
have entered into a historic agreement that will protect my con-
stituents, constituents throughout north Texas, for better services
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at Love Field and for continued excellent service at Dallas/Fort
Worth Airport.

I do represent a portion of the Dallas/Fort Worth Airport, but I
also represent Alliance Airport and Denton Municipal Airport. I be-
lieve the surrounding airport interests must be protected.

I am pleased that the mayors made a distinction between com-
mercial, passenger service, and cargo service. Additionally, most
unscheduled charter service is not included in the definition of
commercial passenger service; thus, surrounding airports will be
able to continue their cargo and most charter service without dis-
turbance. This is a very important service and I believe we should
take all the necessary measures to protect communities like the
city of Denton.

It should be noted that this agreement only binds the cities of
Dallas and Fort Worth, American Airlines and Southwest Airlines.
It does not bind the neighboring cities within the 80 miles. There-
fore, their autonomy should remain unquestioned. I would oppose
any measure, whether State or Federal, that would obligate other
parties to this agreement. If other parties are subsequently bound
by this agreement or any form of legislation, this would be contrary
to the intent of the agreement.

It is my hope that any proposed legislation will remain silent on
the issue of preemption.

The Dallas Aviation Department has revealed that the depart-
ment has a $20 million budget shortfall within its two most recent
fiscal years combined. While the aviation department has proposed
increasing their landing fees at Love Field from $0.35 to $0.55, the
Dallas taxpayers, not just the traveling public, but the Dallas tax-
payers are still subsidizing this airport. According the Dallas Morn-
ing News, the landing fee increases will bring in over $900,000 to
the city annually. This obviously falls short of offsetting that budg-
et deficit.

Similarly situated midsize airports charge an average of $1.40
landing fees and I do not understand why the city of Dallas has
been reluctant to charge a more fiscally responsible landing fee.
While clause 5 of the new joint agreement does provide the landing
fees will be adjusted to cover much-needed facility and safety im-
provements, it is my hope that the city of Dallas will rise to the
challenge and increase the landing fees to a more appropriate level.

As with any older facility, modifications need to be made to en-
sure the safety of the entire area. An increase in landing fees could
provide for additional safety improvements that would provide for
the well-being of those in and around Love Field, including runway
expansions and over-run barriers. The citizens of Dallas deserve
these safety measures as well as more transparency in the finan-
cial records at Love Field.

While I would have preferred for the Wright amendment to stay
intact, I have always believed that the fate of the Wright amend-
ment should be decided locally between the cities, since they are
the entities that actually own the DFW Airport and Love Field. If
the Wright amendment is to be modified, it should come first from
the local level and not from Washington.

Just a few short months ago the north Texas delegation charged
Mayor Moncrief and Mayor Miller with this most difficult task.
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Considering the history between the two cities, some felt this task
was in fact impossible. However, Mayor Moncrief and Mayor Miller
rose to the challenge and we now have before us a local agreement
signed by all major stakeholders. It is now our opportunity to rise
to the challenge and, if possible, pass legislation that reflects this
agreement. If it is impossible to enact this legislation that reflects
the agreement, then the Wright amendment should stay firmly in-
tact.

Again, Mr. Chairman, I thank you for having this important
hearing. I offer my assistance to you and the committee regarding
the aviation issues that affect my constituents in north Texas.

Mr. Mica. I thank the gentleman. Thank you again for your pa-
tience.

Do we have any other Members that seek recognition on this
issue before us? Normally we don’t question our fellow Members.
You will get a chance, I am sure, as soon as you get off the panel.

I went to a wedding this weekend where the pastor said, Speak
now or forever hold your peace. This is it, ladies and gentlemen.
No one else.

OK. I want to thank each of you for your participation and your
contribution to today’s hearing and we will excuse you at this time.
Thank you.

We will call our first panel: Michael Cirillo, Vice President of
Systems Operations for the Air Traffic Organization of the FAA.
Mr. Cirillo.

This is probably Andrew’s last hearing. I told you I would speak
for you or against you to help you get a job, Andrew. You got it.
We will miss you.

All right, the representative from FAA, thank you for being with
us, and you are recognized at this time.

TESTIMONY OF MICHAEL CIRILLO, VICE PRESIDENT OF SYS-
TEM OPERATIONS, AIR TRAFFIC ORGANIZATION, FEDERAL
AVIATION ADMINISTRATION

Mr. CIRILLO. Thank you, Chairman Mica, Congressman Costello,
and members of the committee. I appear before you today to dis-
cuss the unique operational restrictions now in place at Dallas
Love Field Airport and whether modifying those restrictions
will

Mr. MicA. It is a little hard to hear. Can you either pull that up
or speak closer?

Mr. CIriLLO. Is that OK?

I appear before you today to discuss unique operational restric-
tions now in place at Dallas Love Field Airport and whether modi-
fying those restrictions will result in a denigration of air space effi-
ciency in the Dallas/Fort Worth area.

The background of the Wright amendment has been well dis-
cussed. The FAA has been asked if safety would be affected by per-
mitting additional flights into and out of Love Field. The agency
has said consistently and repeatedly what I emphasize today: FAA
will never compromise its safety standards to accommodate in-
creased demand.

Our most critical mission is aviation safety, including keeping
aircraft safely separated from one another. Consequently, the only
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question that should be asked from an airspace perspective is
whether further modification to the Wright amendment would com-
promise efficient airspace use in the Dallas/Fort Worth area.

Based on a recent MITRE study requested by FAA of air space
operations if the Wright amendment is repealed and based on
FAA’s validation of MITRE’s findings I can tell you FAA does not
expect the efficient use of airspace will be compromised.

Knowing that the debate on the Wright amendment was ongoing,
FAA contacted MITRE and asked them to assess the impact to effi-
ciency of increased operations at both DFW and Love Field. Results
of the analysis indicate there is significant additional capacity in
the Dallas/Fort Worth terminal area airspace. While additional op-
erations at these airports may increase complexity, many other re-
gions of the country have airspace that is at least this complex. In
each case the potential conflicts are unique to the particular loca-
tion. Factors such as the number of airports in the region, the
number of runways at each port, how they are situated, and the
number and type of operations conducted there are only some of
the considerations that dictate how FAA controls traffic in a given
region. FAA has great flexibility in using a wide range of tech-
nologies and procedures to accommodate the air traffic needs of an
area. Some of you may remember a couple of years ago the number
of operations in Washington-Dulles International Airport signifi-
cantly increased at a time when a new carrier initiated service at
the same airport. At that same time, construction had closed one
runway. FAA was able to implement traffic management initiatives
to efficiently accommodate the increase in demand.

Similarly, the airspace in the Northeast Corridor and southern
Florida is quite congested with several major airports in close prox-
imity.

In addition, Chairman Mica recently held a field hearing in Cali-
fornia to address his concerns that the operational challenges in
that region were being met. I cite these examples to demonstrate
the nature of our business, that FAA is asked on a daily basis to
control traffic and maximize airspace and efficiency in a highly
changeable environment characterized by congested routes, dy-
namic traffic, and volatile weather. Yet, by tailoring our resources
to the unique demands of each situation, we have been able to do
what we are asked, safely and efficiently.

The MITRE study assumed a range of operational increases.
Their conclusion, which FAA has validated, is that it would take
hundreds of additional daily operations at both airports for there
to be reportable volume-related delays. It would take hundreds
more daily flights on top of that to result in what FAA would con-
sider to be significant delays.

It should be noted that their study did not factor delays that
would be attributed to weather. While the MITRE study was based
on unconstrained operations at Love Field, actual operations under
the agreement reached by the parties would in fact be somewhat
constrained by a limit on the number of gates that could be used.
Given this limitation and MITRE’s finding of no significant effect
even in unconstrained conditions, we are confident that the oper-
ational increases that would result from the proposed modification
to the Wright amendment would not result in efficiency problems
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for the Dallas/Fort Worth metropolitan area or the national air-
space system. Even if operations in the area increase beyond what
FAA anticipates, we have options to handle the significant increase
in flights if necessary.

Last month, Russ Chew testified before you about some of the
notable successes of the air traffic organization, one of which was
Area Navigation or RNAV. They provide flight path guidance that
is incorporated into onboard aircraft avionic systems requiring only
minimal air traffic instruction. This technology significantly re-
duces routine controller-pilot communications, allowing more time
on frequency for pilots and controllers to handle other safety-relat-
ed critical flight activity.

Also RNAV procedures use more precise routes for takeoffs and
landings, reducing fuel burn and time intervals between aircraft on
the runways. This creates increased air traffic efficiency, enhances
safety and may allow some increase in air traffic throughput. We
currently have RNAV procedures in place for DFW but not for Love
Field. So establishing it for Love Field is one option available to us
should air traffic demand increase substantially. Should the need
arise, we would also look at modifying flows and sector configura-
tions on a larger scale.

In conclusion, I want to reiterate that FAA’s commitment to safe-
ty means we would never consider sacrificing accepted safety
standards for the sake of efficiency or anything else. If Congress
decides to modify the existing unique restrictions at Love Field and
impose other unique restrictions there, FAA will continue to safely
separate aircraft regardless of the operational impact of the legisla-
tion. Having looked at the anticipated impacts of what we know is
under consideration, we have no reason to believe system efficiency
would be compromised.

This concludes my prepared statement. I will be happy to answer
your questions at this time and I apologize I don’t have slides. I
debated, but in the end decided not to. I look forward to discussing
the operation with you.

Mr. MicA. Thank you for your testimony.

I have one really two-part question for you. First, you are going
to tell us today unequivocally, without any doubt or reservation,
that it is safe.

Mr. CIRILLO. Yes, sir.

Mr. MicA. The second part of that would be you are going to tell
us that FAA will either have the resources or has the resources or
can put the resources in place to make certain that the equipment,
personnel, or whatever are required facilities to ensure safety will
be there.

Mr. CIrILLO. Yes, sir.

Mr. MicA. That is all I need to know.

Mr. Costello.

Mr. CosTELLO. Mr. Chairman, thank you. Let me ask you, how
many additional operations would it take at Dallas/Fort Worth or
both airports to affect the efficiency?

Mr. CiriLLO. We characterize the efficiency in a manner of de-
scribing delays, and to get to a point where we would have report-
able delays, it really is hundreds of additional flights. DFW’s peak
year was somewhere around 875,000 operations. In 2005 they oper-
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ated somewhere around 740,000 operations, and Dallas Love coinci-
dentally had the same peak year; they operated somewhere around
260,000 operations, and last year they were in the 235,000 range.
And at that point there was still not significant volume-related
delays in the area even in their peak year. So we have some built-
in flexibility.

Mr. CosTELLO. How much flexibility?

Mr. CiriLLO. The MITRE study is not complete yet, but when I
say hundreds, I am looking at the 2- to 400 range, additional
flights.

Mr. CosTELLO. If the Wright amendment is repealed, have you
or the FAA made any projections regarding the potential increased
flight operations at Love Field by the year 20157

Mr. CIRILLO. No, sir, we have not made those projections.

Mr. CoSTELLO. Have you made any projections at all?

Mr. CIriLLO. No.

Mr. CoSTELLO. Mr. Chairman, I don’t have any other questions
at this time, and I would yield the balance of my time to Mr. Ober-
star, in addition to the time he is entitled to.

Mr. MicA. That might be stretching it, but he is recognized.

Mr. OBERSTAR. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you, Mr.
Costello.

You say, Mr. Cirillo, significant additional capacity. There are
549,000 operations at the two airports today, not counting the gen-
eral aviation ops at DFW. How much more on top of that do you
say you can accommodate? Operations, operations.

Mr. CIRILLO. The operations, the totals that I discussed were in-
cluding general aviation operations.

Mr. OBERSTAR. So you are talking about 200 additional, is that
what you said in response to Mr. Costello, 200 additional oper-
ations?

Mr. CIRILLO. It is based on preliminary data.

Mr. OBERSTAR. Two hundred a month, a year?

Mr. CIRILLO. Per day.

Mr. OBERSTAR. Now the four-post operation in your airspace de-
sign has greatly alleviated the terrible congestion that existed 15
years ago. You still have aircraft about 2 miles apart from each
other, don’t you, on arrivals and departures in the air, aircraft in
the air.

Mr. CIRILLO. Depending on the configuration. There is one waiv-
er for one configuration at DFW but that is because they are proce-
durally separated. But generally 2 miles is not the separation
standard that is used. They use a minimum separation standard
which is based on wake turbulence, notwithstanding we use the
minimum separation standard, which is either 3 miles or greater.

Mr. OBERSTAR. You are sticking to the 3-mile separation. It de-
pends on type and model of aircraft though, doesn’t it?

Mr. CIRILLO. Yes, sir. Wake turbulence, a larger aircraft——

Mr. OBERSTAR. If you have a twin-aisle wide body, you need more
separation en route.

Mr. CirILLO. In trail.

Mr. OBERSTAR. In trail. And even with a 757 you need more sep-
aration.
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Mr. CIriLLO. Yes, sir. On final approach with the 757 to the
same airport.

Mr. OBERSTAR. So you have on this configuration using the in-
bound here; inbound separated by route, inbound is separated by
altitude. You have different climb rates of different aircraft. The
737, which is principally the Southwest fleet, it has about the fast-
est climb rate, 65,000 feet per minute.

Mr. CIRILLO. Yes, sir.

Mr. OBERSTAR. Is that sufficient? Would you require that for all
aircraft to have comparable climb rates so they are out of the wake
turbulence of arriving and departing aircraft?

Mr. CirILLO. In this case when they are utilizing vertical separa-
tion it is—these aircraft are not necessarily in trail so they are ac-
tually separated vertically.

Mr. OBERSTAR. At DFW have you implemented the new vertical
separation, the reduced vertical separation standards FAA has
adopted?

Mr. CiriLLO. The reduced vertical separation standards were ap-
plicable above 29,000 feet and they mirror the separation stand-
ards vertically that we use below that. So they do use the same
separation standard, which is 1,000 feet vertically.

Mr. OBERSTAR. Given those concerns, and I know that FAA is not
going to compromise safety, but in order to assure safety, in order
;c_o maintain the margin of safety, you may have to slow down traf-
ic.

Mr. CiriLLO. In the case of the arrivals that you described, they
are procedurally separated and the DFW and Love traffic is really
not an issue. They are procedurally separated and not restricted
based on each other. So it would

Mr. OBERSTAR. Your conversation up to this point at least has an
underlying assumption of good weather. What about severe weath-
er, which frequently—well, it is a common occurrence in the DFW
airspace. What do you do then?

Mr. CIRILLO. In severe weather it completely depends on the sce-
nario. We have instances where we have all routes to a particular
metropolitan area, you may shut down the entire Metroplex area.
We have had that situation occur throughout the system. So in the
case of severe weather, it really is dependent on the particular sce-
nario. There may be one inbound and outbound route, and in the
case of weather we will incur delays, and that is systemwide.

Mr. OBERSTAR. What do you anticipate in number of operational
increases with this agreement as you understand it as it has been
lai%d(‘)?ut? What do you anticipate in the number of ops out of Love
Field?

Mr. CiriLLO. We really have not made that calculation. We
haven’t had enough discussions with particular customers

Mr. OBERSTAR. Is that something MITRE is supposed to study
for you?

Mr. CIRILLO. Their study was really unconstrained with no infor-
mation based on projections, no science based on the projection. It
was just an unconstrained number of additional aircraft.

Mr. OBERSTAR. To date, 757s do not operate out of Love Field;
but under this agreement they could, right?

Mr. CiriLLO. Well
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Mr. OBERSTAR. Love Field has at least a runway capacity to be
able to handle that. 13R is 8,800 feet, 13L is 7,052 feet.

Mr. CiriLLO. I think physically a 757 could operate out of that
airport. I have no idea actually at this time whether there is a plan
to do that or not.

Mr. OBERSTAR. There doesn’t appear to be. They don’t exist in
the Southwest fleet. I don’t recall whether American has 757s in
its fleet. But some may want to put 180, 200-passenger aircraft in
that operation and extend their revenue option.

That would then generate some new safety concerns, wouldn’t it?

Mr. CiriLLO. It wouldn’t generate a safety concern. We would
apply the applicable separation in trail behind a Boeing 757.

Mr. OBERSTAR. But it would be a new procedure for that airport
which doesn’t have that type of operation now.

Mr. CiriLLO. I think that occasionally there are wide-bodied air-
craft that come into Love for maintenance or charters, so I think
that it has accommodated those on the non-schedule type of basis.

Mr. OBERSTAR. What are the nav aids in use at DFW for both
fields? Do you have RNAV in service?

Mr. CiriLLO. We have RNAV departures at DFW, we do not have
those procedures for Dallas Love.

Mr. OBERSTAR. Is there a control tower at Love Field?

Mr. CIRILLO. Yes, sir.

Mr. OBERSTAR. What radar do they have at the tower?

Mr. CiriLLO. They have—the Dallas/Fort Worth Metroplex area
has at least four terminal radars.

Mr. OBERSTAR. I know that. So those terminals will be—are the
control tower for Love Field?

Mr. CirILLO. They provide the radar coverage.

Mr. OBERSTAR. Are those ASR 9, 11s?

Mr. CIriLLO. Either ASR 9s or 11s.

Mr. OBERSTAR. They are state-of-the-art.

Do you have STARS in operation at the TRACON?

Mr. CIRILLO. No. They have Common Arts.

Mr. OBERSTAR. Common Arts.

Well, I think that at least, at the very least, this opening up of
Love Field does raise some more concern, more challenge for FAA
to more carefully manage that airspace; wouldn’t you say that?

Mr. CIrRILLO. I would say that we carefully manage the airspace
always.

Mr. OBERSTAR. I know you do.

Mr. CiriLLO. We have a great concern for safety. As I said, re-
gardless of what the legislation

Mr. OBERSTAR. You will adapt to whatever comes. Whatever way
is necessary and whatever additional technology is necessary. To
maintain safety at the highest possible level, as it is stated in the
opening paragraph of the 1958 FAA Act.

Mr. CiRILLO. Yes, sir.

Mr. OBERSTAR. Thank you.

Mr. MicA. Thank you.

Mr. Coble.

Mr. CoBLE. Mr. Chairman, I have no questions. I have been
plagued today with a rigidly inflexible schedule. I have another
hearing imminently and I wanted my Chairman to know that my
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absence does not indicate lack of interest. I thank you and the dis-
tinguished gentleman from Illinois for having scheduled this very
important hearing, and with that I will yield the balance of my
time.

Mr. MicA. Your absence was actually appreciated today.

Mr. CoBLE. I appreciate that, Mr. Chairman. Reclaiming my
time, I did ask for that.

I yield the balance of my time to the distinguished gentleman
from Alabama, Mr. Bachus.

Mr. BacHUS. Mr. Chairman, he yielded the balance of his time
to me too.

I am a big supporter of Southwest Airlines and also of competi-
tion and so I do want to ask this question. The FAA is charged
with air traffic safety, and of course we have been spending all our
time here talking about the increase in number of flights. You said
that you could take over 100 new flights or more. If I look at what
I have read about this agreement, you are demolishing gates at
Love Field, so why would anybody think we are going to have more
flights out of Love Field?

Mr. CiriLLO. The study that was done was not based on any
ground infrastructure. It was just a look-see at what additional ac-
tivity at the airport would produce in the way of efficiency.

Mr. BacHUS. But I think realistically—I noticed and I read an
article where the Mayor of Dallas, Mayor Miller, said they were
going to demolish a 7-year old terminal with 700 parking spaces.

One of your other charges at FAA is to make sure that any air-
port that receives Federal funding—I guess Love Field receives
Federal funding, does it not?

Mr. CiriLLO. I don’t know.

Mr. BAacHUS. I think you probably could assume that it does. As-
suming that it does, does this agreement—one of the primary
charges FAA has is that any Federal airport that receives Federal
funding or any airport that receives Federal funding, what it says
is, “does not discriminate against airlines by aiding one over the
other in any way.”

]())oes this agreement do that or does it exclude another competi-
tor?

Mr. CiriLLO. We actually do not have a position on that.

Mr. BAcHUS. You are not speaking for the FAA because they are
legally—that is part of your charge.

Mr. CIrILLO. In this case the legislation is pending and whatever
the legislation entails, we will comply with that.

Mr. BACHUS. Let me back up and—you are aware that one of the
FAA charges is to make sure the airlines receiving Federal funds
do not discriminate against airlines by aiding one over the other
in any way. You are aware of that provision.

Mr. CIRILLO. Yes, sir.

Mr. BAcHUS. Would an agreement that left all the gates at a cer-
tain airport under the control of two or three airlines, at least on
its face, appear to violate that discrimination?

Mr. CiriLLO. I don’t even want to speculate as to whether or not
it would.

Mr. BAcHUS. Would you if I submitted a written question to you
in that regard?
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Mr. CIRILLO. We would answer the question.

Mr. BAcHUS. Thank you. I mean, I am just curious. As you all
looked at this—and your entire testimony was dealing with safety,
one of your charges being that this is in the best interest of the
traveling public. I commend the fact that the mayors have gotten
together, and the airlines, and made an agreement. I welcome that.
I think the Wright amendment has cost the people of north Texas
millions of dollars and I think this agreement will save them mil-
lions of dollars.

I think there are things in this agreement that are troubling,
however, from a competitiveness standpoint, from a discrimination
standpoint. And I would ask the FAA to look at those provisions
which cap the number of gates at Love Field. I wouldn’t worry so
much about all these planes being stacked up over an airfield
where the gates are being capped.

The other thing is this clause 6. Have you looked at that?

Mr. OBERSTAR. Would the gentleman yield? The gentleman
said—asked the FAA to look at that competition issue. That is a
DOT responsibility, not FAA responsibility. I think we should insist
that the DOT, which has competition responsibilities

Mr. BAcHUS. Also the FAA. The FAA, one of their charges, Mr.
Oberstar, is—the DOT additionally.

Mr. OBERSTAR. The DOD will be the venue at which such issues
will be——

Mr. BacHUs. The FAA and their funding determinations—I
mean, I am actually quoting from their provision.

Mr. CIriLLO. I would just say that the Wright amendment is
unique, so to generally speculate is——

Mr. BACHUS. Let me say this. Congress can override the FAA,
and Congress did that in the case of the Wright amendment. They
preempted the FAA and their charge and we can do that in this
case. We can absolutely adopt this and we could override and we
could actually enact into law something that would shut out other
airlines from Love Field. Congress has a right to do that. We did
that in the Wright amendment.

I am just saying does the FAA—you have come in and talked
about safety concerns. I am just asking you, one of your charges
is also to talk about competitive issues, and did you want to talk
about those?

Mr. CIRILLO. No, I am not here to talk about the competitive as-
pect of this based on where we are.

Mr. BACHUS. I am not trying to put you on the spot. Did you hear
some of the members talk about clause 6 and some of the outlying
airports, Dennison, Alliance and McKinney?

Mr. CIRILLO. Yes.

Mr. BACHUS. It seems to me like you have discouraged flights
into those fields of flight that actually could increase the number
of flights into Dallas/Fort Worth and actually add to the number
of flights.

Mr. CiriLLO. We have not done an analysis of the satellite air-
ports and not speculated on where the agreement may go relative
to them. Our analysis was particular to or specific to Dallas/Fort
Worth and Dallas Love.
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Mr. BacHUS. I don’t know really anything other than what mem-
bers said, that there were some provisions, and I am sure the
city—it is one thing if I am mayor, I am going to encourage as
many people as possible to come in. But I am not sure the Con-
gress should enact provisions which in any way encourage business
to go away from Dennison or Alliance.

I would just ask the FAA to take a second look and look at those
provisions and see if they in any way would affect air travel or the
number of flights and whether there are any safety issues there.

Mr. CirILLO. We will do that.

Mr. BAcHUS. Thank you. I yield back.

Mr. MicA. Thank the gentleman.

Ms. Johnson from Texas, you are recognized.

Ms. JOHNSON OF TEXAS. Thank you very much. Let me first com-
ment on my colleague’s inquiry there from Alabama. Let me assure
you that before this agreement, there was not that much limitation
on the flights coming into Love Field. The limitation came when
Southwest put them out of business.

Mr. BAcHUS. I am sorry, I couldn’t hear.

Ms. JOHNSON OF TEXAS. The limitation on the flights coming into
Love Field had to do with Southwest putting them out of business
by dropping those fares so low they couldn’t compete. There have
been several that tried. But it is a city-owned airport, and I believe
that the city would have the authority to limit flights or to request
the FAA to increase them. This is an agreement that has been
reached because the original one asked for Love Field to be closed
to commercial traffic.

Mr. BacHuS. I could be under a misunderstanding. I was think-
ing that the agreement capped the number of gates and

Ms. JOHNSON OF TEXAS. That has a lot to do with that neighbor-
hood and safety.

Mr. BacHUS. That was the reason for some of my questions. The
gentleman, I thought he said that it could take hundreds of more
flights without safety concerns, so that raised the issue with me
about why are we capping the number of gates. You freeze the
number of gates that Southwest Airlines has to 16 so you—obvi-
ously, according to the FAA’s testimony today, there is no safety
reason for that. It apparently is you are—I wish they had 30 or 40
gates.

Ms. JOHNSON OF TEXAS. We don'’t.

Mr. BACHUS. Actually, they are going to tear down a 7-year old
terminal—

Mr. CIRILLO. Just in the interest of being correct, my testimony
spoke to efficiency.

Mr. BACHUS. I am sorry.

Mr. CirILLO. My testimony spoke to efficiency. We stipulated
that we would maintain a safe environment and the additional
flights were at a level that would affect the efficiency of the airport,
not the safety of the airport.

Mr. BACHUS. I thought your testimony——

Ms. JOHNSON OF TEXAS. Reclaiming my time.

Mr. BAcHUS. I thought you said it could accommodate hundreds
of additional flights into the area.

Mr. CIrILLO. Yes.
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Ms. JOHNSON OF TEXAS. I suppose that even the testimony that
I heard about the 80-mile radius, if the population grew to the
point where there was that much more demand for commercial
traffic, I imagine we could negotiate that with the FAA. It is just
really not there. I don’t know why all these people want to come
to Dallas. They can go anywhere they want to go without having
to come to Dallas. It is a puzzle to me why many of them feel that
they have to either leave or depart Dallas in order to have services
of Southwest Airlines. That is not the case. But we have a big air-
port, new as airports go, that there are many airlines that could
go out there and it is ready to receive them. It is ready to receive
Southwest.

But I think in terms of safety from FAA, there was a study done
in Dallas as well, and these 20 gates really has to do with not im-
posing any more subjection of the people that live around there to
environmental concerns as well as safety concerns. There are about
123,000 students in that general area in school and if you want to
hear about the intensity of feeling about safety in that area, you
can go home with me. It is in my district. Those voters are, too.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. MicA. Thank you. Additional members seek recognition? Mr.
Filner.

Mr. FILNER. Just briefly. Mr. Cirillo, you testified that if you
needed to, you could put more safety features like this RNAV at
Love. What would that cost?

Mr. CIRILLO. Actually, it is a combination of procedures and use
of equipment on board the aircraft, so it is not additional tech-
nology, for example, our automation or communication infrastruc-
ture. So it is fairly inexpensive. It involves procedural design and
training.

Mr. FILNER. So you can add that safety feature at Love without
any cost, as opposed to redoing procedures.

Mr. CIRILLO. It is a procedural redesign that is fairly inexpen-
sive.

Mr. FILNER. Thank you very much.

Mr. MicA. Any other members seek recognition? If there are no
other questions of this witness, we appreciate your testimony and
we will excuse you at this time.

I now call the second panel. The panel consists of the Honorable
Laura Miller, Mayor of the City of Dallas, Texas; the Honorable
Mike Moncrief, Mayor of the City of Fort Worth, Texas; Mr. Gerard
Arpey, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of American Airlines;
Mr. Herb Kelleher, Chairman of the Board of Southwest Airlines;
and Mr. Kevin Cox, Chief Operating Officer and Senior Executive
Vice President of the Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport.

I would like to welcome each of the witnesses.
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TESTIMONY OF HON. LAURA MILLER, MAYOR, CITY OF DAL-
LAS, TEXAS; HON. MIKE MONCRIEF, MAYOR, CITY OF FORT
WORTH, TEXAS; GERARD ARPEY, CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EX-
ECUTIVE OFFICER, AMERICAN AIRLINES; HERB KELLEHER,
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD, SOUTHWEST AIRLINES; AND
KEVIN COX, CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER AND SENIOR EXEC-
UTIVE VICE PRESIDENT, DALLAS/FORT WORTH INTER-
NATIONAL AIRPORT

Mr. MicA. We will start off by hearing from the Mayor of Dallas,
Texas, Laura Miller. Welcome, and you are recognized. You will
have to hit that little button.

Ms. MILLER. Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you to Ranking
Member Costello and members of the subcommittee. We appreciate
being able to testify before you, and now that we have heard all
of the other comments, we are anxious to answer all the questions
and try to clarify some of the issues.

As you have heard, the cities of Dallas, Fort Worth, Dallas/Fort
Worth International Airport Board, Southwest Airlines, and Amer-
ican Airlines are the five parties that have reached an agreement
among ourselves. All of us have now approved that as of last night
when Fort Worth approved the agreement.

Much like the agreement that led to the creation of Dallas/Fort
Worth Airport 32 years ago, the agreement represents the best that
we have in regional cooperation and signals that whatever our past
differences on Love Field, the cities of Dallas and Fort Worth are
committed and joined at the hip to working together on behalf of
our region’s future.

Before I proceed with my testimony I would like to thank the en-
tire North Central Texas delegation. They asked us to come up
with a local solution; we have delivered that. We are here to
strongly encourage Congress to approve it without modification,
and we will give you all of those reasons in a moment.

I would also like to thank two members of the subcommittee in
particular, Representative Eddie Bernice Johnson and Representa-
tive Kenny Marchant, for their support on this issue and for mak-
ing this hearing possible.

And I also want to thank, of course, my good friend and partner
in this endeavor, Fort Worth Mayor Mike Moncrief, for his leader-
ship and his dedication in getting this resolved. Our city councils
and our business communities both participated in the work that
brought us here today.

When the congressional delegation asked us to find a local solu-
tion, it was 4 months ago. The problems were very complex and the
interests between the parties were extremely entrenched. The rift
between our two cities has for too long kept the fifth largest metro-
politan area in America from developing its full economic potential,
and that is the reason that we worked so hard to do this.

The five parties reached an agreement, and the top three things
on our minds are the following, number one, to keep the third busi-
est airport in the world strong. It is our economic engine for north
Texas, DFW Airport. We created it together the two city cities and
our bond covenants say that the two cities shall make sure that we
protect that asset.



31

Number two, we wanted to protect the neighbors around Love
Field, the residents and businesses. It is a landlocked intercity air-
port and we have done an enormous amount of work in the last 10
years to make sure that we had a balance between growth in com-
petition and also the protection of the neighborhoods regarding pol-
lution, ground congestion, and noise.

I want the committee to know that we have the gentleman,
George Vitas, who is the senior person who did the Love Field mas-
ter plan in 2001 that originally recommended 32 gates as long as
the Wright amendment stayed in place. We updated that for pur-
poses of these discussions between the two cities, and that number
went to 20 because the same consultants looked at what is the very
best number of gates to have without the Wright amendment; if
that one variable changed, then how many gates would be appro-
priate in terms of the environment, in terms of economic growth,
and in terms of operations and safety. And that is why the number
is 20 and not 17 or 22 or 25, and that gentleman is here behind
me and is able to answer a lot of the questions that I heard being
posed to the gentleman with the FAA if you look in terms of our
master plan work that we have been doing for the last 10 years.

Our solution has the support of the committees surrounding Love
Field, the business community, and the president of the Greater
Dallas Chamber of Commerce, Erle Nye, who has been deeply in-
volved in the process, came to the Hill with us a few weeks ago to
talk to some of you about the initiative.

The Love Field Citizens Action Committee, as Congresswoman
Johnson said, has written letters expressing their support. They
are very detailed and that has been entered into the testimony.
This agreement will gradually open Love field to allow direct non-
stop flight to and from the cities throughout the United States in
a manner that protects the neighborhoods and also enables Dallas/
Fort Worth International Airport to cement its lead role in our re-
gion. It will free Love Field from almost 30 years of control and,
importantly, allow Dallas to move forward in updating the master
plan that I referenced.

The master plan concluded that our master plan goals can be
fully implemented under the 20 gate limit set by the five-party
agreement. It maintains the ground traffic noise and air quality
impacts of the air service that 32 gates with the Wright amend-
ment would bring. The 20 gate limit without the Wright amend-
ment will also enhance safety and efficiency.

A few airlines, as you know, have complained that the five-party
agreement would bar new carriers from Love Field. Not so. There
will be room for new entrants and for new service to other destina-
tions from our airport now and after the airport is reconfigured.

Today our airport has 19 gates that are currently in use. The so-
lution will increase the current number of operational gates from
19 to 20. New entrants are welcome under our existing gate-shar-
ing provisions, and that does not change under the agreement and
we welcome all entrants to Dallas Love Field as we do Dallas Fort
Worth International Airport.

We also will be having a much improved airport because of this
solution. As part of the agreement the city of Dallas has agreed to
invest between $150 million and $200 million for a lot of upgrades
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at Love Field consistent with the master plan. We will fund them
using landing fees, space rental charges, and passenger facility
charges. The investments will improve operations, increase safety,
%mprove the traveler’s experience and boost our airport’s bottom
ine.

The investments include two components to address safety issues
which I know were of considerable concern to Representative Ober-
star. We will be adding 1,000 feet to the runway safety areas off
the north end of Love Field’s two parallel runways to bring them
into compliance with Federal compliance, and we will build a new
$8 million public safety and crisis management facility that will en-
hance security and emergency response by combining the adminis-
trative functions of the Dallas Airport Police, Dallas Fire and Res-
cue, Airport Operations, and the controlled access security system
in a facility that will be separate from the main terminal building.

We are also committed in this agreement to other improvements
at Love Field including the expansion of retail concession, renova-
tion of the central lobby, a new cargo building, renovation of the
intersection of Mockingbird Lane and Cedar Springs at the en-
trance to the airport, a new ticket wing and pedestrian bridge, ren-
ovation of the concourse and landscaping.

We will also fund any construction, renovation, or demolition
work related to limiting Love Field to 20 gates and we will explore
construction of a people-mover that will directly connect the termi-
nal at Love Field with a planned new rail station on the northwest
light rail line that is planned by our rapid transit agency.

Mr. Chairman, this landmark agreement represents our very
best efforts in regional cooperation. It will improve service, improve
safety, efficiency, in a manner that minimizes the impact on the
neighborhoods. It will cement Dallas/Fort Worth International Air-
port as the hub of our regional economy and it will also, we believe,
create enormous air competition and lower fares for our consumers.

We need your help to make it happen. We know we are on a very
fast timetable and we appreciate your letting us come to you so
quickly and tell you why this compromise should be approved.
Thank you.

Mr. MARCHANT. [Presiding.] Thank you, Mayor. Thank you for
your hard work on this.

At this time it is my privilege to introduce to you the mayor of
the city of Fort Worth, Mr. Mike Moncrief.

Mr. MONCRIEF. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, Ranking Member
Costello, and Ranking Member Oberstar and members of the com-
mittee. It is an honor to appear before you as mayor of one of the
fastest growing cities in the country: Fort Worth, Texas.

Let me first say that I fully understand that your time is valu-
able and I will keep my remarks brief. We deeply respect the jobs
that you do and we thank you for giving us the forum to discuss
the significance of this local agreement. The debate over the Wright
amendment has been long and turbulent, with impassioned argu-
ments on all sides.

It goes without saying that I am delighted to be here in support
of a proposal that would finally settle this local issue which has at
times divided our entire region. I am most appreciative of my col-
league and friend, Dallas Mayor Laura Miller, for her partnership,
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for her support during this process. And of course there were times
where we agreed to disagree, but in the end I am proud that our
two cities worked jointly towards what was best for our citizens,
the flying public, the airlines and our airports.

We also owe a great deal of gratitude to the leadership of DFW
Airport, American Airlines, Southwest Airlines, for their willing-
ness to chart a new path. I especially want to thank Senator Kay
Bailey Hutchinson who, along with Senator John Cornyn, urged us
to forge this compromise.

I also want to express my sincere appreciation to Chairman Joe
Barton, Representatives Granger, Burgess, Eddie Bernice Johnson,
you, Mr. Chairman, and the rest of the north Texas delegation for
your support.

Although our target was elusive, I believe we produced what we
were asked to construct by our congressional leaders: a local solu-
tion to a local problem. In my years of public service I have never
been involved in more intense, challenging, and nonstop negotia-
tions. Each of us spent countless hours, days, weeks and months
cussing and discussing the pros and cons of what we have before
you today.

Our compromise is an example of what happens when everyone
shares in the pain to make something significant take place. All
parties here have, what I would like to say, some skin in the game.
Sometimes the best decisions are the ones where no one really gets
everything that they want but, rather, where everyone walks away
at least feeling that the greater good has been served.

Our compromise is a case in point. Ultimately we are presenting
you with a fair and balanced product. It is an agreement that as
mayor I can represent to you the leaders of Fort Worth firmly
stand behind. This is bigger than two cities, two airlines or two air-
ports. The settlement affects thousands of families. It affects busi-
nesses, large and small alike. The plan has enormous implications
for the Dallas/Fort Worth regional economy, which I might add is
one of the largest in the world, as it will protect countless local jobs
and preserve the future of our metroplex.

Our agreement is predicated upon the condition that Congress
will enact legislation to implement both the terms and spirit of this
agreement. While we are proud of our accomplishments thus far,
it will be for naught if Congress alters or fails to adopt this com-
promise as presented. We understand the difficult task ahead of
you and we are counting on you to put an end to this debate for
good. If we all do our jobs, the provisions of this local agreement
will be adopted as Federal law and we will have a binding contract
between all parties. Our local city councils and this Congress can
move on to other important issues, and this very difficult challenge
will not be left at the feet for future leaders.

If we do our jobs, the largest airline in the world, American, and
the largest domestic carrier in the United States, Southwest, can
focus their energy on competing in the air and not here in the halls
of Congress. They can stop spending money on lawyers, lobbyists
and campaign-style advertisements. If we do our jobs, Dallas/Fort
Worth Airport, our region’s most important economic engine and
job creator, can continue to be the gateway to the world. All Ameri-
cans, your constituents and ours, will ultimately be free to fly any-
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where in the United States and they can realize a future filled with
healthy airline competition that will lead to more competitive air
fares.

However, should Congress fail to carry through this local com-
promise—sadly, Mr. Chairman, but certainly—everyone, including
the public, our citizens, will lose. By our presence today we, the
parties to this agreement, affirm our approval of this local solution
that was negotiated in the best interest of the citizens and econo-
mies of the Dallas/Fort Worth metroplex. We urge your strong sup-
port of our legislative proposal, without amendment, and we thank
you very much for your time and consideration.

Mr. MARCHANT. Thank you, Mayor.

And now I introduce to you the President of American Airlines,
Chairman and CEO, and one of my constituents, Mr. Arpey.

Mr. ARPEY. Thank you all for the opportunity to be with you this
afternoon to share with you American’s perspective on the Love
Field compromise. On behalf of the more than 90,000 employees of
American Airlines I want to extend our appreciation to the commit-
tee for its prompt scheduling of the hearing today and for its will-
ingness to expeditiously consider the proposed legislation regarding
the Wright amendment.

I think it is fair to say that this is a day that many in this room
believed would never come, including, I must confess, myself. The
controversy surrounding Love Field and the Wright amendment
has loomed over American Airlines longer than I have been with
the company, and I was hired by American nearly 25 years ago,
and I know the same is true for Southwest Airlines. But of course,
the issue’s importance extends far beyond any one company. The
impact of what this committee decides will be felt throughout
Texas, the Southwest, and in hundreds of other communities
around the country.

Almost 2 years ago this committee’s Chairman Don Young de-
clared that it was up to the communities in north Texas to reach
a resolution to the Wright amendment controversy if changes in
the law were to be made. We were grateful for that declaration be-
cause it showed a sensitivity to how complicated this issue is and
how substantial an impact it has both locally and nationally. And,
importantly, over many years, Ranking Member Jim Oberstar has
been a consistent advocate of maintaining the Wright amendment
for reasons of safety, efficiency and sound economics, a position
that I know carries enormous weight with his colleagues on this
committee. Many other Members of the House, both on and off the
committee, have vigorously rejected calls for repeal of the Wright
amendment. Among them, most notably, are Energy and Com-
merce Chairman Joe Barton, Kay Granger, John Sullivan, Michael
Burgess and Kenny Marchant.

I think it is very important to recognize that on this committee
the Representative of the district in which Love Field sits, Eddie
Bernice Johnson, has been an outspoken advocate against repeal,
a position and perspective that I hope will make a great difference
in your deliberations.

Now I emphasize all of this not to rehash old controversies but
to make the point that this debate is not between the proposed
compromise on the one hand and immediate repeal of the Wright
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amendment on the other. Rather, this is all about either solving
the problem once and for all or returning to the status quo with
the Wright amendment firmly in place and the battle raging on.

Some airlines who have sat on the sidelines and who have had
the opportunity for years to fly to Love Field are attacking this
compromise and proclaiming their sudden and heretofore secret de-
sire to operate from Love Field. I would urge the committee to re-
ject the attempts of the latecomers to be spoilers and to recognize
the opportunity at hand by acting swiftly to enact legislation. De-
spite the fact that American Airlines strongly endorses this pro-
posed legislation, I have made no secret of the fact that my pref-
erence would have been either maintaining the Wright amendment
without change or closing Love Field to commercial traffic alto-
gether. This compromise did not come easily for us.

We have made two major concessions to get to this point. First,
we have agreed to support an immediate repeal of the provisions
of the Wright amendment that prevent through-ticketing to Love
Field or to points outside the States where service is allowed. Sec-
ond, we have agreed to full repeal in 8 years. Both of these conces-
sions will be economically harmful to American. In return, how-
ever, we have been assured that Love Field will not grow into a
mammoth facility that would cause us to split our operations be-
tween two airports in such a way that both our small community
and international service would be jeopardized from DFW airport.

While high-density point-to-point markets can be supported from
any major airport, it takes the synergies of a robust network to
support service to smaller communities and to amass sufficient
traffic in one point to sustain international service. Hence, under
this agreement DFW Airport can remain a viable hub for Amer-
ican. In addition, we will be able to chart our future without the
uncertainty of what might happen to the Wright amendment.

This is also why dozens of small- and medium-sized communities
throughout the Nation have rallied to support the Wright amend-
ment and why choosing a sensible solution is not just good for
north Texas but for hundreds of communities that depend on a
healthy DFW for access to the rest of the world. We endorse this
solution because it clearly defines the roles of the airports in the
region and comes with enforceable provisions that provide certainty
about what service will occur at each airport, how large a role each
airport will have in providing air service for the region, and what
level of environmental impact will be felt on the neighborhoods in
schools around Love Field. However, as I think all the witnesses
today will testify, this is a very delicately balanced agreement. Any
changes in the proposed legislation or the underlying agreement
and the contract among the parties will clearly undermine this
compromise.

Finally, I would like to reiterate a point I made in my testimony
last November in the Senate about my colleague and, until re-
cently, adversary on this issue, Herb Kelleher. It is impossible not
to have the utmost respect for the job that Herb and his team have
done at Southwest Airlines. We admire them greatly and we com-
pete with them vigorously, and I know that Herb is as delighted
as I am that we can now confine our battles to the marketplace
rather than the halls of Congress.
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I know there is another thing that Herb and I agree upon and
that is our admiration for the tenacity and effectiveness of Mayor
Laura Miller of Dallas and Mike Moncrief of Fort Worth without
whom I would not be here today. In addition to all the Members
of the House that I noted previously, I would be remiss not to rec-
ognize the essential role that Senator Kay Bailey Hutchinson
played in this entire process.

Again, thank you to the committee for the opportunity to be here
today.

Mr. MicA. [Presiding.] Thank you, Mr. Arpey.

Now it is my privilege to produce Mr. Kelleher from Southwest
Airlines.

Mr. KELLEHER. Thank you, Mr. Costello, Mr. Oberstar, Ms. John-
son, and Mr. Filner. I do not know whether you heard my first in-
troduction but I covered all of you I think.

The 30 years’ war waged on the European continent from 1618
through 1648 is, with respect to its 30-year longevity, exceedingly
junior compared to the Dallas/Fort Worth Airport struggle, a strug-
gle which has been waged in the Dallas/Fort Worth metroplex for
more than six decades. I have personally been involved in litiga-
tion, in legislative battles, and in cuss fights over Dallas Love Field
since 1972, a period of 34 years. The fact that Southwest Airlines
appears before you today, appears before you with Fort Worth, ap-
pears before you with the DFW Airport, appears before you with
my highly esteemed and much-liked colleague Gerard Arpey from
American Airlines, and appears before you with the city of Dallas,
is a miracle. As Congressman Costello said earlier, I made the com-
ment at our DFW press conference, if we can all get together on
solving this issue, then there is hope for world peace.

Our unprecedented agreement arises from airport circumstances
which are unprecedented anywhere else in the United States of
America, and most probably unprecedented anywhere else on
Earth. Many Members of Congress have over the course of many
years urged a local resolution of the Wright amendment issues.
That has now been done. And peace and goodwill is the essence of
our agreement. Not to mention certainty, not to mention stability,
and not to mention tranquility.

Under the perseverant leadership of the mayors of Dallas and
Fort Worth who have literally—and I mean literally—and factually
worked both day and night to bring this peace pact into being, all
of our swords are being beaten into plowshares.

As with any difficult and complicated transaction, difficult and
complicated by over 60 years of contention, by over 60 years of con-
troversy, and by over 60 years of acrimony, all sides, all five parties
have been compelled to make sacrifices to yield on firmly held posi-
tions, to moan and groan and agonize over decisions and over mu-
tual concessions. The only victor, the only sure-fire winner from
this agreement is the public, the citizens who will now find it easi-
er and far less expensive to travel to and from north Texas for both
business and personal reasons, the citizens who will reap vast eco-
nomic benefits in their communities from enhanced travel and
tourism at lower costs.

As Representative Hensarling stated, that is 2 million more peo-
ple traveling a year, saving $259 million a year in air fares, and
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producing $2.4 billion worth of economic benefits to their commu-
nities in the 8 years prior to the repeal of the Wright amendment
with through-ticketing and through-service. And I should add most
emphatically, the public will reap those benefits without any cog-
nizable injury whatsoever to DFW International Airport or to its
far-flung domestic and international air service network.

On behalf of the public we stand shoulder to shoulder with
American Airlines, with DFW Airport, and with the mayors and
city councils of Dallas and Fort Worth in urging this committee
and the United States Congress to speedily approve legislation nec-
essary to implement our locally achieved Wright amendment com-
promise which people have been asking for in the Congress for at
least the last 20 years.

Thank you for your time. Thank you for your attention, and
thank you for this speedy hearing before the committee. We appre-
ciate it.

Mr. MARCHANT. Thank you, Mr. Kelleher.

And now Mr. Kevin Cox representing DFW Airport.

Mr. Cox. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members of the committee.
On behalf of Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport, I want to
thank you for the opportunity to testify today. As this subcommit-
tee is well aware and as you have heard testified earlier, there has
been an intense political and public relations campaign involving
the Wright amendment for many many years. However, unlike
most campaigns which inevitably end in a winner or loser, we
stand before you today, united behind a single proposal hammered
out through intense negotiations and delicate negotiations between
the cities, the airlines, and the airport. After literally decades of
fiercely fought legislative, legal, and political battles, we are here
today respectfully asking for your approval and endorsement of this
locally formulated solution.

In November of 2004 when Southwest Airlines announced its de-
sire to have the Wright amendment repealed in its entirety, a sig-
nificant effort was initiated to assess the impact that complete re-
peal would have on DFW and the north Texas region at large. The
analysis revealed that an immediate and outright repeal was, and
is, a direct threat to DFW’s financial stability, having just invested
$2.7 billion in that capital development program and having re-
cently lost Delta Airlines as a hub operator at our airport.

In addition, opening Love Field to unlimited growth would in-
crease noise, congestion, and emissions for the residents that live
around Love Field. In an effort to find a balance that would permit
the repeal of the Wright amendment but protect the residents
around Love Field and the long-term financial viability of DFW
Airport, the mayors of Dallas and Fort Worth fashioned a local so-
lution which again is a delicate balance between all parties.

The fundamental elements of the solution which require congres-
sional action include the following: First, immediate through-
ticketing, second, that Love Field remain restricted as a domestic
operation airport; third, this legislation would codify a locally sanc-
tioned and established gate limit of 20 gates for Love Field; and
last, all remaining restrictions on air service from Love Field would
be eliminated 8 years after this legislation.
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It is critically important to understand that each of these ele-
ments of this proposal are interdependent. Certain parties have re-
cently raised objections to the proposed solution, claiming it results
in reduced access to Love Field. The fact is that scarce resource
provisions of the lease, highlighted by Mayor Miller, allows the city
of Dallas to require incumbent airlines to accommodate these new
entrant airlines on gates that are not fully utilized. The use of ac-
commodation provisions is not unique—is not unique in our indus-
try.

Today San Diego, Santa Anna, Oakland, Las Vegas, Chicago,
Midway, Fort Lauderdale and Philadelphia airports, each and
every one of them have all of their gates leased or under permit.
For any carrier to access gates at any of these airports, it requires
the requesting carrier to seek an accommodation from the incum-
bent carrier or the airport operator.

Another airport, Long Beach Airport has a very strict noise ordi-
nance that places severe limits on the number of nights that can
operate from that airport as well. One of the things that has not
been discussed in addition to the accommodations provisions is it
is very important to understand today, as Ranking Member Ober-
star talked about earlier, these two airports serve the same mar-
ketplace. They are a mere 8 miles apart.

Every carrier has the unimpeded access into the Dallas/Fort
Worth market today. Even if the carrier could not access Love
Field through the accommodation provisions, which to date none of
the objective carriers have even tried, the carriers can still access
the north Texas market by flying directly into the Dallas/Fort
Worth International Airport, again a mere 8 miles apart. And with
Delta’s decision to eliminate its hub, DFW has excess gate capacity
of over 15 gates that are currently unleased.

Moreover, DFW has one of the most aggressive air service and
city programs in the country. Let me give you an example. If Jet
Blue were to initiate just three flights a day from John F. Kennedy
to DFW, Jet Blue would be eligible to receive $479,000 in financial
incentives which include 6 months of free landing fees. The fact is
that Jet Blue Airways and any other airline has access into the
north Texas market today. Any claim to the contrary is simply un-
founded.

Mr. Chairman, the city of Dallas and the City of Fort Worth have
been intense competitors dating back to the early years of flight.
At the direction of the Federal Government and with the financial
assistance of Congress, the two parties came together to build one
of the greatest airports in the world, Dallas/Fort Worth Inter-
national Airport. The leadership on this committee challenged our
community to develop a local solution. Under the leadership of our
two mayors we have done just that. We strongly urge you to take
this local proposal and implement it in its entirety.

On behalf of DFW Airport and the 265,000 men and women
whose jobs depend upon it each and every day, I respectfully again
thank you for this opportunity and urge you to support this local
solution.

Mr. Mica. I thank you and each of the witnesses for your testi-
mony. I just have a quick question. Maybe Mr. Kelleher or one of
you can answer it. I have concern about tearing down gates any-
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where when we have infrastructure needs at almost all of our air-
ports, particularly in a major metropolitan area like Dallas/Fort
Worth. Also there is taxpayer money involved in the construction
of those. I guess part of the plan is to pay back some of the money;
is that correct?

Mr. KELLEHER. Actually, Mr. Chairman, there is no taxpayer
money.

Mr. MicA. There is none?

Mr. KELLEHER. No. It is all paid for by the airlines that serve
Love Field. So the city of Dallas——

Mr. MicA. So there is no infrastructure that will come down that
has any AIP money or Federal money?

Mr. KELLEHER. Well, no, no, no. I don’t believe so. And may I add
something to that?

Mr. MicA. Go ahead.

Mr. KELLEHER. This reduction in gates came about not because
it was the strong desire on the part of some of the participants, but
really came about because of the prior master plan done by the city
of Dallas that allowed the 32 gates at Love Field—provided that
most of them were used by regional jet aircraft rather than heavier
aircraft such as Southwest Airlines flies. We ourselves are giving
up five gates that are our gates as part of this deal. We are going
from 21 to 16 gates. And during that entire period of some 25
years, no other carrier ever wanted to come in to utilize those
gates. And any carrier that is desirous now of serving Love Field
can easily be accommodated even after those gates come down.

Mr. MicA. I feel a little bit better that we have no AIP money
in there. But in the long term with open competition, I feel you will
have unlimited competition. With real competition you will need
those gates and more.

I yield the balance of my time for questioning to Mr. Marchant.

Mr. MARCHANT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I will ask this ques-
tion of all of you on the panel and it was alluded to earlier in the
testimony in statements given by the other Congressmen, but I
think that at this point we for the last 3 weeks have as a group
been very much in agreement as a delegation on the whole concept
of this agreement. Today, yesterday, and today, the issue of the 80-
mile perimeter has come up.

Can you give us a little background on how that entered into the
discussion and what your feelings are on that issue? Mayor Miller,
we will just go in order, that will be fine.

Ms. MILLER. Sure. One of the major issues that we have dis-
cussed for 30 years at DFW is that we have bond covenants at the
airport that the city of Dallas and the city of Fort Worth are re-
sponsible for. As Mr. Cox mentioned, we just did $2.7 million worth
of improvements out there and the bond covenants specifically say
that the cities of Dallas and Fort Worth will do everything possible
to make sure that we keep the airport healthy and viable and with
a strong revenue stream.

So the purpose of the 80-mile limitation—and it is only a limita-
tion in the sense that if carrier service were to be requested by any
smaller airport within the 80 miles around DFW Airport, obviously
the mayors of Fort Worth and Dallas and our city councils would
say, as we have for the last 30 years, we would prefer that that



40

air service come to the major economic engine that we built 30
years ago, DFW Airport. We have a lot of capacity at DFW Airport,
just like today we have capacity at Love Field with the 19 gates
that we currently use. We have capacity on the existing gates. It
does not mean that McKinney or Allen or Frisco or any of those
communities can’t apply tomorrow to get Federal funding to be-
come a passenger service airport. They have every right to do that.
All we are saying, not in the legislation, only in our agreement
among the five parties, that we will say if that time comes that
these communities want to start passenger service, that we would
prefer that it come to DFW airport.

The second part of that that was alluded to earlier is the vol-
untary restrictions that the parties, American Airlines and South-
west, who currently serve Love Field have agreed to. And that is
that if they decide between now and 2025 to open a gate at any
of these other airports within 80 miles, that they will voluntarily
not give up a gate but go from a preferential-use gate, which all
of our tenants currently have, to a common-use gate. And so if they
open a gate in McKinney, then they would say, if you are South-
west, of our 16 preferential-use gates, we now say that one of those
will go to a common-use status. If no one else wants to come in and
use that gate, then Southwest can continue to use that gate.

So we thought that it actually helped us at Love Field to create
more competition by going to common-use gates which we have
never had at Love Field. We have always had preferential-use
gates, and until this compromise all the carriers—American, Con-
tinental and Southwest—had preferential gates through 2021. We
have agreed to extend that to 2028 under this agreement.

Mr. MARCHANT. Anyone want to add to that?

Mr. MoONCRIEF. I would only add, Representative Marchant, that
as Laura indicated, we have the responsibility of those bond cov-
enants, and that is something we take very seriously and by law
we must abide by. It is our responsibility to ensure the health and
well-being of DFW. That is in the best interest of not only our cit-
ies but the entire region. And what we were attempting to do is
not to affect all other airports. And in fact, as we visited with the
mayor of McKinney and we talked to him between you all’s votes,
he assured us that he felt like he could get comfortable with some
minor tweaking of the language. So it makes it clear what we were
trying to do.

Mr. MARCHANT. Will that language be tweaked in your internal
agreement or will you ask for it to be tweaked in the legislation
itself?

Mr. Cox. Congressman Marchant, it would be tweaked in the
legislation. Lest there be any confusion, there are really only a few
principal elements that we need in Federal law and they primarily
deal with the things that we are talking about, repealing the
Wright amendment, through-ticketing, international traffic issues.
The other issues are really contractual agreements between the
parties. It was never the intent for us to envelop that into legisla-
tion that would somehow in any way undermine any other airport’s
efforts, and it has led to a lot of confusion. And we feel the easiest
and surest way to fix that is to make it perfectly clear in this piece
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of legislation that every other airport out there will not be im-
pacted by these provisions.

Mr. MARCHANT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. MicA. Thank you. Mr. Costello.

Mr. CoSTELLO. Mr. Chairman, thank you. First let me say that
in our briefing a few weeks ago, I said then and I will say again
today, I commend all of you. This was no small undertaking to
come together and reach this agreement. There are in my judgment
two issues that have to be examined and resolved here. One is the
issue of safety and the other issue is competition.

I have several questions. Let me first say that the issue of safety
has been touched on here today. I think there is a lot more to be
said concerning that issue, but I want to talk a little bit about the
competition issue.

The CEO of Jet Blue submitted written testimony to the sub-
committee for today. He refers to this, “that the agreement is a
deal that is even more anticompetitive than the Wright amendment
it seeks to eventually repeal.” so the CEO of Jet Blue is asserting
here that this agreement is more anticompetitive than the existing
Wright amendment.

Let me ask both mayors and beginning, if you would, Mayor Mil-
ler, you both no doubt know and everyone probably who is follow-
ing this knows that the Dallas Business Journal came out with an
editorial on June 26 and it says, “Love Betrayed.” and it says,
“Congress should say not only no, but hell no, to the Wright
amendment compromise proposed last week.” and then it goes on
to say, four or five paragraphs later “The deal would make it much
more difficult for new airlines to enter this market and challenge
American or Southwest because it would permanently destroy the
infrastructure that new competitors would need to establish a pres-
ence at Love.”

I wonder if you might respond to the concerns expressed in the
editorial of the Dallas Business Journal.

Ms. MILLER. Sure. Thank you. For one thing, it should be re-
membered that our gate-sharing provisions that we have in our
current leases with American, Southwest and Continental do not
change at all with this solution. So today if Jet Blue came in and
said we would like a gate, we have language in all of our leases
with our tenants that say we have to make room for that new en-
trant. We have always had that language in our leases and that
language will not disappear.

In the last 30 years we have never turned away an entrant to
the airport, and we have had capacity for people to come in.

At the request of the committee this morning, we did provide a
copy of the lease language to use, to look at, to read. And we also
submitted an airline competition plan for Love Field that was exe-
cuted in 2001, but also in great detail goes through the language
that is in our leases and makes it clear that because we are an air-
port that receives Federal funding and is governed by the FAA and
the DOT, that we provide mechanisms for new entrants to come
into Love Field.

Secondly, we currently have quite a bit of capacity at Love Field.
If we were to go to the industry average of about ten turns a gate,
right now Southwest is at 8.6, American is at 5.3, and Continental
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is 6.3. So we would love for Jet Blue to come to Love Field and we
would love for them to come to DFW Airport and we have been
courting them for a very, very long time. So I am hopeful that they
will come and serve the Dallas area.

Mr. COSTELLO. Mayor Moncrief.

Mr. MONCRIEF. Representative Costello, I would say that dif-
ferent publications will have different opinions. And I understand
that. And I understand that while the Dallas Business Journal
might have an opinion that this is not an agreement that is in the
best interest of the people of our region or this industry, I think
the Fort Worth Star Telegram had a far different view. I am not
certain what the Dallas Morning News position was, but I also
know the Fort Worth Business Press strongly endorsed our pro-
posal. And I would say to you that if this product were more anti-
competitive than the Wright amendment, I do not think Mr.
Kelleher would be sitting here at this table.

Mr. KELLEHER. That is correct.

Mr. COSTELLO. And we are going to give both Mr. Kelleher and
Mr. Arpey a shot at the assertion by Jet Blue that it is more anti-
competitive than the Wright amendment.

Mr. Arpey.

Mr. ArRPEY. Well, I have not seen Jet Blue’s comments so I do
not know exactly what they said.

Mr. CoSTELLO. You pretty well get the gist of it, right?

Mr. ARPEY. The fact that as both mayors have indicated, the fact
that a Jet Blue has the right tomorrow to begin service from DFW
Airport to wherever they would like to fly and the fact that they
can come in under the common-use agreement at Love Field and
operate within the confines of the current Wright amendment gives
them the opportunity to come in and compete on the same playing
field that Southwest has and that American has at DFW. So I find
it to be a fallacious argument that they are making, and the fact
that we have never heard from this up until this moment suggests
to me that there is some other motivation here.

Mr. CosTELLO. Mr. Kelleher, for the record.

Mr. KELLEHER. Mr. Costello, well, Jet Blue released a statement
that this was a back-room deal, quote/unquote, on the part of the
American Airlines and Southwest Airlines. There are only several
things wrong with that assertion. Neither American or Southwest
were in that back room. The two mayors were, the mayor of Dallas
and the mayor of Fort Worth.

And secondly, they indicated that they had supported the repeal
of the Wright amendment. If that is the case, Mr. Costello, it was
a very stealthy form of report, since they have never voiced a word
in favor of repealing the Wright amendment. That is why their
support never came up on my radar. And I called NORAD to check
with them as well whether they had detected any support for the
Wright amendment from Jet Blue, and there was none.

And finally I would like to say that there is nothing more anti-
competitive than the Wright amendment. That is why we had
seven gates that we were not able to use at Love Field for 26 years.
If the Wright amendment goes away, you are going to reap the
added passengers, the fare savings and the economic benefits that
Representative Hensarling mentioned in his story. And to further
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back up the mayors of Dallas and Fort Worth, if Jet Blue wants
to come into Love Field, let them come. We got room.

Mr. CosTELLO. Mayor Miller, you indicated in your testimony
that the city of Dallas has agreed to make substantial investments
at Love Field as a result of the agreement. I wonder if you might
elaborate on that.

Ms. MiLLER. We have not done any significant upgrades to the
airport in 30 or 40 years. We did do a brand-new parking garage,
which is one of the reasons why I know that. Congressman Burgess
earlier mentioned about the landing fees, and we should have, in
my opinion, increased the landing fees when we incurred the debt
from the garage. We did not. Management did not recommend that.
We subsequently did that to cover the capital expenditure on the
garage, and now we are ready to do a significant upgrade to the
entire air field and the concourse and we think that is going to be
terrific for the traveler and terrific for the airport tenants.

So part of our agreement is that there will be a minimum of $150
million spent and a maximum of $200 million spent on the items
that I read into the record: concourse concessions, landscaping, im-
provements to the entrance, separate security facility. And that
will be done in the 8-year period that we are making these adjust-
ments to not having a Wright amendment anymore. So that would
be a significant upgrade and will help us a lot in terms of safety
and consolidate our operations which have been rather spread out.

When we had 60 or 65 gates operational, they were at various
places in the airport. We will be consolidating that and working
with Southwest and our other tenants to come up with a good plan.
So we are very excited about the opportunity to do that and to get
the commitment from our tenants that they are willing to invest
that kind of money in our infrastructure.

Mr. CoSTELLO. Mr. Chairman, thank you.

Mr. MicA. Thank you. Ms. Johnson.

Ms. JOHNSON OF TEXAS. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
And let me thank all of the persons who appeared here today. I am
delighted that we are the recipients of a plan that both Dallas/Fort
Worth and Love Field and DFW can live with. And this is quite
an achievement for the area.

I do want to ask for one more document, unanimous consent for
one more document to be placed in the record, and it has to do with
safety. And I think you heard the mayor indicate that there would
be some improvement in length to the runway. And that is appre-
ciated as well.

I do not really have any questions. What I really would like to
say is that fairness has been a priority of mine all my life. And I
did not think it was fair to just ignore that commitment. It is like
telling me that the Constitution is too old and outdated. And so I
am delighted that we didn’t have to go that route any longer. Free
enterprise, or whatever kind of enterprise, Dallas Love Field is
owned by the voters and the citizens of Dallas. And I never consid-
ered it much of a free enterprise, just like the city hall. But I do
think that this will work if we can get the people in the Congress
to cooperate with it and I hope we can. If we get everybody in
Texas on board I think we will be able to convince the rest of the
Congress.



44

I am going to stop, Mr. Chairman, because I have got to go to
another meeting. The only other subject that gets more emotional
than this one—redistricting.

Mr. MicA. Thank you. I think we broke the record today. We had
three or four hearings, and Mr. Oberstar can document all of this,
we had three or four hearings on O’Hare that broke the hearing
record. We are not going to do that, but this broke the record on
Members testifying. I do not ever recall, and I only have 14 years,
but we did break that record.

Mr. Oberstar.

Mr. OBERSTAR. We did have more Members during the hearing
on smoking onboard aircraft.

Well, well, well. Dear Love Field. Lieutenant Moss Lee Love
must be hovering over this hearing watching this with great inter-
est as his name inches further into eternity with what we are doing
with this legislation. It should be noted for the record that Love
Field is, as said earlier, not a small-town operation. It generates
$2 billion for the Dallas economy. It accounts for 24,000-plus jobs.
It is a major economic benefit, which is why the city decided they
wanted to keep it going, even after the agreement which Mr.
Kelleher was part of the negotiating, way back when in the mists
of time, in the Najeeb Halaby era.

Again, I listened with great interest as one after another seem-
ingly said that we have achieved a delicate balance. You heard the
panel, it sounded like the committee Chairman and Ranking Mem-
ber of a committee when we just finished a very tough bill. And the
message that this is a delicate balance means do not mess with it;
do not tamper with it.

Well, I think we are going to have to. We have a slot-controlled
airport in which the number of our arrivals and departures is lim-
ited. Over time those slots acquired value. Airlines that had the
slots put them on the balance sheet, traded them, sold them, leased
them, subleased them. And that was done by administrative action,
not by legislative action of the Congress, except in the case of Na-
tional where there was a legislative limitation on the arc within
which—the outer perimeter of which service is allowed. This will
be the first gate-controlled airport by act of Congress if we adopt
the recommendations of our agreement. So it raises some very im-
portant questions. Will the gates— first off, Mayor Miller, who is
the owner of the airport?

Ms. MILLER. The city of Dallas.

Mr. OBERSTAR. Does the city of Dallas have an airport authority
that operates Love Field on its behalf? Does the city designate and
name the airport operator—or, I mean the director?

Ms. MiLLER. We have a city manager form of government. The
city manager hires the aviation director to oversee the airport and
a smaller airport to the south, Dallas Executive. The city manager
reports to the city council.

Mr. OBERSTAR. OK. Now, under your agreement the gates will be
leased, is that right, by the airport authority?

Ms. MILLER. Well, it will be leased by the city of Dallas to the
tenants.
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Mr. OBERSTAR. Yes. And you are the airport authority. Will the
lessees accumulate value for those gates? Will they have what is
called at other airports a majority in interest provision standing?

Ms. MILLER. I do not know. Mr. Cox, do you know?

Mr. OBERSTAR. Mr. Cox, what do you think.

Mr. Cox. Congressman Oberstar, first of all the lease is already
done. Whatever is done in this form of legislation will not impact
those leases. Those leases exist today between the city and the car-
riers that have them. They have accommodations provisions in
them that spoke—I guess the point I am trying to make is Love
Field is not a residual airport like DFW. It is a compensatory air-
port. But the lease provisions allow, as they do today, for the city
to use those when they have the ability to pull them back, so they
would not have any more value than any other lease provisions
that exist in any other airport. It is not something that can be
traded on the open market. It is an actual lease and then they
have a grab-back provision that allows them to grab it back if there
is capacity and a need from another carrier.

Mr. OBERSTAR. I want to come to that, because there is some
mushy language here, at least in my reading of it. So incumbent
carriers will not acquire a vested authority or value over those
gates no matter what we do with the legislation.

Mr. Cox. Not any more than they already have today, sir.

Mr. OBERSTAR. I think we should make that clear. Is there any
relationship between the 15 empty gates at DFW and the depar-
ture of Delta and the 12 gates to be demolished at Love Field?

Mr. Cox. No.

Ms. MILLER. No.

Mr. Cox. The 20 gates that the city of Dallas came to—and I
think it is important to understand this, because I do not think it
has gotten out—is that when the original master plan was done,
it assumed the Wright amendment was in place; all growth associ-
ated with that involved regional aircraft. When you take the
Wright amendment away, the assumption that regional aircraft are
going to be your growth category goes away. As such, they are
going to be flying on a larger aircraft. As such, you will have less
operations and quite honestly, we believe, diminish your safety con-
cern that you have.

But what it does in converse is it puts a lot more passengers in
and around Love Field, and the analysis that was done shows that
it basically cripples the infrastructure if you keep 32 gates. So it
found the equilibrium. That is what was originally anticipated in
the master plan at 32 gates: How much stuff can you put in that
sack, given the fact that the Wright amendment goes away and
given the fact that they will be flying on larger aircraft? And the
equilibrium is 20 gates. That is where the 20 gates came from. And
it required to get there a get-back from Southwest Airlines.

The other point that I think is lost in part of this conversation
is the give-back is lease provisions that exist but those are not ac-
tive gates. Those are office spaces and have been office spaces for
many, many, many years. So the reality of it is that there will be
some incremental growth, and there is capacity at Love Field, but
the 20 gates was a very scientific number designed to keep the
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equilibrium so you basically do not basically crash the roadway sys-
tem and the noise in and around Love Field.

Mr. OBERSTAR. That is very helpful. I have not had any expla-
nation of how 12 came to be the magic number, and your discus-
sion of regional aircraft is very enlightening.

Now, in the attachment the accommodation provisions, “Lessee
does hereby agree to accommodate other airline. Lessee
says...terminal lease area at such times that will not unduly inter-
fere with airlines operating schedule.”

What does “unduly interfere with” mean? Who defines that? Is
that a term of art? A term of legislative art? A term of judicial art?

Ms. MILLER. Well it was crafted by the Dallas City Attorney’s Of-
fice and we understand, since it has never been tested, we have
never had a conflict; that we should, if we are responsible, create
a very clear policy using this as the template for how we are in real
terms going to be executing this. This gives us the authority to tell
an American or a Southwest, you have to make room. But I think
that like other airports like you cited that have this issue of capac-
ity, we need to have a very specific policy in place so that the ten-
ants have a clear expectation for how it is going to work when the
director says we shall make room for Jet Blue and this is how we
are going to do it.

Mr. OBERSTAR. Now, I listened carefully earlier when discussion
was made of Jet Blue, and Mr. Costello raised the issue, and I
think Dallas/Fort Worth says we have plenty of room for Jet Blue,
they can come here. But they may not want to come, just as South-
west had no intention of getting into DFW and paying those larger
landing fees. They are quite happy with 55 cents a thousand
pounds. Right, Mr. Kelleher?

Mr. KELLEHER. Well, Mr. Oberstar, our headquarters is at Love
Field. We have invested $200 million in Love Field and this agree-
ment calls for us to invest another $200 million. So it is a little dif-
ferent from the situation that any other carrier is in, and we have
been the ones that have been restricted at Love Field since 1979
by the Wright amendment.

Mr. OBERSTAR. I know you have been restricted at Love Field,
but you have been laughing all the way to the bank as well.

Mr. KELLEHER. Well, great service at low fares.

Mr. OBERSTAR. That is for sure, and a monopolistic position. And
in case of a conflict, lessee shall have preferential use of its termi-
nal lease area. If you combine rather vague language about
"unduly interfere with” and section 4(a), ”“in case of a conflict, les-
see shall have preferential use of both,” now American and South-
west are in the catbird seat. You keep anybody out.

Mr. Cox. Can I respond to that?

Mr. OBERSTAR. Anyone can respond to that.

Mr. Cox. Congressman Oberstar, first, the way the language is
drafted I believe provides the city of Dallas greater flexibility than
the standard language that is drafted. Typically you find in those
leases that if you are turning your gates at six times a day, then
it is considered fully utilized and nobody else can get in. The way
it is drafted, I believe, provides the city of Dallas a greater hammer
to force an accommodation than most other places that would allow
that.
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The other thing is, I would argue the difference is that South-
west has been there for a long time and has an asset of which they
lease. Jet Blue does not. Nobody has ever guaranteed access into
an airport, as evidenced by all the other airports that I talked
about, but they are guaranteed access into the marketplace. And
8 miles down the road, Jet Blue can fly basically for free for 6
months, and we believe that is a good deal. And we believe nobody
is guaranteed access to any particular airport but should have ac-
cess to the marketplace. And with great capacity and an extremely
generous air service incentive plan, after multiple meetings with
Jet Blue we think they can make the right business decision. If
they really want to enter the marketplace, they can.

Mr. OBERSTAR. Well, Southwest was presented with a good busi-
ness decision in 1991 when we had the hearing and Kevin Fahey
said we can have 18 gates in 3 weeks for Southwest and we can
have a temporary basis and we can have permanent gates in 18
months. And Mr. Kelleher thought that was not as good of a deal
as he was ready to take.

Mr. KELLEHER. No, again because we do not want to split our op-
erations in our home city, and there are very few airlines, including
American Airlines in Chicago, if I may say that, Gerard, that want
to split their operations between two airports in the same city.
That is the reason why American does not serve Midway Airport,
Southwest Airlines does not serve O’Hare Airport, and that is why
the other spoke carriers do not want Peotone Airport because it
would be a horrible situation from Southwest Airlines’ standpoint
to have its headquarters, all of its investment at Love Field take
half of that service, send it to DFW Airport and suddenly have the
two airports competing against one another in the hands of the
same carrier. That is not true of Jet Blue or anyone else that wants
to come in.

Mr. OBERSTAR. Let’s understand something a little further. At
O’Hare when an international agreement is reached between the
United States and another country in a memorandum of under-
standing or an aviation trade open skies agreement, and it calls for
service into O’Hare for whatever, five, six or seven slots, American
and United both are told you will provide slots. I do not know if
you still have sales of slots, but you have to sell them, and then
you have to go and find other opportunities to replace your lost
slots. But this is the U.S. DOT telling you and United you give up
space so an international competitor can come in.

Now, supposing JetBlue makes the decision and we want to come
in and we want to get in the Love Field game, too. Who is going
to tell you, Mr. Kelleher, you have got to give up space to accommo-
date them?

Mr. KELLEHER. Well, first of all, there is no international treaty
that pertains to Love Field that sets aside the local situation with
respect to the proprietorship of the City of Dallas and how many
gates it wants to have.

Now, let me say this to you, Mr. Oberstar, if I might, the biggest
impediment and hindrance to Southwest Airlines’ expansion after
deregulation in 1978 was not being able to get gates at other air-
ports, whether you are talking about San Diego or Los Angeles, or
whatever might be the case. And that was because they had exclu-
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sive use leases where one carrier had 14 gates with five departures
a day and said, well, if we do all your ground handling charging
you three times as much as the city charges us, you can get in.

What is my point? Everybody suffers from trying to get into an
airport where there are not a lot of available gates. But the situa-
tion has improved today because airports haven’t gotten rid of their
exclusive use leases, which is the ones that we ran into and now
have these preferential use leases where there is room for another
carrier. And it is very simple. There is no mystery to the way it
operates, and that is, I can show you Southwest Airlines schedule,
gates schedule, we have got hours on our gates where another car-
rier could operate there, and that doesn’t have anything to do with
American or Continental Airlines either. And we would simply be
told by the City of Dallas, you have got these vacant spaces in your
gate utilization and by golly you are going to put another carrier
in there.

Mr. OBERSTAR. They would be able to tell you that?

Mr. KELLEHER. That is the way it works, oh, yes absolutely.

Mr. OBERSTAR. Well, the problem you defined just a moment ago
in your remarks is why I included in the 2001 reauthorization of
FAA a requirement that every airport have a master plan included
showing their competition the plan.

Would the parties agree to a legislative provision that would give
FAA authority to take all necessary actions to ensure that carriers
seeking to initiate or expand service at Love Field have access to
necessary facilities on reasonable terms? Provision could apply if
FAA determined that new entrants are unable, as you have de-
scribed moments ago, Mr. Kelleher, to obtain access under the pro-
cedures of this agreement?

Mr. KELLEHER. I will respond to that, if I might lead off, I am
sure the mayors have some comment about it, but, if that were the
case, then this agreement is a nullity because it is absolutely es-
sential to the cities of Dallas and Fort Worth for a variety of rea-
sons that the airport be limited to 20 gates, of which we gave up

5.

And if that went down the tube, then I am afraid there wouldn’t
be any agreement at all because certainly, American, Airlines and
DFW, one of their interests, Mr. Oberstar, is not jeopardizing the
status of DFW. So having a total of 20 gates is what assures that?
Beclséuse the gates limit the operations that you can have from Love
Field.

Mr. OBERSTAR. The language I am talking about would not—
well, we can make it clear that the FAA could not require an in-
crease in gates.

Mr;? KELLEHER. You are saying the FAA could take gate leases
away?

Mr. OBERSTAR. To take necessary action to ensure that carriers
have access to necessary facilities.

Mr. KELLEHER. Well, would you apply that to Long Beach, Cali-
fornia where JetBlue has 27 out of 35 available slots? Would you
apply it to Washington National? Would you apply it to all airports
across the Nation? And the reason I ask is that is that that could
be very helpful to Southwest airlines.

It if were a general application.
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Mr. OBERSTAR. But there are other ways in which access can be
obtained at Washington National.

And, I don’t know about Long Beach. That might be an interest-
ing—but they don’t have the two airport scenario that we are deal-
ing with here.

Mr. KELLEHER. No they have the 41-slot scenario.

Mr. OBERSTAR. They do. Mr. Arpey.

Mr. ARPEY. Mr. Oberstar, I think that perhaps we haven't ex-
plained it as artfully as we should have, or carefully as we should
have, but I think in the agreement that we have created, we are
doing precisely what you are asking for, and that is, that if any air-
line wants to come in and operate at Love Field on the same terms
and conditions that American, Southwest and Continental operate
today, this agreement says that the City of Dallas is going to make
that happen as part of this agreement.

So I think we have recognized your concern as we negotiated our
way through this, and so I think the current agreement does what
you are suggesting.

Mr. OBERSTAR. The language of the current agreement is to the
extent a new entrant carrier seeks to enter Love Field, the City of
Dallas will seek voluntary accommodations from its existing car-
riers to accommodate the new entrant’s service. There is no enforc-
ing mechanism.

Mr. MONCRIEF. But that is the first thing they do, Mr. Oberstar,
they seek voluntary response from the other carriers. If they don’t
do that, then the City of Dallas has the authority to come in and
say you will.

Mr. OBERSTAR. It goes on to say if its carriers are not able or not
willing, the City of Dallas agrees to require the sharing of pref-
erential leased gates.

But what is the—but it says this, agrees to require the sharing
of preferential leased gates, but then you go back to the attachment
to the accommodation, it says in the case of a conflict between
schedules of lessee and the requesting airline, the lessee shall have
preferential use. So you require on the one hand, but you vitiate
it on the other.

Mr. Cox. Mr. Chairman, that, I mean, ranking member, that is
not different than virtually every other accommodation lease that
exists out there in the country.

Mr. OBERSTAR. We will take a look at that and see if that is the
case.

Mr. Cox. You have the ability to accommodate, but you don’t
take rights away from somebody that had already contractually ob-
tained those rights, but you have the ability to try to, to the extent
possible, to fit those people in.

Mr. OBERSTAR. That is true in a majority of interest clauses.

Mr. ARPEY. I would like to add, though, on the JetBlue issue, and
we can start with the first provision and American will volunteer
today to open up gate space for JetBlue at Love Field.

Mr. KELLEHER. Tell them to come on down. We welcome them
too.

Mr. OBERSTAR. They are just a metaphor for some other carrier,
they happened to submit statement.
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One question, you said there will be room for expansion and you
cite the number of safety provisions, including one I am very happy
with, the runway safety area, you are going to spend $150 million,
150, $200 million for improvements where is that money coming
from? Is that going to come from increased landing fees? From
PFCs.

Ms. MILLER. It is a combination. We have discussed that.

Mr. OBERSTAR. AIP funds?

Ms. MILLER. It is a combination. We will apply for PFCs for
things that are eligible, whatever is not eligible, by PFCs, we will
increase landing fees, but we have made it clear that those are the
items that need to be upgraded, and that is what we estimate it
will cost.

Mr. OBERSTAR. Will landing fees go up from 55 cents?

Ms. MILLER. Yes, they will. They have to if you do that much of
an upgrade.

Mr. KELLEHER. Mr. Oberstar, can I clarify something? In connec-
tion with an earlier comment—not your comments—but there was
an error made by one of the representatives who said the taxpayers
of the City of Dallas are suffering because the landing fees are not
high enough at Love Field.

Love Field has a $40 million surplus, which has been paid in by
Southwest Airlines and there is not a taxpayer dollar of anyone in
the City of Dallas that goes into Love Field.

It is a free, free enterprise fund for the City of Dallas with no
Dallas taxpayer dollars in it, yesterday, 20 years ago, or the next
20 years.

Mr. OBERSTAR. I noted that comment earlier and your clarifica-
tion just raises a question I wanted to ask, and then I will con-
clude, Mr. Chairman.

And Mayor Miller, does the City of Dallas back the airport with
the general obligation authority of the city?

Ms. MILLER. No. It is an enterprise fund, and therefore it is only,
what backs it up is just the tenants paying their rents and paying
the landing fees and concession and parking revenues. That is
what pays

Mr. OBERSTAR. It has, the airport has a surplus of operational
funds now, but if it should run a deficit that is the airport’s prob-
lem, the city doesn’t come in and back it up and bail it out?

Ms. MILLER. That is correct. We simply would raise the landing
fees to cover it or raise the concessions or parking fees or whatever
it took to cover the problem.

Mr. OBERSTAR. Thank you. I know I have gone on at length. But
it has been good. These are important questions to pursue.

Mr. MicA. I always swore if I ever got to be chairman, I would
let everyone have their say.

Why did I do that?

He was always fair to me so, you know, you get it in return. To
the two mayors, never serve on a city council with 435 members.

Mr. Filner.

Mr. FILNER. Just very briefly as someone standing between ad-
journment—as a Californian, watching the Texans, I am very im-
pressed with the product, although, Mayor Moncrief, you almost ru-
ined it when you said they can stop spending money, that is the
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airlines, on lawyers, lobbyists and campaign style advertisements.
You are striking at the economic engine of this city.

Mr. MONCRIEF. I know I am striking at the heart, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. FILNER. You don’t want us to hurt your economic engine.

Mr. Kelleher, bottom line, if I wanted to fly Southwest from San
Diego to Dallas, do I still have to go through Austin? And what
does the through ticketing do for me?

Mr. KELLEHER. No. Under this revision, Mr. Filner, you would be
able to fly from San Diego to some point within the Wright amend-
ment states, stay on the airplane and come through to Dallas. So
you might come San Diego El Paso Dallas which would make it a
little easier for not only you, but 2 million additional passengers.

Mr. FILNER. So I would not have to change airplanes?

Mr. KELLEHER. No, you would not have to change airplanes.

Mr. FILNER. While I have you, last question, what advice do you
have for us in dealing with both North Korea and Iran?

Mr. KELLEHER. Well, I will tell you, I am got not going to give
that to you unless this bill goes through.

Mr. FILNER. Yield back, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. MicA. That is five-party talks. This is six-party talks.

And you see the controversy, well, you have heard the con-
troversy I have cited. I guess you are in the league with O’Hare,
but Mr. Filner is no shrinking violet. If you want to really get into
controversy go down to southern California and hold a hearing on
moving San Diego Airport. That is good for a couple of days.

Mr. FILNER. Would you come down, all five of you to San Diego,
Lindbergh needs replacement and we can’t figure out what to do.

Mr. KELLEHER. It is that noose that is hanging there that wor-
ries me a little bit when you make a presentation.

Mr. MicA. A couple of final things, now last time I went, Mayor,
how long have you been Mayor of Dallas?

Ms. MILLER. 4 years.

Mr. MicaA. I followed your commuter rail and light rail. You actu-
ally all got some of the money when central Florida went down the
tubes and you did a great job. I followed that project. And I am
really impressed with what you have done with both commuter rail
and light rail. I saw you bringing in a plan to bring in some transit
to, if it was not at Dallas when I visited, it is not there now?

Ms. MILLER. Well—

Mr. Mica. Or Love.

Ms. MILLER. Well, we have one line that goes through Dallas
northeast to Southwest, we are going to cross it with a brand new
line that will go by Love Field. We asked, actually, to connect it
directly to Love Field and we were turned down by the Federal
Govefrnment. They said that there weren’t enough passengers to
justify.

Mr. MicA. And we need to change that.

Mr. KELLEHER. That was because of the Wright amendment, Mr.
Chairman.

Mr. MicA. But we really need to look at that. We do. And it is
a chicken-or-egg kind of thing, which comes first and people will
use it. But we should almost have a requirement that any of our
major transportation aviation facilities are connected by mass tran-
sit.
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I will be glad to look at that.

I know you have sort of thrown in the towel, which I think I just
read about this this past week, but I am very, very impressed with
what I have seen down there.

That was the one thing that I was concerned with. And we might
want to revisit that. I will ask the staff, too, to see if we can talk
to folks about that.

And I don’t mind reaching PFC or other money to make the con-
nection.

And I see that is something you were looking at.

Ms. MILLER. Just so you know, because we couldn’t get it direct
to Love Field, it is going to be just west of it about half mile, 3
quarters of a mile. So what we are going to build is hopefully a
very slick people mover when you get on the train at Love, feel
kind of like when you get to Vegas, you go on the train and when
you get off and you will be at the DART station. Obviously, we
would love to build a terminal at Love Field and have direct serv-
ice.

Mr. MicA. Again, I think the connection is so important. I am
sorry, Mr. Oberstar.

Mr. OBERSTAR. Mr. Chairman, I am delighted with your com-
ment about using PFC funds to bring transit on to airports. That
was a bitter battle in 1990 in this committee, and among the air-
ports and users. And I was very much in favor of allowing the use
of PFC.

Mr. Mica. We have worked on some of these across the country.
That is one missing, and they have done some creative things I
think you are familiar with, Newark and some of the things that
were done up there.

In any event, that was one question. I don’t want to prolong this.

The final question, you have got two articles here, 17 provisions
in here, in the first article. If we repealed the Wright amendment,
why couldn’t you Institute through an agreement all of the provi-
sions in these articles?

Mr. Cox. Mr. Chairman, we believe that in about five particular
provisions are all that is required of this Congress to allow the
agreement to go forward.

Mr. MicA. So are they in conflict with Federal law and which
ones?

Mr. Cox. No, sir.

Mr. MicA. Then why couldn’t we repeal the Wright amendment?
I mean, there are people cutting these kind of deals all the time
around the country.

I have seen mish-mashes of this across the country.

What authority do you need other than the repeal, and which
five articles or what are those?

Mr. CoX. The basic elements that need to be in the pieces of leg-
islation include the through ticketing provision, because that is the
amendment to the existing.

Mr. MicA. That is not in conflict with law?

Mr. Cox. No. It is the Wright amendment, today, that prohibits
through ticketing and that would allow through ticketing.

Mr. MicA. There is one.
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Mr. CoX. You need to, pursuant to this agreement, ensure that
Love Field remains a domestic airport and it does not become an
international airport. And that is a Federal legislative issue.

Mr. MIcA. But can that also—is that prohibited now? Or is—that
is a designation, though, that you obtain from the Federal Govern-
ment without a change in law.

Mr. Cox. Correct, but part of this deal is that Love Field will
never be opened up as an international airport given all of the in-
vestment. And so to ensure that some future Congress or some fu-
ture administration doesn’t go and decide——

Mr. Mica. Well, that is only as good as the next one because we
are going to pass open skies, and I will be flying planes from places
yi)lu r(liever imagined in Europe into Love Field and Dallas. Next, go
ahead.

Mr. Cox. The third is

Mr. MicA. You would be surprised what we could get in there.

Mr. Cox. It is a 20-gate limit. We believe, as Congressman Ober-
star indicated, to ensure that this remains limited, which is a criti-
cal element of this entire deal that that needs to be codified.

The fourth issue is repeal. And the fifth issue

Mr. MicA. We are putting in law now, what codification?

Mr. Cox. Codifying the local 20-gate limit. That is absolutely
critical.

Mr. MicA. What was your term, gate.

Mr. OBERSTAR. Control.

Gate limited.

Mr. MicA. There is a better one, the press has probably already
got it. So we are putting into law, codifying into law. But couldn’t
you do that anyways?

Mr. Cox. We believe that we probably could.

Mr. MicA. Competitive. You would probably be sued. So this is
your cover?

Mr. Cox. Correct. The fourth issue is actual repeal and then the
fifth issue is charters. And the charter issue, as exists in the
Wright amendment today, limits the amount of charters into and
out of Love Field to 10 charter flights a month.

Mr. MicA. You could do that yourself?

Mr. Cox. We cannot.

Mr. MicA. You can’t? Why?

Mr. Cox. Because we can’t restrict particular use.

Mr. MicA. You can’t restrict

Mr. Cox. Because the way it exists is we can control the gates,
but we can’t control somebody else that has access to the airport
to start chartering flights to wherever they want to and undermine
the 20-gate limit, and we cannot restrict certain flights in oper-
ation. We can restrict the size and capacity of the airport.

Mr. MicA. I have to check with staff, because I don’t really know
whether, you know, you can

Well, again, I appreciate your going through that. I have not
really even read the totality of the agreement, but trying to figure
out, what needed to be codified and what could be done, because
I want to keep it as simple as possible.

And I think you would do, too, and whatever we do here, folks,
can be undone. I will be replaced by someone soon to the applause
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of many, and there will be new faces here doing this, and when we
do, now will be changed.

That is all I have. Mr. Chairman, ranking member.

Mr. Brown, welcome. Did you have any questions, comments?

Mr. Brown?

Mr. BROWN. No, Mr. Chairman, I am just sorry I was a little bit
late, but we have been following it sort of from a distance.

Mr. MicA. That means everything. And again your absence has
been appreciated. We want to note it for the record. There being
no further business before this subcommittee we appreciate all of
our witnesses and their participation. This subcommittee hearing
is adjourned.

Thank you.

Mr. KELLEHER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

[Whereupon, at 5:50 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]
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Thank you, Mr. Chairman for the opportunity to be with you this afternoon to
share American’s perspective on the Love Field compromise.

On behalf of the more than 90,000 employees of American Airlines, | want to
extend our appreciation to the Committee for its prompt scheduling of this hearing today
and for its willingness to expeditiously consider the proposed legislation regarding the
Wright Amendment

| think it's fair to say that this is a day many in this room believed would never
come, including | have to confess, myself. The controversy surrounding Love Field and
the Wright Amendment has loomed over American Airlines longer than | have been with
the company — and | was hired by American nearly 25 years ago.

| know the same is true for Southwest Airlines. But of course, the issue’s
importance extends far beyond any one company. The impact of what the Committee
decides will be felt throughout Texas, the Southwest, and in hundreds of other
communities around the country.

Almost two years ago, this Committee’s Chairman, Don Young, declared that it
was up to the communities in north Texas to reach a solution to the Wright Amendment
controversy if changes in the law were to be made. We were grateful for that
declaration because it showed a sensitivity to how complicated this issue is and how
substantial an impact it has both locally and nationally. And importantly, over many
years, Ranking Member Jim Oberstar has been a consistent advocate of maintaining
the Wright Amendment for reasons of safety, efficiency, and sound economics, a
position that | know carries enormous weight with his colleagues on this Committee.

Many other members of the House, both on and off the Committee, have
vigorously rejected calls for repeal of the Wright Amendment. Among them, most
notably, are Energy and Commerce Chairman Joe Barton, Kay Granger, John Sullivan,
Michael Burgess, and Kenny Marchant. And | think it is very important to recognize that
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on this Committee the representative of the district in which Love Field sits, Eddie
Bernice Johnson, has been an outspoken advocate against repeal, a position and
perspective that | hope will make a great difference in your deliberations.

| emphasize all this not to rehash old controversies, but to make the point that
this debate is not between the proposed compromise, on the one hand, and immediate
repeal of the Wright Amendment on the other. Rather, this is about either solving the
problem once and for all, or returning to the status quo with the Wright Amendment
firmly in place and the battle raging.

Some airlines who have sat on the sidelines and who have had the opportunity
for years to fly to Love Field are attacking this compromise and proclaiming their sudden
and heretofore secret desire to operate from Love Field. | urge the Committee to reject
the attempts of the late-comers to be spoilers and to recognize the opportunity at hand
by acting swiftly to enact legislation.

Despite the fact that American Airlines strongly endorses this proposed
legislation, | have made no secret of the fact that my preference would have been either
maintaining the Wright Amendment without change or closing Love Field to commercial
traffic altogether. This compromise did not come easily for us. We have made two
maijor concessions to get to this point.

First, we have agreed to support an immediate repeal of the provisions of the
Wright Amendment that prevent through-ticketing to or from Love Field to points outside
the states where service is allowed. Second, we have agreed to full repeal in eight
years. Both of these concessions will be economically harmful to American.

In return, however, we have been assured that Love Field will not grow info a
mammoth facility that would cause us to split our operations between two airports in
such a way that both our small community and international service would be
jeopardized from DFW Airport. While high density point-to-point markets can be
supported from any major airport, it takes the synergies of a robust network to support
service to smaller communities and to amass sufficient traffic in one point to sustain
international service.

Hence, under this agreement, DFW Airport can remain a viable hub for
American. In addition, we will be able to chart our future without the uncertainty of what
might happen to the Wright Amendment. This is also why dozens of small and medium-
sized communities throughout the nation have rallied to support the Wright Amendment
and why choosing a sensible solution is not just good for north Texas, but for hundreds
of communities that depend on a healthy DFW for access to the rest of the world.

We endorse this solution because it clearly defines the roles of the airports in this
region, and comes with enforceable provisions that provide certainty about what service
will occur at each airport, how large a role each airport will have in providing air service
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for the region, and what level of environmental impact will be felt on the neighborhoods
and schools around Love Field.

However, as all the witnesses today will testify, this is a very delicately balanced
agreement. Any changes in the proposed legislation or the underlying agreement and
contract among the parties will clearly jeopardize this remarkable achievement.

Finally, | would like to reiterate a point | made in my testimony last November in
the Senate about my colleague and — until recently — adversary on this issue, Herb
Kelleher. It is impossible not to have the utmost respect for the job Herb and his team
have done at Southwest Airlines. We admire them greatly and compete with them
vigorously. | know that Herb is as delighted as | am that we can now confine our
battles to the marketplace, rather than the halls of Congress.

And | know that there is another thing that Herb and | agree upon. That is our
admiration for the tenacity and effectiveness of Mayor Laura Miller of Dallas and Mayor
Mike Moncrief of Fort Worth without whom we would not be here today. And in addition
to all the members of the House that | noted previously, | would be remiss not to
recognize the essential role that Senator Kay Bailey Hutchison has played in this
process. No single individual was responsible for putting this compromise together, but
| can't think of one in the House or the Senate or city government whom | have named
that we could have done without.

Again, 1 want to thank the Committee for inviting me to be here to represent
American Airlines and its many constituencies.
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Chairman Mica, Ranking Member Costello, and Members of the
Subcommittee, thank you for the opportunity to testify before you today on an
issue that is very important to my constituents and the North Texas region as a
whole. I appreciate your willingriess to schedule this hearing and allow
Members of the Texas delegation to speak on the subject of the Wright

Amendment.

It’s no secret that I have been a strong proponent of keeping the Wright
Amendment as it stands. [ have supported the covenant between the cities of
Dallas and Fort Worth for many years because 1 believe the best public policy
for the North Texas region is to have competing airlines, not competing
airports. Today, you will hear from signatories to a new agreement intended to
firmly cement the role of DFW Airport and Love Field, and put the efforts for

immediate repeal of the Wright Amendment to rest.

The parties have acted m good faith to negotiate an agreement that will give
our region and the traveling public resolution on this issue and leave time for
public and private stakeholders to plan for final repeal in eight years. In the
interim, 1 expect consumers will reap the benefits of immediate thru-ticketing

at Love Field. And once enacted, this agreement will make clear what the
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parties may and may not do to keep the bargain in place.

This agreement before you today was hammered out with give and take on all
sides. It was a deliberative process which considered valid concerns and
umgque factors of operation that have benefited the growth of the Dallas-Fort
Worth metroplex since the beginning of the Wright Amendment. The result is
a carefully crafted agreement that has the support of Dallas and Fort Worth, as
co-owners of DFW Airport. Both cities have a stake in the economic viability

of DFW Airport, and are doing what is best for the future.

DFW Airport is a growing, world-class, international airport that can handle
the volume and diversity of flights to and from our region, and this agreement
respects that fact. I continue to hope that Southwest will one day fly out of
DEW Airport and compete head-to-head with other airlines, as I believe
consumers would benefit greatly and the capacity exists. It is very likely that
this agreement will give other carriers the certainty they need to begin

operations out of DFW Airport and fill empty gates left by Delta.

Finally, this agreement ensures that Love Field will continue to offer an
important alternative for consumers while not diminishing the capacity for
competition available at DFW Airport. Growth at Love Field will be
restricted, as 1t 1s a land-locked airport that should not be reconstituted for
greater traffic. DFW Airport is the premier, economic engine of the Dallas-
Fort Worth Metroplex and should be where new growth and investment takes
place. Love Field will be reduced to 20 gates over time. and this will allow the
residents of the area peace of mind concerning pollution, noise, traffic, and

safety concerns.
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1 emphasize the importance of this gate limitation because it provides the
assurance that DFW Airport can continue expanding. | view this agreement as
facilitating a “super” airport, where the terminals at DFW Airport serve
national and international destinations, and Love Field’s gates provide a
regional function with select national routes offering direct competition via
thru-ticketing. Importantly, after eight years the Wright Amendment as it
exists today will be repealed. This is truly the best of both worlds for

consumers in Texas and throughout the country.

Mr. Chairman, local leaders have negotiated a thoughtful, viable alternative
that should be supported. I commend everyone involved for their efforts.
As the laws affecting Love Field were created at a federal level, any
modification must come through the United States Congress. I will continue
to work on this issue with my North Texas colleagues and with Members of
this Committee. Thank you again for the opportunity to speak here today on

this important topic.
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Rep. Shelley Berkley
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Mr. Chairman, "‘the agreement reached last
month between Southwest, American Airlines,
Dallas-Fort Worth Airport, and the mayors of
Dallas and Fort Worth on the Wright
Amendment is evidence that negotiation and
compromise are still possible on contentious
issues such as this. | am a cosponsor of
legislation to repeal the Wright Amendment,
because | do not believe the federal government
should be placing such onerous restrictions on
our nation’s airlines and air travelers, but | am
hopeful that we can now move forward with a

legislative solution that will satisfy all parties.

The Wright Amendment is not the only barrier to

competition in place in the airline industry,
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however. Federal law currently limits flights into
and out of Reagan National Airport in
Washington DC to a distance of 1,250 miles.
Las Vegas, which | represent, lies outside of this
perimeter, and we are therefore at a substantial
disadvantage. Exemptions have been granted
over the years, but my constituents and those
wishing to visit our wonderful city are currently
limited to one non-stop flight per day on this

route.

Again, | congratulate those who are here today
who have come to an agreement on the Wright
Amendment that can hopefully serve as the
basis for legislative action. But | am also
hopeful that Congress and this Subcommittee in
particular will act to address other anti-

competitive rules currently in place. Thank you.
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July 12, 2006

Chairman Mica, Ranking Member Costello, distinguished Members, thank you for holding this
important hearing that directly impacts North Texas and the 26" District of Texas. Along with
Congressman Marchant, [ represent a portion of DFW International Airport, and this issue
greatly affects tens of thousands of my constituents who rely on the vitality of this airport.

As it has been stated, for almost thirty years, the Wright Amendment has protected a mutual
agreement between the City of Fort Worth and the City of Dallas. I believe in the integrity of
this agreement, and it has enabled DFW Airport to become the economic engine of North Texas.
If we change the terms of the old agreement, the new law must protect the lives and livelihoods
of the tens of thousands of people who depend on DFW Airport. Mayor Moncrief and Mayor
Miller have each worked diligently, and along with the major stakeholders, I believe that they
have entered into an historic agreement that will protect my constituents and allow for better
service at Love Field. 1 sincerely thank the Mayors for their commitment and dedication to this
delicate and complicated task.

I understand that some of the surrounding cities in North Texas are concerned with clause 6 of
the joint agreement, which states that “to the extent any other airport within an eighty-mile radius
seeks to initiate scheduled commercial passenger service within this eight-year period, both cities
agree to work diligently to bring that service to DFW, or if that effort fails, then to airports
owned by the Cities of Dallas and/or Fort Worth.” While I do represent a portion of DFW
Airport, I also represent Alliance Airport and Denton Municipal Airport. [believe that the
surrounding airports interests must be protected. However, I am pleased that the Mayors made a
distinction between commercial passenger service and cargo service. Additionally, most
unscheduled charter service is not included in the definition of commercial passenger service,
thus surrounding atrports will be able to continue their cargo and most charter service without
any possible disturbance by the Cities of Fort Worth and Dallas. This is a very important
service, and [ believe that we should take all necessary measures to protect communities like the
City of Denton in providing such service.

It should also be noted that this agreement only binds the Cities of Fort Worth and Dallas,
American Alrlines, and Southwest Airlines. It does not bind the neighboring cities within the
eighty railes; therefore, their autonomy should remain unquestioned. T would oppose any
measure, whether State or Federal, that would obligate other parties to this agreement. If other
parties are subsequently bound by this agreement or any form of legislation, this would be
contrary to the intent of the agreement. It is my hope that any proposed legislation remains silent
on the issue of preemption.

The Dallas Aviation Department has revealed that the department had a $20 million budget
shorttall in its two most recent fiscal years combined. While the aviation department has
increased their landing fees at Love Field from 35 cents to 55 cents, the Dallas taxpayers are still
subsidizing this airport. According to the Dallas Morning News, the landing fee increase will
bring in §952,000 to the city annually. This obviously falls short of offsetting the budget deficit.
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Similarly situated mid-size airports charge an average of $1.40 for landing fees, and I do not
understand why the City of Dallas has been reluctant to charge a more fiscally responsible
tanding fee. While clause 5 of the new joint agreement does provide that landing fees will be
adjusted to cover much needed facility and safety improvements, it is my hope that the City of
Dallas will rise to the challenge and dramatically increase the fees to a more appropriate level.
As with any older facihity, modifications need to be made to ensure the safety of the entire area.
An increase in landing fees could provide for additional safety improvements that would provide
for the wellbeing of those in and around Love Field, including runway expansions and barriers.
The citizens of Dallas deserve these safety measures as well as more transparency in the
financial records at Love Field.

Since the runways at DFW Airport and Love Field are only 8 miles apart, any action that we take
on the Wright Amendment must be conscientious of all safety issues for both airports. [ have
been informed by air traffic controllers at DFW that when directing traffic for the two airports,
the air traffic controllers view Love Field as just another runway. This would change drastically
if a gate limit was not imposed, since traffic could increase considerably. [ feel that the 20 gate
limit at Love Field helps to protect our aviation industry and the public, while at the same time
not unduly restricting commerce; therefore, [ fully support this effort.

While I remain supportive of the agreement, as a Representative of Fort Worth, it would have
been my desire to see a more equitable DFW Airport Board of Directors. While the Cities of
Fort Worth and Dallas jointly own the airport, seven members represent the City of Dallas while
only four represent the City of Fort Worth. The City of Fort Worth’s population is growing
rapidly, and it is my hope that the issue of board membership will be reviewed in the near future.

While I would have preferred for the Wright Amendment to stay intact, [ have always believed
that the fate of the Wright Amendment should be decided locally between the cities since they
are the entities that actually own DFW Alirport. [f the Wright Amendment is to be modified, it
should first come from the local level and not from Washington. Just a few short months ago,
the North Texas Delegation charged Mayor Moncrief and Mayor Miller with this difficult task.
Considering the history between the two cities, some felt it was an impossible task. However,
Mayor Moncrief and Mayor Miller rose to the challenge, and we now have before us a local
agreement signed by all major stakeholders. It is now our opportunity to rise to the challenge
and, if possible, pass legislation which reflects this agreement. If it is impossible to enact
legislation that reflects this agreement, then the Wright Amendment should stay firmly intact.

Again, Mr. Chairman, I thank you for having this important hearing, and [ offer my assistance to
you and the committee regarding all aviation issues that may affect North Texas.
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OPENING STATEMENT OF
THE HONORABLE RUSS CARNAHAN (MO-03)
COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION AND INFRASTRUCTURE
SUBCOMMITTEE ON HIGHWAYS, TRANSIT AND PIPELINES
U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

Hearing on
Reforming the Wright Amendment

Wednesday, July 12, 2006, 2:00 PM
2167 Rayburn House Office Building

Mr. Chairman and Mr. Ranking Member, thank you for hosting this important hearing. 1t
is truly a landmark day when we have all interested parties involved in the Wright
Amendment dispute in the same hearing room advocating a shared position to the House
of Representatives.

As a Member of Congress from the St. Louis, Missouri area, | am particularly interested
in the details ot this agreement. American Airlines has long been an important employer
of St. Louis residents and provider of commercial aviation service. Tam pleased that
American’s service to St. Louis is not disrupted in this negotiated plan.

The proposal achieves a repeal of the Wright Amendment permitting Southwest Airlines
to operate out of Love Airport after 2015. In the meantime, | am certain many St.
Louisans will be delighted to learn that our region will be the lucky beneficiary of
additional Southwest business to Lambert Airport as a result of the temporary limit on
through ticketing to particular states, including Missouri.

Congratulations on reaching this monumental compromise and thank you for your hard
work in brokering this deal. Members of the Texas congressional delegation, Mr. Cirillo,
Mayor Miller, Mayor Monerief, Mr. Arpey, Mr. Kellcher, and Mr. Cox, welcome to our
subcommittee and thank you for appearing before us today. [ am cager to hear your
testimony.

it
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STATEMENT OF MICHAEL A. CIRILLO, VICE PRESIDENT FOR SYSTEM
OPERATIONS SERVICES, AIR TRAFFIC ORGANIZATION OF THE
FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION, BEFORE THE COMMITTEE ON
TRANSPORTATION AND INFRASTRUCTURE, SUBCOMMITTEE ON AVIATION,
ON REFORMING THE WRIGHT AMENDMENT,

JULY 12, 2006.

Chairman Mica, Congressman Costello, Members of the Subcommittee:
I appear before you today to discuss the unigue operational restrictions now in place at

Dallas Love Field Airport (Love Field) and whether modifying those restrictions will

result in a denigration of air space efficiency in the Dallas-Fort Worth area.

As background, the International Air Transportation Competition Act of 1979 contained a
legislative provision that has come 1o be known as the Wright Amendment. In an effort
to ensure the success of the newly opened Dallas-Fort Worth International Airport
(DFW), former Speaker of the House, Jim Wright, wished to include language in the bill
limiting interstate service at Love Field. As a result, the Wright Amendment prohibited
non-stop service (and through-ticketing and through-service) between Dallas Love Field
and cities other than those in Texas, Arkansas, Louisiana, New Mexico, and Oklahoma,
subject to an exception for flights with smaller aircraft. The Wright Amendment was
subsequently modified to permit additional operations between Love Field and points in

Alabama, Mississippi, Kansas, and Missourt.

The FAA has been asked if safety would be affected by permitting additional flights into
and out of Love Field. The agency has said consistently and repeatedly what I emphasize

today: FAA will never compromise its safety standards to accommodate increased
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demand. Our most critical mission is aviation safety. including keeping aircraft safely
separated from one another. Consequently, the only question that should be asked from
an airspace perspective is whether further modification to or elimination of the Wright
Amendment would compromise efficient airspace use in the Dallas-Fort Worth area.
Based on a recent MITRE study requested by FAA, of airspace operations if the Wright
Amendment is repealed, and based on FAA’s validation of MITRE’s findings, I can tell

vou FAA does not expect that the efficient use of airspace will be compromised.

Knowing that the debate on the Wright Amendment was ongoing, FAA contacted
MITRE and asked them to assess the impact to efficiency of increased operations at both
DFW and Love Field. Results of the analysis indicate there is significant additional
capacity in the Dallas~Fort Worth terminal space area. While additional operations at
these airports will make it more complicated to maintain separation between aircraft,
many other regions of this country have airspace that is at least this complex. In each
case the potential conflicts are unique to the particular location. Factors such as the
number of airports in the region, the number of runways at each airport, how they are
situated. and the number and type of operations conducted there are only some of the
considerations that dictate how FAA controls traffic in a given region. FAA has great
flexibility in using a wide range of technologies and procedures to accommodate the air
traffic needs of an area. Some of you may remember that a couple of vears ago. the
number of operations at Washington Dulles International Airport (Dulles) significantly

increased at a time when a new carrier initiated service at the same time airport

[Re}
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construction had closed one runway. FAA was able to implement traffic management

initiatives to efficiently accommodate the increase in demand.

Similarly, airspace in the northeast corridor and southern Florida is quite congested, with
several major airports in close proximity. In addition, Chairman Mica recently held a
field hearing in California to address his concerns that the operational challenges in that
region were being met. I cite these examples to demonstrate the nature of our business -
that FAA is asked on a daily basis to control traffic and maximize airspace efficiency in a
highly changeable environment characterized by congested routes, dynamic traffic and
volatile weather. Yet, by tailoring our resources to the unique demands of each situation,

we have been able to do what we are asked, safely and effectively.

MITRE’s study assumed a range of operational increases. Their conclusion, which FAA
has validated, is that it would take hundreds of additional daily operations at both airports
for there to be reportable volume-related delays. 1t would take hundreds of more daily
flights on top of that to result in what FAA would consider to be significant delays. It
should be noted that their study did not factor delays that would be attributable to
weather. While MITRE’s study was based on unconstrained operations at Love Field,
actual operations under the agreement reached by the parties would in fact be somewhat
constrained by a limit on the number of gates that could be used. Given this limitation,
and MITRE’s finding of no significant effect even in unconstrained conditions, we are

confident that the operational increases that would result from the proposed modification
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to the Wright Amendment would not result in efficiency problems for the Dallas-Fort

Worth metropolitan area, or the National Airspace System (NAS).

Even if operations in the area increase beyond what FAA anticipates, we have options to
handle a significant increase in flights if necessary. Last month, Russ Chew testified
before you about some of the notable successes of the Air Traffic Organization (ATO),
one of which was Area Navigation (RNAV). RNAV procedures provide flight path
guidance that is incorporated into onboard aircraft avionics systems, requiring only
minimal air traffic instructions. This technology significantly reduces routine controller-
pilot communications, allowing more time on frequency for pilots and controllers to
handle other safety-critical flight activities. Also, RNAV procedures use more precise
routes for take-offs and landings, reducing fuel bum and time intervals between aircraft
on the runways. This creates increased air traffic efficiency, enhances safety, and may
allow some increase in air traffic through put. We currently have RNAV procedures in
place for DFW, but not for Love Field. So establishing RNAV for Love Field is one
option available to us shounld air traffic demand increase substantially. Should the need

arise, we would also look at modifying flows and sector configurations on a larger scale.

In conclusion, 1 want to reiterate that FAA's commitment to safety means that we would
never consider sacrificing accepted safety standards for the sake of efficiency or anything
else. 1f Congress decides to modify the existing unique restrictions at Love Field and
impose other unique restrictions there, FAA will continue to safely separate aircraft

regardless of the operational impact of the legislation. But having looked at the
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anticipated impacts of what we know is under consideration, we have no reason to

behieve system efficiency will be compromised.

This concludes my prepared statement. I will be happy to answer your questions at this

time.

(v
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OPENING STATEMENT OF
THE HONORABLE JERRY F. COSTELLO
AVIATION SUBCOMMITTEE
HEARING ON REFORMING THE WRIGHT AMENDMENT
JULY 12, 2006

I want to thank Chairman Mica for calling today’s hearing on
reforming the Wright Amendment.

In 1979, the cities of Dallas and Fort Worth came together and
made an historic agreement to have one regional airport —
Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport (DFW) — thus
restricting service at other local airports. This local agreement
was codified by Congressional action known as the Wnght
Amendment.

The Wright Amendment was a logical step when enacted in
1979. Tt brought stability to the North Texas air market.
Further, it allowed Southwest to carve a niche at Love Field,
while American built its hub operations at DFW.

I have long supported the Wnght Amendment as the proper
way to enhance DFW's growth and development. The airport,
in turn, has done its part by fueling the region's economy.

However, today, DFW is far from a small regional airport. As
an international airport, its influence is far-reaching and has
become a major player in markets that other airlines could not
serve from Love Field.

As a result, for many years, people have sought to repeal the
Wright Amendment. But, it has been my belief that if change
were to occur to the Wright Amendment, it should come from
the local level. Mayors, county officials, and other interested
parties should come to an agreeable solution, and if they came
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to Congress with a proposed change, then and only then should
Congress become involved.

> The piecemeal approach of repealing certain states from the
Wright Amendment Congress currently seems to be operating
under is ineffective and poor policy.

» On June 15, 2006, it was announced that American, Southwest,
DFW Airport and the cities of Dallas and Fort Worth had all
agreed to seek full repeal of the Wright Amendment, with

several conditions.

» Soon after, a few of my colleagues and I had the opportunity to
meet with the local officials and other interested parties from
North Texas to brief us on the agreement and explain the
significance of this compromise to the Dallas-Forth Worth
region and the aviation community.

» Mr. Chairman, I am pleased to see we are following regular
order in moving forward on the proposed agreement.

» While many criticized the Wright Amendment for unnaturally
restraining free-market competition -- which amounts to
protectionism — I have heard from many others that also
believe this new agreement poses similar competitive hurdles. I
am interested to hear our witnesses’ responses to such charges.

» Further, I know my colleague, Mr. Oberstar, has some safety
concerns and it is my hope that those can and will be addressed
before moving forward on legislation.

» Thank you once again, Mr. Chairman, for holding this hearing.
I look forward to hearing from our witnesses.



73

DALLAS/FORT WORTH
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

Written Statement of

Kevin E. Cox
Chief Operating Officer
Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport

Before the
Subcommittee on Aviation
Committee on Transportation and Infrastructure
United States House of Representatives

Reforming the
Wright Amendment

July 12, 2006



74

On behalf of the Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport Board, 1 want to thank you for the opportunity
to testify today on reforming Section 29 of the International Air Transportation Competition Act of

1979, now more commonly known as the "Love Field Amendment” or the "Wright Amendment.”

Over the last year, the relevancy of the Wright Amendment has been hotly debated in the halls of
Congress, in the chambers of city councils, and in the living rooms of individual homeowners. Each side
has waged a political and public relations campaign designed to convince, influence, and ultimately win
this high stakes battie. Unlike most campaigns which inevitably end in a winner and a loser, we stand
before this Subcommittee today united behind a single proposal hammered out through intense and
delicate negotiations between the City of Dallas, the City of Fort Worth and DFW International Airport.
Ulumately, thus proposal also garnered the support of both American Airlines and Southwest Airlines.
This rermarkable feat of diplomacy culminated in a jofnt statermnent that was executed on June 15, 20086,

followed by a binding contract that became effective just yesterday, July 11, 2006.

After decades of fierce legislative, legal, and political battles, these five parties now stand united behind
a common solution, embodied in a binding contract, awaiting Congressional approval, We are here
today to respectfully ask for this Subcommittee’s approval and endorsement of this locally formulated

solution,

Historical Rivairy for Commercial Air Service

To understand the genesis, complexities, and the importance of this legistative proposal, it requires a
thorough understanding of how and why Dallas/Fort Worth International Awrport was originally
constructed. For many years, the cities of Dallas and Fort Worth were engaged in an intense and
counterproductive rivalry for the business of cormmercial aviation and commercial air carriers. While the
City of Dallas was enlarging and improving Love Field, the City of Fort Worth constructed Greater
Southwest Internatonal Airport {GSIA). To the dismay of many, Love Field and GSIA lay a mere twelve

miles apart.

Statement of Kevin E. Cox, Dallas/Fort Worth Internationat Airport Page 2 of 16
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Recognizing this inefficiency, the federal government’s Civil Aeronautics Board (CAB) instituted in
August 1962, an investigation known as the Dallas/Fort Worth, Texas Regional Airport Investigation -
docket nurmber 13959. This investigation focused solely on the issue of whether a single airport should
be designated to handle all interstate air carrier service into and out of Daltas and Fort Worth. After
numerous hearings, the CAB in 1964 entered an interim order giving the two cities a period of 180 days
to arrive at a voluntary agreement to designate the single airport through which the CAB regulated
carriers would service the Dallas/Fort Worth area. In this order, the CAB went on to indicate that if the
parties were unable to agree on a single airport to serve the area, then the CAB would have no choice

but to make the determination for the two cities.

DEW Awrport’s Founding Documents

Given this impending designation, the Cities of Dalias and Fort Worth agreed to set aside their
differences and united to design, finance, and construct a new regional airport. This airport was to be
located rid-way between the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth. After years of work, the City of Dallas
and the City of Fort Worth finally entered into a Contract and Agreement on April 15, 1968, defining
the power and duties of the Dallas/Fort Worth Regional Airport Board, creating the joint airport fund of
the cities, and providing for the construction and operation of the Dallas/Fort Worth Regional Airport

{later renamed the "Dallas/Fort Worth international Airport”).

On November 2, 1968, the City of Dallas and the City of Fort Worth adopted by agreement the 1968
Regionat Awport Concurrent Bond Ordinance. This bond ordinance served then, as it does today, as
the vehicle upon which all revenue bonds are issued. Section 9.5(A) of the bond ordinance provides, in
pertinent part, that the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth "hereby covenant and agree that from and after
the effective date of this Ordinance, shall take such steps as may be necessary, appropriate and tegatly
permissible... to provide for the orderly, efficient and effective phase-out at Love Field, Red Bird, GSIA
and Meacham Field, of any and ali Certificated Air Carrier Services, and to transfer such activity to the

Regional Airport effective upon the beginning of operations at the Regional Airport.”

Statement of Kevin E. Cox, Dailas/Fort Worth International Airport Page 3 of 16
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Section 9.5(B) goes on to provide, in pertinent part, that the Owner Cities further agree that they will
"promote the optimum development of the lands and Facilities comprising the Regional Arport...” and
“...neither the Cities nor the Board will undertake with regard to the Regional Airport, Love Field, GSIA,
Meacham Field or Red Bird, any action, implement any policy, or enter into any agreement or contract
which by its or their nature would be competitive with or in opposition to the optimum development of
the Regional Airport.” Finally, section 9.5(B) provides that "...none of the airports of the Cities shall be
put to or developed for any use which by the nature thereof the optimum use and development of the
Regional Airport, including its air and land space, at the earliest practicable date will be impaired,

diminished, reduced or destroyed.”

With the creation of the Regional Arrport Board and a long-term funding mechanism in place, the
Dallas/Fort Worth Regional Airport Board entered into a Use Agreement on January 1, 1974, with those
commercial air carriers serving the Dallas/Fort Worth region. Every carrier serving the North Texas
region executed the Use Agreement except for Southwest Airlines, which was at the time an intrastate
carrier only, regulated by the Texas Aeronautics Commission. In addition to defining the duties and
obligations of both the Airport Board and the signatory airlines in the operation of the airport, the
signatory arrlines agreed under the Use Agreement that they would "conduct [their] Certificated Air
Carrier Services serving the Dallas/Fort Worth area to, from, and at the [DFW] Airport, to the extent
required by the terms of the 1968 Regional Airport Concurrent Bond Ordinance.” In layman’s terms,
the signatory carrners were contractually prohibited, at the ime, from operating out of any other arrport

in North Texas, except DFW Airport.

Southwest Wins Right 10 Remam at Love Field for "Intrastate” Service

Consistent with both the Bond Covenants and the Use Agreement, the City of Dallas and the City of
Fort Worth proceeded to provide for the phase-out of all Certificated Air Carrier Services at their
respective designated arports. Despite these efforts, including a series of lawsuits, Southwest Airltines
eventually won the right to operate intrastate service out of Love Field because, the Court concluded,
that purely "intrastate service” did not fall within the definition of "Certificated Air Carrier Services”

under the Use Agreement and the Bond Ordinance.

Statement of Kevin E. Cox, Dallas/Fort Worth internationat Arport Page 4 of 16
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In keeping with this ruling, only intrastate service was permitted into and out of Dallas Love Field from
1973 10 1978. Then in 1978, the U.S. Congress changed the regulatory scheme of civil aviation when it
enacted the Airline Deregulation Act. Prior to the complete elimination of these regulatory controls,
and over the objections of the City of Dallas, the City of Fort Worth, the Dallas Chamber of Commerce,
the Fort Worth Chamber of Commerce, the North Texas Commission, and DFW Airport, Southwest
Alrlines sought and received a certificate of authority from the Civil Aeronautics Board to provide non-
stop interstate service effective September 1979 from Dallas Love Field to New Crleans. This authority
came as a part of Southwest Airlines’ Automatic Market Entry Investigation (CAB order 79-9-192),

wherein the CAB conciuded that it had no discretion to deny Southwest Airlines’ request.

Congressional Intervention

Concerned that such a route would undermine the 1968 Agreement and the 1968 Bond Covenants, the
Cities of Daflas and Fort Worth determined that the pubiic interest in aviation was best served by
requiring all regularly scheduled interstate commercial flights, except air taxi flights, to serve the
Dallas/Fort Worth Regionat Airport. This is embodied in the Dallas City Council resolution dated
November 7, 1979, wherein the City of Dallas expressed "its support for Federal Legistation which
would make it clear that the City of Dallas and the Dallas-Fort Worth Regional Airport Board have
authority to provide that all regularly scheduled commercial flights in interstate commerce shalt be
conducted into and from Dallas-Fort Worth Regional Airport, unless otherwise authorized by the City
and the Board.” Simuiarly, the City of Fort Worth expressed strong support for federal legislation
"which encourages the prowvision of regularly scheduled interstate air service through the Dallas/Fort
Worth Airport to the exclusion of other airports in the region,” in a resolution adopted November 1,

1979.

In ight of Southwest's intent to begin operation of interstate service from Love Field and in light of the
City of Dallas and the City of Fort Worth's request for federal legislation, the U.S. House of
Representatives passed legisiation which would have prohibited a common carrier from operating any
regularly scheduled nterstate commercial passenger fhghts into or from any other airport within a 20

milte radius from Dallas/Fort Worth Regional Airport. The effect of this legislation was to ensure that

Statement of Kevin E. Cox, Datlas/Fort Worth International Awport Page 5 of 16
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DFW Airport remained the only permissible airport for interstate traffic in the DFW area as originally
contemplated by the federal government and as intended by the City of Dallas and the City of Fort
Worth when they originally agreed to build, construct and operate DFW to the exclusion of all other
airports. This provision was part of the House version of the International Air Transportation Act of
1979. The Senate, however, passed rio comparable provision in its companion bill of the International

Air Transportation Act of 1979.

Consequently, a legislative compromise was reached in the form of a conference substitute which
specificaily prohibited Love Field from being used for interstate air transportation of passengers unless
it met one of three exceptions. The first exception permitted turn-around service between Love Field
and points within the contiguous states of Louisiana, Arkansas, Oklahoma, New Mexico and Texas
provided that the air carrier did not permit through servicing or ticketing and did not offer for sale of
transportation service outside these states. The second exception permitted charter air transportation
provided that these charters did not exceed 10 flights per month. Finally, the third exception permitted
air transportation provided by commuter airlines operating aircraft with a passenger capacity of 56

passengers of less.

The Senate agreed to this Conference Report on January 31, 1980; while, the House agreed to the
Conference Report on February 4, 1980, Subsequently, the International Air Transportation Act of
1979, and more particularly, Section 29 {more commonly known as the “Love Field Amendment” and/or

“Wright Amendment”} was enacted into law on February 15, 1980,

Since its enactment, the Wright Amendment has withstood many legal and legislative challenges. The
Wright Amendment has, however, been altered on two separate occasions. In 1997, Congress added
Alabama, Kansas, and Mississippi to the list of states that were eligible to be served non-stop from Love
Field. This provision has become known as the "Shelby Amendment.” Then just last year, Missouri was

added to the list of permissible states with the enactment of the "Bond Amendment.”

Statement of Kevin E. Cox, Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport Page 6 of 16
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Financial Chatlenge Facing DEW Airport

In 1997, after waiting for a final interpretation by the courts over the Shelby Amendment and assessing
the implications it would have on service levels at DFW Airport, the Airport embarked upon an
extensive capital development plan designed to improve and expand Dallas/Fort Worth International
Airport. This $2.7 billion Capital Development Plan was supported and authorized by the airlines, the
DFW Airport Board, the City of Dallas, and the City of Fort Worth. After a series of unprecedented and
unpredictable challenges including the terrorist attacks of September 117, SARS, and the overaii
financial instabibty of the airline industry, this eight-year Capitat Development Program came to a

successful conclusion.

The program cuiminated with the opening of the new Skylink airport train, which opened to the public
on May 21, 2005, and now connects all of the airport’s terminals by rail. Shortly thereafter, International
Terminal D was opened to the fanfare of the traveling public on July 23, 2005, These two projects,
combined with other airfield and roadway improvements, increased the Dallas/Fort Worth International

Airport Board's debt from $676 million to $3.8 billion, nearly a six-fold increase.

The airport judiciously pursued this long-term investment, completing the project on time and under
budget in the face of these unprecedented challenges. Fortunately, DFW Airport was able to maintain
a competitive cost structure well in line with other peer airports across the country. Although this
increase in the airport’s debt load was anticipated, no one expected nor could have predicted that on
the heels of this investment, Delta Air Lines would abandon its hub at DFW, jet fuel prices would hit an

all time high, and Southwest Airlines would call for repeal of the Wright Amendment.

Delta Air Lines’ Decision to Eliminate lts Hub

In 2004, Delta Air Lines began eliminating its hub at Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport as part of a
targer restructuring of the airline. At the time, Deita Air Lines was DFW Airport’s second largest carrier,
with 566 flights to and from 72 non-stop destinations. By the end of February 2005, Delta Air Lines had
elimmated 522 of these flights and reduced its service to just three destinations-Salt Lake City,

Cincinnaty, and Atlanta. With the elimination of its hub, Delta Arr Lines’ gate requirement fell from 28

Statement of Kevin £. Cox, Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport Page 7 of 16
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gates it used to operate in Terminal E to just four, Some of these 28 gates have subsequently been re-
leased; unfortunately, as of today, DFW Airport still has 15 gates that remain vacant and many other

gates that are underutilized. In addition to these gates, DFW has a satellite facility in Terminat A that is
unoccupied and capable of handling 7 narrow body aircraft or up to 13 regiona jet aircraft. Obviously,

DFW continues to have excess gate capacity.

Effort to Repeal the Wright Amendment

During the time that Delta Air Lines was in the process of eliminating its hub at DFW, Southwest Airlines
formalty changed its position on the Wright Amendment. On November 12, 2004, Southwest Airlines
publicly announced its desire to have the Wright Amendment repealed in its entirety, a departure from
its historic position of “passionate neutrality.” This led to a flurry of grassroots campaigns, lobbying
efforts, and legisltative activities from parties on both sides of the issue. From DFW's perspective, an
immediate and outright repeal was and is a direct threat to its financial stability having just completed a
$2.7 billion capital development plan and having just jost Delta Air Lines’ hub. To determine the
potential operational and financial impact of such a repeal, DFW International Airport commissioned a

formal study.

Impacts of Repeal on DFW Airport Without a Gate Limit

The study was performed by the well respected aviation consuiting firm of Simat, Helliesen & Eichner,
inc (SH&E). Working under two different assumptions, the SH&E study focused upon the impacts to
DFW Asrport if the Wright Amendment were to be repealed. The first scenario assumed that the 2001
Love Field Master Plan remained in place to limit commercial passenger service to 32 gates. The

second scenario assumed that Love Field had no gate cap whatsoever.

Given the projected growth at Love Field with the repeal of the Wright Amendment, SH&E concluded
that DFW would lose a substantial amount of traffic under either of these two scenanos. In fact, SH&E
predicted that DFW could lose as many as 408 daily flights, or 20 percent of DFW's current operations,

and as many as 21 million passengers annually, representing a 35 percent decline from current levels.

Statement of Kevin E. Cox, Datias/Fort Worth International Arrport Page 8 of 16
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With this substantial ioss, DFW Airport passenger levels would decrease to levels seen 20 years ago,

and it would take another 19 years for traffic just to recover to current levels,

In short, repealing the Wright Amendment, without a revision to Love Field’s gate limit, would amount
to a 39 year penalty for DFW international Airport. Obviously, the traveling community and businesses
that have come to rely on DFW’s economic vitality, and the airlines that moved to DFW in refiance upon
the closure of Love Field would be adversely impacted. Equally traumatic would be the untoid impact

on the lives of the 268,500 men and women who have their jobs tied to DFW Airport.

Having recently added $2.7 billion in new infrastructure, while facing the prospect of losing 21 mitlion
passengers, 408 daily flights, and a significant number of domestic and international destinations, DFW
Airport would obviously be under severe financial stress at a time when it is least equipped to handle it.
In fact, if the Wright Amendment were repealed and Love Fieid were perrmitted to grow beyond to the
32 gates onginally contemplated in the 2001 Love Field Master Plan, then it is conservatively estimated
that 35 gates would sit empty and unused. To put that in perspective, San Antonio International Airport
has 28 gates in total, Austin-Bergstrom International Airport has 25 gates, Mineta San José International
Airport has 32 gates, and Indianapolis Internationat Airport has 35 gates. DFW would have vacant and

idle the rough equivalent of the total number of gates at each of these airports.

Repealing the Wright Amendment, without a reduction in gates, would also have a dramatic impact
upon DFW's cost structure. DFW’s net cost per enplaned passenger in Fiscal Year 2006 is budgeted at
$8.32. If the Wright Amendment were to be repealed and Love Field was permitted to operate at its
32-gate capacity, DFW Airport’s cost would be projected to increase 54 percent to $12.81. If the
Wright Amendment were to be repealed and Love Field traffic could grow uninhibited, it is estimated
that DFW's net cost per enplaned passenger would increase 98 percent to $16.47. Without question,
this would have a dramatic impact upon DFW Airport’s cost structure and its ability to attract new air

service, creating a potentially irreversible downward spiral.

Statement of Kevin E. Cax, Dallas/Fort Worth Internationat Airport Page 9 of 16
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Impacts of Unlimited Growth at Love Field

Another principal concern of opening Love Field to unlimited growth involves the impact to
homeowners and business owners around Love Fieid, In 2001, the City of Dallas adopted a master plan
which assumed that there would be no further changes to the Wright Amendment. The Love Field
Master Plan also contemplated that any growth at Love Field would occur on regional jet aircraft not on
mainline jet awrcraft. It was precisely these two assumptions that led all parties, especially the residents

around Love Field, to reach an agreement to support the Master Plan.

The SH&E study also attempted to quantify the impact to the communities and residents around Love
Field. The SH&E Study estimated that an additional 312 aircraft operations would occur daily at Love
Field assuming the 32-gate kmit under the 2001 Love Field Master Plan, SH&E then took their analysis
one step further and assumed that if the Love Field Master Plan gate limit is not a limiting factor, then
Love Field couid see an increase of as many as 484 flights a day. In a separate study cornmissioned by
American Airhines, the Eciat Consulting firm came to a similar conclusion and estimated that Dallas Love
Field could experience 257 additional daily fiights if the Wright Amendment were repealed working

under the assumptions outlined in the 2001 Love Field Master Plan.

With this explosion in service at Love Field, passengers were projected to increase by as many as 16
million passengers on an annualized basis, growing from 6.6 mithion to upwards of 22 million,
representing a staggenng 234 percent growth in terms of passengers. In contrast, the 2001 Love
Master Pian only contempiated passenger growth at 14 percent between 2005 and 2020 because it
assurmed growth on regional jets and because it assumed the Wright Amendment would remain

undisturbed.

Without question, such an impact would put a strain on existing facilities and roadway infrastructure.
Repealing the Wright Amendment without altering Love Field's 32-gate limit would have a significant
impact on noise, emissions, and the quality of fife for those who live and work in and around Love Field.
Obviously, this 1s not what the residents bargained for when they agreed to the 2001 Love Fieid Master

Plan
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Daltas Love Field Impact Analysis Update

A new study was commussioned In an effort to find a balance that would permit the repeal of the Wright
Amendrment, while at the same time ensuring the residents and businesses that live around Love Field
are not exposed to any significant increase in noise, congestion or emissions beyond what was
contemplated under the original Love Field Master Plan. This study, cornmissioned by the City of
Dallas, was prepared by DMJM Aviation and released on May 31, 2006. The Study concluded that
"...the overall impacts of operating 20 gates under a No Wright Amendment Scenario are the most
comparable to the environmental thresholds agreed to and established in the 2001 Master Ptan/Impact
Analysis 32-Gate scenario with the Wright Amendment in place.” In essence, the study confirmed that
to honor the Master Plan agreed to by all interested parties, then Love Field should be operated at 20

gates if the Wright Amendment is to be repealed.

The study also confirmed significant impacts to noise, emissions, and traffic congestion around Love
Field if the Wright Amendment is repealed and the 32-gate himit 1s not adjusted downward accordingly.
As an example, the DMJM Aviation study concluded that with the repeal of the Wright Amendment and
the current 32 gate hmitation, 4350 additional peopie will fail within the DNL 65 dB noise contour than
had been projected under the 2001 Love Master Plan This 1s primarily due to the use of farger aircraft
that will be flown if the Wright Amendment is repealed. These larger aircraft have a louder and larger

noise footprint than the regional jets originally modeled under the 2001 Love Field Master Plan.

Similarly, the DMJM Awiation study concludes that repealing the Wright Amendment without making
modifications to the 32-gate limitation will have significant consequences to the vehicle traffic in and
around Love Field. Specifically, it is estimated that afternoon delays would be more than twice the
morning levels and at five major intersections the level of service would be reduced to a service level of
F as measured by the Highway Capacity Manual. Level F is the lowest level of service measured. In
laymen's terms, several key intersections in and around Love Field become a virtual parking lot,
resulting in utter gridlock during certain peak times of the day. It is also important to note that this
service level F assumes that the recommended Master Plan improvements are actually made to the

roadways
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From an air quality perspective, the DMJM Aviation study estimates that of the 7 pollutants measured,
the level of air pollution is greater for each measured pollutant with repeal of the Wright, assuming no
adjustments to the 32-gate limit. This 1s particularly important given that Dallas County is designated as

a non-attainment area.

A Delicate Balance Has Been Struck

The Datlas Love Field Impact Analysis Update became the catalyst for the parties to work towards the
solution which s being offered for this Committee’s consideration today. Applying this information, the
Mayor of Dallas and the Mayor of Fort Worth were able to fashion a local solution which ultimately was
agreeable to all parties. The fundamental elements of the solution which require Congressional action
involve the followng:

+ toimmediately permit airlines serving Love Field to offer through ticketing between Love Field
and any destinations through any point in Texas, New Mexico, Oklahoma, Kansas, Arkansas,
Louisiana, Mississippi, Missoun, and Alabama, and to market through services;

e to continue to imit charter flights as originally contemplated under the Wright Amendment

s tocontinue to restrict Love Field to domestic operations;

« tocodify the locally sanctioned and estabhished gate limit of 20 gates at Love Field; and

s toehminate all remaining restrictions on air service from Love Field after eight years from

enactment of legislation.

Each efement of this proposal is essential and interdependent. As an example, with a 20-gate limit at
Love Field, the impacts from repealing the Wright Amendment are mitigated for those residents who
hve in and around Love Field, Similarly, the impacts on DFW International Airport are reduced with this
20-gate limit. Additionally, the consumer will immechately benefit from more flight options and more
competition with through ticketing from Love Field to any destination. Finally, with 8 years to work on
fithing 1ts unused gate capacity and to adjust to its new cost structure given the $2.7 bilhion in new
investment, DFW Arrport and its tenant airlines can better prepare for the uitimate repeal of the Wright

Amendment
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Obviously, each of these elements was fashioned after intense and delicate negotiations. The parties
respectively and collectively urge Congress to enact these provisions in there entirety and without
adjustment or amendment. In short, it is a carefully crafted solution which is dependent upon

Congressional support.

Access into Love Field/Marketplace

Recently, a few parties have raised concerns that this local proposal limits access into Love Field and/or
the marketplace. At the outset, it is important to note that Love Field has had excess gate capacity for
several years. It is slightly ironic that only after press reports surfaced that a potential solution was in

the works did any carrier express any public interest in gates at Love Field.

Regardless of the timing, the fact is that carriers have access into Love Field today and will tomorrow if
this solution is ultimately enacted. As articulated in the Airline Competition Plan submitted by the City
of Dallas for Love Field on July 31, 2001, “the operational Main Terminal gates at Love Field are all
subject to scarce resource provisions that, when invoked, render those gates preferential use gates.”
Thus, the scarce resource provision in the lease allows the city of Dallas to require airlines to share gates

that are not fully used.

The process for accommodating an airline seeking space involves three stages as outlined in the Love
Field Arline Competition Plan. First, if the City of Dallas has space available to lease directly, it would
do so. Second, in the absence of space available for direct lease, the City would refer the requesting
airline to parties who are known to have gates or gate capacity available. Finally, if neither of these
approaches proves fruitful and if necessary to force accommodation by an incumbent carrier, the scarce
resource provisions of the lease permits the City to unilaterally require an airline to accommodate a
requesting airline in its premises. In fact, the City of Dallas even offers its support to the requesting
carrier to assist in the negotiation of reasonable sublease terms. To date, this process has been an
unmitigated success as outlined in Love Field’s Competition Plan, in that “"there have been no cases in
which an air carrier that was ready and willing to begin or expand service to Love Field has been unable

to do so due to inability to secure reasonable access to needed facilities.” Despite rhetoric to the
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contrary, there 1s no viable reason to believe that this approach will not have similar success in the

future,

In fact, the use of accommaodation or secondary use provisions provides the only means for access into
many other similarly situated airports across the country. Take for example, San Diego, Oakland, Las
Vegas, Chicago—Midway, Fort Lauderdale, and Philadelphia airports which today have all of their gates
leased or under permit. For any carrier to access gates at any of these airports, it requires the
requesting carrier to seek accornmodation from the incumbent carrier and/or the airport operator.
Similarly, Santa Ana Airport is by agreement limited to 19 gates, to a certain number of fights, and toc a
certain number of passengers. For any carrier to have access to Santa Ana Airport today, it can only be
accomplished through the county’s capacity allocation program. Other severely constrained airports
include New York LaGuardia and Washington National, both of which have severe slot and facility

restrictions.

Last but not least is Long Beach Airport. At Long Beach, there is a strict noise ordinance that places
severe limits on the number of flights that can operate from that airport. Currently, only 41 commercial
departures are allowed under the ordinance, Ironically, JetBlue Airlines has the greatest aliotment of
departures from Long Beach with 22 of these 41 departures. Despite the fact that JetBlue benefits
from its dominance at Long Beach operating within these severe capacity restrictions, it has somehow

found the flexibility to argue that the less severe restrictions on Love Field are somehow inappropriate.

it is also critically important to understand that every carrier today has unimpeded access into
Dallas/Fort Worth marketplace. The fact is that even if carriers could not access Love Field through the
accommodation provisions, which to date, none of the objecting carriers have even applied; carriers can
still access the marketplace by flying directly into DFW International Airport. As discussed earlier, Love
Field and DFW Airport are a mere 8 miles apart. There is no question that these two airports serve the

same marketplace.
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As referenced earlier, DFW Airport has 15 gates that are currently available to be leased and many
other gates that are currently underutifized. Moreover, DFW International Airport has one of the most
aggressive Air Service Incentive Programs in the country. As an example, a carrier that is willing to offer
new domestic air service to one of DFW's top 50 domestic markets is eligible to receive up to 6 months
free landing fees, up to $100,000 in marketing support, and an additional $50,000 in marketing support
if the carrier is new to DFW. To put that in perspective, if JetBiue Airways were to initiate service from
John F. Kennedy Airport to DFW with just three daily fiights, then the carrier would be eligible to
receive $479,000 in financial incentives. If JetBlue Airways were to fly 20 flights a day to five
destinations as recently suggested in a local newspaper, then JetBlue would be eligible to receive $2.9

million in financial incentives from DFW Airport.

The fact is that JetBlue Airways and every other airline can access the DFW marketplace today. JetBlue
Airways, like 27 other passenger air carriers and 18 other cargo air carriers that currently serve DFW,
can choose to fly into DFW Airport. In case there is any confusion, DFW Airport has diligently sought to
bring JetBiue Airways to the marketplace and will continue to do so. Officials from DFW Airport have
met with officials from JetBlue Airways 22 times since the airline’s inaugural flight back on February 11,
2000. We have provided them with detailed presentations and numerous financial incentives all
designed to convince them to enter DFW marketplace. In fact, a DFW official was on JetBlue's
inaugural flight from JFK to Fort Lauderdale for the sole purpose of trying to convince JetBlue Airways’
officials to constder serving DFW International Airport. We are convinced that JetBlue Airways can and
will be successful by flying into DFW International Airport. In doing so, the carrier will avail itself to one
of the most aggressive air service incentive programs in the country. If JetBlue or any other carrier
chooses not to, then that is their choice. However, that choice should not serve as a legitimate basis to

object to the tocal solution that is being offered here today.
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Conclusion

Mr. Chairman, and members of the Committee, dating back to the early years of flight, the City of
Dallas and the City of Fort Worth have been intense competitors as they jockeyed for air superiority in
the region. At the direction of the federal government and with the financial assistance of Congress,
the two parties came together to build one of the greatest airports in the world - DFW Internationat

Airport.

This spirit of cooperation between these two cities was severely tested over the years as Southwest
Airhines fought to remain at Love Field. Again, with the assistance of Congress, a truce was established

in the form of the Wright Amendment which has lasted over 25 years.

Today, Congress is confronted with competing legislation ranging from repealing the Wright
Amendment immediately to permanently closing down Love Field to all commercial service. It was, the
teadership on this Committee who challenged our community to develop a locally based solution,
Under the uncompromising leadership of our two mayors, we stand before you in an unprecedented
show of support and solidarity, firmly behind a common solution. It is a delicately crafted solution, but
an immensely workable one. We strongly urge you to take this local propoesal and implement it in its
entirety. On behalf of DFW International Airport, and the 265,000 men and women who have there
Jobs tied to the viability of our facility, | want to again thank you for the opportunity to testfy before

you today and | respectfully ask for your support.
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Congresswoman Kay Granger
Wright Amendment Hearing Testimony
July 12, 2006
House Subcommittee on Aviation

Thank you to Chairmen Mica/Young and Ranking Members
Costello/Oberstar for agreeing to hold this important hearing about
a local aviation issue that has developed into a national debate and
affects consumers all across the United States.

I have been intimately involved with the Wright Amendment for
more than fifteen years as Mayor of Fort Worth and now as
Member of Congress.

I am proud that the community has come up with a local solution
that will also better serve the national traveling public.

Over the past several months, North Texas has shown both
discipline and cooperation in assembling a thoughtful,
comprehensive solution that meets the aviation travel demands for
today and for the future.

What has transpired since last fall has been arduous, intense and
even painful negotiations between all the stakeholders involved.

No entity got everything in this solution. Some had to agree to
provisions that may have caused some discomfort in the board
rooms or at City Hall.

However, these negotiations have resulted in an unprecedented
agreement.

From my longtime experience with the complex issues surrounding
the Wright Amendment, I have witnessed the negotiations between
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mayors, between airlines, between airports and between differing
responsibilities in the federal government.

In all my years, I have never seen the consensus we now have in
this room and before you in the Joint Statement of the
stakeholders.

If you leave with one impression of this Joint Statement, may it be
this - accepting the provisions in a “piecemeal” fashion is not a
workable solution to achieving the needed critical balance for all
the stakeholders. It must be adopted in its entirety.

To illustrate the critical nature of this balance, I will address one
provision and how its inclusion directly affected the different
stakeholders.

In this local agreement, the Wright Amendment will be repealed
outright eight years after enactment of federal legislation. This
time allowance is absolutely necessary to provide operational
certainty for the cities, the airports and the airlines.

The cities of Dallas and Fort Worth must be able to provide
stability for supporting short and long-term viability of their
mutually shared airport - Dallas Fort Worth International. DFW
Airport is directly or indirectly responsible for over 200,000 jobs
and crucial to the North Texas economy. Immediate repeal of the
Wright Amendment could cause detrimental effects for the cities
as they work toward keeping DFW Airport strong and building its
growth for the future.

The airports must have time to adjust their master plans in order to
protect air safety and build long-term business development on
their properties. This eight year time period will enable both Love
Field and DFW to make the most of their assets with considerable
improvements to market certainty.
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The airlines must be afforded time to adapt service in existing and
new markets from both airports. Immediate repeal of Wright could
put the North Texas commercial air industry in an economically-
harmful state, and it would also deny airports and airlines the
opportunity to react to market changes and passenger preferences
after first implementing through-ticketing. In the long run, a phase-
out approach will allow increased choices and competitive pricing
for consumers.

Another important provision in this agreement is to codify the
number of gates out of which Love Field can operate.

Limiting the number of Love Field gates to twenty operating
service gates is important for air safety, noise and air pollution, and
to the business and residential community surrounding Love Field.
It is absolutely necessary to keep commitments made by the two
cities to each other when DFW was built.

Codifying the number of gates at Love Field was a key piece to the
agreement among the entities, and I support its inclusion in any
federal legislation.

The Wright Amendment and the situation with Love Field and
DFW Airport are unique, and require a unique solution. I think we
have that.

This clarification is important to note because the stakeholders
were tasked with finding a local, homegrown solution to end the
Wright Amendment debate once and for all.

They found a solution that works for North Texas and to the
advantage of the American consumer.

As a former member of the Transportation and Infrastructure
Committee, I understand how hard this committee works to not

[V3)
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only solve issues - but to thoughtfully establish long-term policy
with the best interests of commerce and the traveling public at
heart. | believe the Jomt Statement agreed to by the stakeholders
and before vou today meets these goals as well.

This agreement was reached through a holistic approach to solve
the Wright Amendment debate once and for all.

We at the federal level must support the agreement reached by
local stakeholders 1f we want to best serve North Texas and to
¢stablish certainty for the aviation industry and the American
consumer. and we should accept this agreement in its entirety {0
protect this agreement’s understanding between the stakeholders.

I ask that vou consider this decision as a consensus to plan for the
future.

[hank vou again for vour time and attention.
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Testimony of Congressman Ralph M. Hall
Before
The Transportation and Infrastructure Committee
July 12, 2006

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. [ would first like to thank the
committee for holding this hearing on this timely topic.

On Thursday, June 15, the cities of Dallas and Ft. Worth,
American Airlines, Southwest Airlines, Love Field, and D/FW
announced that they had reached a deal regarding the Wright
Amendment. I have long said that the parties should get together
and broker a local agreement.

In reading over the agreement however, I have some
concerns that I am hoping this committee addresses in the
legislation. The counties in my district affected by section 6 of the
agreement will oppose the agreement if section 6 is codified in a
Federal act. I have been assured that this matter will be dealt with
fairly. And, I have been advised that the provisions of section 6
are not unanimously supported by the parties who signed the
agreement.

I urge this committee to reject legislation that codifies section
6 of this agreement. I look forward to working with Members of
this committee, and Members of the entire Congress, to ensure that
the American spirit of competition thrives. Thank you for your
time.
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Testimony of the Honorable Jeb Hensarling (R-TX)
House Committee on Transportation and Infrastructure
Aviation Subcommittee

July 12, 20006

Mr. Chairman, thank you for holding this hearing and for inviting me to speak. Last year,
along with my colleague Sam Johnson, | introduced the Right to Fly Act (H.R. 2646),
which would fully, completely and immediately repeal the Wright Amendment. This is

important for two reasons.

First, over 500 airports in the United States have commercial passenger air service. With
the exception of Reagan National which sits on federal property, Congress in all of history
has imposed distance limitations on just one airport, Love Field, and it did so to protect
D/FW Airport from competition. I sincerely believe that sort of protectionism is not and

should not be the role of the U.S. Congress.

Secondly, every study of the Wright Amendment, regardless of who commissions it, shows
that fares will fall significantly with repeal. The U.S. Department of Transportation found
that air travel in and out of North Texas cost about 1/3 more than the national average.
That’s a lot of money our constituents could be using to pay health care premiums, fill up a

car or pay a utility bill.
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Still, I understand reasonable minds can and have differed on this subject for over 30 years.

Against this backdrop, the cities of Dallas and Fort Worth as well as D/FW Airport,
American Airlines and Southwest Airlines entered into negotiations that produced an
historic agreement among them. I salute Mayors Miller and Moncrief for their tenacity and
leadership in forging this consensus. [ view their agreement as great progress. For the

flying public, though, I do not necessarily view it as a great success.

Still, I have always indicated a willingness to support other plans besides my own as long
as they met a two-fold test: 1) the plan clearly benefits consumers and 2) the plan removes

Congress from the business of airport protectionism.

Without seeing legislative language, it is unclear to me whether the local agreement will

satisfy both of these criteria.

With respect to helping consumers, I am concerned that the proffered agreement essentially
constitutes an 8 year extension of the Wright Amendment. Most citizens believe that a 2-5
year gradual phase-out represents the reasonable compromise. The previously released
Campbell-Hill study indicates that consumers annually pay almost $700 million extra in
airfares due to the Wright Amendment. Therefore, an 8 year extension translates into
another $5 billion loss to our constituents. Even by Washington standards, that’s a big

number and a big burden to American families.
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On the other hand, 1 am increasingly convinced that immediate “through-ticketing” can
positively impact competition and airfares. Although hard data is hard to come by,
American Airlines and Southwest Airlines commissioned a study on just this topic and
presented it to me yesterday, and I ask that it be made part of the record. The conclusion of
the joint Campbell-Hill and SH&E study is as follows: 1) through-ticketing will produce
$259 million in fare savings annually. 2) 2 million new passengers will travel to and from
the region, and 3) this will create a $2 billion annual boost to the economy. Although 1
cannot vouch personally for the methodology, 1 find it encouraging that consumers may see

an immediate benefit from this part of the local agreement.

I am also concerned that under the agreement the City of Dallas has chosen to reduce the
number of permissible gates at Love Field from 32 to 20. Still, it is the City’s airport and I
respect its right to contractually bind itself to do just that. (However, I do note that the
federal taxpayer has contributed over $70 million to Love Field improvements). Iam
further concerned that under the agreement Southwest Airlines has agreed, perhaps
unenthusiastically, to restrict their Love Field flights to the 9 permissible states for 8 years.
Still, it is their airline and I respect their right to contractually bind themselves to do just
that. The combination of the two, however, means that full and immediate repeal will
render far fewer consumer benefits than would otherwise be the case. Given all of this, if a
bill comes to the floor that grants immediate through ticketing and full repeal 8 years from

now, I will view it as a solid progress and T intend to vote for it.
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My second concem is getting Congress out of the airport protectionism business once and
for all. In the compromise agreement, the airlines and cities make joint pledges in such
areas as gate limitations, international flights, initiating flights within 80 miles of D/FW

and the list goes on. Parties have a right to make contracts.

But I see no compelling reason for the Congress to codify into Federal law private
contractual obligations that are enforceable in court. Congress would be replacing one
complex set of anti-competitive rules with another. We would end up with “Wright Lite.”
Thus, if a bill comes to the floor that codifies these specific obligations of the private

parties into Federal law, [ intend to vote against it.

For far too long the Wright Amendment has been a burden on both consumers and the
national economy. Only Congress can repeal Wright, and we should. But if we cannot
reach agreement on doing it today, I stand ready to work with any and all to codify into

federal law the through-ticketing and 8-year repeal portions of the local compromise.

Thank you for the opportunity to testify.
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Congress of the United States
TWashington, BE 20515

Opening Statement of the Honerable Eddie Bernice Johnson
House Subeommittee on Aviation
Reforming the Wright Ameadment
Woednesday, July 12, 2006 ~ 2167 RHOB

»  Thank you Mr. Chairman.

» I want to thank you and Ranking
Member Costello for holding today’s
hearing regarding the Wright
Amendment. Both of you, in addition to
your respective subcommittee staff, have
been extremely accommodating to the
requests of myself and my North Texas
colleagues and 1 am truly appreciative.

»  The subject matter before us is one of

great importance to my congressional
district.

PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER
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»  Less than a month ago the City of
Dallas, the City of Fort Worth, Southwest
Airlines, American Airlines, and D/FW
International Airport reached an
agreement to resolve long-standing issues
regarding the Wright Amendment.

»  As you know, the legislation imposes
long-haul flight restrictions to and from
Dallas Love Field Airport located within
the heart of my congressional district.
The agreement marks an important
milestone, as efforts to repeal the
restrictions over the past decades have
served as a major point of contention
amongst North Texas stakeholders and
the aviation community-at-large.

»  To have all of the aforementioned
entities in solidarity behind an agreement
that ultimately lifts long-haul flight
restrictions at Dallas Love Field is
nothing short of amazing.

U.S. Rep. Eddie Bernice Johnson (TX-30) 2
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» . As my North Texas colleagues have
myﬂaborateﬂ on many of the key
aspects of the agreement I will not be
repetitive.

»  However, I would like to impress the
following upon my fellow sub-committee
members: It is important to note that the
Wright Amendment was the direct result
of a community crafted compromise
between Dallas and Fort Worth, Texas
regarding two North Texas airports.

»  Thirty two years ago, North Texas,
upon the recommendation of the Civil
Aeronautics Board, decided that D/FW
Airport would be the region’s primary air
travel investment.

»  This decision is captured in the 1968
Regional Airport Concurrent Bond
Ordinance adopted by the City of Dallas
and the City of Fort Worth.

U.S. Rep. Eddie Bernice Johnson (TX-30) 3
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»  And at this time Mr. Chairman I ask
unanimous consent to submit a copy of
the 1968 ordinance be placed in the
record.

»  In lieu of closing Love Field, the
Wright Amendment was crafted to
protect the interests of D/FW Airport, as
well as those of Southwest Airlines.

»  The balance between our two airports
as a result of the Wright Amendment has
served our region well.

»  Today, Dallas-Fort Worth
International Airport and Love Field
Airport are vital components to the
overall health and success of the North
Texas economy. Respectively they rank
4th and 55th nationally in terms of total
passenger enplanements. The combined
direct economic output attributable to
both airports is estimated at $3 billion.

U.S. Rep. Eddie Bernice Johnson (TX-30)
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»  As such, I feel strongly that any policy
decision regarding the Wright
Amendment that could have implications
for the future of aviation and aviation
safety in North Texas should not be
carried out without the input of the
localities directly involved.

» 1 am not anti-competition I am not
anti-lower fares; nor am I am I anti-free
enterprise. I am however, pro-principle,
and it is my belief that the Wright
Amendment exists as a principled
agreement between two cities.

»  The United States Congress should
not preempt the local authority of the
cities of Dallas and Fort Worth on a
locally crafted compromise.

U.S. Rep. Eddie Bernice Johnson (TX-30) 5
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»  Each time the subject of repeal of the
Wright Amendment has arisen, it has
placed our two cities on guard against one
another.

»  Over the past decades this issue has
created consternation, litigation and often
times flat out distrust amongst the cities
of Dallas and Fort Worth.

»  This type of back and forth is just not
healthy for North Texas as we have so
many pressing challenges that will
require us to work together in good faith
if we are to be successful as a region.

»  Mr. Chairman, I support the
agreement. The measure requires give
and take from all vested stakeholders, but
most importantly Mr. Chairman, the
measure represents a unified, local
consensus of which I am most proud.

U.S. Rep. Eddie Bernice Johnson (TX-30) 6
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»  Further, many homeowners and
constituent groups that reside within the
Love Field area also support the
agreement. At this time Mr. Chairman I
ask unanimous consent to enter written
testimony submitted by Ms. Lori Palmer
on behalf of the Love Field Citizens
Action Committee.

»  The Love Field Citizen Action
Committee is a coalition of residents and
neighborhoods in the Love Field impact
area. The organization was established in
1980 to address the airport’s adverse
environmental impact on the large and
densely populated community that
surrounds the airport.

U.S. Rep. Eddie Bemice Johnson (TX-30) 7
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»  The stated mission of the citizens
group is to enhance the quality of life in
Love Field area neighborhoods by
reducing negative noise and air pollution,
traffic congestion, and safety risks posed
by aircraft operations at Dallas Love
Field.

»  AsIclose, I want to commend all of
the stakeholders who came to the table
and acted in good faith to bring forth a
plan that I hope will allow us to once and
for all bring an end to one of aviation’s
most storied stand-offs.

»  Is the agreement perfect? No. But I
do feel it represents one of the best
chances we as a region have to finally
bring resolution to a long standing
dispute.

U.S. Rep. Eddie Bernice Johnson (TX-30)
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» I want to urge my colleagues to listen
to the presentation by the agreement
principals with an open mind. If this
agreement is to be successful, the support
of this committee is imperative. And it is
my hope that at the appropriate time the
agreement presented before you today
enjoys the support of this committee.

»  Thank you Mr. Chairman and I yield
back.

U.S. Rep. Eddie Bernice Johnson (TX-30)

9
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TEERNeWS, com

The Ballas Morning News

Sherry Jacobson:

Safety 1st at Love, please

06:00 AM CDT on Monday, July 3, 2006

An inner-city airport gives you lots of exciting places to watch airplanes taking off and landing.

My favorite spot around Dallas Love Field is the bridge at Webb Chapel Road and Shorecrest Drive,
where planes drop down over Bachman Lake to reach the runways on the northern end of the airport.

It's noisy, exciting and just a little bit scary, when the largest jets make the final thrust over the hill.

And that's exactly the spot where Love Field lacks the 1,000-foot safety zones to make iandings ~ and
northbound takeoffs — safer for commercial jets that use the airport.

"There's about 200 feet on the northern end usable for overrun, and then you go down the hill and into
the lake,” said Terry Mitchell, assistant aviation director in charge of operations at Love Field.

Runway overruns in Chicago; Burbank, Calif.; and Little Rock, Ark., have given new urgency fo
fengthening the safety zones at older airports such as Love Field, Mr. Mitchell said last week.

In fact, Love Field is under orders from the Federal Aviation Administration to improve its runway safety
zones by 2015. Mr. Mitchell says the city is committed to doing it.

His staff recently recommended a possible solution, costing about $11 million, which the FAA is
reviewing. The plan would add 800 feet to the northern safety zones by cutting the main runways’ length
in one direction, a concept called declared distances. But many pilots want to preserve the current
lengths and are pushing other solutions.

Love Field's safety zones are fixable, Mr. Mitchell stressed.

“The airport is going to stay here, and it's going to operate,” he said. "And the FAA is responsible for
assuring it's safe.”

Talking about the safety at Love Field is upsstting to some people. My column on Tuesday mentioned a
1973 crash that killed a pilot of a small airplane after it hit a house near Love Field.

Several readers suggested that even mentioning a 33-year-old accident was unfair to Love Field, which
has maintained such a good safety record over the years.

But other readers offered me more exampies of past plane crashes that made them wary of living close to
Love Field. One wrote that his family used to call it "Crash Field Airport."

He urged me to dig into the Dallas Morning News archives for crash reports from the 1940s to the 1970s.

http:/iwww.dallasnews.com/cgi-bin/bi/gold_print.cgi 7/12/2006
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Printed from dallasnews.com Page 2 of 3
Safety concerns about Love Field were one reason for building Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport so
far from urban areas, said he and others.

A helpful newspaper librarian dug as far back as 1920 — when Love Field was a three-year-old military
base — and produced a hefty stack of stories about airplanes that literally fell out of the sky in and around

the airport.

The first reported crash he found was in 1920, seven years before the first commercial flights at Love
Field.

A 30-year-old Army pilot was killed in a crash on airport grounds while giving a civilian a pleasure ride.

Many of the crashes involved student aviators since Love Field was a popular place to learn to fly years
ago. (Such training has tended to move to smaller airports in the area.)

But there also were crashes involving larger planes, which totally surprised me.

In 1936, a Braniff Airways plane crashed and burned on the north shore of Bachman Lake, killing the six
airline employees aboard. It was a test flight that was returning to Love Field when the engines failed just
short of the runway.

In 1949, an American Alrlines flight slammed into two buildings at the north end of Love Field, killing 28
people aboard. At the time, it was the worst plane crash in Texas history.

And there were numerous planes that ended up on streets and private property in and around Love Field
over the years. Many of the landings were not fatal,

A Braniff jet overshot a runway during a rainstorm in 1953, crossing busy Lemmon Avenue in heavy
noontime traffic. Forty-eight people escaped the plane uninjured, and no one on the ground was hurt.

In 1959, a small plane slammed into a churchyard at the edge of Love Field, after hitting a house on
Walnut Hill Lane. Only the pilot was injured.

Butin 1967, a private plane piunged at full speed onto Mockingbird Lane in Highland Park, killing the
seven people aboard. Luckily, the students at adjacent Bradfield Elementary School had been sent home
early.

There were many more crashes and deaths in Love Field's history, although things have changed for the
better over time.

But that doesn't mean that safety can be anything but a top priority, especially if the Wright amendment
goes away.

Dallas should spare no expense when it comes to assuring safety at its inner-city airport and the
surrounding neighborhoods, businesses and roadways.

I'd even put runway safety ahead of the proposed $200 million terminal.

E-mail sjacobson@dallasnews.com

http:/iwww.dallasnews.com/cgi-bin/bi/gold_print.cgi 7/12/2006
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CTY OF DALLAS ORDINANCE
No. 12352

CTY OF FORT WORTH ORDINANCE
iY0. 6021 v

An Ordinance adugted concurrently by the City Councils,
respectively, of the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth, author-
izing the mssuance of Dallas-Fort Worth Regional Airport
Joint Revenue Bonds, Series 1968, in the azsregate principal
amount of $35,000,000 for the purpose of defraying in part the
coat of constructing, aquip&ing and otherwise improving the
jointly owned Dallas.Fart Worth Regional Airport of the Cit-
1ea; providing for the security and payment of said bonds from
the revenues derivad from the operation of said Airport and in
certain instances from othar airport revenums of the Cities; pro-
viding that the same shall not be payable from taxation; pro-
viding the form, terms and conditions of such bonds and the
manrer of their execution; providing covenants and commit-
ments regarding the payment of said bonda, the construction of
axid Regional Airport, and the maintensnce and operation
thereof when constructed including the pledge to such op-
erition and maintanance purposes of the tax authorized by
law; containing covenants agsinat competikion; and covenanta
rding tranafers of airport properties; providing other de-
concerning such bonds and such Airport, including the
reserved power to issue additional joint revenue bonds, and the
subordination thereof to the lien and pledge securing other
outstanding and future issues of mt'gort revenue tunds of the
Cities: providing for the deposit of the proceeds of such bonds
into the Construction Fund of the Joint Airport Fund under
and subject to the control of the Dallas-Fort Worth Regional
Ahrort ; authorizing said Board to see to the delivery of
said bonds as herein directed and directing that due cbser-
vance of ths covanants herein contained be made by the Board
to the extant such covenants are perfiormable by it; providin
and describing events of default and the consequences thereof;
providing a method of amending this ordinance; ordaining
other matters incident and relating to the subject and purpose
hereof; and declaring an emergency.
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WHERRAS, the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth have heretofore
determined that the present commervial aviation and airport facili-.
ties of the Cities, specifically Love Field Airport (hereinafter called
and defined az “Love Ficld”) of the City of Dsllas and Greater
Southwest International Airport (hereinafter cglled and defined

as “GSIA”) of the City of Fert Worth, are wholly inadequats to
meet tha foreseeable commercial aviation needs of the citizens of
the Cities and the residents and citizens of the antu-e North Can-
tral Texas Region; and

Whereas, the Cities have further found and ‘detarmined ‘that’
the most effactive, economic and aﬁmxent means of providing need-
adurpodhqhtuuthcmmmmdvqmpmmtotacm-
trally Jocated airport for the Citiea and to that end by an agree-
roent_ entitled .and hereinafter defined as .the -“Contract and

- Agresmexnt,”. tho -Cities . continued, - expanded -and _further de-.
fined :the™ powen and ‘duties of the Dallas-Fort Worth Regional
Airport Board (hereinafter defined as the “Boayd™ ‘or “Regional
Airport Board”) theretofore crested; created the Joint Airport
¥und of the Cities; and provided for the construction and opera-
tion of an airport to be lmown as the “Dallas-Fort Worth Regional
Airport”; and '

WHEREAS, in accordancs with the requirsments of the Contract
and Agreement, the Board has submitted to the City Councils of
the Cities a report containing its cver-all preliminary plan for the
construction of said Regional Airport which plan preliminarily de-
fioss and sets forth the estimated, partial cost thereof, together
with statamenta of ita projected zize, scope and location; and

Whrxareas, the City Councils have each, by duly adopted reso-
lution, approved said plan within the context of the Contract and
Agresment, and a;cordingly the Cities, having bren requeatad so
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to do by the Board in the manner contemplated by tha Contract
and Agreement, propose to proceed with the financing of the
Beginnal Airport through the issuance of ths joint revenue bonds
contamplated by the Contract and Agresment, all in accordance
with Articls .1269j-5, Article 1269j-5.1, Articla 1269j-5.2, Article
46d, and other applicable provisions of Taszas Revised Civil Sta-
tutes, as amended; and

WaEREAs, the City Touncils have each found and deterrnined
a8 to each that the matters to which this Ordinance relates are
matters of imperative public need and necessity in the protection
of the health, safety and morals of the citizans of esch of the
Cities and, as such, that this Ordinanca is an emergency messur=
and shall be efective as to each City respectively upon its adoption
by its City Coundl; ,

Now, Turrrrore, Bx It Orpanen Bv Tre Cirr Councn or
ThE C1TY oF DALLAS, TEXAS:

Now, Turserose, Br It Onmxm By Twx Crry Councm or
Tux Crry or Fosr WorrH, Trxas:

‘ ARTICLE [
T, PeeamsLrs AND RaToricaTION

SI_I;I'ICN 1.1, Short Title, This Ordinance nay be cited by tha
short title 1968 Regional Airport Concurrent Bond Ordinancs.”

Szcrion 1.2, Adoption of Preambles. All of the declarations and
findings contsined in the preambles of this Ordinance are made a
part hereof and ahall be fully effective as a part of the ordained
subject matter of this Ordinance.

SecrioN 1.3. Ratification. All action heretofore taken (not in-
consistent with the provisions herecf) by the Cities, by the Board
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and by the employees and officers of each directed toward the
Regional Airport and the issuance of the bonds herein authorized
for that purpase is hereby ratified, approved and confirmed.

ARTICLE II
Dermrrions anp CoNSTRUCTION

SectioN 2.1. Definitions. The terms defined in this Section 2.1 for
all purposes of this Ordinance and of any ordinance amendatory
hersof, supplemental or relating hereto, and of any instruments
or documents appertaining hersto, except whers the context by
clear implication shall otherwiss requirs, shall have the respective
meanings herein specified as follows, to-wit: - .

A. “ADDITIONAL PARITY BONDS"™ mean bonds or
obligations paysble from revenuss of the Airport hereafter is-
sued on a parity with the Series 1968 Bonds for the p '
guthorized by and in accordance with Section 8.4 hereof.

B. “ATRCRAFT" means' airplanes, helicopters, and svery
other contrivance now or hereafter used for the navigation
of, or flight in, air or spacs. :

C. “AIRPORT” or “REGIONAL AIRPORT” means the
Dallas-Fort Worth Regional Airport to bs constructed in part
with the procesds of the Series 1968 Bonds, as herein defined,
and owned and operated by the Cities acting jointly under
the Contract and Agreement and as generally defined as to -
location and scope in the over-all preliminary plan thereof
submitted to and approved by the Citims in accorduncs with
the tarms of ths Contract and Agreement; and said terms shall
include without limitation all Jand, buildings, structures and
facilities thereof or related thereto of whatsoever character
and wheresoever situated, and all futurs improvements, ex-
tensions and equipment appertaining thereto and belnn“gg
to the Cities for use in connection therewith, but excludi
for these purposes any Special Facilities, a3 herein defined.
Such terms shall also include any other airport ar airports ever
acquirsd as a replacement of or extension to the regional air-
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port contemplated by the aforesaid over-all preliminary plan
and .any nther airport ever acquired whase revenues are by
official action made a part of Grom Revenues,

D. "AIRPORT CONSULTANT" means a professianal per-
son, firm or corporation having a wide and favorable repute
for skill and experience in the field of planning and determin-
ing the feasibility of airports and related facilities and under-
taimaz- -

E. "BOARD” or "REGIONAL AIRPCRT BOARD" shall
mean and refer to the operating Board of Directors of the Re-
giopal Airport whoes powers and duties were continued, ex-
panded and further defined by the Contrict and Agreement.

F. "BONDS"” mean collectivaly the Series 1968 Bonds, the
Completion Bonds, the Additional Parity Bonds, and an
Refunding Bonds, as each is hersinafter separately defin

G. “CERTIFICATED AIR CARRIER SERVICES” mean
aircraft operations of ths following types when operating on a
regular and continuing basis, to-wit:

(1) interstate services conducted by commercial air

~ carriars according to publishd flight schedules and holding

' certificates of public convenience and necessity or similar

evidences of authority issued by thp Civil Aeronautics
Board of the United States of America or any successor
agency thereto;

(2) services conducted b}r foreign air carriers according
to published flight schedules hol permits or similar

. evidences of authority imsued by ths Civil Aeronautics
Board or any successor agency -thergto or by any other
ag?incy or department of ths United States of America;
an

(3) inirastate sarvices conducted by commaercial air
carriers according to published flight schedules and hold -
ing certificates of fpublic convenience and necessity or
simular evidences of authority issued by the Texas Aero-
nautico Commission of the Stata of T'exas or by any suc-
CORROr agency.

It is provided, however, that this termn shall not include serv-
ices provided by commercial “air taxi” operators meeting the
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requirements for exemption provided from time to time by
any rules and regulations of the Civil Aeronautics Board, by
the Texas Aeronauties Commission or by any other agency
of the United States of Amsrica or the State of Texas having
Jurisdiction to provide such exemnptiona, '

_H. “CITIES” mean collectively the municipal corpora-
tions and political bodies known as the City of Dalss, in_the
County of Dallas and State of Texas, and the City of Fort
Worth, in ths County of Tarrant and State of Texas, and such
tarm shall also be deemed to include and refer to, in all ag-
propriate ways, any successor political body, authority or sub-
divimion if the Regional Airport shall ever be transferred there-
o 28 permitted g;' Section 9.6.B hersof.

L “CITY COUNCIL" or "CITY COUNCILS” mean in
each instance the gaveminivbody as from time to time con-
stituted of Dallas or Fort Worth or the plural thersof shall
menan and refer to the governing bedies of both said Cities.

J. "COMPLETION BONDS” mean the Bonds authorized
to be issued by Section 8.3 hereof for the purpose therein ex-

pressed.

K. “CONSULTING ARCHITECT” meins a registered
or licansed professional architect or any firm or joint venture
of such architects having a wide and favorable repute for
skill and experience in the fields of airport architecture and
planning entitled to practice and practicing as such under
the laws of the State of Texas, retained by the Board but not
an a regular employee.

L. “CONSULTING ENGINEER" means the Director of
Engirieering, as herein defined, or any registered or licensed
professional engineer or any firm of such engineers having a
wide and favorable repute for skill and experience in the field
of designing, preparing plans and specifications for and super-
vizing construction of airports and airport facilities, entitled
to %ractice and practicing as such under the laws of the State
of Texas, retained and compensated by the Board but (ex-
cept for the Director of Engineering) not in the regular em-
ploy of the Baard. :

M. “CONTRACT AND AGREEMENT"” mesans that cer-
tain agreement eantitled “Contract and Agreement,” entered
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into actually on Aprl 23, 1968, but efective as of April 15,
1968, by and between Dallas and Fort Worth, which by its
terms continues, expands, and further defines the powers and
duties of the Board, creates the Joint Airport Fund, as here-
in defined, and provides for the construction and operation
‘of the Regional Airport.

N. "CONSTRUCTION FUND" means the Fund by that
name created as 3 part of the Joint Airport Fund in the Con-
tract and Agreement.,

_ 0. “COSTS OF THE AIRPORT" shall include, without
intanding thereby to limit or restrict any proper definition of
costy, the following:

(1) expenses and costs for labor and payments to con-
tractors, builders and materislmen inpgonnecﬁon with

pre , constructing, and otherwise acquiring, equip-
ping, re L:ing. extendgng and improving any part or the
whole of the Regional Airport, and the coats of machinery,

ishings and equipment used in connection thsrewith,
aud costa of restoration of property darnaged or destroyed
in connection with construction; - ‘

(2) the cost of indemnity and fidelity bonds, if any,
to sscure the deposits of any moneys in any fund or ac-
count within the Joint Airport Fund and any costs re-
lating to any litigation of any nature or kind which re-
Istes to tha Regiopal Airport;

(3) sxpenses necessary or incidental to detsrmine the
feasibility or prnchcabiht‘g of constructing or installing
any airport facilities and the fess and expenses of any en-
gineers, architects or other professional persons or con-
sultants for the purpose of making studies and estimates
of costs and revenues and other estimatss in relation
thereto, or the immuance of Bonds therefor and the foem
and experisss for any professional services rendered in
connection therewith;

(4) expenses of administration properly c eable to
the acquusition or conatruction of the Regional Airport
or any airpert facilities, insurance premi legal ex-
penses and fees, financing charges, cosis of audits, and of
preparing and issuing the Bonds and all other items of
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expensé not elsewhers in this paragraph specxﬁcaﬂy men-
tianed and which are related to the Regjonal Airport, the
financing of the costs thereof, and the placing of the same
in operaton, and other expenses mc:dusnt to such con-

struction including interest, and the expanses of the Pay-
ing Agent, during conatruction; .

- (5) any and all costy and expenses related to ths ac-
quisition of land to comprise s pa-t of the Regional Alr-
port; except that no costs or expenses thereof shall be
paid from the proceeds of the Series 1968 Bonds; and |

(6) any proper expenae or obh?tmna heretofors or
hereafter incurred by the Board or by the Cities for any
of the foregoing purposes, including such Fund transfers
umaybarequn-edtomun Fedaral or State participa-

. tion in construction of the project.

P. “COSTS OF THE PROJECT” means the Coats of the
Auport during ita initial construction stages.

Q. “DALLAS” means the City of Dallas, Texas.

R “DIRECTOR OF ENGINEERING” means the chiaf
staﬂ unmnner in the regular control and employ of the Board.

S. “DIRECTOR OF FINANCE” means the Director of
meu of ths Board.

T. "EXECUTIVE DIRECI"OR" meaus the chisf admin-
istrative and executive officer of the Board as described and
required by the Contract and Agreement.

U.."EVENT OF DEFAULT” means any of the events
stated in Section 10.1 hereoi aa events of default.

V. “FACILITIES” means any facilities, buildings or equip-
Eﬁtcumpmmgnpnrtoformdmmnmmnm the Air-

W. “FISCAL' YEAR" msans the twelvp month period
commencing on-the 15t day of October of any yesr and ending
at midnight on September 30 of the next succeeding year,

. X, “FORT WORTH" means the City of Fort Worth, Tex-
®» .
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Y. “GSIA” means the airport presently bejonging to Fort
Worg: and known as “Grestar Scuthwest International Air-

port.

Z. "GROUND LEASE” means the leass of Airport lands
required to be executed in connection with the construction of
Special Facilities by Section 8.7.B hereof.

AA "GROSS INCOME,” "GROSS REVENUES,” “IN-
COME” or “REVENUES"” mean all incoms and revenues de-
rived directly or indirectly by the Board from the operation
or ownership of the Airport or any part thereof, whsther re-
sulting from improvements, extensions, enlargements, repairs,
or betterments to the Airport, additional Facilities, or ather-
wise, and includes all revenues received by the Board or any
municipal corporation or entity succeeding to the revenues of
the Cities from the Airport; including sy amounts herein
exprumly made & part thsreof; and furthaer including without
limiting the gemerality of the foregoing all rentals, tolls, rates
or ather charges for the use of the Airport or any Facilities or
for the entry upon any thereof or for any service rende

the Board or the Cities in the operation thereof, and in-
cluding the rentals payable under Ground Leases, but exclud-
ing the rentaly derived from Nst Rent Leasas to the extant
re%uired to pay Special Facility Bonds and reserves therefor,
as herein defined, and szcluding further any moneys received
as ?-a.nts or gifts from the United States of Amsrica, the State
of Texas, or other soyrces, the use of which is limited by the
tor or donor to the comstruction or acquisition of capital
improvements, additions or aytenxions to the Airport, except
tg the extent any such moneys shall bs received as payments
for the use of the Airport.

BB. "HOLDER” when used in conjunction with ths Bonds

or. coupors appertsining to the Bonds means-the person m
possession and the apparent owner of the designatad jtem,

_CC. “INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT" means any Cer-
tified Public Accountant or firm of Certified Public Account-
ants, or both, as detarmined by the Board, duly licensed to

ractice and practicing as such under the laws of ths Stata of

exas, appointad and paid by the Board, who is, in fact, in-
dependent and not under the dominion of tha Board or the
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Cities; who, except for such retention, does not have any sub-
stantial interest, direct or indirect, with the Beard or with the
Cities; and who is not connected with the Board or with the
Cities as an officer or employee of either, but who may be
regularly retained to make annual or similar audits of the
books or records of the Board or of the Cities.

DD. "INTEREST AND SINKING FUND” means the
Fund by that name created in Section 7.1 herent,

EE. "INVESTMENT SECURITIES” mepns any of the
securities from time to time permitted by the agreement with
the Treasurer to be utilized by him as security for the funds
on de'foait with him (except personal bonds), and additionally
includes any time deposmits or certificates of deponit of any
Stats Bank or Nationa] Banking Associgtion which are them-
selves secured by any of the above and foregoing.

FF. “JOINT AIRPORT FUND” means the master fund
by that name crested by the Cities for the purpose of ac-
cmt;lgl and adequately recording and accounting for the
owne ., operations and properties to the joint venmturs
evidenced by the Contract and Agument.' sll as described
and provided in Section 17 of the Contract and Agreement.

GG. “LOVE FIELD” means the airport presently belong-
ing to Dallas snd loiown as “Dallas Love Fipd!;i." y ng

HH. “MAINTENANCE TAX” means the tax authorized
to ba p]edczed io the operation and maintenancn of the Airport
by each City épunuant to Article 1269j-5.1 as to Dallas, and
Article 1268)-5.2 ga to Fort Worth, Texas Ravised Civil Stat-
utes, as amended, snd as described in Section 62 of this
Ordinance; the amount of such tax beng at all times limited
as to each of the Cities, tively, to the lamer of (1) five
cents (5¢) per one hundred dollars (5100) of azsessed valua-
tiopotgnrgénpm in the Cit{éa? (2)tbln.gnountr:~u
quired tp produce the money from sourcy specified as
such City in Section 6.2 hareof.

II. “MEACHAM FIELD" means the airport presently be-
longing to Fort Worth and known as “Meacham Field Airport.”

JJ. “NET INCOME” or “NET REVENUES” means the
amount remaining after deducting “Operation and Maintan.
ancs Expenses,” as herein defined, fraom Gross Revenum.
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KK. “NET RENT LEASL"” means a lease of Airport
pm{partti or Facilities entered into by the Board pursuant to
which the lesses agrees to pay to the Board a rental durin
the term thercof in an amount at lsast equal to. the principaf.
interest and any special reserve requirements contained in
the ordinance authorizing the Special Facility Bonds (as here-
in. defined) to which such lease relates, as contemplated by -
Section 8.7.A hereof, and to pay, in addition to such rental,
all operation and maintepance expenses ngplimble to the
Special Facilities to be constructed with said bonds, including,
without limitation, any insurance premiums Jzﬂaﬁcabln to suc
Sﬁsecia.l Facilitiss (as may be required by said lease); any and

ad valorem or other property taxes lawfully levied or
assessed against the lessehold interest of the lesses in and to
such Special Facilities and to the Airport land ypon which the
same are to be situated pursuant to the Ground Leass exscut-
ed in connection therewith (such leasehold interest, irrsspec-
tive of the term thersof, as distinguished from tha remainder
or other interest of the Cities therein, being for such purposes
the property of such lesses and not the property of the Cities);
any and all lawful excise or other types of taxes imposed on
or in respect of such properties; and’ the expensas of upkeep
thereof of svery kind and character including the repair or
ordinary restoration thereof.

LL. “NEWSPAPER"” means newspapers printed in the
Encflinh language, published at least once each calendar week
and of general circulation within the Cities,

MM. "OPERATING REVENUE AND EXPENSE
FUND" means the Fund by that name established as a part
of the Joint Airport Fund in Section 17 of the Contract and
Agreement and referred to in Section 7.1 hereof,

NN. “OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE EXPENS-
ES"” means all ressonable and necessary current expensea of
the Board (paid or accrued) of operating, maintaining, and
repairing the Airport. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, such term shall include insurance premiums, the
reasonable charges of any Paying Agent and any other de-
pository bank appertaining to the Airport, contractual sarv-
1ces, professional services requirsd by this Ordinance or by the
Board, salaries and administrative expenses after the Airport
becomes aperational, labor and the cost of materials and
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;sup;ﬂies used for current operation; but such term shall not
include allowances for depreciation, liabilities incurred by the
Cities or the Board as a result of its negligence in the opers-
tion of the Airport or resulting from any other ground of legal
linbility not based on contract, and shall not include the coats
of improvements, extensions, enlargemcnts or bettarments, or
any charges for the accumnulation of rescrves, which accordin

to standard accounting principles are chargeable as capi
replacements or improvements.

00. “PAYING AGENT” or “PAYING AGENTS,” with
respect to the Series 1968 Bonds, means the First National
Bank in Dallas, Dallas Tezas, and The First National Bank
of Fort' Worth, Fort Worth, Texas; and, with respect to any
other bonds issued hereunder, to the bank or banks named in

by

the ordinance suthorizing their ismance.

PF. “PLEDGED REVENUES” means Gross Revenues
leas apy amounts required to be paid on account of the Senior
Lien Bonds to prevent a default thereof

. QQ. “PROJECT” me=ans the Airport in its initial construc-
tion phases, to be financed in with the proceeds of the
Series 1968 Bonds and the Completion Bonda.

RR.'"REDBIRD” mesans the airport presantly belongi
to Dallas and bearing the name “ggdbirg Ax’:rpugt.f’ oE

‘38, "RESERVE FUND” means the Fund by that name
created in Section 7.1 hereof.

TT: “SENIOR LIEN BONDS” .means the outstanding
bands of the following issues of the City of Dallas, to-wit:
(1) Airport Revenus Bonds, Series 364
(2) Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 401
(3) Airport Revenues Bonds, Series 408,
and-the outstanding bonds of the lfulluwinz issuen of the City
af Fort Worth, to-wit: i ’
(1) Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 1960
(2) Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 1960-A
(3) Airport Revenus Bonds, Series 1961,
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and any and all bonds hereafter issued by sither of the Cities
pursuant to the authority reserved to the Cities in Sectign
8.1 and Section 8.2 hereof; gll of s?ch bapds being by their
terms payabls from the revenues of the Airport suparior to
the lien created herein for the benefit of the Bonda.

© UU. "SPECIAL FACILITIES"” mesans hangars, aireraft
overhaul, maintenance and repair shops, storage facilities,
garages and other buildings, structures, Facilities and appur-
tanances being a partof or related to the Airport and financed
wholly or in émﬂ' with the prceeds of Special Facility Bonda
pursuant to Section 8.7 hereof.

VV. "SPECIAL FACILITY BONDS” means bonds de-

scribed in Section 8.7 psyable solely from all or a portion of
the rentals racsived from any one or mom Net Rent Leases

appsriaming to Special Facilities. \
WW. “SERTES 1968 BONDS” means the Bonds initiall
nuthnf'zed to be izsusd hereunder pursusnt to A.rti;la I

X4 “TREASURER" means the duly designatad Treas-
urer for the Board and the Joint Airport Fund as described
and contemplated in the Contract and Agresment.

Secrion 22. Construction end Effect of Covenonts. Thia Ordi-
nance, sxcept whers the contaxt hersof by clear implication shall
otherwise require, shall he construed and applied as follows:

A. Definitions include both singular and plural

B. Pronouns include both singular and plural and cover
all genders.

'C. Any percentage of Bonds, for the purposes of this Or-
dinancs, shall be computed on the basis of the unpsid principal
amount thzrecf ocutstanding at the time the computation is
made or is required to be mada hersunder.

D. None of the covepants herein shall ever imposs, or be
construed as imposing a liability or cbligation on the part of
the Cities, or either of them, to pady qhiduﬁncipal of or interest
on any Bonds sut of any funds derived hy taxation

AN—

D 4
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E. All covenants contained herein which require the per-
formance of an affirmative, common or joirit act with respect
to the Airport shall be performed, on behalf of the Cities act-
ing jointly, by the Board, and irom and after the effective
date of this Ordinance, the Board shall be obligated to ynder-
take and perform each and every such ccvenant and this

' Ordinance shall constitute a directive' and order to the Board
to that efect. Lo :

F. Subject to the provisions of Section 5.3 hereof all
covenants contained herein requiring the Cities to pay prin:
cipal and interest on Bonds shall be joint, and not several,
abligations, and all such_chlizations shall' be payable and
collectible =olely from the Pledged Revenues from time to time
on depceit in the funds created and confirmed hersin, such
funds being owned 'in undivided interests by Dallas (to the
extent of 7/11ths thereof) and by ¥ort Worth (to the extent
of 4/11ths thereof); and, each and every holder of Bonds
shall by his accaptance thereof consent and agree that except
as provided in paragraph G, next helow, and except as provided
in Section 6.3 hereof, no claim, demand, suit, or judgment
for the payment of money, shall ever be asserted, filed, ob-
tained or enforced aguinst either of the Cities apart from the
other, Cig and from sources other than the funds in which
Pledged Revenues are hereby committed to be depositad; and
no liability or judgment shall ever be asserted..entered or
collected against either City indiyidually, except out of said
funds and exceeding in the case of Dallas an amount equal to
7/11ths of the total amount asserted or demanded, and in the
caseof Fort’ Worth an amount equal to 4/11ths of the total
amount asserted or demanded.

G. The covenants contained hercin rechuiring the Cities to
levy and collect the Maintenance Tax shall be several, and not
joint, and no claim, demand, action, proceeding, suit or judg-
ment, shall ever be asserted, made, aursued or entered against
either of the Cities for the default in that covenant or abliga-
tion by the ather.City, the full scope and exient of such cqve-
nant being limited as to each individual City to its obligation
to levy iis &mpnm‘onate share of any amount to be coliected
trom the Muntenance Tax, as specified elsewhere in this
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H. In the event af a transfer of the Regional Airport to
another political body or political sub-division. as permirted
by Section 9.6.B hereo!, the governing board of such political
body, when operating the Alrport under and subject to the
provisions of this Ordinance, shall be obligated to perform all
of the covenants and duties hereof imposed upon the Cities
themselves or upon the Cities acting through the Board, and
ahall be authorized to exercise the righta reserved herein to
the Cities or to the Board in such manner as may be appropri-
ate consistent with its usual and customary methods of eger-
cising similar righta in other instances so long as the methad
or methods utilized do not impair or defest the substantive
purposes of this Ordinance.

“ARTICLE II1

Swrames 1968 Bonps

Secrion 3.1 Authorizotion. So as to protect the public. safety
and in order to prompte and advance the general wellare of the
citizens of Dallas and Fort Worth and the North Central Texas
Ragion, and, for the purposs of paying in part the Costs of the
Project, it is hereby declared negessary that ths Cities authorize
and immue, and the Cities hereby suthorize and direct the issuance
of, “Dallas-Fort Worth Regional Airport Join: Revenue Bonds,
Series 1988, in the sggregsts principal amount of $35,000,000,
payshls both as to principal and intsrest solely out of the reve
nues, as described, defined and pledged herein,

Seerion 32. Date, Denomingtion and Maturities. The Series
1968 Bonds shall be dated November 1, 1988, ahall be in the de-
nomination of $5.000 each, shall consist of 7,000 Bonds numbered
in direct numerical order from 1 through 7,000 and shall mature
and become due and payable on November 1, 1998,

SecrioN 3.3. Interest Rate, Paying Ageﬁt. The Series 1958 Bonds
shall bear in‘erest from their date to their stated maturity or
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earlier redemption at the rate of 4%% per annum, such interest
to-be evidenced by coupons initially attached to zach said Bond
payable on May 1, 1969, and semi-annually thersafter on aach
November | and May 1. Both the principal and interest of the
Series 1968 Bonds shall be payahle to bearer in lawful money of
the United States of America without deduction for exchange or
collection charges at the offices of the Paying Agents.

SecTion 3.4. Prior Redemption. A. All of the Saries 1965 Bonds
shall be subject to redemption for any purpose prior to their re-
spective maturities, at the option of the Cities, in whole, or in
part by lot, on the 1st day of any month on or after January 1,
1968, upon peyment of the principal amount of sach such bond
20 redeemed, accrued interest therson to the redemption date, and-
plus & premium computed in accordance with the following sched-
ule, to-wit: , | '

3% of the principal amount of each Series 1968 Bond 30 re-

. de=med, if redeemed on or before November }, 1578;

2%% of the principal amount of each Series 1968 Bond s
redeemed, if redeermned aftsr November 1, 1978, but on or be-
fore November 1, 1979;

2% ¢f the principal amount of each Series 19688 Bond so re-
deemed, if redeemed after November 1, 1979, but on or befors
November 1, 1980;

1%% of the principal amount of each Series 1968 Bond 30 re-
deemed, if redeemed after November 1, 1980, but on or before
Novasmber 1, 1981; .

1% of the principal amount of each Seriss 1968 Bond s0. re-
deemed, if redeemed after November 1, 1981, but on or before
November 1, 1997. )

B. At least thirty (30) days before the date fixed for any such
redemption, the Board, acting on behalf of the Cities, shall cause
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a writtan notice of such redemption to be published at least once
in a nswwpaper and a financial publication published in the City
of New York, New York. By the date fixed for any such redemp-
tion, due provision shall be made with the paying agents for the
payment of the principal armount of the bonds to he s0 redeemned,
plus any applicable premium thereon, and pius accrued interest
thereon to the date fixed for redemption. If the written notce of
redempticn is published, and if due provision for payment is made,
all as provided above, the bends, which are to be 50 redeemed,
thereby automatically shall be redeemed prior to maturity, and
they shall not bear intsrest aftar the dats fixed for redemption,
and shall not be regarded as being outstanding except for the pur-
poss of receiving the funds so provided for such payment.

Section 3.5. Form. The form of the Series 1968 Bonds, including
the form of Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public
Acrounts of the State of Texas to be printed and endorsed on
each bond, and the form of the interest coupons to be attached
to the bonds, shall be respectively substantially as follows, to-wAt:

(Form or THe Sermey 1968 Bonzoa)

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
,' STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTIES OF DALLAS AND TARRANT
DALLAS-FORT WORTH REGIONAL AIRPORT
' JOINT REVENUE BOND
SERIES 1968

No. « $5,000

On the 1st day of November, 1998, the Cities of Dallas and Fort
Worth (her=in collectively called the “Cities”), municipal cor-
rations duly incorporatad under the laws of the Staia of Texas,
or valus received, hereby jointly promiss to pay to bearer solaly
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from the revenues and funds described herein, the total principal
sum o

FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS

and to pay interest thereon from the date hereof to the maturity
ar earlier redemption of this bend at the rate of 4%4% per annum,
evidenced by initially attached coupons payable May 1, 1569, and
semi-annually thereafter on each November 1 and May 1. Both

rincipal and interest shall'be payable in lawful money of the

nited States of America upon surrender of this bond or the prop-
er coupons as they severally become due, at the First National
Bank in Dallas, Dallas, Texas, or at The First National Bank of
Fort Worth, Fort Worth, Texas, paying agents, without exchange
or collection charges to the bearer hersof.

All bonds of this series shall be redeemable prior to maturity in-
whole, or in part by lot, at the option of the Citien, or on the first
dsy of any month on or after January 1, 1969, for a redemption
price equal to the principal amount of the bonds thus redeamed,”
plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption, and plus a
premium ‘E?r redemption calculated in accordance with the follow-
ing schegule: :

3% of the principal arnount. of each Series 1968 Bond 50 .re-
deemed, if redeemed on or before November 1, 1978;

24%% of ths principal amount of each Series 1968 Bond so
redeemed, if redeemed after November 1, 1978, but on or
bafore November 1, 1979;

2% of the principal amount of each Series 1968 Bond sn re-
deemed, i redeemed after November 1, 1979, but on or before
November 1, 1980;

1%% of the principal amount of each Series 1568 Bond so
redeemed, if redeemed after November 1, 1980, but onm or
before November 1, 1981;

1% of the principsl amount of each Series 1968 Bond 50 re-
deemed, if redeermned after November, 1981, but on or before
November 1, 1997. . :

If bonds shall be redeemerl pursuant to this paragraph, then at
least thirty days before the date fixed for any such redemption,
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written notice of such redemption shall be given in the manner
specified in ths Ordinance of the Cities authorizing this series of
bonds. By the date fired for any such redemption due provision
shall be mads with tha paying agent for the payment of the appl-
cable rgdeng tion price, if any, of the bonds to be 30 redeemed as
above provided. If such written notice of redemption is given and
if due provision for payment shall be made, all as provided in
said Ordinance, the bonds which are to be 50 redeemed shall not
bear interest afier the date fixed for redemption and shall not be
regarded as being outstanding except, for the purpose of receiving
the funds so provided for such payment.

This bond is one of a duly authorized issue of bonds dsted No-
vember 1, 1968, of lika title, terms, tenor and effect. numbered
from 1 through 7000, of the denomination of $5,000 each, aggre-
gating $35,000,000, issued by the Cities for the purpose of defray-
ing in part the Costs of the Project, such term contemplating and
relating to the initial construction %ham of the jeintly owned Dal-
las-Fort Worth Regional Airport. For the purposs of defining the
term Costs of the Project and of providing for and securing the
payment of this issus of bonds, the Cities hava ;‘ointly pledged their
respective interests in the “Pledged Revenues” to be derived from
the ownership and operation of the Dallas-Fort Worth Regional

rt when the same is constructed'and becomes operstional,
and in certain inatances a part of the revenues derived from other
xﬁnm of the Cities. Such Pledged Revenues and other revenues
will be on céféposit from time to tima in various funds created
and confirmed in and pursuant to an ordinance adopted concur-
rently by the City Councils of the Cities and known by the short
titls.as the “1968 Regional Airport Concurrent Bond Ordinancs.”
Pledged Revenues in said Ordinancs are defined to be the Gros
Revenues of said Airport when constructed less the amounts re-
quired to pay the Senior Lien Bonds mentioned next below. The
lien on the revenues securing this issue of bonds is subordinate to
the lisn securing various outstanding and futura issues of bonds
of the Cities defined in said Ordinance as "Ser.or Lien Bonds.”
Refarence is made to the 1963 Regional Airport Concurrent Bond
Ordinance for a description of the revenues and funds charged
with and pledged to the pasyment of the interest on and principal
of this i1ssue of bonds, the nature and extent ol the security thereof,
a statement of the rights, duties and obligntions of each of the
Cities respectively, the rights and remedies of bondholders in the
event of default hereunder, and the rights and priorities of the
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holders of this series of bonds, to all the provisions of which the
holder hereof by the acceptance of this bond assents and agrees.

_As provided in the 1968 Regional Airport Concurrent Bond Or-
.dinance, the obligations of the Cities to pay money hereon out
of Pledged Revsnues are joint, and not several, and sxcept as
ctherwise %:uvided therein no claim. demand, suit or judgment
shall ever be asserted, entered or collected against or from ons
City without the other and no indjvidual liability shall ever exceed
in the case of Dallas 7/11ths of the total amount thersol. and in
the casa of Fort Worth 4/11ths of the amount thereof, and, except
as in said Ordinance otherwise provided, such sums shall be pay-
able and collectible solaly from the funds in which Pledged Rave-
nues shall, from time to time be on deposit.

The 1968 Regional Airport Concurrent Bond Ordinance Igomvida

that, to the extent thersin stated, the Dallas-Fort Worth ioual
rt Board, acting on behalf of the Cities, ahall fizx and ahall

'from time to time revise the rate of com tion for use of and
for services rendered by or at the Dallas-Fort Worth Regional Air-
port which will be fully sufficient to produce Pledged Revenues ad-
equate to pay the principal of and interest an the bonds from time
to time outstanding thereunder as the same shall become due and
payable and to maintain reserves for the various purposes pre-
scribed therein. It is further provided in ssid Ordinance that to
the extent Pledged Revenues are not adequate for said pur-
poses and for the additional purpose of properlg and Adequntelg
maintaining and operating said Airport, the Cities pledge an
obligate thamselves to levy and collect the ad valorem tax defined
therein as the “Maintanance Tax,” and to devote the dprnceed:
thereof to the purpose of operating and maintaining said Ai
in lieu of using revenues for said purpose, subject at all times to
the limits of said tax provided by law and in sajd Ordinance. As
further c?tovided in said Ordinance, the obligations of the Cities to
levy and collect such tax are several, and not joirt, and no action,
claim, suit or demand shall be made against one City for the de-
fault of the gther, each City's respective obligation being limited
to the collection of its proportionate anount required from said
tax for such purpose, all as specified .in said Ordinance.

Under the terms and conditions provided in said Ordinance, the
Cities resarve the right tn issue additional Seniop Lien Bonds for
the purposes therein stated, which said Londs shall be superior as
to lien to the bonds of this issue, anc reserve the further right to
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issue additional bonds secured by a lisn on a parity with che lian
securing thus issue of bonds under the conditions set forth in aaid
ce.

The holder hareof shall never have the right to demand pay-
1;2’; of this obligation out of any funds raised or to be raised by
on.

It is hereby cortified and recited that all acts and things required
by the Constitution and laws of the Stats of Tezas to be done, to
exist, and to be performed precedent to and in the issuance of this
bond and the issue of which it in one, and ths adoption of tha 1948
Regional Airport Concurrant Bond Ordinance have been done, do
exist and have been performed as 30 raquirsd.

In Wrrrvess Whereor, the City Council of the City of Dallas,
Texas, has caused the seal of that City to bs placed hereon and
this bond to be signed by the facsimils signature of its Mayor and
countersigned by the facsimile signature of ita City Auditor;
and the City of Fort Worth, Texas, has caused seal of
that City to be placed hereon and this bond to be signed by the
facyimile signature of its Mayor, countersigned by the facsimile
signature of ita City Secretary, and :.fﬁum“J es to form by its City
Attorney; and each said City Council has caused the attached cou-
g:nn to be signed by the facyimile signatures of the Mayor and

ity Auditor of the City of Dallas and by the Mayor and City
Secretary of the City of Fort Worth.

/v
" ""Mayor, City of Dallas, Tezas
CounTersicneD:
8/
" "City Auditor, City of Deilas, Tezas

/ i'/
Mayof, Citjr'ole;'ort Woffh, Texas
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CouNTEZESIGNED:
. /y/
" "City Secretary, City of Fort Worth,
' Texzs 1

APPROVED'AS TO Foam:

/s/
" 'City Attorney, City of Fort Worth,
Texzs X

Foam or Coupon

ON THE DAYmGF

Unlass dus provixion has been made for the redempticn prior to
maturity of ths below numbered bond to which this coupan apper-
tains, the City of Dallas, Texas, and the City of Fort Worth,
Texan, jointly iss t0 pay to bearsr, but solely out of the
revenues ified, and subject to the conditions stated, in said
bond dt the First National in Dallas, Dailag, Texas, or at
The First National Bank of Fort Worth, Fort Worth, Texas, with-
out sxchange qr collection ea to the bearer hereof, the sum
specifisd on: this coupon, in lawful money of the United States of
America, for interest then due op the below numbernd bond of the
issue entitled “Dallas-Fort Worth Regional Airport Joint Revenue
Bonds, Series 1968,” dated November 1, 1968, The holder hereof
shall never have the right to demand payment of this obligation out
of any funds raised or to be raised by tazation. Bond No. * .

n/
Mayor, City of Dailas, Tezas
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CounTze=icyey:

/s/
" City Auditor, City of Dallas, Teras

/’ s/

} “Mayor, City of Fort Worth, Tezas
Couxgnsrmm:

/8/
""City Secretary, City of Fort Warth,
Texas -

... Form or Corrrrorrre’s Rmnn'i.mow Coxroncars
Orricz or CompreoLLne
S«mu or Trxas :

Ihmbyearuiytbltthuboudlulbeme:mm-d certified
as to validity and approved by the Attorney General of the Stats
of Texas in accordance with his writtan approving camﬁmu an
file in my odffics; mdthutmlbondhubennbyme day reg-
istered as required by law.

Witness my sgnature and seal this

/s

Comptroller ;af Public Accounts of
the State of Texas

(SEAL)
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ARTICLE IV

. ExEcuTioN, APrRrovAL, REGISTRATION, SALE AND DELIVERY
or Senrey 1968 Bonps

Secrion 4.1, Method of Ezecution. Each of the Series 1968
Bonda shall be signed and executed on behalf of the City of Dallas
by tbe facsimile signature of its Mayor and countersigned by the
facsimile signature of its City Auditor, and the carporats seat of,
that City shall be impressad or prinied or lithographed on each
bond. Each of the Series 1968 Bonds shal] be signed and exscutad
on behaif of the City ot Fort Worth by ‘the facsimile signature
of ita Mayor and countersigned by the lacsimile signature of its
- City Secretary; ths same shall be approved .as to form by the
City Attornsy of the City, and ita corporate seal shall be impressed
or printed or lithographed upon each bondh Ths respective signa-
tures of the Mayor and City Auditor of the City of Dallas and
of the Mayor and City Secretary of the City of Fort Warth
shall ba lithographed or printed upon the coupons attached to the
Seriew 1968 Bands. All facyimile mignatures placed upon the bonds
and their coupons shall have the same effect as if manually placed
thersan, all as provided in Article 717j, Texas Revised Civil Sta-
tutes, as amendad. .

SecrioN 4.2, Appreval and Registration. The Board is hersby
authorized to have control and custody of the Series 1968 Bonds
and all nersssary records and procesdings pertuining thersto
pending their delivery and the Chairman and officers and em-
ployses of the Board and of the Cities sve hereby suthorized and
instructed to make such certifications and to execute such instru-
ments as may be necessary to accomplish the delivery of said
bonds and to assure the investigation, examination, and approval
thereof by the Attorney Generul of the Stats of Texas and their



136

25

regiswration by the Stats Comptroller of Public Accounta. Upon
registration of the Series 1968 Bonds, the Comptroller of Public
Account (or a deputy designated in writing to act for hum) shall
bs requestad to sign manually the Comptrullers Registration
Certiticate prescribed herein to be printed and endorsed on each
bond and the seal of the Comptroller shall be irnpressed or printed
or lithographed thereon. The Chairman of the Board shall be
further authorized to make such agreements with the purchasers
of said bonds as may be necessary to assurs that ths same will ba
delivered to such purchasers in accordance with the terms of zale
at the earlievt practicable date after the adeoption of this Ordinanecs.

SzerioN 4.3, Sale. The Series 1568 Bonds are hereby =o0ld in ac-
cordanca with law and shall be delivered to Republic National
‘Bank of Dallas, First National Bank in Dallas, Bank of America,
N.T. & S.A., Mercantils National Bank at Dallus, The Fort Worth
National Bank, The First National Bank of Fort Worth, Texas
Bank & Trust Company of Dallas, Ths National Bank of Com-
meres, Dallas, Oak Cliff Bank & Trust Co., Dallus, and Continental
National Bank of Fort Worth, the purchasers thareof, for a price
of $34,475,000.00, plua accured intersat to the date of delivery.

ARTICLE V
Dispoarrion or Boap Procrzg

Sperion 5.1, Interest During Construction. It is hereby found
and detarmined that the estimated period of ronstruction of the
Projact, that is to say, the period prior to which the Airport will
become revenue producing, is five (5) years, and accordingly it is
hareby ordained and directed that an armount equal to tha intarest
to become dus on said bonda during said pariod shall be depositad
into the Interest and Sinking Fund and used, applied and devated
to the purposes specified elsswhere herein for moneys on depcait
in said Fund. Each ordinancs hereafter adoptad authorizing Bonda
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ray specify the armount of interest to accrue thereon and on any
then outstanding Bonds for which funds are not available during
the remaining than estimatad period of construction of the Project
or the Facilities being cpnstructed and such amount may be set
aside out of the proceeds of such bonds into the Interest and Sink-
. ing Fund for such purpose.

Section 52. Copstruction Fund. Except as otherwisa provided
in Section 5.1, all proceeds derived from the sals of Bonds shall be
deposited promptly upon the receipt thersof in the Construction
Fund and the monsys within said Fund shall be used solely for
the purposs of defraying a part of the Costa of the Project as to
Completion Bonds, and. Costa of the Airport as to Additional Par-
ity Bonda. ' (

Secrron 5.3. Disbursements from Construction Fund.

A, Befors any moneys shall be withdrawn or any payments shall
be made from the Construction Fund .for Costs ‘'of the Airport
which directly relate to the physical construction and equipment
thereof there shall be filed with and approved by the Executive Di-
rectorm— ' ' )

(1) A voucher which may contain any number of itama
signed by the Consulting Engineer or the Consulting Archi-
tact and stating in respect uﬁa:h item to ba paid —

(a) the itern numbsr of the payment; '
(b) the nams of the person to whom payment is due;
" (¢) the amount or amounts to be paid; and
urpose whi obligation to be pai
wﬁd&m in'av.n:hi?i‘;ﬂ:lili'1 gl: stl'?:ll b‘:hﬂéli.-factow mpt;‘l;i
Director of Finance; and
(2) A Certificate signed by the Consulting Engineer ot the
raulting Architect and attached to the voucher cartifying—
(a) that the obligationa in the stated amounta hsve
been incurred by the Board and that each item thereof
is ;: mpe;;}éarge against the Construction Fund and has
no :
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(b) that thers hus not bean flad with or served on ths
Beard any notice of lien, right of Lien, or attachment upon
or claim affecting the right to receive payment of suy
moneys payahle to sny person named m such vouchsr
which has not been relessed or will not bs reiensed mmuy-
taneously with the payment of such obligationa;

(c) that such voucher containg no payment on account
of any retainad percentage which the ] at ths date
of quch Certificaty is entitled to retain; and
. (d) that insoiar as any such obligation was incurred
for working matarials, eqm;ﬁlmmt or supplies such work
was ac n&vpar!o 1ed in 103 of the Airport
or deliverad at the cite thereof.for that purposs ar daliv-
Provea by th8 P Baie e Gog ot Plac o
prov s ar
the contrul of ths Board.

I the Ezscutive Directer shall detarmins that such voucher and
Certificats are in the form and contain ths infortnation requirsd
by this paragraph, and that such payments arw due, he shall be
authorized to make psyment thereof in such manner s iy cystom-
arlly anployed by the Board for tha psyment of other expenzes
thareof

B. Befors any moneys shall bs withdrawn or any payments shail
bs made from the Conmtruction Fund for Casts of tha Airport
othar than thoss contamplated in parsgraph A, above, including
expruses of administration and the othar items included as a part
of the term “Costa of the Airport,” as defined in this Ordinance,
the Board shall adopt and maintain a current achadule of Con-
struction Fund uses. Moneys within the Construction Fund may ba
expendad for such purposes at such timas a9 axpenditures msy
be required upon the exscution of & Certificata by the Exacutiva
Director to the effect that such agpenditures sre itemized in or
contemplated by such scheduls of Construction Fund uses. Other-
wiss, such expenditures shall not be mads unless thio expenditurs
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thereof shall be approved by resolution adopted by the Board,
which resolution shall recite the purpose of the expenditure and
‘ shall contain the statement that the expendxf:ure is a proper Cont
- of the Airpart.

. SecrioN 5.4. Completion of the Project. When the Project, or
any itern of additional improvements thade with Bond proceeds,
shall hava been completed in accordance with the plans and speci-
ficationa therefor, and when ‘all amounts dus therefor, including
all proper incidental expenses, shall have been paid, the Consulting
Engineer and the Consulting Architect shall file with the Ezecu-
tive Director and ths Board u certificats so stating, and there-
upon the Board shall cause the transfer of all meneys remaining
in the Comstruction Fund, if any, to the Capital Improvements

ARTICLE VI’
PrLepcz, OPERATION AND M.ummm«:z, Surn.mmru PrLence

SeerioN 6.1, Revenue Pledge. Tha Bonds shall by and are hereby
declared to be payable from and secured by an irrevocabls first-
lian on and pledge of Pledged Revenues and the funds in which
they shall from timas to time be on deposit. Such lien and pledza
ars hereby crested and establishad.

' Secrion 62, Pledge to Operation and Maintenance Expenses.
All Pladged Revenues remaining, after provision has been made.
for the psymesnts required by paragraph A of Section 73 of
this Ordinance, shall be used for and are hereby pledged to the
psyment of Operation and Maintenance Expensga. While it is
contamplated that Gross Revenues will be sufficipnt for the pur-
pases of this Ordinance and the payment of all Fonds, neverthe-
less, in addition to such pledge for such purpose and as a supple-
ment thersto, each of the Cities, respectively, hersby pledge such
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part of ths Maintsnancs Tax as may be neczseary to aswurs that
the Airport will. baeﬁnmﬂymdaﬂa:‘:zvdy Oparsted and main-
tainad in accordanes with the Standard of Cperaticn specified in
this Ordinanca. The taz, if thus amessed and collacted m any year,
shall bs dsposited as an sdditionsl operatiog expamzs coptribution
to the Operating Revenue and Expenss Fund in accordancs with
ths requirements of ths Contract and Agreemenit; and the Mainte-
nanca Tax, or 8o much thereof as msy bs roquirsd, uafcmmd,
and as the limits thereof as to esch City ars spacified in the
definitions in this Ordinance, as to0 esch City i3 hersby lsvied, and
ths same shall be annually amessed god collectsd and the proceeds
thersof applied solsly to such purposs, in euch ratz as will mako,
raise and producs 8 sum sufficiant to sapply the differencs batwesn
the amount required to psy Operation and Majntenance Espevses
in the pext Fiscal Year, as sstimatad in the armual budget of the
Board, and the amount estimated by mid budget to bs svailsble
for such purpcses from Fledged Revemuss after the paymsmt of
principal and intarest to be dus on ths Bonds during such year and
the depoxit of any amounts required to be mads o reserva funds
thersfor. The Cities each covenant and agres that ths Maintonancs
Tax shail not bs pledged on a parmansst bagis for other City
purpcses; however, if the total amount of such tax applicable to
either City (ar both) shall not be required in any year for ths
purpases of this Ordinance, then the amount of such tax not thus
required may be utilized for other lawful City purpcass on a
year-by-year baxis. The respective obligations of the Cites to lavy
and collect the Maintenance Tax in the amount of ths differencs
described aforessid shall bs om ths proportionats basiz of
7/11ths of sid difference by ths City of Dallaa and 4/11ths thareoi
by ths City of Fort Worth. Additionslly, the obligation of tha
City of Fort Worth to lavy and collect the Mainiangnca Tax in
such amount shall bs and is junior and subordinate to a prior
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pladge of ths Maintanance Tax for the benefit of the holders of
its share of the Senior Lien Bonds, to the extent heretofore pledgad
tp the cperation and maintenance of that City’s Airport Sysiem,
which includes GSIA and Meacham Field, so long as its share of
any outstanding Senior Lien Bonds. remain outstanding contsin-
ing any such pledgs,

Skcrion 6.3 Transitiongl Pledge of Other Airport Revenyes.

A. For so long as the Regional Airport shall not be completed:
and operational, (as determined in the manner specified in para.
grsph B, below), and for the further protaction of the Holders
of the Bonds during the transitionsl period prior to such com-
pleticm, the Cities hereby additionally covensant and spree as
follows, to-wit:

(1) On the 15th day of the month pnor to each Bond in-’
terest payment date upon which funds shall not be otherwise
availahls in the Interest and Sinking Fund for the payment
of Bond interest hecoming due gnd any Bond pnn::]xjpal matur-
ing on such interest payment date, the City of Dallas shall

, transfer and deposit directly into the Interest and Sinking
Fund an amount equal to 7/11t.hs of the total amount deficient’
in =aid Fund for ths payment of such principal and/or in-
tarest, the moneys for such purposes to be denved by Dallas
from the net revenues (remaining after payment of any ap-
plicabls Love Field Seruor Lien Bonds) recsjved by it from
the ownership and operaton of Love Field and Redbird or
from dny other lawtully available source; and ths City of Fort
Worth transfer and deposit into the Interest and Sinking
Fund an amount e& 11ths of the tota] amount deficient
in said Fund for pag;mnt of the Bond principal and/or
interest thus becoming or maturmg. such moneys to be
derived by Fort Worth froma th revenu aﬂ&m &
aftar payment of any apphmble SIA and M Fiel
Senior Lien Bonds) or from any other lawfully available
sourcs,

. (2) The Cities to the estent expressed in sub-paragraph
(1), naxt sbove, hereby creste, fix and establish a hm and
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pledge op the respective airport revenues of zach City there
desctibed and to the extent thersin required subject omly to
the lien of the Senior Lien Bonds; and they respectively hers-
by agree, with respect to the airporta individually owned
them, to increase, impoaa, ccllect and receive tolls, rates, re-
venues and charges from and at Love Field, GSIA, Redbird
and Meacham Field sufficient for such purposes. This cove-
pant shall not require adjustment or revision in agreementa
which by their terms are not subject to adjustment or re-
vision. | ;

(3) In order to further protect the Hondholders in the
Eledge crested in this paragraph A, the City of Dallas from

wiully avsilable funds agrees to maintsin Love Field and
Radhird as operating airports or as airports susceptible of o
eration; and the City of Fort Worth from lawiully available
hg;? lgreumto maintain ?SIA mdhﬁ}glmct;am Field as opar-
a surports or as airports susceptible of operation, all'at
lewst until such time as the Ragional Airport itself ahall ba
come operational.

B. Ths covenants, commitments and pledges, reapectively, of
the Citias contained in paragraph A, next above, shall be in effact
and shall continue only until such time as the Project shall ba
completed and hecormnes operational, aftar which such pledge and
covemants shall have no force and effect. For the purpose of this
Section, the Project shall be deemed to'bs “operational” upon the
dats upan which all Certificated Air Carrier Services (not other-
wise waived a3 berein provided) serving Love Field, GSIA, Red-
bird and Meacham Field cesse such sarvice at such airports or
comrmencs such service at ths Regional Airport.

C. The transitiomal pledge comiained in paragraph A, above,
ahall be severa! with respect to the airports individually cwned
by each City, and not joint, and no claim, demand, acton, pro-
ceeding, mit or judgment shall ever be assertsd, made, purmued
or entared against either of the Cities for the default in that cove-
nant or obligation by ths other City, the full scope and extent of
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such covenant and pledgs being limited as to sach individual City
to ity obligation to deliver and depasit into the Interest and Sink-
ing Fund its proportionate amount required in sub-pa.razraph (N
of paragraph A, abave, to be deposited therein. \

ARTICLE VII '
Seecial Funns anp FLow oF REVENUES

Section. 7.1, Special Funds, In addition to the Operating Reve-
nue and Expense Fund and the Construction Fund, established
83 A part ut tha Joint Airport Fund in Section 17 af the Contract
and Agreemanf, the Cities hereby establish within the Joint Air-
port Fund and direct that the same be maintained by the Board
gs in the caze of other funda crested by the Contract and Agree-
mant the following special funds, to-wit:

A. Intarest and Sinking Fund;

B. Reserve Fund; and
C. Capxi'al Impmvemantl Fund.

Sgcrion, 72 Poyment on Account of Senxor Lien Bonds. Such
payments shall be made from Gross Revenues each year as may:
be necesiary to prevent a default in the payment of the Senior
Lien Bonds. Any Gross Revenues thus withdrawn from the Joint
Airport Fund for such purpose shall be restored thereto by the
City for whose account such withdrawals were made at the
earliest practicable date and from such revenues of the City as
may be lawfully available for such purpose.

SgerioN 7.3 Flow of Funds. All Gross Revenues, when and
as received by the Board, shall be promptly deposited to the
cradit of the Operating Revenne and Expense Fund. All proceeds
from the levy and collection of the Maintenance Tox, after contri-
bution thereof by the Cuntract and Agresment and this Ordi.
nance, shall bs deposited as required by the Contract and Agree-
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mant but ahall be accounted for separately within tha Opesrating
Rovenue and Expense Fund from Gross Revenues otherwise de-
positad thersin, Pledged Revenues thus depoaivad shall bs applied
as hereinafter provided and pending such application shall ba
subject to the lien, charge and pledge described in Article VI hereof
in favor of the holders of the Bonds. Transiers of Pledged Reve-
nues zhajl be made in the order in which the following paragrapns
appear, and such order shall conatituta pricridies as to right and
obligation, to-wit:

A. The Board shail transfer to the Interest and Sinking
Fund, aftar accounting for the unex d investment eam-
ingyon th moneys on deposit in said Clo

(1) beginning on Novmbar 1, 1873 and on thea 15t day
of sach month threafter an amount necossary to provide
/6th of the amnount of interest to hecoms due on the
Series 1968 Bonds on ths next succweding interest pay-
mant dats thereof; provided, however, that no transiers
ahall be ired an such datss to thp extent monsy has

been tgmn ed from future imsues of ompletion Bonds to
Ey @ intarest then becoming dus on ths Serims 1583

(2) beginming on October 1, 1978, and on the lyt day
of sach month thereafter through Septamber 1, 1898, tha
amount necassary in equal monthly installments to ac.
cumulate during each 12 month pericd ths annual sum
of $1,810,000, through ths prior redemption of
Series 1968 Bonds and/ar the purchass thereol in ths
open “ﬁ:nkst, it lb;ﬂbt;re &a'tamg.md tha;h m?b?n:}ﬁl ac-
cumulation required is sub-parngra ill pro-
duce ¢ swplus in the Interest and Sinking Fund at
maturity of the Series 1968 Bonds, the annual accumu-
lation sbove required on account of the Series 1988 Bonds
may bs accordingly reduced to provide in approximataly
oqual annusl amounts an sccumnlation st maturity
to the amount of Series 1968 Bonds 0 be outatanding on

mid dats.

(3) baginning on the dates ifled in any ordinance
aut.hz:xiz.ing f\.ﬁ:‘um issues of Completion or Additional
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, Parity Bonds the amoyunts required therein for the pay-
ment of interest on and the payment or accumnulation of
principal of said bonds as they mature or as therein

B. During each month, after making the .iransfers re-
qhuired by paragraph (1), next abave, the Board shall be au-
thorized to expend any funds remaining on deposit in the
Operating Revenus and Expenss Fund for the purpose of
anx‘ng e¢ Operation and Maintenance Expenses of the
thmd in accordance with the then current annual budgst of

C. At wuch times as the Reserve Fund shall contain the
maximurm amount required to be on deposit therein pursuant
to Section 8.3.C and Section 8.4.C hereol, no tranafers shall
be required to be made from Pledged Revenuen thersto, How-
ever, if at the closs of business on Septamber 30 of any year,
the Resarve Fund shall be dedcient and shall contain less than
the maximum amount thus required $o be an depasit thersin,
then moneys remammg unexpended in the Operating Revenuse
and ] Fund, mln‘ngzcrmviliou for the tranafers
req above, shail be deposited to the Reserve Fund in
such amount as may be necessary to restore such deficiency.

D. Moneys ining unexpended m the Operating
Revanus and Expense at the closs of busiieu on
September 30 of any year, after making provision for the
transfers required above and after sati or making pro-
vision for the payment of all current legal obligations, if any,
against the Airport or the Joint Airport Fund and after re.
tmnmg therein an amount certified by the Dirertor of Finance
as jent to pay estimsted Operation and Maintenance
Expenses for 8 period of three (3) months, shall be depositad
to the credit of the Capital Improvemenis Fund. It gzﬁmvidad.
however, (a) that until such time as the Cities shall recover
the amounts contributed from City funds to their Initial
Capital Contributions Account A (as described in the Con-
tract and Agreement) fu(r bz@.van:a planning, ::mneermgt am%

peliminary expenses ing an aggregaté amount o
§2,435.270) the Cities may wgthhukd suchi amowmnt from the
Capital Improvemnents Fund angd distribute such amount to
the Cities: and (b) if in the Fiscal Year then closing, the
Cities were required to levy and collect the Maintenance Tax
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under this Ordinance, the Cities may withhold fom ths
Capital Improvements Fund, to the extent moneys ars avail-
able therefor that vear, an amount equal to the amount of
Maintenence Tax (or othar City funds U used in lisu therent)
actually contributed to the operation and maintenanca of
the Axg‘nn for tha Fiscal Year thus closing, It is further pro-
vided that at such time or times as the Capital Improvementa
Fund shall have accumulated therein the sum of 325,000,000,
such moneys thus remaining on deposit in the Operating
Reavenue and Expense Fund may be utilized and devoted to
any lawful purpose.

SectioN 7.4, Uses of Funds. Moneys on deposit to the credit of
the Interest and Sinking Fund and the Resarve Fund shall be
usad for the purposes and uses specifisd in this Secrion 7.4, an
follows =

A. Interast ond Sinking Fund — Moneys on daposit in ths
Interest and Sinking Fund esch year shall be used solely and
excluxively frst for the purposs of paying the interest cn and
principal of the Bonda as mich interest comss dus and the
principal thareof matures; and zecond, after the Airpart be-
comes operational and during yeara in which no principal of
Bonds shail mature, or to the extant of any murplus tharein, for
the tE.urpma of calling and redeerning Bonds prior to maturity
at the applicable redemption prics and/or for the purpose of
purcharing Bonds in the open market for retirement for
prices not tar than u:dutb:ndpu value plus acrrued intarast
of any Bonds thus p . The Director of Finance shall
make transfers of the fimds on depasit thersin to the Paying
Agents for such purposes nt least five (5) days prior to the
dus dats thereof.

B. Reserve Fund. For 50 long as any of the Bonds shall bs
outstanding the Resarve Fund shall be hald as a reserve for
ths }:l t of principal and interest on the Bonds when and
gP eﬁRevenua on deposit in tha Interest and Sinking
Fund not be sufficient for such pwpose. If such de-
ficiencies occur, the Director of Financs shall transier monsy

on deposit in the Reserve Fund to the Interest and Sinking
Fund for the uses specified for that Fund, and the deficiency
thus occurring in the Resarve Fund shall be restored at the
' times required by Paragraph C of Section 7.3 hereoi.
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C. Cepital Improvements Fund. Mun?'a from time to tima
on depowit in the Capital Improvements Fund may be used

1) topayan ComofthcAJ.rpart.orothe:mupn .
th£ c)ut ol;gmgucung, or otherwise acquirin Ex‘:‘
or improving (or any combination thereof) ths Airport or
any Facilities authorized by law;

(2) ta thecmtetumurdmnrycr or Operation
gvfamptgmcei}xpmw ﬁ Ope

3) to yanyBond:o:othercbhnunu yable rom
(& pay “‘Pl o
‘mmthonncmrytnpmmtanyd Emthopmmt

af such cbligations.

Sud:muneysdﬂlb-udtnpmmnddmltmﬂnpnmt
tmw .dbl;«:ﬁc uses and tims of use
© SscrioN 75, Security end Investmaent of Funds. Forlo!uuu
monsys on deposit in the Joint Airport. Fund shall be held by ths
Treasurer, ths sams shall be secured in the minnsy provided by
the agroerpent from time to tims in effect betwsen the Board and
the Tresgurer. In the event ths Cities shall elact to place the
moneys m said Fund, or any part thareof, elsewhere, the same
shall ba cecuxed at all times in the manner provided by law for
other public funds, and, except for current requirements, shall be
continually invested in appropriate Investment Securities. Earn-
ings on the Construction Fund shall be retained therein for the
purposas of such Fund. Earnings realized by reason of moneys on
depesit in the Interest and Sinking Fund during construction of
the Project shall be transferred to the Construction Fund; there-
aftar, yuch earnings shall be retsined to the credit of the Intersst
and Sinking Fund and shall be applied in reduction of the pay-
ments required therein a8 sforeaid. Earnings in the Reserve Fund
shall be depcsited to the credit of said fund until such time as the
then maximurn smount required to be on depoxit thersin ahall be



148

37

established therein and thereafter such esmings shall b wans-
ferred to the Operating Revenue and Expense Fund and shall be
considered A part of Groas Revenues. Eamings realized from the
Operating Revenue and Expense Fund shall be retainad therein
and shall constituts a part of Gross Ravenuea.

ARTICLE VIII

Sentos Lien, ComprerioN, PArrre, REFunbING anD
Srxcial FaciiTy Bonps

Szerion 8.1, Senior Lien Bonds for Love Field Improvements.

A. Until such tima as the Regional Airport shall becoms operz-
tioral, Dallas shall have the right to issue Senior Lien Bonds by
the tarms of which Dallay’ share of Gross Revenuss may be pledged
to the payment thereof senior in right to the Bonds, but such
right shall be exarcised strictly upon and subject to the following
conditions, limjtations and restrictions, to-wit:

(1) Such Senior Lien Bonds shall be issusd for tha sols and
exclusive pugme of obtaining funds for scquiring or con-
structing such improvements, extapsions and additioma to-
Love Field as may be nec , prudent and essemtial for
the: continued, safe, efficient and effective operation of Lave
Field as a major commepcial, er-orisnted airport facility
for the period pricr to which the Regicnal Airport shall be-
cunle operational. To determine and ascertiin this fact the
Dallas City Counci] shall select 3 competent professional air-
port enginger or consaltant, and if such engineer or consultant
shall execute an opinion that such improvements, extansions
or additions ars necesmary and emsential ay aforesaid, them
thjé,ﬁ rﬁ-um ent shall be deemed conclusively o have baen
AR .

(2) Dallas shall comply with all terms, conditions and re-
quirernents relsting to the issuance of parity revenus bonds
contained in the ordinance or ordinances suthorizing its then
outstanding Senior Lien Bonds.
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* (3) A competent airport consultant or consulting firm
ishes a3 pggjecﬁan ?f anticipated revanues from Love
Field and the Regional Airport, and such projection shows
and reflects that Love Fisld net revenuew, together with
7/11ths of the projected Pledged Revenues throughout the
life of the Series 1968 Bonda and all anticipated Completion
Bondp, are sufficient in amount :gdpuy all Love Field Senior
Lien Bonds then proposed outstanding and 125
times 7/11ths of all then outstanding Series 1968 Bonds,
and all then outstanding and anticipatad Completion' Bonds;
and such projection reflecty additionn.llg that Dallas’ share
of the Maintenance Tax and the Gross Revenues re
maining after debt sarvics will be sufficient to provide for
ths proper cperation and maintenance of tha Ryxuul Alr-
part. For the p of detarmining the amount of anticipat-
od Completion Bonds, Dallan additionally cause to be
red and submitted 8 statement of the Consulting Archi-
tact and/or Consulting Enginesr as to the anticipsted cist
of complsting the Project as of the date of the statement;
and an amount of anticipatad Completion Bonds shall be
ay being outsitanding equal to such amount, com-
puted on the basis of a psyout period of 30 yesrs, &l}“lbll m
e%unl installments aach year, besaring interest at ths rite of
6% per annum, and assuming escrowed interest from bond
procseds for the remaining then eatimated period of csu-
rtruction.

.(4)_The ordinance or ordinances authorizing such Semior
Lien Bonds shall additiopally pledge the net revanues of Love

Fiald to the plymlnto!mciSemorLilnBamdl. '

(5) Such Senior Lian Bonds shall be subjsct to prior re-
demption at least semi-annually beginning not later than
during the m.lendar‘yw 1973, ,

B. From and after the date upon which the Regional® Airport
shall bacome operational, no additional Senior Lien Bonds shall
be imued by Dallas. It is provided, however, that nothing con-
tained in this Section 8.1 shall be construed to prohibit ar limit
the right or power of Dallas, either before or after the Regional
Airport becomes operational, to provide for improvements, extan.
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alons or additions t0 Love Field or Redbird by issuing bonds which
do not include a pledge of any part of the revenues from the
Regional Airport.

Section 8.2 Senior Lien Bonds for GSIA Improvemerits,

A. Until such time as the Regional Airport shall become opera-
tional, Fort Waorth shall have the right to issue Senior Lien Bonda
by the tarms of which Fort Worth's share of Gross Revenues may
bs pledged to the payment thereof sanior in right to the Bonds,
but such right shall bs sxerrised strictly upon and subject to the
following conditions, lirnitations and reatrictionn, to-wit:

(1) Such Senior Lien Bonds shall be izsued for the sole
and exclusive purpose of obtaining funds for acquiring or con-
structing such improvements, extansions and additions to
GSIA as may bs nec , prudent and essential to the con-
tinued, safs, efficient effective operation of GSIA a5 a
major commercial, passengeroriented airport facéha‘fly for the
period prior to which the Regional Airport shall becoms
%Eerutmml. To determine and ascartain this fact the Fort

Vorth City Council ahall select a compstent professional
airport engineer or consultant, and if such engineer or con-
sultant shall execute an opinion that such improvements,
extansions or additions are necemsary and essential as afore-
said, then this gﬂmmmnt zhall be deemed conclusively to
have been satis

(2) Fort Worth ahall comply with all terna, conditions and
requirements relating to the issuance of parity revenue bonda
contained in the ordinance or ordinances authorizing its then
cutstanding Senior Lien Bonda.

(3) A competent airport consultant or consulting firm

ishes & projection of anticipated reverues from GSIA,
Mescham Field and the Reém Airport and such projection
shows and reflects that GSIA' and Mescham Field Nei
Revenues, together with 4/11ths of the projectad Pladged
Rsvenues throughout the life of the Series 1968 Bonds and
all anticipatad Completion Bonds, are sufficient in amount
to pay all GSIA and Mescham Field Senior Lien Bonds themn
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' pmpoaad and cumtandmgoand 1.25 times 4/11ths of all f.bln
cutstandin wcf Series 1965 Bands and all then outstanding and
anticipated Completion Bonds; and such ppojection reflects

. additionally that Fort Worth's shars of - ho antaunce
Tax and Grom Revenues remat &. ebt sarvice

-will be sufficient to pm-nde for, proper operation
od e e e Coponloi Bo:ds.
o.atanmmn a amount of anticipa pleticn Bonp

Fort Worth sgall addzt.onllly cauas to be p and s
mitted & statement of the Consulting A.tchmct s o t.bs
anticipated cost of completing the meect as of the date of
the statement; and an amount of anticipsted Completion
Bonds ahall be assumed as being outais to such
amount, computed on the basis of a magimum payout period
of 30 years, payabls in equal matnllmenh each year,
intarest at the rata of 6% annum, and AENERING ECTOW

intarest from bond orthermnm:th:n-hmatnd
peariod of conatruction.

(4) The ordinance or ordinances suthummz such Semor
Lien Bonds shall additionally pledge revenues of
gsnIA and Meacham Field to ths pnyma:t ui Senior Lien

5) Such Scmnr Li shall b- subj oct to prior
degngtxon at lsast ug m ] hpn t.h:
during the calendar year 1973, -

- B memdafurths dats upon which the Regional Airport
shall hecoms operational, no sdditional Senior Lien Bonds shall
be issued by Fort Worth. It is provided, however, that nothing
contained in this Section 8.2 shall be construed to prohibit or Lmit
the right or power of Fort Worth, either before or after the Re-
gional Airport becomes operational, to provide for impmvamenh.
estansions or additions t3’' GSIA or Meacham Field by issuing
bonds which do not include a pledge of any part of the revenues
from the Regional Airport. .

Secrion 8.3, Project Bonds for Completion of the Regional Air-
Wnl



152

41

A. The Cities reserve the right to issue Completion Bonds for
the purpese of completing the Regicnal Airport in the mwze and
scope contemplatad by the over-all preliminary plan of ths Board
approved by the Cities and described in the preambles to this
Ordinancs, including all Facilities considered by the Board to ba
required or incidental thereto. Completion Bonds shall ba on a
parity with and shall have the same rights and privileges as the
Series 1968 Bonds. ‘ '

B. If the issuancs of any series of Completion Bonds should cause
the aggragats amount of Bonds to be outstanding to exceed 3425.-
000,000, the Board shall cbtain a writtan opinion of an Alrport
Cansyltant to the effect that ths Facilitiss contemplated io con-
nection with said Completion Bonds are needed in order to fulfll
said over-all preliminary plan. If such opinion shall ba obtained
as thus required the same shall be conclusive evidencs of the
power of the Cities to issue Completion Bonds for completion pur-
poaes under this Section 3.3.

C. The Cities shall include within the principal amount of the
first izxue of Complation Bonds an amount at least equal to the
average annual amounts of interest to be paid and principal to
bes accumulated (and required to be depositad to the credit of tha
Interest and Sinking Fund) on account of the Series 1968 Bonds.
The Cities shall also include in such first imue of Completion
Bonda, and in all futurs issues thereafter, an ampunt at least equal
to the average annual principal (or principal accumulation) and
interest requirements on each said issue of Completion Bonds. The
amounts thun included in the principal amount of each such imrue
of Completion Bonds shall be set aside out of the proceeds from
the sale and delivery of each such issue and shall be depowited to
the credit of the Reserve Fund and shall be used as a reserve for
the purposes prescribed for said Fund in this Ordinance.
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S@ON 8.4. Additionol Parity Bonds for additional construction.

In addition to the right to issus Completion Bonds, as provided
'in Section 8.3, the Cities reserve the right to issne Additional
Parity Bonds for the purpose of improving, constructing, raplacing
or otherwise exianding the Regional Airport. Additional Parity
Bonds ahall be on a parity with and shall have the same rights and
privileges hereunder aa the Series 1968 Bonds'and the Completion
Bonda. Additional Parity Bonds may be issued upon and subject’
to the following covenants and conditions, to-wit:

A. The Cities shall not then be. in 'default in any covenant,
obligation or undertaking contained in this Ordinance or in any
other ordinance heresfter adopted relating to any Bonds

+ theretofore issued as shown % a cartificats of the Director

. of Finance, or Executive Direcior or & officer e
BE’..E:\.N —t . =T - l - - B

B. An Airport Consultant shall executs a written certificate

to tha effect that during each Fiscal Year while the then out-

standing Bonds and thm Additional Parity Bonds

are scheduled to be ou ing ( ing with the Fiscal

+ Year next following the date upon which the Facilities to be .

obtained with the then proposed Additional Parity Bonds
are anticipated to bs completed and available for use), the
estiated Pledged Revenues will be at Jeast equal to (1) the
estimated anﬁcn and Maintenance dun'nsg each
wuch Fiscal Year, plus (2) an amount not than 1.25 times
the aversge annual En'ncipd and interest requirements of all
then . outstanding and the then propmsed Additional
Parity Bonda

C. 'The Cjtiea shall include in each issue of Additional Parity
Bonds an amount at least equal to the avarsge snnusl principal
(or principal accumulation) and in”erest requiramenta on each
said issue of Additional Parity Bonds. The.amounts thus in-
cluded in the principal amount of each such issue of Additional
Parity Bonds shall be set aside out of the proceeds from the
sale and delivery of each such issue and shall be depasited to
the credit; of the Reserve Fund and shall be used as a reserve
for the purposes prescribed for ssid Fund in this Ordinance.
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SerTion 8.5, Method of Jssuing Completion and Additionai Por-
ity Bonds.

A. The Compietion Bonds and Additional Parity Bonds of each
saries ssued pursuant to the authority contained in Sections 8.3
and 3.4 shall be authorized by ordinances supplemental hereto
adopted by ths City Councils of the Cities, and the Bonds author-
ized thersby shall be conclusively considered to have besn'issued
undar the suthority of this Ordinancs and zhall have the right to
tho lien hersof upon compliance with the requirsments of aid
Sections and if such ordinances shall specify —

(1) the authorized prmc:p.al amount of such series and ths
dnsmtmn thereo!;

(2) ths or purposes for which ths Bonds are bai
‘ﬁ&’f" . and the tarms of such sup lemenlrxﬁ

ordmancu cnmply with either Section 8.3 or 8.4 hereof, &z
the case may be;

(3) the form of the Bonds being authorized, and the form
of the coupons and any other forms relating thereto;

(4) the date of such Bonds and the maturity dates thareof,
rovided that every maturity date shall fall on May 1 or
gfovembcr 1, or both;

(5) any redemption provisions relsting thereto; and

(8) any other matters, including the crestion of reserves
‘ fixing limitations and restrictions in addition to tha
limitations and restrictions contained in tlais Ordinance, as
! tz bs deemed appropriats or necessary and not mmmtmt
wi hereot

the provisions
B. Nonu of ths Bonds at any time outstanding and issued in
accordsnca with this Ordinance shall be entitled to any priority

one over the other in the application of the Gross Revenues, re-
gardless of the time or times of the issuanca thereof
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SgcrioN 8.6, Refunding Bonds. A. In addition to the Bonds
suthorized in Sections 8.3 and 8.4, the Cities shall have the right
in sccordance with any applicable law to isue Refunding Bonds
‘in any mannar authorized by law to refund any part or all of any
outstandmg Bonds and/or any part or all of any Senior Lien
Bon:hl at such time or times as'the Cities consider appropriate,
subject o the following provisions and conditions, to-wit:

( 1) No Rsfunding Bends shall be isrued which will have a

lien on Gross Revenues prior and superior to any Bonds which
will remain outstanding after the refunding.

(2) No Refunding Bonds payable from ln Tevenuss o! the
Airport shall be issued on & parity with herein su-
tharized, unlem, either (a) the lien on lny revenues of the

' A:.Em of the cutatanding bonds thus refuncled is on a parity
_ orumortothahcnoftheBondlpnormthnmiundmz
or (b) at the time of the imuance of the Refunding Bonds tha
Citiss comply with puagraphl A and Bof Sactwn B.4 hareotf.

B. The Refunding Bonds thul issued shail anjoy complets aqual-
ity of lim with any Bonds which are not refunded.

'C. Any Refunding Bonds shall be issued with such details and
in the manner specified in Section 8.5 hereof, except itam (2) re-
.quired thamn.

SECTION 8,7. Special Fucility Bonds. The Citims, acting by and
through the Board pursuant to the Contract and Agreement, shall
bave ths right tq enter into contracts, leases or other sgreements
purzuant to which the Board will agres to construct and pay all
costs of construction of Spacial Facilities to be financed by the
imsuancs by the Cities of Special Fac:hty Bonds in accordance with
this Section. Such costy shall include all of the itemy enumerstad
in paragraph O of Section 2.1 hereof. Such bonds may be issued
upon and subject to the following conditions, to-wit:
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'A. A Net Rent Leans zhall be entered inta between the
partims thersto pursuant to which the leszses agrees to tha
matters apeciﬁecf in the definition of such term and agrees to
causs the payments thers :ec}umd the rentals thersunder
to be payabis gver a pericd oot longer than the latest maturity
"of the Special Facility Bonda.

B. A second lease, the “Ground Leass,” for st least the
same tarm as the Net Rent Lease, shall be antered into be-
tween ths parties to provide for additional rentals for the
ground upan which such Special Facilities ame to bs located,
which Ground Lease shall provide for rental payments to tha
Board payahble in periodic installments in amounts not less
than as shall be required pursuant to s schpdule or schedules
for rental of ground space at the Airport as fixed from time
to time by the Board, which Ground Rental payments shall
constituta a part of Gross Revenuss under thi Ordinanca.

C. Tha Net Rent Lease and the Ground Lizass may be made
a part of the sams instrument or document so long as the
rentals of sach are clearly definable and in accordancs with
this Ordinance. And in either event such lsases may contain
such other provisions not inconsistent herawith as the parties
thersto may agree. Additionally, the Cities may combine into
a single, common fund the revenuss and rentais derived from
twb or more Nat Rent Leases and cause Special Facility
Bonds to be payable from said comrmon fund rather than from
a gingle Nat t Lease.

D. No Special Facility Bonds shall ever ba gayab!e in
whole or in part from Gross Revenues. After such Special Fa-
c:h:g Bonds have been fully paid and retirad all revenues de-
rived from the leasing or operstion or use of such Special Fa-
cilitias shall be a of Gross Revenues and shall be subject
to all provisions bereof relating thereto.

ARTICLE IX
MiscELtaNEous COVENANTS
SecrionN 9.1, Budgets and Expenditures. A. Heginning for the
Fiscal Year during which the Airport is scheduled to become
operational, and for each Fiscal Year theresitar the Board shall,
in accordance with the terms, provisions and recuirements of the
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Contract and Agreement, prepare and annually submit to the

Cities an annual! budget containing estimatas of expenditures and
anticipatad Groes Revenues for the next ensuing Fiscal Year. The

estimates of expenditures in connection with ths operation of

tha Airport aball be classified 50 as to set forth the data by ac-

counts and funds (including those created in this Ordinance) and

work prograrns and other details as may be required by the Board

and the Cities. The extimatas of Gross Revenues shall be reason-

sbly clasxified as o funds and sources of Incoms. Such eatimates

in addition shall be so prepared as to permit an analysis of Gross

Ravennes and of Operation and Maintenance Expenses under the

definitions set forth in this Ordinance, Copiss of such budgst shall

also bs delivered upon request to any Holder of at least 2% in'
aggregats principal amount of any Bonds from time to tims out-

standing. Additionaily, ths budget, as in the cuss of all public

records of the Board, shall be open and availsble hrmsp-ctxan by.
any Bondholder at any ressonable time.

B. All Operation and Maintenancs Expenseas shall be reagonable
and the total expanditures for the purchase of pervices, goods or
commodities shail not exceed in any yasr the total expenditures
thus sat forth in the annual budget excapt on the express approval
of the Board and the Citiss in accordance with the Contract and

Agreamant,

Secrion 92. Completion of the Project, Tha Cities, to svery
extgnt they lawfully may do so, covenant and agres o proceed
without delay to commence and coroplats the Project and to make
the Regional Airport revenue producing at the surlieat practicable
dats by isming such amount of Completion Bonda, as suthorized
by Section 8.3 hereof, as will be necessary or appropriate to make
the Regional Airport capsble of producing Revenues i wuch
amount as will be sufficient to pay the principal and intarest on
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all Bonds from time to time outstanding and to comply with all
other covenants hereot.

SecTioN 8.3, Pgyment of Bonda. Subject to the provisions of
Secrion 2.2 and Section 6.3 hereot, the Cities agree promptly to pay
the principal of and intersst on every Bond at ihs placa, on the
dates; and in the manner specified hersin and in ths Bonds and
coupons appertaining thereto.

Secrion 9.4, Rates, Charges ond Free Use of Land.

A. The Board, shall fix, place into effect, directly or through
leases, contracts, agreementa with users of the Airport, an initial
schedule of rentals, rates, fees and charges for the use, operation
and occupancy of the Airport premises and Facilities and the serv-
ices appertaining thereto, which shall produce Pledged Revenues
in the amounts provided in parsgraph B, next below. From time
to time and ns often as it shall appear necessary, the Executive
Director and his approprists adminiatrative personnel shall make
tecommendations to the Board as to the revizicn of the schedule
of rentals, fées and charges. Upon recejving such recommendations
the B¢m shall reviss, insofar as it may legally do so, the rentals,
fees and charges for the use, operation and occupancy of ths Air-
port, its. Facilities and the services appertaining thereto in order
continually to fulfill the requirements of this covenant. This cove-
nant shall not be construed to require adjustment or revision in
long-term agreements which by their terms are not subject to
adjugtment or revision.

B. The total rentals, rutes, {ees and charges required by para-
graph A, next above, shall be at least suificient to produce in each
Fiscal Year Gross Revenues sufficient to pay the Operation and
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Maintenancs Egpenses thereof, plus 125 times the amount re-
quired that year to be deposited into.the Interest and Sinking
Fund, and plus an amount equal to any other obligations payuble
from the revenues of the Airport. The Baonrd shall cause all rent-
als, fees, r3tes and charges appertaining to the Airport to be
collectad when and as due; shall predcribe and enfores rules and
regulations for the payment thereof and for the consequences of
non-payment for the rental, use, operation and occupancy of and
sarvices by the Airport, and shall provide methods of collection
and penalties to the end that the Gross Revenues herein plndged
shall be adequats to meet the requirements hereof.

C. Ths Citiew agree, tnthnfuﬂutmtth!thtﬂy may, that
no&mmofthehnd,pubhcmsd-mdﬂyteumpmmgnput
of the Airport shall be allowed or permitted for commercial pur-
posss by privats or commercial concsrns providing direct servica
to ths traveling public and no rights-of-way, essements, access or
uses on ‘or across said lands or. public roads apd ways for coro-
mercial purposes shall be granted except through easarent, fran-
chizes or permits granted, and for conxideration fized, by the .
Baard, and maoneys received therefrom lhlll constitute a part of
Grom Revenums.

D. Dallas agrees and covenants to use its best efforis to es-

' tablish and collect rates, revenues and charges for the use of Love
Field as will be sufficient to pay sll Senior Lien Bonds issued in

connection therewith, so as to preserve all Gross Revenuss for

the paymant of Bonds. Fort Worth zgrems and covenants to use

its best efforts to eatablish and collect rates, revanuss and charges

for the use of GSIA and Mesacham Field as will be sufficient to

pay all Senior Lien Bonds jmued in connection therewith, s as to

pressrve ull Groms Revanues for the payment of Bonds.
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Secrion 9.5, Competition, Optitnum Airport Development.

A. Tt is acknowledged and understood by the Cities that they,
in Lave Field, Redbird, GSIA and Meacham Field, own and oper-
ate nirports which by their nature are potentially competitive
with. the opsration of the Regional Airport. It is further acknow-
ledged and recognized that the revenues to be derived from those
airport 'facilities are not, under the terms of this Ordinancs,
pledged to the payment of the Bonds, except under the circum-
stances described in Section 6.3 Mereof. Accordingly, the Cities,
each with respect to ita own individually owned airport facilities,
as above named, hereby covenant and agree that from and alter
the effective date of this Ordinance, shall take sych ataps as may

be necamary, appropriate, and legally permimible (without vioiat-
o FreT Sy Ty AT CorSEen o covenants pro-
hibiting such action), to Emvi'de for the orderly, efficient and
effactive phase-out at Love Field, Redabird, an eacham
Fie[ﬂ. ot any RO S CEATEY A+ Carrier Services, and to

.tranafer "Hﬁ)h gg;jvit;'a t0 the 'R"'égm TT eljecuve upon the
beginning of operations st the Hegional Aurport.

From time to time hereafter, the Board may review the effect
and application of such covenant. and, by concurring action of
not less than eight (B) of ita members, the Board may reasonably
limit its scope and affect and may waive its application in specific
instances if it shall first determine that such action is necessary
(1) in the intermst of the public mafety; (2) in the intarest
of prudent and efficient operations at the Ragional Airport;
or (3) in the interest of satisfying an overriding public need for
decentralized Certificated Air Carrier Services in the Dailas-
Fort Worth metropolitan region considered as 8 whole. However,
in order to promote, by voluntary agreement, the full use of the
Regional Airport at the earlicst practicable date by commercial
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air carrisra, the Board shall be authorized to establish policies
and to make uniformly applicable and non-discriminatory agree-
ments with air carriers regarding the instances, if any, in which
the above power granted to the Board will or will not be eger-
cised, and no limitatiors on such covenant shall be promulgatec!
or ity application in specific instances waived if the result thereof
" would be to violate such agresments. And in no event, by agree-
ment with air carriers or otherwise, shall limitations or waivers of
guch covenant allowing a commencernent or resumption of Certi-
ficated Air Carrier Services at any other airport or airports be
adopted if the result thereof would be the redyction in Pledged
Revenues below the amount required to satisly the provisions of
Section 5.4 hereof, unless the City (or the Citims in the cuse of
more than cne sirport) shall also pledge to the payment of all*
Bonds, by appropriate official action, such part of the revenuss
from the airport or airporta to which such servicas are to be trans-
ferred, resumed or originally commencad, as will justly compensate
the Regional Airport (st rates then in effect thereat for similar
servicas), for the loss of such sérvices and the groes R-vlnu.
therefrorn.

The Board's power under this paragrapb shall not include the
power to order or direct that spacific Aircraft uses be plsced xt
cther specific sirports unleas the gwner thereof shall consant to
snch action or unless such other airport is, or airports are, at the
time subject to the control and jurisdiction of the Board.

B. In addition to the covenant of the Cities contained in pars-
graph A, next above, regarding the transfer of Certificated Air Car-
rier Services, the Cities further agree that they will through every
legal and reasonable means promote the optimum development of
the lands and Facilities comprising the Regional Airport at the
aarlieat practicable date, thus to assure the receipt of Groms Rev-
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enus therefrom to the maziroum extent possible, and neither tha
Cities nor the Board will undertake with regard to the Regional
Airport, Love Field, GSIA, Meacham Field or Radbird, any ac-
tion, implement any policy, or enter into any agreemant or con-
- tract which by its or their nature would be competitive with cr
in opposition to the optimum development of the Ragional Air-
port and the use of ity lands and Facilities at the sarliest practi-
cable dite; and none of the airports of the Citiea ghall be put to
or developed for any use which by the nature thersof the optimum
use and development of the Regional Airport, including its air
and land space, at the earliest practicable data will be impaired,
diminished, reducad or destroyed. It is provided, however, that -
nothing in this paragraph shall bs congtrued to prohibit the pro-
motion and full development of the operation of reasonable Air-
cralt uses (other than Certificatsd Air Carrier Servicas) at Love
Field, Redbird and Meacham Field, or Aircraft operstions of any
type at GSIA if the same shall ever be mads & part of the Regional
Airport. Otherwise, Aircraft uwes at GSIA shall not be permitiad
after the Regional Airport becomes opsrational.
SECTION 9.6, Transfers of Airport and Focilities.

A. So long es any Bonds are outstanding and unpaid, the Citias
shall not sall, transfer, or in any manner dispoue of or otherwize
alienats, any part of the property comprising the Airport. It ia
provided, however, that:

1) the Cities ma uire additional property aw an ex-
tmsm'on to the Airpogt :fi%itioml to that refl within the
nﬁ@ﬁomMu contsined in the Beoard's over-all pre-
imiriary plan of the Airport and shall be suthorized ta grant
rights of foreclasure in connection with mortgages, pledges,
or other encumbrances of the land or revenues thereof fixed
in connectian with such acquisition and the Special Facilitiss
to be placed therein, such mortgages and pledges being hereby
%utggdznd subject to the restrictions spplicable to Special

- Facilitien; ‘
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enuss therefrom to the maximum extent possible, and neither the
Cities nor the Board will undertake with regard to.the Regional
Airport, Love Field, GSIA, Meacham Field or Redbird, any ac-
tion, implement any policy, or enter into any sgreement or con-
tract which by it or their nature would be competitive with or
in oppasition to the optimum development of ths Regional Air-
port and the use of ita lands and Facilities at the earliest practi-
cable dats; and none of the airports of the Citiew shall be put to
ar developed for any uss which by the nature thereof the optimum
use and development of the Regional Airport, including its air
and land spacs, at the earliest practicable date will be impaired,
diminishied, reduced or destroyed. It is provided, however, that
nothing in this paragraph shall be constried to prohibit the pro-
., motion and full development of the operation of ressonable Air-
craft uses (other than Certificated Air Carrisr Services) st Love
Field, Redbird and Meacham Field, or Aircraft operations of any
type at GSIA if the same shall sver be made a part of the Regional
Airpart. Otherwise, Aircraft uses at GSTA shall npt be permltted
after the Regional Airport becomes operational.

SzcrioN 9.6, Transfers of Alrpart and Facdctm.

A. So long as any Bonds are ouutandmg and unpud the Cities
shall not sell, trarufer, or in any manner dispose of or otherwise
alienate, any part of the property comprising the Ajrport. It is
provided, however, that:

1) the Citiss may u additional property as an ex-
tlr(m')on to the , ad tmnal to that refl within the
hmmsrfm iea contained in the Board’s over-all pre-
ﬁmmm plan of the Airport and shall be authorized to t
rights of forsclosure in connection with mortgages, pl
or other encumbrances of the land or revenuss therso fized
in connection with such scquisition and the Specisl Facilitine
to be placad therein, such mortgages and pledges being hereby
%uthlﬁgzed subject to the restrictions applicable to Special
acilitiss;
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(2) the Cites shall have the right to zall :rothmd:::-
posa of any property, real or pemoml. which shall ba no lo
er nec , 3ppropriate or required for the use of, pmﬁf.a a
to, or' for abutmtereuuo uBoudmopemtzcnc tha
Airport, Tha net proceeds of any sale pursuant to this pro-

vixion shall be used for the of mplacm g:upama or
equipment at the Airport, il necsssary, or at

into the Capital Improvements Fund; e:cnpt that the mcaeds
from the aales of surplus Jand may be disribu to tho
be: B8 & return of capital under the Coniract and Agres-
mm

B. Notwithatanding the provisions of paragraph A, next above,
the Cities retain, reserve, and ahall have ths right and privilegn
of transierring, selling, leasing or disposing of the entire proparties
and Facilitias constituting the Regional Airport to anothsr political
body or political sub-division of the Stute of Tezas which ehail
be authaorized by law to own and opsrats airports, mubject to tho
tollowing wndiﬁonl, to-grit:

(1) Th erning body of such political entity by lawfully
:doprad sffgctive urdmanca, order, resolution or by othar
appropriate sction, shall expresly and unequivocally amums
each and svery, all and singulsr, ths covenants, obligations,

duties and ibilities of the Cities and tha. Bosrd im-
mm and all ordinencas supplements) hero-

g_ orﬁ'o ted in connection with the imsuancy of aoy futurs

(2) Iflu:h perties and Facilities comprining ths Region-
lhaﬁmbcsnldtosuchpohhulbocl and such sals
ehaﬂbuonad-ien-ed rﬁlthmm de; psyments
shall be juniar and subc ts to all payments required hare-
mtob.mld-tnotonwcountnfmyBcn ds from time to
outstanding; or, il the purchase price is t0 be’'mads m
cahntthnmmuotulo.uoputthomhhlﬂb:uuhﬂhlva
bean darived fom Revenues.

(3) If the political body to which such passis are trans-
fcrrad or asyigned shall have taxing powsr, then ity governing
approprnata action shall levy and agree to im
andco ect & tax in an amount equivalent to ths money whi



165

83
can be derived from tims to tirme by the Maintenance Tex
for the p of operating and maintaining the Regional

Airport; and, if such transfares is without taxing power, then

the Cities shall as a part of the terma and agysements of such

tranafer or sale confirm by appropriate ordinance, order or

. ' resolution the continuation of their obligation to imEnu ar

%aﬂe_ct the Maintenance Tax to the extent required by this
rdinancs.

‘_ (4) Asa part of the details of any such transfer, the Cities,
either (a) shall also transfer supervision, control and jurisdic-
tion ovar Love Fisld, GSIA, Redbird and Meacham Field and
any other airports under their supervision, ownership or con-
trol po that such transferee be equipped to fulfill and
honor the commitments against competition contained in this

inance; or (b) as a part of the terms and conditions of
such transfer, by ordinance, order, resclution or cther sp-
ropriata action, shell ratify and confirm themselves to be
Emmd by the covenants against competition with the Regional
Airport contained in this Ordinance. :
Secrion 97. The Contract and Agreement. The Cities here-
by covenant and agree for ths henefit ‘of the holders of the
Bonda that they shall honor, fulfll, and enforce the Contract
and Agreement between themselves; sxcept that the Cities
,hnrpby amend the Contract and Agreement by deleting thers-
. from sub-paragraph (1) (d) (iii) of Paragraph C of Section 17
" thereot, which deals with contributions on account of revenus
bonds ixmued for land acquisitions; and Zom and after the
~data hereaf such proviticn shall be gull and void The Citim
reserve the right by mutual sgreement to additionally amend
or supplemsnt the Contract and Agreemant from tims to time
in such respects as they zhall consider approprists s long =
the affect of such amendment will not be to impair or ‘diminiah
the rights of the holders of Bonds; and they shall have the
right to dissolve the Contract and Agreement upon transfer
of the Regional Airport in accordance with Section 968
hareof.
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SecTioN 8.8, Refunding Senior Lien Bonds, Other Contrects. To
evary extant they legnlly may do 8o, the Cities covenant and agres
to use their best effort to retire or refund all outstanding Senior
Lien Bonds prior to the dats upon which the Regional Airport
becames opsrational and to satisfy or ssttls or reasonable hases
any contractusl committnents of the Cities which by their naturs
inhibit or restrict the Citieg’ ability to honor corgpletaly the cove-
nants against competition contained in this Orndinanes -

Secrion 8.9, Stenderd of Operation. The Regjonal Airport shall
bs maintained in an efficdent, operating condition; and such im-
provements, enlargemsnts, ersnsions, repairs and bsttarments
thall bs made thsreto as ahall bs necessary or uppropriats in ths
prudent management thereof to insure its economic and efficient
operntion at all times, to maintain it in good repair, working ardar
and oparating condition; and such standards shall bs maintained
&8 may be requirsd in order that the mame will be approved:
by all proper and competant aguncies of the Fedsral Govarnment
for ths landing and taking-off of Aircraft operuting in schadulsd
service, and as a terminal point of the Cities for the receipt and
dispatch of passengers, property and mail by Aireraft,

SeeTioN 6.10. Bules cnd Regulations. The Board, shall astablish
and enforcs ressonable rules and regulations for the use and oc-
cupancy, management, control, oparation, care, repair and main-
tznances of the Airport. The Bosrd will comply with all valid acta,
rules, regulstions, orders and directives of any ¢xecutive, adminis-
trative or judicial body applicable to the Airport, unless the sams
shall be contastad in good faith, all to the end that it will remain
oparutive at all tmes.

Section 9.11. Federal Fingneial Assistance. The Board, will,
insofar as they may legally do s0, maintain, preserve, keep, and
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operata the Airport in sych manner as will qualify the Airport to
receive magimum financial aid from Feders! or State sources,
which aid may be sought and procured if available on fair and
'reanonable tarms (in the sole opinion of the Board) which are
not inconsistent with the provisions of this Ordinance and when
in the beat interests of thes overall financial and operating condi-
tiona of the Airport and the Joint Airport Fund,

SecTion 9.12, Books, Audits, Inspection,

A. So lgng as any Bonds remain outstanding, proper bocks of
record and account will be kept by the Board, separate and apart
from all other records and accounts of the Cities, showing com-
pleta and correct entries of an transactions relating to the Airport.

B. The Board shall, after the closs of each Fiscal Yesr, cause an
audit of such books and accounts to be made by an Independent
Accountant. Each such audit will be available for inspection by
any Holder of any of the Bonds. Each such audit, in addition to
whatever matters may be thought proper by the accountant to be
included therein, shall include the following: :

© (1) the year’s total cost of preparing, conatructing, other-
wize aoquiring and improving Airport Facilities;

(2) the revenuss derived from the leasing or othzr opera-
- tion or use of the Airport and of the dispomition thereof for
' lucl:g‘yel:;

(3) the amount of Groes Revenues during the period cov-

(4) the total amount of Operation and Maintermncs Ex-
panses for the period; ~ o
(5) the Net Revenues for the period, including a statement
as to whether or not the requiremants of Section 5.4 have been
met; , "
- (6) a balance sheet and financial statement as of the end
of such Fiscal Year, including the amount on hand, both cash
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and investrnants, in esch'of the accounts and funds created
within the Joint Airport Fund, together with s listing of all
obligations paysble from Gross Revenues or Net Revenues;

(7) the Accountant's comment regarding the Board’s meth-
ods of opsration and accounting practices and the manner in
which the Cities and the Beard have carried out the require-
menta of this Ordinancs and any, other ordinance and other
proceedings authorizing the issuancs of outstanding Bonds
or other obligationa payable from the Revenues of the Air-
port, and the Accountant’s recommendation for any change
or xmgorgvamanh in the operation of the Airport es relatss to
mach books and accounts; and

(8) & list of the insurance policies in force at the end of
the Fiscal Yesr, setting out e8 to each policy the amount of
the palicy, tha risks covered, the nams of the insurar, and tha

wxpiration dats of

C. All expenses incurred in the making of the audits and re-
ports required by this Section shall be regarded and paid ss Opar-
etion and Maintanance Expenses excapt during construction of the-
Project when it shall be trestad as a Cost of the Pyoject. The Board
shall furnish forthwith (and in any event withip sixty (60) days -
from the tims the audit and report is filed with the Citim) a copy
of each of such audits and reports to any Holdur of at least 2%
of the Bonds at his request. :

D. Subject to security and safety regulations of the Board, a
represantative of any Holder or Holders of two parcantum (2%)
aggregute principal amount of the Bonds at the time outatanding
sball have the right at ressonsble times to inspect the Airpart and
the records, accounts and data of the Board relating thereto,

Serrion 9.13. Casuaity Insurance.

A, From and after the time when the contractoms, or any of
them, engaged in constructing, improving, extsnding or equipping
the Airport, or any part thereof, shall ceass to be responsible pur-
suant to ths provisions of their respactive contracts for such work
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or construction for loas or damage thereto ocrurting from eny
cause, the Board will insure and at all times heep the Facilities
of the Airport insured to the extent insurable in a respansible in-
surancs company, companies or carriers authorized and qualified
under the laws of the State of Texas to assume the risk thereof
aguinat direct physical damage or Joas from fire and so-called ex-
tended coverage perils in an amount not less than eighty per cen-
tum (80%) of the replacement value of the property so insursd
and to ths extent not insured by othsts; provided, however, that
if at any ‘time the Board shall be unabls to cbtgin such insurasce
to the extant above required, the Board will maintain such insur-
ancs to the extant ressonably obtainable, Ths Board shsll be
authorized to obtain insurancs aguinst any other risks or type of
loss an are or shall be custmmnly covered or pbtained at other
major airporis
B. Immaediataly after any loss or da.mlge to any property of
the Airpart which is covered by insurancs, the Board shall cause
plans snd specifications for repairing, replacing or reconstructing
the damaged or destroyed property to be prepared and an esti-
mate of the cost thereof obtained. The proceeds of all insursnce
referred to in this Section shall be available for, and to the extent
necesaaty applied to, the repair, replscement and recopstruction
of ths damaged or destroyed property. If such proceeds are more
th.!nruﬁcient for such purpces, the balance remaining shall be
(1) into the Capital Improvements Fund to the extent nec-

mrymbrmzthumountondepwtthenmupwthathen
minimum requirement;

(2) into the Operating Revenue and Expenss Fund s

Groms Revenues. .
If such proceeds shalil be insufficient to Tepair, replace or recon-
struct the damaged or destroyed property, the deficiency may be
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supplisd from moneys in Capital Improvements Fund or any other
funds legally available for such purposes. If the cost of repairing,
replacing or reconatructing the damaged or destroyed property as
estimated shall not excead ths proceeds of insurencs and other
moneys legally svailable for such purposs, the Board will {forthwith
commence and diligently prosecuts the repair, replacsment ot re-
construction of the damaged or destroysd property. The procesds
of any insurancs not spplied within eighteen (18) months, after
recaipt by the Board to the repairing, replacing or reconstructing
of tho damsged or destroyed property shall be transferred to tha
Capital Improvements Fund.

Secrion 9.14. Use and Occupancy, Linbiity, and Other Insur-
anee.

A. The Board, subject to the approval of the City Attorneys of
ths. Cities, may carry with & reepongibls injurance company
or companies suthorized and qualified under the laws of the Stats
of Texaa insuranca covering tha risk of loss of revenues during
necessary interruptions, total or psrtial, due to damage or destruc-
tion of the Airport, however caused, upon and tubject to ths fol-
lowing conditions, to-wit: '

{1) Such requirement shall bs only to the extant oot
vided for in'lenses and agreemants with the Board, and in
any svent shall be in such amount as the Exacutive Director
shal} estimats as being sufficiant to provide a full normal in-
coms during the period of interruption.

(2) Such ingurancs shall cover & reasonable period of re-
construction, as estimatad by the Executive Dirertor; and the
mms may exclude lomes sustained by the Cities during the
firet fourteen (14) dayw of any total or partial interruption of
une.

(3) If at any time the Board shall bs unable to obtain such
insurance to the extent above required, at reascnable pricas,
i:b!nhlllw:'yxuchmmm;cnwthe extent reasonahly obtain-

..
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In ascartaining a full normal income for such insurance, the Exs-
-cutive Director shall give consideration, to the expected, as wall ax-
current and prior revenues, from the leasing or other operation or
use of such facilities or from other sources, and may also make
allowances for any probable decrease in operation; and maintanances
costs while use iy interrupted. Any proceeds of such insurancs
shall be depasited to the credit of the Operating Revenue and Ex-

penre Fund and shall be subject to the uses and shall be applied
as provided for moneys in said Fund. ’

B. Inayrance in the form and amount recommended by the City
Attoroesys of the Cities ahall bs obtained insuring aguinst Liability
to any person sustaining death, bodily injury or proparty dungq
by resson of materisl defects or want of repair in or about ths
Airport, or by resson of ths negligence of any employee, and
‘aguingt such other linbility to persons and property to the extent
attributed to the ownemhip and operation of the Airport. ’

SecioN 9.15. Land Title and Rights. No fimds from the pro-
cseds of Bands shall be paid for labor or to contractors, builders
or materialmen on account of the construction, improvement or
enlargement of the Airport unless such improvements or enlarge
ments are locatad on lands good and marketable title to which
shall ha owned or can be acquired by the Cities in fee simple, or
‘over which the Cities shall have scquired or can acquire casements
or rights sufficient for the purposes of such improvernents and en-
largements. Additionally, no payments shall ever be made from
the procesds of any Bonds for the acquisition of real property or
any intersst therein unless and until the Cities shall have recsived
an opinion of the City Attorneys of the Cities to the effect that
upon acquisition all necessary and good and sufficient title {o such
property or the intarest therein to be acquired, free and clear of
encumbrances, will be vested in the Cities and shall be subject
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to the control and jurisdiction of the Board puruant w the terms
of the Contract and Agreemeant

~ SectioN 9.16. Encumbronces by Cities, Board, or Others. The

Citiss shall not hereafter issue any bonds or othpr obligations pay-
abla rom the Gross Revenues or Net Revenues and having a lien
on 8 parity with or senior to'the Bonds, except aa provided in Ar-
ticla VIIT hareof, and it is covenanted and agreed that no mort-
guges or other liena of any kind shall be penmitied to be attached
or imposed upon any lands constituting & part of the Airport, ex-
capt & gypremaly provided otherwiss herein, Additionally the
Board shall requirs the inclugion in all Net Rent Leases and
Ground Leases provisions to the effect that the sams are takem
wubject to the tarms and provisions of this Ordinancs; that the
leszes shall not enter into any contracts of a nature such that liers
of any nature or kind are permitted to becoms attached to ths
remainder interests of the Board and the Citien thersunder; that
the holders of such leasshold intsrests, when rendering or other-
wise declaring the fsir market value thereof, within the taxing
jurisdictions in which situsted and when required by law, shall
rander the fair market valus of the lesses’s interest, irrespective of
the tarm thereaf, based upon the value of & comparabls faclity
situated on ‘privats property. All or other intsrest in ths
Board as Airport and publicly owned property, including tha re-
mainder or other interest, shall be and remain always exempt- from
and not subject to ad valorem taxation. The holders of such leases
shall never suffer or permit to be imnposed or attsched to any such
Isassbicld interests any liens for taxes. No action or default on ths
part of such lessees shall be construed to creat: a lien on the in-
tarests of the Cities in such Facilities or land.

Secrion 9.17. Warranties. The Citiss hereby covenant and war-
rant that they presently have the legal right, power and authority
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to construct the Airport in accordance with the terms of the Cons
. tract and Agresement and this Ordinance and that other than a3
provided by this Ordinance there ars no liens or encumbrances of
any naturs whatscever on or against the Airport, any Facilities
thereotf, or ths Groms Revenuem and that none shall be permitted
to exizt, sxcept as herein provided or recited.

ARTICLE }!
Evers or DeravLr

Secrion 10.1. Description. Each bt the following occurrences or
events for the purposes of this Ordinance shall be and is hareby
declared to be an “Event of Default,”, to-wit: 3

A. Ths faflure to make payment of the principal of an.y of
the Bonds when the sams shall becoms due-and payable;

B. The failure to pay any installment of interest whem'
the suris shall becoms dus and payable and such failuye ghall
ctgxma for a pariod of thirty (30) days aftar the due date

C. Default in any covenant, undertaking or commitment:
contained in the Contrect and Agreement, the failure to pers
form which materially affects the righta of the holders of the
Bonds, including but not limited to their prowpect or ability
to ba repaid in accordancs with the terms and provisions of
this Ordinance, and the captinuation thereof for a od of
sxty (803 days after notice of such defsult by any Holder of
any ;

Ly ey e e At rh Louatnble dspsten th

ar Quf Wi reagonnbie
mgnmugﬁon‘ of any of the Airport which shall be des-
troyed or damaged and which shall materially affect the rev-
emue producing capacity thereof;

E. An order or dectes shall be entared by a Court of com-
tant jurisdiction with the consent or acquiescence of the
iti=s appointing a receiver or receivers for the Airport or for
ar of the rentals, rates, revenues, {ees or charges derived there-
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the exercise of any right or privilege by or on behalf of any Holders
shall not bs deemed a waiver of any othar right or privilege thereof.

ARTICLE XI
AyeEnovanTs TO ORoINANCE,

s.ms 1.1 Limitations.

A. This Ordinancs may be amended by concuwrrent ordinances
adopted by the City Councils, without receipt by the Cities of
additional consideration, but with the written consent of the
Holders of sixty-six and two-thirda percent (66-%%) of ths Bonds
outstanding bsreunder st the tims of ths adoption of such
amendatory ordinance (mot including in any case any Bonds
which may then be held or owned for the account of Cities, but
including such refunding bonds as may be ismued for the purpoas
of refunding any of the Bonds if not owned by the Citim); pro-
vided, however, that no such concurrent ordinance shall have the
effoct of permitting—

(1) an extenxion of the maturity of any Bonds;
.(2) a reduction in ths principal amount of any Bonds, tha
rats of mterut thereon, or the redsmption premium payabis

(3) the creation of a lien upon or a pledge of revenues rank-
ing prior to the lien or pledge created hersby, escept as ex-
premly permittad herein; -

(4) a reduction of the principal amount of bonds required
for consent to such amen tnryp;!l'dinance: or

(5) the establishment of priorities as among Bonds; or

(6) the modification of or otherwiss affscting the rights of
ths holders of lexy than all of the Bonds then outstanding.

It is provided, however, that the Cities may, in connection with
the issuance of any future Bonds, or additional ordinance of any.
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type, impose ypon themsalves, without the consent of the Band-
.holders, additional, more restrictive mvu;untl than as may herein. .
bs contained

B. Notice of Amendment. Whenever the Cities shall propose
to amend or modify this Ordinance undar the provisions of this
Section, the Board shall cause notice of the proposed amendmant
to be published ons tims in & Newspaper, and published 'one tims
in a tinancisl newspaper or jourpal published in ths City of New
York, New York Such notice shall briafly set forth the nature
of the proposed amendment and ahall stats that a copy of ths
propased mmdntoryord:mmuunﬁhmth-uﬁaoltb-m

for public inspection. |

C. Time for Amendment. Whenevar at any time within ons (1)
year from the dats of ths first publication of said notice thers.
ahall be filed in the office of the Board an instrumant or instrnments
axecuted by the Holdsrs of at lsast sixty-six and two-thirds per-
centum (86%%) in sggragsie amount of the Bonds them -out-
standing, as-in this Sectiom required, which instrument or
instruments shall refer to the proposed. amendatory nrdmnu/"
described in waid notice, and shall specifically cnnnnttnuq
approve the adoption therecf, the Citiss may adopt such
mmdawwnﬁmmmdmmmnbmmdm

D. Binding Conient. 1t the Holders of at loast sixty«is and
two-thirds percentum (66%%) in agtregate principal amount of
the Bonds ocuistanding, as in this Section required, at the time of
the adoption of such amendatory ordinanes, or the predacessors
in title of such Holders, shall have consentsd ta and approved
the adoption therein as herein provided, no Holder of any Bond,
whether or not such Holder shall have cunsented to or shall have -
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revoked any consent as in this Section provided, shall have any
right ar interest to chject to the adopton of such amendatory
ordinance or to object to any of the terms or provisions therein
contained or to the operation thereof or to enjoin or restrain ths
Cities {rom taking any action pursuant to the provisions thareot.

E. Time Caonzent Binding. Any conmsent given by the. Eolder
of a Bond purmuant to the provisions of this Section shall bs
irrevecable for a period of xix (6) maonths from the data of the
first publication of the notics above provided for and shall-be
conclusive and binding upon all future bolders of the aame Bond
during such period. At any time aftar six (6) tmonths from ths
data of the publication of such notice, such consent may bs re-
voked by tha Holder who gave such consent or by & succoesor
in title by filing notics of such revocation with the Board, but
such revocation shall not be eifactive it the Hoiders of sixty-six
and two-thirda percenturn (66%%) in aggregate principal amount
of the Bonds cutstanding, prior to the attampted revocation, con-
sentad to and spproved the amendatory ordinincs referrsd to
in such revocation. ‘ ’

F. Proof of Instruments. The fact and date of the axecution of
by the certificate of any officer in any jurisdiction, who by the laws
thereof is authorized to take scknowledgments of deeds within
such jurisdiction, that the person signing such instrument. acknaw-
Isdged beforw him the exscution thereof: or such facts may be
proved by an affidavit of a witness to such execution swomn to

before such officer.

G. Proof of Ownership. The amount and numbers of the Bonda
held by any person exscuting such instrument and the dats of
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his holding the same may be proved by a certificate exscutad by
a responsible bank or trust company showing that upon the date

, thersin mentionsd such person had on depowit with such bank
or trust company the bonds described in such certificate. '

ARTICLE X1II
SevezasnrTy AND REPEAL

Sxcrion 12.1. Ordinance Irrepealcble. After any of the Bonds
shall be isyued, this Ordinance shall conxtituta 2 costzact between
the Citiss and ths Holder or Holdars of the Bonds fom time to
. tims cutstanding, and this Ordinancs chall be and remain irrepesl-
shle until ths Bonds and the interest thereon shall be fully paid,
anmﬂad,uhmdndordh:hmaﬂorpmviﬁanhrﬂupwmm‘t
thareot shall be made by depogiting money in trust with the Pay-
ing Agent or another National Banking Amociation equal in
amount 1:0 the aggregats principal amount of Bonds outstanding
plus intarest and any applicsble premium to their earliest rademp-
tion data, ar, if none, to their maturity.

. SzcTion 122 Severnbility, If any Section, paragraph, clause or
provizion of this Ordinance shall for any resson be beld to be in-
valid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforcsability of such
Secticn, parsgraph, clauss or provision shall not affect-any of the
remaining provisions of this Qrdinance. If any Soction, paragraph,
clause or provixion of the Contract and Agreemsut shall for any
resscn be held to be invalid or unenforcesbls, the invalidity or -
enforceshbility of such Section, paragraph, clauss or provision shall
not affect any of the rermaining provisions of ths Contract and
Agreement, or of any other provisions of this Crdinance not de-
pendent directly for effectiveness upon the provision of the Con-
tract and Agreement thus declared o be invalid and unenforceabls.
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SecTion 12.3. Repealer. All orders, resolutions and ordinances,
or parts thereotf, inconxistent heyewith are hereby repesled to the
extent of any such inconsistancy,

Aporrep AND ComrzcTry EnzoLrzp Novamber 11, 1968,

/- ' Eux JoNSRON
Mgyor, City of Dallas, Texas

(Sear)
Arrer

/8 Harowd G. SHANK .
City Secretary, City of Dallzs, Texas

APPROVED AB TO Form:

/s/ N. Auzx Bicxixy .
City Attorney, City of Dallas, Texns

Apoprrp November 12, 1968,

/n/ DxWrrr McKoixy
Mayor, City of Fort Worth, Texas

' (Swav)
Arresr:

[/ Roy A. Batzvan
City Secretary, City of Fort Worth, Teza

Arpeoven A8 1o Forst anp Lecarrry:

/8/ S, G. Jounoeoy, Je.
City Attorney, City of Fort Worth, Tezus
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United States
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Committee on Transportation
And Infrastructure

Subcommittee on Aviation

A Hearing on Reforming the Wright Amendment
July 12, 2006

Lori Palmer
on behalf of

The Love Field Citizens Action Committee

Written Testimony Submission
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Written Testimony

Submitted by Lori Palmer
on behalf of
The Love Field Citizens Action Committee

U.S. House of Representatives

Aviation Subcommittee Hearing
July 12, 2006

Love Field Citizens Action Committee has 25 Years of Experience with Dallas Love Field

The Love Field Citizens Action Committee (LFCAC) is a coalition of residents and neighborhoods in the
Love Field impact area. The organization was established in 1980 to address the airport’s adverse
environmental impact on the large and densely populated community that surrounds the facility to the
north, south, east and west. LFCAC’s nussion is to enhance the quality of life in Love Field area
neighborhoods by reducing negative noise and air pollution, traffic congestion, and safety risks posed by

aircraft operations at Dallas Love Field.

Over the last two and a half decades, LFCAC has been actively involved in many Love Field issues. Its
first major accomplishment was the adoption of Dallas Love Field’s first noise control program, approved
by the Dallas City Council in 1981, when citizens filled the Council chambers to demonstrate their strong
dissatisfaction with increasing airport noise at the close-in airport. During the subsequent 24 years, the
citizens’ organization has worked on many fronts to try to create a balance between the interests of the

airport and interests of the densely populated community surrounding it.

During these two and a half decades, the Love Field Citizens Action Committee LFCAC has developed a
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sohd understanding of Love Field's operations and their impact on the environment. It has participated in
23 years worth of Noise Abatement Advisory Committee meetings at Dallas Love Field, researched and
recommended municipal ordinances to address noise impact, visited with elected officials at the local and
national levels, testified before the U.S. House of Representatives Subcommitiee on Aviation (1991) and
before the Senate Subcommuttee on Aviation (2005) in support of the Wright Amendment, submitted
legal briefs to state and federal courts and promoted a series of voluntary noise abatement procedures at
the inner city airport including one of the earliest and most comprehensive noise monitoring systems in

the country.

The LFCAC actively participated in the development of the 2001 Love Field Master Plan approved
unanimously by the Dallas City Council in April 2001 and subsequently by the Federal Awviation
Adnmunistration.  Most recently, the LFCAC participated in local discussions pertaining to the impact

analysis update of Dallas Love Field based on future scenarios without the Wright Amendment in place.

Dallas Love Field Operations Irnpact Large Area in Population and Value

According to the Airport Master Plan published in March 2001, the Noise Impact Area of Dallas Love
was 25.4 square miles. The estimated population residing in the Noise Impact Area in the year 2000 was
89,307. What did we know about the value of residential properties within the 55 DNL or greater Love
Field Notse Impact Area? Again, according to the 2001 Love Field Master Plan, in the year 2000, the
estimated market value of the residential properties was $5.3 billion. The taxable value of all residential
properties was approximately $3.9 billion and the total annual property tax contributions from those

residential properties were $95.6 rmltlion.

Dallas Love Field is an inner-city airport located on 1300 acres. Densely populated residential

communities with single-family homes, apartments, schools, parks, churches, recreation centers,
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libraries and retail businesses surround it on all sides. Planes that take off and land at close-in
Dallas Love Field must fly over neighborhoods that are homes to thousands of residents. There

are four ways to take off or land at Love Field. All of them impact neighborhoods.

As an example, near Love Field, less than a mile off the end of Runway 13R, there is a school named T.J.
Rusk Middle School. Each school day, its 740 students and 39 teachers attend class while over 100
Southwest flights take off or land overhead, so far without incident. Across the street from T.J. Rusk is a
day school and 200 yards away 1s Maple Lawn Elementary School with 746 students and 44 teachers.
These children and teachers occupy classrooms just below what pilots call the short final, which means
less than one minute from landing at an altitude of 300 feet. Gomg the other way, on takeoff, these

children and their teachers are directly below the planes as the landing gear is retracting.

History of the Wright Amendment — A Community Perspective

In 1968, Dallas and Fort Wortl adopted the 1968 Regional Airport Concurrent Bond Ordinance that
called for the eventual phase-out of certificated air carrier services at Love Field. Homeowners and
others began to anticipate the eventual change at the airport, looking forward to a future time when all air
carriers would move to the new regional airport. As a result of the bond ordinance’s adoption by the two
cities, many residents made the decision to stay in their homes rather than move away. Other residents
made the decision to move mto the neighborhoods and buy homes. They too believed that all air carrier

operations would move to DFW Regional Airport. They felt secure about the future

When the new DFW Aurport opened in early 1974, all air carriers but one moved to the new airport.
Southwest Arrlines had managed to stay at the inner city airport due to its intrastate status with flights to

Houston and Austin.  Although residents expressed concern that the intent of consolidating all air carrier
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operations at DFW Aurport had not yet occurred, the issue of noise was not serious because the number of
daily takeoffs and landings was small during the first few years as SWA flew its intrastate routes.

Gradually, however, the number of SWA’s daily operations mcreased, as did their noise impact on Dallas
neighborhoods surrounding Love Field. Not only did the number of operations and noise ncrease, so did
the level of alarm on the part of residents who had been told that air carrier traffic at the amrport would
become a thing of the past. Residents’ concern grew stronger in 1979 when SWA started interstate service

to New Orleans. Residents felt angry and betrayed.

When the Wright Amendment was enacted into law in early 1980, permitting interstate traffic to the four
states adjacent to Texas, it translated into additional take-offs and landings over homes, schools, churches,
parks, and nearby businesses. In a matter of months, homeowners from 14 major neighborhoods around

Love Field coalesced and established the Love Field Citizens Action Committee.

Wright Amendment Becomes Critical Component in Love Field’s Noise Abatement Program

and Love Field Master Plan Approved in 2061

In subsequent years, the Wright Amendment came to be recognized as a key assumption and component
in Love Field’s Noise Abatement Program by creating the foundation for balancing the needs of the
airport with the needs of the surrounding community. It also created the foundation for balancing the role
of Dallas Love Field m providing short-haul service with that of DFW International Airport in providing

fong-haul service.

In the year 2000, the Dallas City Council commissioned the Love Field Master Plan. DMIM Aviation, a
nationally and mternationally recognized aviation consultant, conducted the study. The development of
the 2001 Love Field Master Plan was based squarely on the assumption that the Wnight Amendment

would remain in effect. As stated on page 1 of the Executive Summary of the Airport Impact
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Analysis/Master Plan, “the study was undertaken by the City to determine the highest practical use of
Love Field within federal guidelines, while maintaining balance with the environmental and socio-
economic impacts that might result from increased use of the airport.” Also stated on page 1 of the
document was the statement “the technical approach to the study centered around a demand analysis
which established the market demand profile and growth potential of Love field given the restrictions

imposed by the Wright/Shelby Amendment which were assumed to remain in effect.”

Love Field residents played a key role in the master planning process due in large part to the fundamental
operating assumption that the Wright Amendment would remain in place. Although the Master Plan
forecasted aviation growth at Love Field, it would be within the parameters of the Wright Amendment,
occurring mostly in smaller and quieter regional jets over an extended period of time resulting in minimal

impact on the noise contours.

Future environmental impacts on the neighborhoods including noise pollution, traffic congestion, and air
pollution were, therefore, based on these forecasts — type and size of plane, number of operations per day,

number of passengers carnied by aireraft, and hours of the day.

Members of the 2001 Love Field Master Plan Adwvisory Committee included Southwest Airhines,
American Airlmes, Continental, Delta, general aviation, the Love Field Citizens Action Committee,
neighborhoods, the North Dallas Chamber of Commerce, other business groups, and Love Field area

businesses. New Legend Airlines also participated for a short period of time before it went out of

existence.

On March 29, 2001, at the completion of the study process, all the parties signed a Consensus Statement
endorsing the proposed Impact Analysis/Master Plan for Dallas Love Field. These individuals represented

a broad based group of local residents, neighborhood and business leaders, general aviation tenants,
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airline representatives, and others interested in the future of the close-in airport. Language in the
statement included the phrase, “The Wright/Shelby Amendment is assumed to remain intact.” The first of

35 signatures on the Consensus Statement was SWA’s representative, a corporate vice president.

The Consensus Statement culminated months of meetings and hard work. It stated, “For 10 months, the
Master Plan Advisory Committee worked with airport staff and consultants to determine the optimal use
of this inner-city airport consistent with federal aviation planning standards and conducive to the airport
being a ‘good neighbor’ in the midst of a vibrant and valuable residential and business community. The
result is a recommendation that (1) demonstrates real consensus by a very diverse group of participants;

(2) creates a vision for Love Field; and (3) removes uncertainty about its future.”

Because of this broad consensus agreement among the diverse parties, the Dallas City Council
unanimously approved the Master Plan in April 2001 after what can only be described as a tremendous
community effort to reach a historic agreement on the future of the airport. The Master Plan was heralded
as a resolution to more than two decades of public conflict regarding Love Field, its impact on

neighborhoods, and its role in the North Texas transportation system.

Southwest Airlines Declares Intent to Seek Repeal of the Wright Amendment

Then, on November 12, 2004, Southwest Airlines announced its decision to seek repeal of the Wright
Amendment, dropped like a bombshell, at a public breakfast meeting in Dallas. In so doing, it re-opened

the painful public debate which, once again, resulted in significant public conflict after what had been a
period of calm and stability following the 2001 historic agreement among all parties around the Love

Field Master Plan which was based on the assumption that the Wright Amendment would continue.
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Public Debate Renews Environmental Impact Issues

The ensuing public debate rekindled significant concerns about the potential future environmental impact
if Love Field were to become a long-haul service airport in the absence of the Wright Amendment. It was
quickly understood by the neighborhoods that if the Wright Amendment were repealed, long haul flights
out of Love Field would most often occur in 737s and other mainline aircraft — not in the regional jets and
56 configured planes that had been anticipated in the 2001 Master Plan. Long haul flights would require
more fuel ensuring heavier planes that would be closer to the end of the runways before liftoff, therefore
flying lower over the neighborhoods for a longer period of time at full thrust before they can reach 1000
feet of altitude which is when the pilot can cut the power back to reduce noise. This would mean more
noise. Simply stated, long haul service out of Love Field would mean longer flights, more fuel, heavier
planes, longer take offs, airplanes lower over the neighborhoods and louder noise. In other words, Longer,

Lower, and Louder.

Furthermore, it was understood that due to the prohibitions of federal law against noise restrictions at
airports (The Airport Noise and Capacity Act of 1990), any size plane could fly in and out of Love Field
as many times a day as desired at any time of the day or night — all from a close~in airport surrounded by

densely populated communities.

In addition, it was understood that the greater number of daily operations in 737s and other large mainline
aircraft than had been forecasted in the 2001 Love Field Master Plan would translate into a larger number
of passengers carried on each plane in comparison to the number that would have been carried on the
regional jets and reconfigured planes. This, in turn, would create many more vehicular trips to and from
the airport than what had been projected in the 2001 Master Plan. The following information clearly

compares passenger capacity of the three types of aireraft:
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737s and MD80s 135 passengers
Regional Jets 50 passengers
Reconfigured Arrcraft 56 passengers

Streets and thoroughfares around Love Field are already seniously congested causing delays and failing
intersections. The prospect of a significant increase of traffic, beyond that which was envisioned by the

2001 Love Field Master Plan, generated serious concern.

And finally, and importantly, increased air pollution, beyond that which had been forecasted by the 2001

Love Field Master Plan, joined the list of concerns, generated from both aircraft and ground traffic

2006 Dallas Love Field Impact Analysis Update

In April of 2006, the City of Dallas commissioned an update of the 2001 Impact Analysis (done in
conjunction with 2001 Master Plan) to determine the potential impact if the Wright Amendment were
removed and to determine at what number of gates the environmental impact of aircraft noise, traffic, and
air emussions would be #o greater that that which had been forecasted and approved in the 2001 Love

Field Master Plan with the Wright Amendment in place. The study included a forecast of activity and

analyses of noise impact, traffic impact and air quality impact.

At the completion of the analysis, the consultants returned with the conclusion that the environmental
impact would be significantly greater than projected in the 2001 Love Freld Master Plan if the Wnight
Amendment were removed and if the maximum of 32 gates remawned in place. The consultants also came
back with the conclusion that a reduction of 12 gates (from 32 to 20) would maintain the projected
environmental mpact of noise, traffic congestion, and air emissions at the same levels as had already

been approved in the 2001 Master Plan with the Wright Amendment 1n place.
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Summary Position of the Love Field Citizens Action Committee

The Love Field Citizens Action has been a strong supporter of the Wright Amendment for many years
because of its crucial role in creating a balance between airport operations and the airport’s negative
mmpact on the surrounding community. In addition, the LFCAC has supported the Wright Amendment
for many years because of 1ts sigruficant role i balancing the short-haul focus of a secondary airport with

the long-haul focus of the primary airport.

After careful consideration, the Love Field Citizens Action Committee endorses the local agreement that
has been reached between the City of Dallas, the City of Fort Worth, Dallas Fort Worth International

Airport, American Airhnes, and Southwest Airlmes.

This support is based on our understanding that no greater environmental impact of noise, traffic, and air
emissions will result from the implementation of the agreement with a maximum of 20 gates without the

Wright Amendment in place than that which would have resulted from the implementation of the
approved 2001 Master Plan for Dallas Love Field at a maximum of 32 gates with the Wright Amendment

in place.

In addition, the Love Field Citizens Action Committee supports a strong DFW International Airport and
understands that the eight-year phase-out of the Wright Amendment will limit the potential negative

consequences on the primary awrport of North Texas.

This agreement 1s constructed and delicately balanced to resolve the long-standmg issue of the Wright
Amendment. It takes many complicated factors into consideration. Importantly, 1t takes into

consideration the impact of removing the Wright Amendment on neighborhoods in which close to
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100,000 people reside and which are affected by Love Field operations. The agreement should be

approved mtact and as is.

* %k ok ok ok

(Lori Palmer was founding president of the Love Field Citizens Action Commttee and served on the Dallas City Council for
eight years. Dallas Love Field was located in her City Council district as were most of the nesghborhoods mpacted by Love

Fireld operations. She currently serves as a consultant to the LECAC.)

10
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Love Field Citizens Action Committee
P.O. Box 36383
Dallas, Texas 75235

www.lfcac.org

July 10, 2006

The Honorable Don Young

Chairman

Comniitice of Transportation & Infrastructure
United States House of Representatives
Washington, D.C., 20515-6256

Dear Chairman Young:

The Love Field Citizens Action Committee endorses the local agreement that has been reached between the City of
Dailas, the City of Fort Worth, Dallas Fort Worth International Airport, American Airlines, and Southwest Airlines.

This support is based on our understanding that no greater environmental impact of noise, traffic, and air emissions
will result from the implementation of this agrecment at a maximum of 20 gates without the Wright Amendment in
place than that which would have resulted from the implementation of the approved 2000 Master Plan for Dallas
Love Field at a maximum of 32 gates with the Wright Amendment in place.

In addition, the Love Ficld Citizens Action Committee supports a strong DFW International Airport and understands
that the eight year phase-out of the Wright Amendment will limit the potential negative consequences on the
primary airport of North Texas.

Love Field Citizens Action Commitiee

The Love Field Citizens Action Committee (LFCAC) is a coalition of citizens and neighborhood groups established
in 1980 to address the environmental impact of Dallas Love Field on residential areas in which thousands of people
live and which are impacted by the airport’s operations. Its mission is to enhance the quality of life in these neigh-
borhoods by reducing the negative noise and air pollution, traffic congestion, and safety risks posed by aircraft at
Love Field.

The LFCAC advocated the development of Love Field's first Noise Abatement Program in 1981and has been
actively involved in a number of airport related issues over the last 235 years including the development of the 2000
Love Field Master Plan. In addition, the LFCAC has been an active participant in the airport’s community advisory
committee since it was established ia 1982, The LFCAC has also taken an active role in addressing air safety issues
at Love Field and air transportation issues of North Texas.

On two different occasions, the Love Field Citizens Action Committee has testified before Congress on the Wright
Amendment In 1991, it testified betore the .S, House Subcommittee on Aviation. and in 2005, it testified before
the U/ S. Senate Subconnmittee on Aviation. In both cases, the LFCAC testified in strong support of the Wright
Amendment and in opposition to any cfforts to repeal or weaken it based on the fact that the Wright Amendment
was the only means by which close to 100,000 people experienced any protection from the negative environmental
impact of the close-in airport.

L.ove Field Surrounded by Densely Poputated Neighborhoods

Dallas Love Field is an inner-city airport located on only 1300 acres in the middie of Dallas. Densely populated
residential communities surround the airport on all four sides with single-family homes, apartments, schools, parks,
churches, recreation centers, libraries, and retail businesscs.
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As an example to underscore the airport’s proximity to neighborhoods, arriving Boeing 737s and MD80s are at an
altitude of only 300 feet when landing directly over a middle school and elementary school with close to 1500
children and 90 teachers. When taking off over these same schools, pilots are retracting landing gear.

2000 Love Field Master Plan

The 2000 Love Field Master Plan was commissioned by the City of Dallas to determine the highest practical use of
Love Field within federal guidelines. while maintaining balance with the environmental and socio-economic impacts
that might result from increased use of the airport. The technical approach to the study centered around a demand
analysis which established the market demand profile and growth porential of Love field given the resirictions
imposed by the Wright:Shelby Amendment which were assumed to reman in effect. The Plan was approved by all
major stakeholders and became the official policy for Love Field™s future growth.

The Plan was based on the forecast that by the year 2020, the greatest growth in air carrier service would occur in 50
seat regional jets and reconfigured 56 seat jets compared to little growth in the mainline aircraft (737s and MD80s).
A maximum of 32 gates would accommodate this growth.

Accordingly. future environmental impacts on the neighborhouds including noise pollution, air pollution, and traffic
congestion were based on these forecasts (type and size of plane, number of operations per dav. number of
passengers carried by the airerafl, and hours of the day) of increused use of the airport

In April of 2006, the City of Dallas commissioned an update of the 2000 Love Field Master Plan to determine the
potential environmental impact if the Wright Amendment were removed and to further determine at what number of
gates the envirommental impact of aircraft noise, traffic, and air emissions would be no greater than that which had
been forecasted and approved in the 2000 Love Field Master Plan with the Wright Amendment in place.

The consultants came back with the conclusion that the environmental impact would be significantly greater if the
Wright Amendment were removed and if the maximum of 32 gates still remained in place. The consultants also
came back with the conclusion that a reduction of 12 gates (from 32 to 20) would maintain the projected
environmental impact of noise, traffic congestion, and air emissions at the sume levels as already approved in the
2000 Master Plan with the Wright Amendment in place.

Summary

In summary, the Love Ficld Citizens Action Committee endorses the local agreement that has been reached between
the City of Dallas, the City of Fort Worth, Dallas Fort Worth International Airport, American Airlines, and
Southwest Airlines 1t is a delicately balanced agreement that has been carefully constructed to resolve the long-
standing issue of the Wright Amendment with the broadest support possible in North Texas. 1t is very important,
therefore, that the agrecment remain intact as is.  On behalf of the Love Field Citizens Action Commitice, 1 ask for
your support of this agrecment and for your leadership to secure its approval in the U.S. House of Representatives.

Sincerely,
Lori Palmer

Lort Pabmer, Foundmg President
and Consultant to the Love Field Cibizens Action Committee

cc: Pat White, Co-Chair, LFCAC
Rudy Longoria, Co-Chair, LFCAC
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July 10, 2006

Honorable Don Young
United States House of Representatives
Washington, DC 20515-0201

Re: Wright Amendment Agreement
Dear Congressman Young:

With the Dallas-Fort Worth Intemational Airport such a vital and integral part to the North Texas economy,
the Fort Worth Hispanic Chamber of Commerce is supportive of the Agreement recently signed by Dallas
Fort Worth intemational Airport as well as the City of Dallas, the City of Fort Worth, American Airfines and
Southwest Airlines to resolve the Wright Amendment issues surrounding air passenger service at Love
Field.

The Chamber believes that the parties have developed a fair and mutually beneficial agreement that will
allow for continued growth of DFW Airport. It eliminates the uncertainty about the future of the Wright
Amendment that has scared away additional airlines and the spin-off businesses from serving our great
Aimport. While with a compromise none of the parties received everything that they wanted, the Agreement
is a resounding “win-win” for the North Texas region.

For these reasons, the Fort Worth Hispanic Chamber of Commerce urges your support of this agreement,
Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Sincerely,

O< 08 “}mb‘""

Rosa Navejar
President/CEQ

1327 North Main - Fort Worth, Texas 76106 - 817-625-5411 fax 817-625-1405
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114} FORT WORTH
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July 10, 2006

Honorable Don Young
United States House of Representatives
Washington, DC 20515-0201

Re: Wright Amendment Agreement
Dear Congressman Young:

With the Dallas-Fort Worth International Airport such a vital and integral part to the North
Texas economy, the Fort Worth Metropolitan Black Chamber of Commerce is supportive
of the Agreement recently signed by the Dallas-Fort Worth international Airport as well
as the City of Dallas, the City of Fort Worth, American Airines and Southwest Afrfines to
resolve the Wright Amendment issues surrounding air passenger service at Love Field.

The FWMBCC believes that both parties have developed a fair and mutuaily beneficial
agreement that. will allow for continued growth of DFW Airport. it eliminates the
uncertainty about the future of the Wright Amendment that has scared away additional
airlines and the spin off businesses from serving our great airport.  While none of the
parties received everything that they wanted, the Agreement is a resounding “win-win”
for the North Texas region.

The Fort Worth Metropolitan Black Chamber of Commerce urges your support of this
agreement. .

Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Sincerely, .
Monte Elliott Devoyd ennings/
Chairman President/ CEQ

1150 South Freeway, Suite 211 + Fort Worth, Texas 76104 + Office (817) 871-6538 + Fax (817) 332-6438
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Greater Dallas

Asian American Chamber of Commerce
“20 years of Service - Empowering Communities through Diversity and Business Development”

Chairman

Linds Keo
Chalrsvmect
Julia So
Vice Cheir July 11, 2006
Jeffrey Cheng
E“.féyucm Honorable Don Young
Audrey Srushia United States House of Representatives
Mobammed Younus Washington, DC 20515-0201
Secretary
Chuttel Tappin Re: Wright Amendment Agreement
Treasiurer
La) Daswani
Dear Congressman Young:
Board of Directors -
Deepak Aurors
e agt Whether to allow unrestricted interstate commercial passenger air service from
Katic Chang Dallas Love Field has been a contentious issue that has divided the Cities of
Fior e Dallas and Fort Worth and their citizens for many years. Despite the Wright
‘Vishal Dhaguka Amendment compromise reached in 1979, the issue has continued to cause
g Dress conflict within the DFW metroplex particularly with the subsequent efforts to add
Robia Gax additional states as well as to fully repeal the Amendment.

Dr. Riaz Haides, M.D
Ausaf Husain, Ph D.
;’23};’;’"‘5 Although the Greater Dallas Asian American Chamber of Commerce previously
Vi ke passed a resolution in support of maintaining the Wright Amendment, this
ool Chamber wants to go on record as being fully supportive of the Agreement that
Jennifr Ly was recently struck between the City of Dallas, the City of Fort Worth, American
Karea Lt Airfines, Southwest Airlines and DFW International Airport. It is a balanced
ﬁc“;‘;'fg‘-;;’duw compromise between parties that will not only allow DFW Airport adequate time
Naider Meherall 1o adjust before the Amendment is repealed, but also puts into place provisions
e that will permit controlled growth at Love Field. Furthermore, the Agreement will
Dustet Moon settle the issue once and for all, and let the parties concentrate on running their
ﬁf,z;f;w“ggdy respective businesses. The traveling public aiso will enjoy more options than
Cherle Sung previousfy available.
Grce Tasg
Tommy Vi
el For these reasons, the Greater Dallas Asian American Chamber of Commerce
ate Past Chair urges your support of this agreement.
Amir Rupani
Founding Chalr
Robert Hsueh

Past Chairs
Angle Chen Bution
Emelita de 1a Rosa
Anant Jain. PhD
SuoKwonlee [
Grace McDermott
Peter Ng

Sudhs Facikh
Dilip Pated

Executive Director
Les Tanaka

Thank you for your affention to this matter.

Executive Director

Executive Assistant

Lisa Vongphackdy

Director of Education &

Minotity Business

Development

Galileo Jumso-As

Director of Events &

‘Marketing

Lauren Hobbs

Manager of Accounting 11171 Harry Hines Blvd., « Suite 115 « Dallas, TX 75229
Titn Lingkardjaja Telephone: 872-241-8250 ¢ Fax: 972-241-8270
Project Coordinator Website: www.gdaacc.com * email: info @gdaacc.com
Yingying La
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July 11, 2006

Honorable Don Young
United State House of Representatives
Washington, DC 20515-0201

Re: Wright Amendment Agreement
Dear Congressman Young:

The American Indian Chamber of Commerce of Texas on May 5, 2006 passed a resolution in
favor of keeping the Wright Amendment in place. Our position was that changing an agreement
between parties was like not honoring the terms of a treaty. Also the covenants of the Wright
Amendment seemed to insure the economic stability of the region and that of our membership.
The original participants in this issue have now come together to forge an agreement that will
permit final resolution to the division attributed to the Wright Amendment. These local
organizations have shown leadership to establish this resolution for the common good of all
parties.

Therefore, the American Indian Chamber of Commerce of Texas wants to go on record as
supporting the Agreement that was reached by the City of Dallas, the City of Fort Worth,
American Airlines, Southwest Airlines and D/FW International Airport, This agreement is a
balanced compromise between the original parties that will provide time to adjust before repeal
of Wright and will permit controlled growth at Love Field. The traveling public will be well
served as a result of this agreement,

For the reasons observed above, the American Indian Chamber of Commerce of Texas urges
your support of this agreement.

bpp fienresy

Presxdent of the Board Board Secretary
AICCT AICCT

American indlan Chamber of Commerce of Texas
American Indian Educational and Opportunity Fund, Inc.
P. 0. Box 183047, Fort Worth, TX 76161
Vi 817-429-2323 F: 817-451-3575, Website: www.alcct.com
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TESTIMONY OF HERB KELLEHER

EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN, SOUTHWEST AIRLINES

JULY 12, 2006

BEFORE

The House Committee on Transportation & Infrastructure

Subcommittee on Aviation

THE WRIGHT AMENDMENT-—A LOCALLY ACHIEVED COMPROMISE
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TESTIMONY OF HERB KELLEHER
EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN, SOUTHWEST AIRLINES
JULY 12, 2006
BEFORE
The House Committee on Transportation & Infrastructure

Subcommittee on Aviation

THE WRIGHT AMENDMENT—A LOCALLY ACHIEVED COMPROMISE

Southwest Airlines Supports the Local Compromise

The 30-years war, waged on the European continent from 1618 to 1648,
is, in longevity, exceedingly junior compared to the Dailas-Fort Worth airport
struggle, waged in the Dallas-Fort Worth Metroplex for more than six decades.

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee, | have, personally,
been involved in litigation, in legislative struggles, and in cuss fights over Love
Field since 1972—a period of 34 years. The fact that Southwest Airlines is here
today—here with Fort Worth, DFW Airport, American Airlines, and the City of
Dallas—indicates, | believe, that there must be hope for world peace.
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Our unprecedented agreement arises from airport circumstances
unprecedented anywhere else in the United States and, most probably,
unprecedented anywhere else on earth. Many Members of Congress have,
over the course of many years, urged a local resolution of the Wright
Amendment issues. That has been done.

And peace, and good will, is the essence of our agreement—not to
mention certainty, stability, and tranquility. Under the perseverant Leadership of
the Mayors of Dallas and Fort Worth, who literally worked day and night to bring
this “Peace Pact’ into being, our swords are truly being beaten into plowshares.
As with any difficult and complicated transaction—difficult and complicated by
over 60 years of contention, of controversy, and of acrimony—all sides, all five
parties, have been compelled to make sacrifices—to yield on firmly held
positions; to moan and grown and agonize over decisions and mutual
concessions. The only victor, the only sure fire winner from this locally
achieved agreement, is the public—the public citizens who will find it easier
and far less expensive to travel to and from North Texas for business and
personal reasons; the citizens who will reap vast economic benefits in their
communities from enhanced travel and tourism, at a lower cost.

And, I should add, the public will reap those benefits without any
cognizable injury to DFW International Airport or its far-flung domestic
and international air service network.

On behalf of the public, we stand shoulder to shoulder with American
Airlines, with DFW Airport, and with the Mayors of Dallas and Fort Worth, in
urging this Committee and the United States Congress to speedily approve
legislation necessary to implement the locally achieved Wright Amendment

compromise.

[



199

The History of the Fight Over Love Field

For over six decades, Dallas and Fort Worth have struggled over airport
issues. The history of the fight over Dallas Love Field is the history of
Southwest Airlines.

Southwest was incorporated on March 15, 1967. On November 27, 1967,
Southwest filed an application with the Texas Aeronautics Commission (TAC) to
operate as a Texas intrastate carrier. Southwest elected to operate as an
intrastate carrier because the U.S. Civil Aeronautics Board (CAB) of that day did
not welcome new competition in the airline industry. The CAB mandated fare
levels and did not permit price competition. Prior to the Airline Deregulation Act
in 1978, there was no competition in interstate air service, on the basis of price,
in the U.S. A consequence of that federal policy was that there were no new
entrants—if a new airline could not compete against giant entrenched
competitors on price, it was impossible to establish a toehold in a market.

Southwest did not fly for 51 months. Once the TAC unanimously
approved Southwest’s intrastate application on February 20, 1968, three airlines
(Braniff, Trans Texas, and Continental), seeking to preserve their monopoly
routes, filed a lawsuit and obtained a restraining order against the TAC,
prohibiting it from issuing the necessary certificate under state law. That
litigation continued through May 13, 1970, when a unanimous Texas Supreme
Court ordered that Southwest could take to the skies. Seeking every chance to
thwart Southwest through litigation (Southwest having no revenues at the time}),
the airlines took their pleas to the United States Supreme Court, which denied
the appeal on December 7, 1970. Southwest Airlines thus became perhaps the
only company in America that went all the way to the U.S. Supreme Court to

obtain a business license over the opposition of its incumbent competitors.
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Southwest began preparations for the start of service in earnest, with a
planned startup of June 18, 1971. Our competitors were undeterred. They filed
complaints with the CAB and, just days before service was to begin, returned to
a state court and obtained another injunction stopping Southwest’s flights. In an
extraordinary session convened on June 17, 1971, the Texas Supreme Court
again gave Southwest clearance for takeoff. Service began the very next day,
with three airplanes flying to three cities.

The now proven model of point-to-point, frequent, low-fare service to
close-in convenient airports was born. By then, the litigation (as was intended)
had depleted all of Southwest’s original financial capital, but not its will to
survive.

In 1972, Southwest announced that it would not move to the new DFW
Airport when it would open in 1974. Southwest was not a party to the local
agreement to build DFW. Other airlines serving the North Texas market
voluntarily signed contracts to fly exclusively from the new airport. Southwest
did not. Love Field was better suited to Southwest's Customer needs than
DFW, then and now.

This time, it was DFW and the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth that filed
suit. The purpose of that litigation was to evict Southwest from Love Field in
Dallas, a founidation of Southwest’s short haul, low cost, low fare niche. Ina
definitive opinion, the federal district court found, on multiple grounds, that the
local agreements to build DFW did not, and legally could not, prevent Southwest
Airlines from serving Love Field. City of Dallas v. Southwest Airlines Co., 371 F.
Supp. 1015 (N.D. Tex. 1973). The DFW Parties were not prepared to accept
defeat and appealed. On May 31, 1974, the Fifth Circuit affirmed the lower
court's decision, upholding Southwest’s unfettered right to serve Love Field.
City of Dallas v. Southwest Airlines Co., 494 F.2d 773 (5" Cir. 1974). Still
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refusing to concede, the DFW parties petitioned the Fifth Circuit for rehearing,

which was denied. They appealed unsuccessfully to the U.S. Supreme Court.
419 U.S. 1079 (1974). They petitioned the Supreme Court for rehearing, to no
avail. 420 U.S. 913 (1975). Seemingly, the fight over Southwest at Love Field
had ended.

The “end” was short-lived. The DFW Parties then prevailed upon the
Dallas City Council, after a massive lobbying effort, to pass an ordinance
making it a crime for Southwest to use Love Field. A federal judge enjoined
Dallas from enforcing the ordinance.

That still was not the end. The DFW Parties started litigation anew in a
state court, seeking to relitigate their claim that Southwest could not fly from
Love. A federal court found that this attempt to relitigate questions already
decided was, in effect, an abuse of process and took the dramatic action of
enjoining the state court—or any other court--from proceeding further.
Southwest Airlines Co. v. Texas International Airlines, Inc., 396 F. Supp. 678
(N.D. Tex. 1975). The DFW Parties appealed to the Fifth Circuit. The Fifth
Circuit, in an opinion remarkable for its clarity and conclusiveness, brought an

end to the legal proceedings by declaring that the courts were now off limits to
anyone seeking to evict Southwest Airlines from Love Field. Southwest Airlines
Co. v. Texas International Airlines, Inc., 546 F.2d 84 (5" Cir. 1977). The DFW
Parties petitioned for rehearing. The 5" Circuit said no. They appealed to the
U.S. Supreme Court, which rejected the appeal. 434 U.S. 832 (1977).

The Significance of the Airline Derequlation Act

Then something dramatic happened outside a courtroom. The U.S.
Congress deregulated the airline industry in 1978. The Congress, observing the
gigantic growth in passenger traffic in California and Texas, where intrastate

3
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price competition was allowed, took the federal government out of the business
of choosing which airports airlines could serve and at what price.

With respect to Southwest Airlines, the court-mandated stoppage of the
concerted and coordinated legal campaign by the DFW Parties in 1977, coupled
with the passage of the Deregulation Act in 1978, meant two very important
things: 1) the courts said that no one could kick Southwest out of Love Field;
and 2) the Congress said that Southwest could fly anywhere in the U.S. from
Love Field.

When Southwest announced its intention to fly between Dallas and New
Orleans pursuant to its rights under the Deregulation Act, the DFW Parties
petitioned the CAB, seeking to deny Southwest the right to fly in interstate
commerce out of Love Field. Again, they relied on the local agreement that
produced DFW Airport. The DFW Parties lost before a CAB Administrative Law
Judge, who ruled against them on every point in an exhaustive analysis on June
28, 1979. CAB Docket 34582. That decision was upheld in its entirety by the
full CAB on September 28, 1979.

During this eleven-year period of nonstop litigation, some other interesting
things occurred. Most noteworthy was the indictment of two airline competitors
by a federal criminal grand jury for their role in the conspiracy to bankrupt
Southwest. They both plead nolo contendre.

Judicial Defeats Lead to Political Intervention & the Wright Amendment

Unsuccessful in the courts and administrative agencies, the DFW Parties
decided upon a legislative strategy. They went back to Washington and
obtained the support of House Majority Leader Jim Wright from Ft. Worth. If
Leader Wright had not been from Fort Worth, or, being from Fort Worth, had not
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been the House Leader, the Wright Amendment would never have come to
pass.

Leader Wright attached an amendment to an unrelated bill that would
have banned any airline from engaging in interstate air commerce from Love
Field. Wisely, the U.S. Senate refused to go along. That obstructed passage of
the bill to which Leader Wright had attached his language. Pressure built for
passage of the larger bill, which dealt with international aviation. Ultimately
Leader Wright himself made changes that the Senate accepted. That became
the law we are here to discuss today, the federal law that limits service from
Love Field to Texas and a few nearby states. The admitted legislative purpose
was to protect DFW Airport and the airlines serving it from competition. We at
Southwest often point out the ironic conflict between the Wright Amendment, on
the one hand, and years of consistent court or agency decisions and the Airline
Deregulation Act (passed just one year earlier), on the other hand. Thus, Love
Field became, and remains, the only airport in America route-restricted by an
Act of Congress for the sole purpose of protecting competitors (one airport and

several airlines) from the rigors of the marketplace.

The Wright Amendment Was Designed to Stifle Southwest

Although the Amendment was intended to stifle Southwest and cause it
severe economic injury, Southwest’'s Employees managed to make the carrier a
success in spite of the Wright Amendment. The proof of the law’s anti-
competitive intent may be found not only in the well-known geographical
restrictions which limit where a plane can be flown, but in the more obscure
“marketing and through ticketing” restrictions that are less well-understood.

These restrictions are a restraint on commercial free speech and force
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Southwest, unintentionally, to deceive and confuse passengers. They are
without precedent in commercial aviation, including during the regulated era.
Under the Wright Amendment, Southwest cannot “offer or provide any through
service . . .” and cannot “offer for sale transportation to or from . . . any point
which is outside” the so-called Wright Amendment states. This means that
even if a Customer is willing to make a stop within the permitted states and

continue his or her journey on the same plane, or even a different plane,

Southwest may not offer or market such service. An example: Southwest flies
from Dallas to Little Rock and from Little Rock to Baltimore-Washington
International (BWI). But Southwest cannot sell an individual through ticket to a
Customer going from Dallas to BWI, even if the Customer is willing to make a
connection to another plane in Little Rock. Another example: Southwest has a
plane that goes from Dallas to Albuquerque where it sits for 25 minutes before
continuing on to Las Vegas. But Southwest cannot sell a ticket to someone
going from Dallas to Las Vegas with a stop in Albuquerque. That someone has
to get off the airplane in Albuquerque.

In contrast, Members of Congress are familiar with the perimeter rule that
limits the distance of nonstop flights from Reagan National. But a Member may
purchase a ticket to destinations beyond the nonstop perimeter and take a one-
stop flight on the same airplane to those destinations, something Customers

cannot do on Southwest from Love Field under the Wright Amendment.

Effects of the Wright Amendment

The Wright Amendment, by design, restricts competition. This restraint of
trade has the unavoidable consequence of higher airfares and its corollary,
reduced demand (fewer passengers). The Wright Amendment consumer
penalty has been quantified. In a study commissioned by Southwest and

8
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conducted by the Campbell-Hill Aviation Group, the benefits of repealing the
Wright Amendment include:

« 3.7 million more passengers would travel, increasing passengers at
both Love Field and DFW.

o Consumers would save nearly $700 million annually compared to the
higher airfares extracted from consumers by American Airlines at DFW
as a result of its market power and the absence of competition.

+ The fotal negative economic impact of the Wright Amendment on the

entire United States exceeds $4 billion each and every year.

People Understand and Dislike the Wright Amendment

As a result of the seismic shift in travel habits brought about by
deregulation, today’s consumers have an expectation of air service options at
affordable prices. Before deregulation, only the wealthy flew on commercial
airlines. Today, air travel is accessible to virtually all Americans.

Like their fellow citizens across the country, Texans have become savvy
air travel consumers. They dislike the Wright Amendment. One reason is that
because of the Wright Amendment, many routes from DFW are monopoly
markets with sharply higher fares. For example, based on 2004 full year data,
American’s average (not its highest) roundtrip fare between DFW and Omaha (a
distance of 583 miles) was $464. American’s average fare between DFW and
Albuquerque (a distance of 569 miles) was just $220, or less than half of its
average fare to Omaha. Why? Southwest can and does fly between Dallas
Love Field and Albuquerque, New Mexico. Southwest cannot fly from Dallas
Love Field to Omaha. Similar examples abound.
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A scientific poll done by Public Opinion Strategies of Arlington, Virginia,
found that North Texans favored repeal of the Wright Amendment by the
astounding margin of 82% to 13%. When asked whether they supported the
closure of Love Field, as some proposed, North Texans were even more
opinionated, opposing such a move by a margin of 84% to 10%, with 70%
STRONGLY opposing the closure of Love Field. Southwest had nothing to do
with that poll.

The poll numbers are lopsided because the facts are lopsided.
Consumers are sensitive to the fact that they pay more and have fewer options
for air travel due to the Wright Amendment. They don't like it.

For years, few people outside Texas or Washington, D.C. knew what the
Wright Amendment was. As they learned, opposition to it grew. Attached is
Exhibit “A,” which is a list of the newspapers and other community organizations
supporting repeal of the Wright Amendment. In addition, 55 Members of the
House of Representatives are co-sponsors of H.R.2646—legislation to repeal

the Wright Amendment.

Why Change the Wright Amendment Now?

Circumstances have changed dramatically since 1979:

» D/FW is the second biggest airport in the world in terms of land area
and the third busiest in terms of flight operations. It is no longer an
infant in need of pampering.

* Love Field is too small to be a significant threat to D/FW.

« Consumers across America are upset by the high cost of travel to and
from the Dallas-Ft. Worth region and recognize that competition will

cause prices to drop.

10
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o Passenger traffic at Love Field, limited by the Wright Amendment to
short flights, declined after 9/11 by approximately 24%, as the
automobile reemerged as a serious competitor to the airplane.
Accordingly, flights have been curtailed. Southwest has only 120 daily
departures from Love Field, down from a pre-9/11 peak of 145.

Conclusion

Southwest has not asked for bankruptcy protection, relief from pension
obligations, subsidies, or federal loan guarantees. We have not asked our
Employees for wage cuts or slashed their benefits. We have never had an
involuntary furlough. We have shared profits with our Employees for 32
consecutive years. We have proven time and again that if competition
flourishes, prices decline while consumers and communities profit. Southwest
is a creature of the free market and of deregulation—the national policy with
respect to commercial aviation. We ask that Congress restore 1o Southwest
and its Customers what it gave the rest of the flying public in 1978—a
competitive free airline market, which it improvidently allowed to be taken away
in 1979.

Wright is Wrong. It is time for change. Southwest supports the local

compromise and urges Congress to act upon it.
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NEWSPAPER EDITORIALS:

ALBUQUERQUE JOURNAL (NEW MEXICO)
AMARILLO GLOBE-NEWS (TEXAS)

THE ARIZONA DAILY STAR (TUCSON})

THE COLONY COURIER-LEADER (TEXAS)

THE DAILY CAMPUS (SOUTHERN METHODIST UNIVERSITY-DALLAS)
DALLAS BUSINESS JOURNAL

THE DALLAS MORNING NEWS

D MAGAZINE (DALLAS, TEXAS)

EAST VALLEY (PHOENIX) TRIBUNE

FORBES MAGAZINE (STEVE FORBES)

THE HOUSTON CHRONICLE (TEXAS)

INSIDE TUCSON BUSINESS (ARIZONA)

LAS VEGAS SUN

1.OS ANGELES TIMES

MIDLAND REPORTER-TELEGRAPH (TEXAS)
OMAHA WORLD-HERALD (NEBRASKA)
ORLANDO SENTINEL (FLORIDA)

PITTSBURGH POST-GAZETTE

ST. LOUIS POST-DISPATCH

SAN ANTONIO EXPRESS-NEWS (TEXAS)

ST. PETERSBURG TIMES (FLORIDA)

SANTA MARIA TIMES (SANTA BARBARA COUNTY - CALIFORNIA}
TAMPA TRIBUNE

TEXAS MONTHLY

THE UNION-LEADER (MANCHESTER, NH)
VALLEY MORNING STAR (HARLINGEN, TEXAS)
WALL STREET JOURNAL

WASHINGTON POST

COMMUNITY RESOLUTIONS/BUSINESS ORGANIZATION SUPPORT:

ALAVARADO, TEXAS CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
AIRCRAFT MECHANICS FRATERNAL ASSOCIATION (AMFA)
AIR TRAVELERS ASSOCIATION
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AL BIERNAT’S RESTAURANT (DALLAS, TEXAS)

AMARILLO, TEXAS CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

AMERICAN HOTEL AND LODGING ASSOCIATION

AMERICAN SOCIETY OF TRAVEL AGENTS

ANY EVENT INCORPORATED (CORPORATE MEETING/EVENT COMPANY- AUSTIN, TEXAS)
BAY AREA HOUSTON ECONOMIC PARTNERSHIP (TEXAS)

BEST PARK (LOVE FIELD PARKING GARAGE - DALLAS, TEXAS)
BUGATTI RISTORANTE (DALLAS, TEXAS)

CALIFORNIA HISPANIC CHAMBERS OF COMMERCE

CALIFORNIA HOTEL AND LODGING ASSOCIATION

CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE, MAJORITY LEADER DARIO FROMMER
CENTRAL CITY ASSOCIATION OF LOS ANGELES

CITY OF MANCHESTER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

DALLAS NORTHEAST CHAMBER (TEXAS)

DEER PARK CHAMBER OF COMMERCE (HOUSTON, TEXAS)

DESOTO, TEXAS CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

DUNSTON’S STEAK HOUSE (DALLAS, TEXAS)

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL OF THE GREATER SAN ANTONIO CHAMBER
EDINBURG ROADRUNNERS (PROFFESTIONAL BASEBALL TEAM)

EL PASO TX DIABLOS (PROFESSIONAL BASEBALL TEAM)

EXPOTEX, LLC (EVENT MANAGEMENT PLANNING — AUSTIN, TEXAS)
FLYING SAUCER RESTAURANT (DALLAS, TEXAS)

FOX SPORTS NET

FREEDOMWORKS (CITIZENS FOR A SOUND ECONOMY)

GALVESTON, TEXAS CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

GAYLORD HOTELS

GOVERNOR OF MARYLAND - ROBERT L. EHRLICH, JR.

GOVERNOR OF TENNESSEE - PHIL BREDESEN

GRAND PRAIRIE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE (DALLAS, TEXAS)
GREATER DALLAS PLANNING COUNCIL

GREATER LOS ANGELES AFRICAN AMERICAN CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
GREATER SAN ANTONIO CHAMBER OF COMMERCE (TEXAS)
HARLINGEN, TEXAS AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

HARLINGEN CITY COMMISSION (TEXAS)

HARLINGEN HISPANIC CHAMBER OF COMMERCE (TEXAS)
HARLINGEN, TEXAS AIRPORT BOARD

HEART OF LOS ANGELES YOUTH (INNER CITY YOUTH ORGANIZATION)
HISPANIC CONTRACTORS ASSOCIATION DE TEJAS

13
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HOPKINS COUNTY (TEXAS)

HOUSTON HISPANIC CHAMBER OF COMMERCE (TEXAS)
HOUSTON INTOWN CHAMBER OF COMMERCE (TEXAS)

HOUSTON ROCKETS (NBA TEAM)

LANCASTER CHAMBER OF COMMERCE (TEXAS)

LEE COUNTY PORT AUTHORITY (FLORIDA)

LOVE FIELD ANTIQUE MALL (DALLAS, TEXAS)

LOS ANGELES COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
MEXICAN-AMERICAN OPPORTUNITY FOUNDATION

MIDLAND ROCK HOUNDS (PROFESSIONAL BASEBALL)

MILPITAS CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

NASHVILLE CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU

NATIONAL BLACK CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

NATIONAL HISPANIC MEDIA COALITION

NATIONAL TAXPAYERS UNION FOUNDATION

NEVADA STATE LEGISLATURES

NORTH DALLAS CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

NOSOTROS (LATINO ACTOR ORGANIZATION - HOLLYWOOD, CA)
PALM BEACH INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

PHILADELPHIA AVIATION DIRECTOR, CHARLES ISDELL
PITTSBURGH INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT BOARD
RALEIGH-DURHAM INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT (NORTH CAROLINA)
ROCKWALL CHAMBER (TEXAS)

RONALD MCDONALD HOUSE CHARITIES OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS
RONALD MCDONALD HOUSE CHARITIES OF THE RIC GRANDE VALLEY , TEXAS
ROYSE CITY, TEXAS CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

ROUND ROCK EXPRESS (PROFESSIONAL BASEBALL)

SALT LAKE CITY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE RESOLUTION {(UTAH)
SAN ANTONIO CONVENTION AND VISITORS COMMISSION (TEXAS)
SAN ANTONIO HISPANIC CHAMBER OF COMMERCE (TEXAS)

SAN ANTONIO HOTEL AND LODGING ASSOCIATION (TEXAS)

SAN ANTONIO SPURS (NBA)

SAN DIEGO COUNTY HISPANIC CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

SAN FRANCISCO HISPANIC CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

SAN JOSE DOWNTOWN ASSOCIATION

SAN JOSE JAZZ SOCIETY

SANTA CLARA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE (CALIFORNIA)

SILICON VALLEY KOREAN AMERICAN CHAMBER (CALIFORNIA)

14
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SOUTH FLORIDA HISPANIC CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

SOUTH PADRE ISLAND CHAMBER OF COMMERCE (TEXAS)

TAMPA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

TEXAS PUBLIC POLICY FOUNDATION

U.S, HISPANIC CONTRACTORS ASSOCIATION

UTAH AIR TRAVEL COMMISSION

VALLEY INDUSTRY AND COMMERCE ASSOCIATION (1.OS ANGELES)
WESTCHESTER/LAX- MARINA DEL REY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE (L.OS ANGELES)
WILMER, TEXAS CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
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Testimony of the Honorable Laura Miller
July 12, 2006

Chairman Mica, Ranking Member Costello and Members of the
Subcommittee: Thank you for the opportunity to testify on the agreement reached
by the City of Dallas, the City of Fort Worth, the Dallas-Fort Worth International
Airport Board, Southwest Airlines and American Airlines (the five parties). Much
like the agreement that led to the creation of Dallas-Fort Worth International
Airport 32 years ago, this agreement represents the best in regional cooperation
and signals that, whatever our past differences over Love Field, the cities of
Dallas and Fort Worth are committed to working together on behalf of our
region’s fulure. The five-party agreement as approved by the Dallas City Council
is attached to my testimony. Each of the five parties represented here will

address different aspects of it.

Before | proceed with my testimony, | wouid like to thank the entire North
Central Texas delegation for their work on this issue and for their encouragement
and support as we addressed this issue locally. | would particularly like to take
advantage of this opportunity to thank two members of this Subcommittee,
Representative Eddie Bernice Johnson and Representative Kenny Marchant, for
their leadership on this issue and for all of their hard work on behalf of Dallas.
And | would be remiss if | did not thank my good friend and partner, Fort Worth
Mayor Mike Moncrief, for his leadership and for his dedication to regional
planning and cooperation. Both of us benefited from the help and support of our

business community and | am very grateful to them as well.
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Four months ago our Congressional delegation asked us to find a local
solution to the problems arising out of the Wright Amendment. The problems
surrounding this issue are complex and the interests are in many cases
entrenched. The rift between the two cities for too long has kept the fifth largest
metropolitan area in America from developing its full economic potential; it was

important that we address this issue head on.

After strenuous negotiations, the five parties reached an agreement that
will also serve the interests of our regional economy, the fraveling public and the
Dallas citizens who live near Love Field. There are those who argue that the
five-party agreement goes too far and others who say that it does not go far
enough. However, any agreement between these five parties that also has the
support of the communities neighboring Love Field and the business community
must have gotten it mostly right. Erle Nye, President of the Chamber of
Commerce, has been deeply involved and fully supportive of the whole process.
The Love Field Citizen's Action Committee has written letters expressing their
support for the five-party agreement to Chairman Young and Ranking Member
Oberstar of the full Committee and | would ask that those letters be entered into

the record as part of my testimony.

This landmark agreement will gradually open Love Field to aillow direct,
non-stop flights to and from cities throughout the United States in a manner that

protects surrounding neighborhoods from increased noise, traffic and pollution
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and in a manner that allows Dallas-Fort Worth International Airport to cement its
lead role in our regional economy. If implemented, it will increase competition
and improve airline service for the 5.3 million people who call our region home

and for the thousands of travelers who visit us each year.

The five-party agreement will free Love Field from almost 30 years of
federal control. As importantly, it will allow Dallas to move forward in updating
the Love Field Master Plan. That plan as approved in 2001 assumed that Love
Field would be forever subject to the Wright Amendment and could eventually
develop up to 32 gates. A more recent study performed by our master plan
consultants evaluated the community impacts of the plan for a post-Wright
Amendment environment. They concluded that the master plan goals can be
fully implemented under the 20-gate fimit set by the five-party agreement. in
addition to maintaining the ground traffic, noise and air quality impacts of the air
service that 32 gates with the Wright Amendment would bring, the 20-gate limit

without the Wright Amendment will also enhance safety and efficiency.

A few airlines have complained that the five-party agreement would bar
new carriers from Love Field. Not so. There will be room for new entrant airlines
and for new service to other destinations from our airport —~ now and after the
airport is reconfigured. Today, our 19 gates currently in use are not at capacity.
New entrants are welcome under Dallas's existing sharing provisions, which will

not change under this agreement.
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Under this new agreement, travelers using a 20-gate Love Field will also
benefit from a much improved airport. As part of the five-party agreement, the
City of Dallas has agreed to invest between $150 million and $200 million for a
wide variety of upgrades at Love Field consistent with the Love Field Master
Plan, to be funded through landing fees, space rental charges and Passenger
Facility Charges. These investments will improve operations, increase safety,
improve the traveler's experience and boost the airport’s bottom line. These
investments include fwo components to address safety issues:

« Adding 1000 feet to the Runway Safety Areas off the north ends of

Love Field's two parallel runways in order to bring them into
compliance with federal requirements and

¢ Building a new, $8 million public safety and crisis management facility

that will enhance security and emergency response by combining the
administrative functions of the Dallas Airport Police, Dallas Fire and
Rescue, Airport Operations and the Controlled Access Security

System in a facility separate from the Main Terminal Building.

In addition, under the five-party agreement, the City of Dallas is committed
to other improvements at Love Field, including expansion of retail concessions
(34 million), renovation of the central lobby (320 million), a new cargo building
($6 million), renovation of the intersection of Mockingbird Lane and Cedar

Springs Road at the airport entrance ($20 million), a new ticket wing and
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pedestrian bridge ($34 million), renovation of the concourse ($70 million) and

landscaping ($10 million).

In addition to those improvements, the City will fund any construction,
renovation or demolition work related to limiting operations at Love Field to 20
gates and will explore construction of a people mover to directly connect the
terminal at Love Field with a planned station along the Dallas Area Rapid Transit

Northwest Light Rail Line one mile west of the airport.

Mr. Chairman, this landmark agreement represents the best in regionat
cooperation. It will improve service for the flying public, improve safety and
efficiency at Love Field in a manner that minimizes impacts on adjacent
neighborhoods and cement Dallas-Fort Worth International Airport as the hub of
our regional economy. We need your help to make it happen and | urge
Congress to enact implementing legislation as quickly as possible. Thank you
again for your interest in this important issue and for the opportunity to testify in

favor of the five-party agreement.
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DALLAS RESOLUTION NO. ‘! ﬁ 1 8 3 8

FORT WO RTH RESOLUTION NO.

A CONCURRENT REESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCILS OF THE
CITIES OF DALLAS AND FORT WORTH, TEXAS: (1) APPROVING THE
JUNE 15, 2006 JOINT STATEMENT AMONG THE CITY OF DALLAS,
CITY OF FORT WORTH, SOUTHWEST AIRLINES, AMERICAN
AIRLINES AND DFW INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT (THE "PARTIES") TO
RESOLVE THE "WREGHT AMENDMENT" ISSUES; (2) AUTHORIZING
THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE PARTIES
INCORPORATING THE TERMS OF THE JUNE 15, 2006 JOINT
STATEMENT; AND (3) REQUESTING THE UNITED STATES
CONGRESS TO INCORPORATE THE TERMS OF THE JUNE 15, 2006
JOINT STATEMENT IN ANY LEGISLATION ENACTED BY CONGRESS
REGARDING THE WRIGHT AMENDMENT

WHEREAS, the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth, Texas (the “Cities”) jointly own
the Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport ("“DFW") which is operated for and on behalf
of the Cities by a Joint Airport Board (the "Board”) pursuant to the terms, provisions and
requirements of a certain "“Contract and Agreement” between the Cities and pursuant to
the terms, provisions and requirements of the "1868 Regional Airport Concurrent Bond
Ordinance” (a5 amended and supplemented, the "1968 Ordinance”); and

WHEREAS, pursuarit o the 1968 Ordinance and various ordinances
supplemental thereto (the 1968 Ordinance and the supplemental ordinances being
referred to herein coflectively as the “Outstanding Ordinances”), the Cities heretofore
issued and there are currently outstanding Joint Revenue Bonds of the Cities, the
proceeds of which were used to construct, improve, enlarge and equip DFW; and

WHEREAS, the Cities each own and operate other airports that provide various
aviation and air carrier services in the Dallas/Fort Worth metropolitan arga; and

WHEREAS, the Outstanding Ordinances set forth certain provisions relating to
other airports owned by the Cities, which airports by their nature may be potentially
competitive with the operation of DFW, including the covenants to take certain actions
as may be necessary, appropriate and legally permissible to limit certificated air carrier
services at such airports; and

WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the 1868 Ordinance, including the
covenants contained therein regarding competition with DFW by other airports owned
by the Cities, the Congress of the United States passed and enacted the Airline
Deregulation Act of 1978, pursuant to which provisions restricting permitted flight
destinations by commercial air carriers were gliminated; and

AFPROVED APPREVED ARPROVED

HEAD OF DEFARTMENT TITY CONTROLLER CITY MANACER
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WHEREAS, in February 1980, the Congress enacted Section 28 of the
International Air Transportation Competition Act of 1879, commonly referred {o as the *
Love Field Amendment” or "Wright Amendment” and declared it to be consistent with
the public convenience and necessity to limit air carrier service cut of Dallas Love Field
Airport ("Love Field") (i) to any interstate destination in an aircraft having a passenger
capacity of 56 seats or less (the "Commuter Aircraft Exception”), or on charter flights
not exceeding 10 per month, and (ii) to points within Texas and the four states adjacent
to Texas (Louisiana, Arkansas, Oklahoma and New Mexico) in aircraft of any size,
subject to certain restrictions on through service or ticketing; and

WHEREAS, in 1997, Congress passed an amendment to the Wright
Amendment, cornmonly referred to as the Shelby Amendment, that (i) expanded the
adjacent-state rule of the Wright Amendment to allow aircraft of any size to fly to three
additional states (Kansas, Alabama, and Mississippi} and (i) provided that aircraft
weighing not more than 300,000 pounds that is reconfigured to accommodate 56 or
fewer passenger would comply with the Commuter Aircraft Exception of the Wright
Amendment and such aircraft could fly to and from Love Figld to any interstate
destination; and

WHEREAS, in 2005, Congress again passed an amendment to the Wright
Amendment which expanded the adjacent-state rule to add the state of Missouri,
thereby allowing aircraft of any size to fly to and from Love Field to any point within
Texas, Alabama, Arkansas, Kansas, Louisiana, Mississippi, Missouri, Oklahoma, and
New Mexico, subject to certain restrictions on through service or ticketing; and

WHEREAS, certain Congressional leaders have introduced legislation to either
repeal or further modify the restrictions of the Wright Amendment, which could impact
air capacity and air service in the North Central Texas region; and

WHEREAS, certain Members of Congress informed the Cities that it would be
preferable for the Cities to present a local solution for addressing airport capacity and
air service needs in the North Central Texas region and particularly, in the Dallas/ Fort
Worth metropolitan area, prior to any further action being taken by Congress that would
directly impact such aviation services in the region; and

ALPPROVED APPROVED ARPROVED

FIEAD OF DEPARTMENT ZITY SONTROULER CITY MANAGER
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WHEREAS, in response to various pending and proposed Congressional actions
that would further affect, modify, or repeal the Wright Amendment, the City Councils of
Dallas and Fort Worth, on March 8, 2008 and March 7, 2006, respectively, passed a
Concurrent Resolution {identified as Dallas Resolution No. 06-0870 and Fort Worth
Resolution No. 33138-03-2006), requesting members of the United States Congress to
refrain from taking any action regarding, or making any further amendments to, the
Wright Amendment in order to allow the Cities an opportunity to work towards a Jocal
solution for addressing airport capacity and air service in the North Central Texas
region, and to present a mutually agreed upon plan to the Congress for its
consideration; and

WHEREAS, the City of Dallas, pursuant to Resolution No. 06-0997, adopted
April 6, 2006, comrmissioned an Impact Analysis/Master Plan Update for Love Field by
DMJM Aviation, Inc., to provide updated information and analysis as fo aircraft noise,
air quality, traffic impact, and economic impact at Love Field if the Wright Amendment
were repealed or substantially modified; and

WHEREAS, the Love Field Impact Analysis/Master Plan Update prepared by
DMJM Aviation, Inc., and GRA, Inc., found that, in the absence of the Wright
Amendment, the overall impacts of operating 20 gates at Love Field under a "No Wright
Amendment scenario” are the most comparable to the environmental thresholds agreed
to and established in the 2001 Master Plan/impact Analysis 32 Gate scenario with the
Wright Amendment in place; and

WHEREAS, after investigation and analysis of the available facts and giving duse
consideration to the economic, environmental, and personal welfare and interests of
their respective residents, the general public, and the halders of DFW Airport Joint
Revenue Bonds, the Cities conferred, deliberated, and agreed to a local solution
regarding the Wright Amendment and related matters that best serves such interests
given the likelihood that Congress could take action to repeal or substantially modify the
Wright Amendment; and

WHEREAS, the local solution was agreed to by the City of Dallas, City of Fort
Worth, Southwest Airlines, American Airlines and DFW international Airport (the
"Parties") as evidenced by the Joint Statement Among the Parties lo Resolve the
*Wright Amendment” Issues executed June 15, 2006 (the "Joint Statement”); NOW,
THEREFORE,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCILS OF THE CITIES OF DALLAS AND FORT
WORTH, ACTING CONCURRENTLY:

Section 1. That the Joint Statement attached hereto as Exhibit A is hereby approved,

APPROVED APPREVED APPRIVED

READ OF GEPARTMENT CITY CONTROLLER LAY MANAGER
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Section 2. That foliowing approval as to form by the Dallas City Attomey and
approval as to form and legality by the Fort Worth City Attorney, the respective City
Managers of the cities of Dallas and Fort Worth are hereby authorized to sign a contract
between the Parties incorporating the terms of Exhibit A.

Section 3. That any legislation enacted by the Congress of the United States
affecting or modifying the Wright Amendment, shall incorporate and implement the
provisions and spirit of the Joint Statement set forth in Exhibit A.

Section 4. That anything set forth in this Resolution, the Joint Statement, and the
contract authorized hereby incorporating the terms of Exhibit A that requires the
expenditure of public funds or the creation of any monetary obligation by either of the
cities be strictly subject to the appropriation of funds for such purposes or the provisions
for the payment of such obligation through issuance of legally permissible bonds or
other debt obligations.

Section 5. That nothing set forth in this Resolution, the Joint Statement, or the
contract authorized herein, shall require the cities of Dallas or Fort Worth or the DFW
Airport Board to take any action that would result in: (i) the loss of eligibility for future
Federal airport granis for either city or the DFW Airport Board, or (il) FAA disapproval of
any Passenger Facility Charge Application for either city or the DFW Airport Board, or
(iti) either city or the DFW Airport Board being found to be in non-compliance with its
existing obligations under Federal aviation law.

Section 8.  That the Resolution shall take effect only from and after passage by both
the City Councils of Dallas and Fort Worth.

} « -
| : .

APPROVED den %"‘* \ APFRDVE%
\:/E,,puposnm'mem \\S T CHYCONTROMER

s
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Chairman Mica, and members of the Aviation Subcommittee: It is indeed an honor to
appear before you as mayor of one of the fastest growing large cities in our nation—Fort

Worth, Texas.

Let me first say that I fully understand your time is valuable. I will be brief. We deeply
respect the jobs you do, and we thank you for giving us a forum to discuss the
significance of this local agreement. The debate over the Wright Amendment has been
long and turbulent; with passionate arguments on all sides. It goes without saying that
I’m delighted to be here in support of a proposal that would settle this local issue, which

has at times divided a region.

I am most appreciative of my colleague and friend, Dallas Mayor Laura Miller, for her
partnership during this process. (Of course there were times when we would have to

agree to disagree.) But in the end, I am proud that our two cities worked jointly toward
what was best for our citizens, the flying public, the airlines, and our airports. We also
owe a great deal of gratitude to the leadership of Dallas/Fort Worth Airport, American

Airlines, and Southwest Airlines for their willingness to chart a new path.

[ especially want to thank Senator Kay Bailey Hutchison who, along with Senator John
Comyn, urged us to forge this compromise. I also want to thank Chairman Joe Barton,
Representatives Kay Granger, Michael Burgess, Eddie Bernice Johnson, and the rest of

our North Texas delegation for their support. Although our target was elusive, I believe
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we produced what we were asked to construct by our Congressional leaders: A local

solution to a local problem.

In my years of public service, I have never been involved in more intense, chaﬂenging,
and non-stop negotiations. Each of us spent countless hours, days, weeks, and months

cussing and discussing pros and cons. Our compromise is an example of what happens
when everyone shares in the pain to make something significant take place. All parties

involved have, what I like to say — “some skin in the game.”

Sometimes the best decisions are ones where no one really gets everything they want, but
rather where everyone walks away at least feeling that the greater good has been served.
Our compromise is a case in point. Ultimately, we are presenting you with a fair and
balanced product. It is an agreement that—as Mayor—1I can represent to you the leaders

of Fort Worth firmly stand behind.

This is bigger than two cities, two airlines, or two airports. This settlement affects
thousands of families, and it affects businesses large and small alike. This plan has
enormous implications for the Dallas/Fort Worth regional economy (one of the largest in

the world) as it will protect countless local jobs and preserve the future of our Metroplex.

Our agreement is predicated upon the condition that Congress will enact legislation to
implement both the terms and spirit of our proposal. While we are proud of our

accomplishments thus far, it will be for naught if Congress alters or fails to adopt this

3
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compromise as presented. We understand the difficult task ahead of you, and we are

counting on you to put an end to this debate——for good.

1f we all do our jobs, the provisions of this local agreement will be adopted as federal law
and we will have a binding contract between all parties. Our local city councils and this
Congress can move on to other important issues, and this very difficult challenge will not

be left at the feet of future leaders.

If we do our jobs, the largest airline in the world — American, and the largest domestic air
carrier in the United States — Southwest can focus their energy on competing in the air,
not in the halls of Congress. They can stop spending money on lawyers, lobbyists, and

campaign-style advertisements.

If we do our jobs, Dallas/Fort Worth Airport, our region’s most important economic
engine and job creator, can continue being a gateway to the world. All Americans — your
constituents and ours — will ultimately be free to fly anywhere in the United States, and
they can realize a future filled with healthy airline competition that will lead to more

competitive airfares.

However, should Congress fail to carry through this local compromise, sadly but

certainly, everyone, including the public—our citizens, will lose.
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By our presence today, we—the parties to this agreement—affirm our approval of this
local solution that was negotiated in the best interest of the citizens and economies of the
Dallas/Fort Worth Metroplex. We urge your strong support of our legislative proposal

without amendments. Thank you for your time and consideration.
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STATEMENT of Rep. JON PORTER (R-NV)
House Transportation and Infrastructure Committee
Subcommittee on Aviation
July 14, 2006

Mr. Chairman, | thank you for holding this hearing today on Reforming the Wright
Amendment.

America’s airline industry is one of the most important sectors of our nation’s
economy. As a Member of Congress, that represents one of the most desirable
tourist destinations in the world, | understand the importance of the airline
industry to a states economy and its localities which is why | oppose the Wright
Amendment.

Southern Nevada is home to McCarran International Airport, in Las Vegas, which
is one of the world’s busiest airports and is currently ranked fifth in the world with
over 45 million fravelers passing through its terminal each year.

For almost thirty years, the Wright Amendment has been a highly contentious
issue. As a result of the Wright Amendment, Love Field is the only airport in the
nation that has stringent regulations on many aspects of its operations.
Southwest Airlines, the dominant air carrier out of Love Field, has managed to
overcome these hurdies while becoming the nation’s most successful airline.

Congress has imposed restrictions in other regions of the country. For instance,
perimeter rules have been implemented for Regan Washington National Airport
and La Guardia however, Congress has not restricted the airlines in these
regions from seeking to market travel to points beyond their perimeter and there
are no regulations on through ticketing.

The compromise reached by Dallas, Fort Worth, the DFW Airport Board,
Southwest Airlines, and American Airlines promises to solve this complex issue
in the years ahead. As the experts in the field work to solve the problems they
face and work out a viable resolution it is important that this body provide support
and assistance when necessary.

I am extremely interested in hearing the comments from my fellow subcommittee
members as well as the testimony from the witnesses. | yield back
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STATEMENT OF THE
THE HONORABLE JAMES L. OBERSTAR, M.C.
HOUSE AVIATION SUBCOMMITTEE HEARING ON
REFORMING THE WRIGHT AMENDMENT
Jury 12, 2006

I want to thank Chairman Mica and Ranking Member Costello for holding this
hearing on the agreement reached by the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth, the Dallas/
Fort Worth International Aitport Board, American Airdines and Southwest Airlines to
reform the Wright Amendment. T have long been involved in this issue, and what the
subject of Love I'ield may lack in natonal or international glitter, it certainly makes up
for in intensity of feelings, economic consequences, and in regional and local drama.
‘The Wright Amendment was an cffort by our former colleague, Jim Wright, then
Majority Leader, later, Speaker Wright, to codify an agreement reached in 1979 among
the Dallas and Fort Worth business and political communities, and Southwest
Airlines, which resisted efforts to move its operations to the newly opened
Dallas/Port Worth (DFW) Airport. This agreement ensured that DFW would be the
primary airport for the DI'W metropolitan region, and that Love Field would remain

a limited, short haul airport.

‘The DFW communities entered into this compact only after the then-Civil
Aeronautics Board and also the then Federal Aviaton Administrator (FAA) Najeeb
Halaby, made clear to community leaders that it was not in the public interest for the

Federal government to continue to fund competing airports so close in proximity. It
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was under this Federal direction that both cities agreed to consolidare commercial
service at the new airport, thus paving the way for the construction of DFW, which

commenced operations in 1974,

Now the Dallas and Fort Worth communities, along with American Airlines
and Southwest Aitlines, have come together and hammered out a new agrecment that
would, in their view, make repealing the Wright Amendment acceptable. The
agreement boils down to three core provisions: 8 years after enactment of legislation,
the Wright Amendment will be repealed; then immediately eliminate the restrictions
on through-ticketing from Love Field; and cap Love Field gates at 20 in perpetuity.
While T praise the DFW communities and the aitlines for their hard work, I believe
that two important issues must be addressed in any legislation that stems from the

partics’ agreement.

This first issue is safety. Love Ficld is approximately 8 miles from DFW. In
1991, when I served as Chairman of the Aviation Subcommittee, I held a hearing
during which significant safety concerns were raised regarding the potential expansion
of flights at Love Field. Many witnesses attending that hearing expressed concern
that the proximity of approach and departure procedures to and from both DFW and
Love Field, along with conflicting flight patterns could decrease the margin of safety.

The witnesses expressing these concerns included former Congressmen Martin Frost
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and Pete Geren, then-Mayort of Fort Worth, Kay Granger, as well as former
Congressman }im Inhofe, a Member of the Committee at the ime. Perhaps former
I'AA Administrator, and primary architect of the deal to build DFW, Najeeb Halaby
said it best:

Love Field, an overstressed, noise-ridden, in-town airport, was incapable

of growth then, and is incapable of growth now . .. The regional

airspace was growing congested then, and is growing even more

congested now, 30 years later. The margin of safety, the cushion that we

always seck, was reduced then, and if the Wrght Amendment is

repealed, it could be reduced now.

While T have the utmost confidence in our nation’s air traffic controllers, 1
want to ensure that by adding more flights at Love Field, we are not “reducing the
cushion of safety.” Controllers should neither be placed in a position to have to slow
down air traffic to accommodate the safety margin, nor should they be compelled to
“operate at the outside of the power curve” to avoid delays in and around the Dallas-
Fort Worth area. That 1s why I would msist that any legislation implementing this
agreement include a provision that would requite the FAA to certfy that aviatdon
opetations in the airspace serving Love Field and the Dallas-Fort Worth area
facilitated by the parties” agreement can be accommodated without any adverse effect

on safety in accordance with the FAA’s mandate to maintain safety or efficiency at the

highest possible level.
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‘The second issue is competition. The agreement would change the gate
availability at Love Field to greatly increase the difficulty of any carrier other than
Southwest or American being able to serve Love Field. Currently, there are 32 gates
at Love Field, with 19 in use, and 13 available for new entrants. The agreement would
reduce the gates to 20, and allocate all of these gates to American, Southwest, and
Continental. A prospective new cartier would have to rely on the provision in the
agreement that calls for a “voluntary accommodation from . . . existing carriers to
accommodate the new entrant service.” Carriers opposed to this agreement contend
that “voluntary accommodation” would put any new entrant catrier at the merey of
the incumbent carrier as to gates, operations facilities and times for arrivals and
departures on any given day. There are slot-controlled airports in our aviation system,
but this would be the first gate-controlled airport. ‘T'he uncertainty as to whether gates
would be available at the times a new entrant would want to operate its flights, or in
the number necessary to operate the desired amount of service, would effectively
prohibit any meaningful new entrant service at Love Field. 1 believe that the issue of
new entrant competition deserves some critical review, and should be addressed

directly and fairly in the legislation.

Accordingly, I urge my fellow Members to cautiously approach any repeal of

the Wright Amendment in the context of the partics’ agreement to ensure that these
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very important safety and competition concerns are effectively dealt with in the

legislation.
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July 11, 2006
Via Facsimivg No. (202) 225-3332

The [lonorable Ralph M. Hall

1J.S. House of Representatives

2405 Rayburn House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515-4304

Re:  The Wright Amendment
Dear Congressman Hall:

After rcading the attached Joint Statement released by the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth,
Southwest and American Airlines, and the DFW Intcrnational Airport, addressing issues
concerning the “Wright Amendment,” 1 wish to express nty opposition to any attempt to cxpand
artificially imposed market restrictions, or any attempt to Jegislate an agrcement that docs the
same, on Grayson County’s ability to attract commereial air service to Grayson County Airport
in Sherman/Denison, Texas.

The eflorts of the Citics of Dallas and Fort Worth, joined by their partners, Southwest Airlines,
American Airlines and DFW International Airport, arc a deliberute attempt to restrict air service
at area airports outside of their jurisdiction through the legislative process.

1 must respectfully ask that you oppose the enactment of any legislation that restricts commercial
air service outside of the city limits of the Citics of Dallas and Fort Worth.

Please accept my appreciation in advance for your consideration and assistance and, if you need
any additional information to pursue this matter, please do not hesitatc to contact me via
telephone at 903-227-4626 or adming@idrucbynum.com |

Respectfully yours,

Druc Bynum
Grayson County Judge Elect
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FORT WORTH

_ DFW VI
—— < AmericanAirlines

e

)/ SOUTHWEST

CONTRACT
AMONG THE CITY OF DALLAS, THE CITY OF FORT WORTH, SOUTHWEST AIRLINES CO.,
AMERICAN AIRLINES, INC., AND
DFW INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT BOARD INCORPORATING THE SUBSTANCE OF THE
TERMS OF THE JUNE 15, 2006 JOINT STATEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES TO RESOLVE
THE “WRIGHT AMENDMENT” ISSUES

WHEREAS, certain Members of the Untied States Congress have introduced legislation to either
repeal or further modify the reswrictions of the Wright Amendment, as amended by the 1997 Shelby
Amendment and the 2005 Amendment (herein referred to as the “Wright Amendment™), or prohibit
commercial air passenger service at Dallas Love Field Alrport ( “Love Field”); and

WHEREAS, certain Congressional leaders informed the Cites of Dallas and Fort Worth
(collectively, the ~Cities™) that it would be preferable for the Cities to present a local solution for addressing
airport issues 1 the North Central Texas region and particularly, in the Dallass Fort Worth metropolitan
area. prior to any further action being taken by Congress that would directly impact aviation services in the
region; and

WHEREAS. in response to various pending and proposed Congressional actions that would further
affect, modify. or repeal the Wright Amendment, the City Councils of Dallas and Fort Worth, on March 8,
2000 and March 7, 2006, rospectively, passed a Concurrent Resolution (identified as Dallas Resolution
No. 06-0870 and Fort Worth Resolution Ne. 3319-03-2006). requesting members of the United States
Congress to refrain from taking any action regarding, or making any further amendments 1o, the Wright
Amendment in order 1o allow the Citics an opportunity 1o work towards a local solution for addressing
airport issues in the North Central Texas region, and to present a mutually agreed upon plan 1o the Congress
for its consideration: and

WHEREAS, the City ot Dallas, pursuant to Resolution No. 06-0997, adopted April 6, 2006,
commissioned an Impact Analysis‘Master Plan Update for Love Field by DMIM Aviation, Inc., to provide
updated information and analysis as w0 aircrall noise, air quality, raffic impact, and economic impact at
Love Field il the Wright Amendment were repealed or substantially modified; and

WHEREAS, the Love Field Impact Analysis Update prepared by DMIM Aviation, Inc. and GRA,
Inc. found thal, in the absence of the Wright Amendment, the overall impacts of operating 20 gates at Love
Ficld under a "No Wright Amendment scenario” are the most comparable to the environmental thresholds
agreed to and ostablished in the 2001 Master Plan‘Impact Analysis 32 gate scenario with the Wright
Amendmen i place; and

WHERLAS, earirer this year, the Honorable Laura Miller. Mavor of Dallas, and the Honorable Mike
Monerict, Mayor of Fort Worth, hekl a serics of meetings with interested parties in an effort 1o reach a local
agreement regarding Love Field that would end the prolonged and divisive controversics between the two
Cities and that would serve and protect the interests of all citizens of the Dallas-Fort Worth arca, including



235

residents living in the vicinity of Love Field, as well as busincss, consumer. and other constituencies
affected by the Love Field controversies; and

WHEREAS. after investigation and analysis of the available facts and giving due consideration to
the economic, environmemal, and personal welfare and interests of their respective residents, the general
public, and the holders of DFW Airport Joint Revenue Bonds, the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth
conferred, deliberated, and agreed o a local solution regarding the Wright Amendment and related matters
that best serves such intercsts given the likelihood that Congress could take action to repeal or substantially
modify the Wright Amendment; and

WHEREAS, the Mayors, in consultation with other Teaders in the two cities, first were able 10 reach
a basic agreement between themsehes and with representatives of the Dallas Fort Worth International
Alrport Board ("DFW Board™); and

WHEREAS. the Mayors, representatives of the DFW Board, and other governmental officials then
met separately with Southwest Airlines and American Airlines fo advise those airlines that the local
governments would announce a local solution and recommend it to Congress and that they wanted the
airlines to consent o, and endorse, the local solution; and

WHEREAS, the Mayors and representatives of the DFW Board thereafter conducted certain limited
negotiations separately with Southwest Alrlines and American Alrlines; and

WHEREAS, Scuthwest Airlines and American Alrlines concluded, separately, that the local solution
reached amo nd urged upon them by, the local governments would be favorsbly received by the
Congress, and that under the circumstances presented. the airlines should support the effort of the Citics and
the DFW Board and acquiesce in, and agree 1o support, the local solution; and

{

WHEREAS, the City Councils of Dallas and Fort Worth, on June 28, 2006 and July 11. 2006,
respectively, passed a Concurrent Resolution (identified as Dallas Resolution No. _06-1838 and Fort

06-210, approving the Joint Statement signed by the City of Dallas. City of Fort Worth, Southwest Airlines,
Amencan Airlines. and the DFW Board on June 135, 2006, authorizing the execution of this Contract
hetween the Partics incorporating the substance of the Joint Statement, and requesting the United States
Congress w enact legislation consistent therewith;

Therefore. the Parties agrec as follow

ARTICLE I

1. The City of Dallas, the City of Fort Worth, Southwest Airlines, American Airlines, and DFW Board,

(herein, the “Parties.”) agree to seek the enactment of legislation to allow for the full implementation
of this Contract including. but not limited to, amending section 29 of the International Air
Transportation Competition Act of 1979, more commoniy known as the “Wright Amendment™ and
ultimatcly effect its repeal as foliows:

a. To mmmedinely allow airlines serving Love Feld to offer through ticketing between
Love Ficld and any destinations (including international destinations) through any point
in Texas, New Mexico. Oklahoma, Kansas, Arkansas. Louistana, Mississippi. Missouri,
and Alabama, and 1o market such services;

onEIer Among es, Amencun Arhines, und
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b. Except as provided herein, 1o ehminate all the remaining restrictions on air service from
Love Freld afier eight years from the enactment of legisiation; and

¢. To himit charter flights as set forth in Article I, Section 16 of this Contract.

The Parties agree that non-stop international commercial passenger service to and from the Dallas-
Fort Worth area shall be limited cxclusively to DFW International Atrport ("DFW Alrport™). The
Cities shall work jointly to encourage all such flights into DFW Airport.

The Parties agree that consistent with a revised Love Field Master Plan. based upon the 2006 Love
Field Impact Analysis Update prepared by DMIM Aviation, Inc.. the number of gates available for
passenger air service at Love Field will be, as soon as practicable, reduced from the 32 gates
envistoned in the 2001 Love Field Masier Plan to 20 gates and that Love Field will thereafter be
limited permanently to @ maximum of 20 gates.

a Airlines may not subdivide a “gate.” A gate shall consist ol one passenger hold room and
onc passenger loading jet bridge supporting one aircraft parking space, and no hardstand operations,
except as allowed herein, shall be permitted. Nothing shall preclude any airline from utilizing
hardstands for RON parking, maintenance, training, or for irregular operations (i.e. flights that were
scheduled onginally for one of the tw enty available gates and cannot be accommodated thereon due
1o weather, maintenance or unforeseen emergencics), or other uses that do not involve passenger air
service.

b. American Awrlines and Southwest Airlines agree o voluntarily surrender gate rights under
existing lcases in order to reduce the number of gates as nccessary {o implement this agreement.
During the four year period from the date the legislation as provided herein is signed into law:
Southwest Alrlines shall have the preferential use of 15 gates under its cxisting lease 1o be used for
passenger operations; American Airlines shall have the preferential use of 3 gates under its existing
lease 1o be used for passenger operations; and Expresslet Airlines, Inc., shall have the preferential
use of 2 gates under its existing lease 10 be used for passenger operations.  Thereafter, Southwest
Alrlines shali have the preferential use of 16 gates under its existing lease 10 be used for passenger
operations; Amecrican Airlines shall have the preferential use of 2 gates under its existing lease 10 be
used for passenger operations; and Expressiet Airlines, Inc,, shall have the preferential use of 2 gates
under its existing lease to be used for passenger operations. In consideration of Southwest Airlines’
substantial divesument of gates at Love Field and the need to renovate or reconstruct significant
portions of the concourses, Southwest Airlines shall have the sole discretion (after consultation with
the City) to determine which of its gates it uses within its existing leasehold at Love Field during all
phases of reconstruction. Upon the earlier of (1) the completion of the concourse renovation, or (ii) 4
years from the date the logislation as provided herein is signed into faw, all Parties agree that
facihiies will be modified as necessary. up to and including demolition. to ensure that Love Field can
accommodate only 20 gates for passenger senvice, To the extent a new entrant carrier secks 1o enter
Love Field, the City of Dallas will seek voluntary accommodation from its existing carriers 1o
accommodate the new entrant service. If the existing carriers are not able or are not willing to
accommodate the new entrant service, then the City of Dallas agrees to require the sharing of
preforential lease gates, pursuant to Dallas™ existing lease agreements. To the extemt that any
existing airline gates leased at Love Field revert to the City of Dallas, these gates shall be converted
to cornmon use during the existing term of the lcase.

Tinal Cos
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The City of Dallas agrees that it will negotlate a voluntary noise curfew at Love Field precluding
scheduling passenger airline flights between 11 p.m. and 6 am. Southwest Airlines and American
Airtines shall enter into agreements with respect thereto with the City of Dallas.

The City of Dallas agrees that it will significantly redevelop portions of Love Field, including the
modernivation of the main terminal, consistent with a revised Love Field Master Plan based upon the
Love Field Impact Analysis Update prepared by DMIM Aviation, Inc. (the “Love Field
Modernization Program™ or "LEMP™). In additon, the City agrees that it will acquire all or a
portion of the lease on the Lemmon Avenue facility, up to and including condemnation, necessary to
fulfill its obligations under this Contract. The City of Dallas further agrees to the demolition of the
gates at the Lenimon Avenue facility immediately upon acquisition of the current lcase to ensure that
that facility can never again be used for passenger service,

The Parties agree that a minimum investment of $150 million and up to a maximum of $200 million
in 2006 dollars (the “Spending Cap™). as adjusted for inflation, will be made by the City of Dallas
for the LFMP, and that the capital and operating costs for the LFMP may be recovered through
increased landing fees, space rental charges, or Passenger Facility Charges ("PFCs™). The Parties
contemplate that financing the LFMP will include both the retirement of existing debt and the
issuance of new debt for the LEMP.

The Spending Cap shall be exclusive of the costs connected with the acquisition and demolition of
the Lemmon Avenue gates and of the capital costs associated with the development and construction
of a “people mover” connector 1o the DART mass transit sysiem (“the Connector™). The costs for
the acquisition and demolition of the Lemmon Avenue gates will be recovered from airport users,
but the capital costs for the Connector may not be included in airline terminal rents or landing fees,
except as expressly provided for herein below. The City of Dallas may seck approval to use PFC
revenues for the Connector, and Southwest Airlines agrees to support such application. The City of
Dallas shall. in addition, seek state. federal, DART, and any other available public funds to
supplement such PFC funds; provided. however, that nothing herein shall obligate the City of Dallas
o undertake the Connector praject. Notwithstanding the preceding, in the event PFC funds are not
approved for the Connector, the City of Dallas may use airport funds for the Conncctor; provided,
however, i airport funds are used for the Connector, the City of Dallas shall be obligated to apply
for. and use, PFCs to pay for PFC eligible portions of the LFMP. In any event, the combined total
spending for both the LEMP and the Connecior, exclusive of PFCs, shall not excced the Spending
Cap, except as provided immediately below.

In the event that PFCs are not approved for either the Connector or the LFMP, as provided herein,
terminal rents and landing fees may be used for such improvements, thus exceeding the Spending
Cap; provided, however, that the City shall use its best efforts o seck and use PFCs, state, federal,
DART, and any other available public funds {other than City of Dallas general funds) as the only
sources of [unding for the Connector and to avoid impacting tenminal rents and landing fees.

Except as otherwise provided herein. capial costs in excess of the atorementioned Spending Cap
that impact terminal rents and landing fees shall be subjoct to agreement berween Southwest Alrlines
and the City of Dallas, except tha, following consultation with Scuthwest Airlines, the City of
Dallas may proceed with necessary projects required for reasons of safety, security, normal
maintenance and repair. or federal mandate, and such costs may be included in rerminal rents and

Femal Contraet Among the City of Dudlas, Cuoy of Font Southwest Anhioes. American Awhnes, and
DEW Bourd to Resolve the “Wright Aniendment” Iasties
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landing fees, The operating reserve of Love Field shall never exceed one year’s operating costs
(operating and maintenance plus debt service) during the term of Southwest Airlines” lease.

To recover the costs of the LFMP, the City of Dallas shall negotiate amendments of the Leases of
Terminal Building Premises previously entered into with Southwest Airlines, American Alrlines,
and Expresslet Airlines, Inc., and will also adopt Ciry ordinances modifying the terminal rents and
landing fees to be paid by airline users of Love Field,

Southwest Airlines and the City of Dallas shall agree on a phase-in of the LFMP and will decide
which party will fund and manage the construction of the LFMP.  Southwest Airlines’ expenditures
for its share of the LFMP's capital costs shall be credited toward the minimum and maximum
requirements. To the extent possible, the LEMP shall be completed by the expiration of the 8-year
period.

The Cities agree that they will both oppose efforts 10 initiate commercial passenger air service at any
area airport other than DFW Alirport (and Love Ficld, subject to the provisions contained herein)
during the eight-year period. “Commercial passenger air service” does not include a spaceport or air
taxi service as defined by Part 135 of the Federal Aviation Regulations. The Citics agree 1o jointly
oppose any attempts to repeal or further modify the Wright Amendment earlier than the cight-year
period. To the extent any other alrport within an eighty-mile radius of Love Field seeks to initiate
scheduled commercial passenger service within this eight-year period, both the Cities agree 10 work
diligently to bring that service to DFW Alrport, or if that cffort fails, then to airports owned by the
Citics of Dallas and/or Fort Worth.

The continuation of this Contract beyond December 31, 2006, is conditioned on Congress having
enacted legislation prior thereto, allowing the Parties to implement the terms and spirit of this
Contract. It is the position of the Parties that Congress should not exempt additional states from the
Wright Amendment during the eight-ycar period before it is eliminated.

This Contract shall not be modified except upon mutual agreement of all of the Partics.

The Cities acknowledge thewr outstanding DFW  Airport bond covenants, 1o the extent such
covenants are legally enforceable, and nothing in this Contract 1s intended to nor shall contravene
such covenants. By the execution of this Contract, Southwest Airlines does not surrender any of its
rights to operate at Love Ficld except as explicitly outlined in this Contract.

If Southwest Airlines or iis aifiliate or code share partuer (except for published/scheduled code share
service from DFW Airport to Midway Airport as of June 14, 2006) chooses to operate passenger
service from another airport within an 80-mile radius of Love Field in addition to its operations at
Love Field, then for every such gate which Southwest Airlines, its affiliatc or code share partner.
operaies or uses at unother airport within this vadius, Southwest Airlines will voluntarily relinquish
control of an cquivalent number of gates at Love Field, up to 8 gates and such gates shall be made
available to other carriers. If other carriers are not interested in these gates, then they can be made
available to Southwest Airlines for iis use on a common use basis. This requirement to relinquish
gates shall expire in 2023, This provision shall not apply 10 a code share partner not operating under
Southwest Airlines™ or its affiliates” code at an airport within this 80-mile radius.

Contract Among the City of Dailas, Oy of Forr Worth, Southwest Awrhnes, Amencan Alrlines. and
DIW Board to Resolve thy “Wright Amendmont™ fssues
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If American Airlines or its affiliate or code share partner chooses o operate passenger service from

another airport within an 80-mile radius of Love Field in addition 10 1ts operations at DFW Airport
and [Love Field, then for every such gate which American Alrlines, its affiliate or code share pariner,
operales or uses at another airport within this radius except for DFW Airport and Love Field,
American Airlines will voluntarily relinquish control of an equivalent number of gates at Love Field,
up to one and one-half gates and such gates shall be made available to other carriers. If other
carriers are not interested in these gates, then they can be made available to American Airlines for its
use on a common use basis. This requirement to relinquish gates shall expire in 2025, This
provision shall not apply to a codc share partner not operating under American Airlines” or its
affiliates” code at an airport within this 80-mile radius,

. Each carrier shall enter into separate agrecments and take such actions, as necessary or appropriate,

w0 implement its obligations under this Contract.  Similarly, the Cities shall enter into such
agreements and take such actions, as necessary or appropriate, to implement the Contract, All such
agreements and actions are subject 1o the requirements of law. Such agreements shall mclude
amendments to: (i) American Airlines” Love Field terminal lease; and (ii) Southwest Airlines™ Love
Field terminal lease. The City of Dallas shall develop a revised Love Ficld Master Plan consistent
with this Contract.

. In the event that Congress at any time, enacts legislation that repeals the Wright Amendment sooner

than the eight years identified in paragraph 1.b. of Article I. herein, or authorizes service (except for
through ticketing service as contemplated by paragraph 1.a. of Article 1. herein) between Love Field
and one or morc domestic or international destinations other than those currently allowed under the
Wright Amendment during the cight year period, and if Southwest Airlines or its affiliate or code
sharc partner commences non-stop service 1o or from Love Field o a destination not currently
allowed under the Wright Amendment, then Southwest Airlines will voluntarily relinguish control of
8 gates and such gates will be made available w other carricrs. If other carricrs are not interested in
these gates, then they can be made available o Southwest Airlines for their use on a common use
basis. This provision shall not apply 10 a code share partner not operating under Southwest Airlines’
or its affiliates” code. Likewise, in the event that Congress, at any time, enacts legislation that
repeals the Wright Amendment sooner than the eight years identified in paragraph 1.b. of Article 1.
herein, or authorizes service (except for through ticketing service as contemplated by paragraph 1.a.
of Article T. herein) between Love Field and one or more domestic or international destinations other
than those currently allowed under the Wright Amendment during the eight vear period, and if
American Airlines or its affiliate or code sharc partner commences non-stop service to or from Love
Field to a destunation not currently allowed under the Wright Amendment, then American Airlines
will voluntarily relinquish control of half of its gates and such gates will be made available to other
carriers. If other carriers are not interested in these gates, then they can be made available o
American Airlines for its use on a common use basis. This provision shall not apply 1o a code share
partner not operating under American Airlines™ or its affiliates’ code.

. The Parties hereby represent to the Congress of the Uniled States, and 1o the Citizens of the Dallas-

Fort Worth arca that they approve of and support the local solution as set forth in this Contract. The
Partics each separately covenant thal they will support, encourage and seck the passage of legislation
necessary and appropriate lo implement the terms and spirit of this Contract. The Parties each
separalely covenant that they will oppose any legislative effort that is inconsistent with the terms of
this Contract.

Find Contract Among the Cay of Dallas. Ciy of Fort Worth, Southw st Arfimes, Asenican Awrimes, and
DEFW Boad 1o Resolve the "Wiight Amendmant” Jssues
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{5, The Parties agree that the final documentation to implement this local solution shall be consistent
with all federal rules, regulations and laws. The Parties agree that for this Contract 10 be binding, it
must be executed by all parties no later than July 13", 2006.

joa)

L If the U.S. Congress does not enact legislation by December 31, 2006, that would allow the Parties
to implement the terms and spint of this Contract, including. but not limited to, the 20 gate
restriction at Love Field, then this Contract is null and void unless all parties agree to cxtend this
Contract.

~3

. As part of this Contract, the City of Dallas agrees to grant American Airlines and Southwest Airlines
options to extend their existing terminal leases until 2028,

ARTICLE II. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS

1. SUBJECT TO FEDERAL GRANT ASSURANCES. ETC. Nothing in this Contract shall require
the City of Dallas, the City of Fort Worth or the DFW Alrport Board to take any action that would
result in (1) the loss of eligibility for future Federal airport grants for either city or the DFW Airport
Board or (ii) FAA disapproval of any Passenger Facility Charge (PFC) application for either ¢ity or
the DFW Awrport Board, or {iii} either city or the DFW Airport Board being found to be in non-
compliance with its existing obligations under Federal aviation law.

2. FUNDING. Any capital spending obligations of the City of Dallas under this Contract for airport
projects that require the expenditure of public funds or the creation of any monetary obligation shall be
limited obligations, payable solely from airport revenuecs or the proceeds of airport revenuc bonds
issued by or on behalf of the City of Dallas, such revenue bonds being payable and secured by the
revenues derived from the ownership and operation of Love Field. In order 1o satisfy its obligations
hereunder, the City of Dallas agrees to use best efforts to issue and sell revenue bonds in such amounts
and on terms that are commercially reasonable in the credit markets.  Southwest Airlines and
American Alrlines hereby each agree to enter into such additional agreements that are necessary to
facilitate the issuance of such revenae bonds, provided, however, nothing herem shall obligate either
airline to be an obligor or guarantor of such bonds. Neither the obligations under this Contract nor the
obligations with respect to such revenue bonds shall constitute a debt of the City of Dallas payable
from, or require the payment or expenditure of funds of the City of Dallas from, ad valorem or other
taxes imposed by the City of Dallas.

3. VENUE. The Parties agree that in the cvent of any ltigation in connection with this Contract, or
should any legal action be necessary to enforce the terms of this Contract, exclusive venue shall lie in

eizher Dallas County, Texas or Tarrant County, Texas.

40 NON-LIABILITY FOR OTHER PARTIES™ OBLIGATIONS. COSTS. AND ATTORNEYS
EEES. Rach Party hercunder shall only be responsible and liable for its own obligations, costs, and
attorneys fees in connection with the performance of this Contract, or any dispute or litigation that
may arise in connection with this Contract,

3. APPLICABLE LAWS AND REPRESENTATIONS. This Contract s mude subject 1o the
provisions of the Charter und ordinances of the cities of Dallas and Fort Worth, in existence as of the
date hereof, and all applicable State and federal laws. Each City, as to itself only, represents and
warrants that its existing Charter and ordinances do not preclude such City from executing this

Finsl Contracy g the Cuy of I

DEW Board 1 Resolve the “Wrig
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Contract or performing its obligations under this Contract in accordance with its wrms.  Amcrican
Airlines, Southwest Alrlines and the DFW Board, each as to itself only. represent and warrant that it
has the full power and authority to enter into this Contract and perform its obligations under this
Contract in accordance with its terms.

6. EFFECTIVE DATE. Notwithstanding anything to the comrary hercin, the Parties agree that (i)
Sections 1, 7, 8,9, 14, 15, and 16 of Article 1. and all Sections of Article 11. shall take effect as of the
Jast date of execution of this Contract by any of the Parties and (i) the remaining Sections of Article L.
shall 1ake effect on the date that legislation that would allow the Parties 1o implement the terms and
spirit of this Contract is signed into law.

7. NON-SE
() The terms of this Contract arc not severable. Therefore, in the event any one or more of the
provisions contained in this Contract shall for anv reason be held 1o be invalid, illegal, or
unenforceable in any respect, then this Contract shall be considered null and void and unenforceable,
except as otherwise may be agreed 1o by all Parties.

(b Notwithstanding paragraph (a) hereof, cach Party shall use its best efforts 1o restore or
replace the affected provisions so as to effectuate the original intent of the Parties.

8. COUNTERPARTS. This Contract may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which

shall be deemed an original and constitute one and the same instrument,

9. CAPTIONS. The captions to the various clauses of this Contract are for informational purposes
only and shall not alter the substance of the terms and conditions of this Contract.

10. SLCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: SUBLESSEES. This Contract shall be binding upon and inure
to the benelit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns. Further, the Parties
agree that any sublessee or other entity who subleases or uses either American Airlines” or Southwest
Airlines” gates at Love Fiold is subject to and bound by the terms of this Contract. including, but not
limited to, paragraph 13 of Asticle L.

ULONO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. The provisions of this Contract are solely for the benefit
ol'the Parties hereto; and nothing in this Contract, express or implied, shall create or grant any benefit,
or any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder. contractual or otherwise, to any other
DETSOn Or entity.

12. NOTIC All notices required or permitted under this Contract shall be personally delivered or
mailed 1o the respective Parties by depositing same in the United States mail, postage prepaid, at the
addresses shown below. unless and until the Parties are otherwise notified in writing of a new address
by any Party. Mailed notices shall be deemed communicated as of five days after mailing.

[f intended for the City of Dallas: With a copy 1o
Cuy Manager, Uiy of Dallas City Atomey, City of Dallas
Ciry Hall, Room 4EN Daltas Cuty Hall, Rm. 7CN

1500 Manlia Swreet 1500 Manlia Sireet
Dallas, Texas 7 Dallas. Texas 75201




If intended for the City of Fort Worth:

City Manager, City of Fort Worth
1000 Throckmorton
Fort Worth, Texas 76102

Ifintended for the DFW Intemational
Alrport Board:

Chief Exccutive Officer

DFW [nternational Airport Board
P.O. Draner 619428

3200 E. Airfield Drive

DFW Airport, TX 75261-9428

Ifintended for American Airlines, Inc.:

Chief Executive Officer

American Airlines, Inc.

4333 Amon Carter Blvd,, MD 3621
Fort Worth, Texas 76133

I intended for Southwest Airlines Co.

Chief Executive Officer
Southwest Airlines Co,
2702 Love Ficld Drive
Dallas, Texas 75233
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With a copy to:

City Attorney, City of Fort Worth
1000 Throckmorton
Fort Worth, Texas 76102

With copy to:

Legal Counsel

DFW International Airport Board
P.O. Drawer 619428

3200 E. Airfield Drive

DEW Airport, TX 75261-9428

With copy to:

General Counsel

American Airlines, Inc.

4333 Amon Carter Blvd., MD 3618
Fort Worth, Texas 76155

With copy to:

General Counsel
Southwest Airlines Co.
2702 Love Field Drive
Dallas, Texas 75233

13. PARTIAL WAIVER OF GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY. The Cities and the DFW Board, by
signing this Contract and to the extent permitted by law, waive their respective immunity from suit by
the Partics. but only with respect 10 a suit to enforce this Contract by a Party seeking a restraining
order, preliminary or permancnt injunctive relicf, specific performance, mandamus, or declaratory
relief. The Cities and the DFW Board do not waive any other defense or bar against suii available 1o
the Cities or the DFW Board.

14 NO INDIVIDUAL CIABILITY. To the extent aliowed by law, no officer. agent, employee, or
representative of any of the Parties shall be Habie in his or her individual capacity. nor shall such
person be subject to personal liabiliny arising under this Contract,

15, LIMITATION OF REMEDIES. UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL ANY PARTY BE
LIABLE TO ANY OTHER PARTY HEREUNDER, IN CONTRACT OR IN TORT, TFOR
MONETARY DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FOR ANY BREACH BY SUCH
PARTY, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITH OR WITHOUT FAULT ON ITS PART, OF ANY

Fmal Conract Among the City of forth, Southwest Arrhines, American Airlines, and

Amendment” Issues
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PROVISION OF THIS CONTRACT. PROVIDED, HOWEVER, (AND IN EXCHANGE FOR THE
FOREGOING SENTENCE), IN THE EVENT OF ANY SUCH BREACH OR THREATENED
BREACH BY ANY PARTY, ALL PARTIES AGREE THAT EACH NON-BREACHING PARTY
WILL BE ENTITLED TO SEEK ALL EQUITABLE REMEDIES INCLUDING, WITHOUT
LIMITATION, DECREES OF SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE. RESTRAINING ORDERS, WRITS OF
PRELIMINARY  AND PERMANENT INJUNCTION AND MANDAMUS, AS WELL AS
DECLARATORY RELIEF, TO ENFORCE THIS CONTRACT. PROVIDED. FURTHER, AS A
PREREQUISITE TO THE FILING OF ANY LAWSUIT BY ANY PARTY, ALL PARTIES SHALL
IN GOOD FAITH SUBMIT ANY DISPUTE TO NON-BINDING MEDIATION, WHICH MUST BE
COMPLETED WITHIN 60 DAYS FROM THE DATE NOTICE REQUESTING MEDIATION IS
COMMUNICATED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12. OF ARTICLE I OF THIS CONTRACT.

16, LOVE FIELD GENERAL AVIATION, U.S. GOVERNMENT FLIGHTS AND CHARTER

mcluding, but not Imited to. thights w0 or from Love Ficld by general aviation aircraft for air 1axi
service, private or sport flying, aerial photography, crop dusting, business {lying, medical cvacuation,
flight training, police ov fire fighting, and similar gencral aviation purposes, or by aircraft operated by
any ageney of the US. Government or by any airline under contract 10 any agency of the US.
Government. Charter flights at Love Field shall be limited to destinations within the 50 United States
and the District of Columbia and shall be limited to no more than ten per month per air carrier except
as otherwise permitted by Section 29(c) of the Wright Amendment. All flights operated by air carriers
that lease terminal gate space shall depart from and arrive at one of those leased gates. Charter {lights
operated by air carriers that do not lease erminal space may operate from non-terminal facilities or
one of the 20 terminal gates. For the purposes of this Contract, “charter flight” shall have the meaning
currently given in 14 C.F.R. 212.2 (2006). This limitation shall remain in cffect permanently.

17. ENTIRE AGREEMENT, This Contract embodies the complete agreement of the Parties hereto
relating to the matters in this Contract; and except as otherwise provided herein, cannot be modified
without written agreement of all the Parties, to be attached to and made a part of this Contract.

Fi
EXECUTED as of this the /:’ day of July, 2006.

CITY OF DALLAS, TEXAS APPROVED AS TO FORM:

_,«)“ , -
y 7/ RN
s %zﬁ._
Mary K. S\,K’x_ ATy Manager

W€ P Perkins, Jr., Ci irt‘y Attorney
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS

Olioiie 2. Bercess

Charles R. Boswell, City Manager

DALLASTFORT WORTH INTERNATIONAL
AIRPORT BOARD

~ Ve
Jéfifey P. Fegan, Chief Executive Officer

AMERICAN AIRLINES, INC.

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGALITY:

\\, s
AN
DA AR P AR RS

David L. Yeit, City Aytorney
e

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

/""7 -
<
> —

Gary Keane, D/FW Legal Counsel

SOUTHWEST AIRLINES CO.

Herbert D. Kelleher, Exceutive Chairman

Firnal Comracy Ama

nes. Amencan Airhiags, and

Page 1t or i1
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UN-22-06 13:11 FROM: ID-: PAGE

City OF DENISON

500 West Chestut » P, Q. Box 347 ¢ Denison, Texas 75021-0347
(903) 465-2720 » FAX (903) 464-449%

June 29, 2006

The Honorable Ralph M. Hall VIA Facsimile (202) 225-3332
U.S. House of Representatives

2405 Raybum House Office Building

Washington, DC 20515

Dear Congressman Hall:

After baving the opportunity to become informed of the issues contained in the
Dallas and Ft. Worth agreement regarding the Wright Amendment, I was both surprised
and disappointed to hear that they are attempting to limit the ability of North Texas
airports to provide services within their respective commmunities. It is inappropriate for
Dallas and Ft. Worth 1o resolve their issues by restricting the ability of Grayson County
Airport to provide commercial air service to the residents of Grayson County.

The City of Denison strongly opposes the efforts of the cities of Datlas, Ft. Worth
and their partners to restrict air service at airports outside their jurisdictional influence
through the legislative process.

We respectfully request that you oppose any legislative that restricts air service
outside the City limits of the cities of Dallas and Ft. Worth.

Respectfully submitted,

7{;&%4»447,\
ROBERT BRADY

MAYOR
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87/17; 20886 B4:37 34834937444 CITY OF DENTON PIO PAGE

215 E. McKinnay Street Denton, Texas 76201 (940) 349-7717 FAX {40} 349-8506

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

July 12, 2008

The Honorable Michael Burgess
United States House of Representatives
Washington DC 20515-4326

VIA MAIL & FACSIMILE: 202-225.2919

Dear Representative Burgess:

The City of Denton is glad to see that the City of Dallas, the City of Fort Worth,
Southwest Airlines, American Airlines, and DFW Intemational firport have
reached an agreement on the “Wright Amendment” issue. We fuel that the
agreement will continue to strengthen the economic vitality of the North Central
Texas region.

However, we do have concerns with Sections 6 and 7 of the “Join: Statemant”
agreement signed by these parties. These sections state:

6. “The Cities agree that they will both oppose efforts to initiate
commercial passenger air service at any area airport other than
DFW during the eight-year period. “Commercial passenger air
service” does not include a spaceport or air taxi service as def ned
by Part 135 of the Federal Aviation Regulations. The City of Di:llas
and the City of Fort Worth agree to jointly oppose any attempt: to
repeal or modify the Wright Amendment earlier than the eight- ear
period. To the extent any other airport within an eighty-mile radius
seeks to initiate scheduled commerciai passenger service within
this eight-year period, both cities agree to work ditigently to brig
that service to DFW, or if that effort fails, then to airports owne:l by
the Cities of Dailas and/or Forth Worth.

7. This agreement is predicated upon the condition that Congross
will enact legisiation to implement the terms and sprit of this
agreement.

B2
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687/12/2886 B4:37 9403437444 CITY OF DENTON PIO PAGE B3
Wright Amendment Issue Page 20f2

The vagueness of the wording in these sections concemn us because vithout a
clear definition of what is and is not considered "commercial passenger air
service,” the Denton Airport could be prevented from seeking Class IV Part 139
commercial passenger air service, as defined by the Federal Aviation Regulation,
during the eight-year window.

The City of Denton has not aggressively sought commercial passenger air
service at the Denton Airport, however in recent years some focus ha, been
given to developing Class [V Part 1398 commercial passenger air serv ce. This
type of service would allow for charter operations at the Denton Airpo t, utilizing
aircraft with seating capacity of more than 30 passengers. Our stratey is based
on the opportunity to engage in charter passenger operations to facilit:ate Division
1 collegiate sporting events hosted by the University of North Texas.

In an attempt to determine the intent behind these two sections in the “Joint
Statement,” | spoke with both Dallas Mayor Laura Miller and Fort Worh Mayor
Mike Moncrief. They told me that the five principal parties that signed the *Joint
Statement” did not intend restrictions of Part 139 service. They agree:| that
Inclusion of restrictions on Part 138 commercial passenger air service: was in fact
an "unintended consequence” of the agreement. Mayor Moncrief alsc. stated that
we should seek to clarify the commercial passenger air service restriction
definition in any proposed federal legisiation.

The Denton City Council understands the important role that the Denlon Airport
plays in this region and to the economic development of our community. in the
past eight years, the City, the Texas Department of Transportation (T.<DOT) and
the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) have substantially invested! in the
airport, making significant improvements to enhance the quality of air
transportation service for the community and region.

Though the Airport is not currently serviced by commercial passenge! air service,
the City of Denton desires to maintain the right and option to develop commercial
passenger air service should the opportunity present itself. Today, thi Denton
City Council unanimously agreed that | should contact you and ask for your
assistance In including wording in any proposed legistation that clarif 2s that the
“commercial passenger air service” restriction does not include Class: IV Part 139
commercial passenger air service as defined by the Federal Aviation Regulation.

Please let us know if you have any questions or need any additional information.
Sincerely,

Perry McNeilf
Mayor
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“g® 12 06 12.06p Ciy Managers Office 9034573132 p.1
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o~ .
\aGreenville

July 12, 2006

The Honorable Ralph M. Hall VIA Facsimile (202) 225-3332
U. S. House of Representatives

2405 Rayburn House Office Building

Washington, DC 20515

Dear Congressman Hall:

After reading the joint statement released by the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth 1o address
issues concerning the Wright Amendment, on behalf of the City of Greenville, Texas, I wish 1o
express my opposition to any attempt to expand artificially imposed market restrictions, or any
attempt to legislate an agreement that does the same, on the City of Greenville’s ability to attract
commercial alr service to the Greenville Municipal Airport “Majors Field™.

The efforts of the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth, joined by their pariners Southwest and
American Airlines and DFW Intemational Ajrport is a deliberate attempt to restrict air service at
area airports outside of their jurisdiction through the legislative process.

I must respectfully ask that you oppose the enactment of any legislation that restricts commercial
air service outside of the City Limits of the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth.

Enclosed is a resolution that was passed by the Greenville City Council last nigh, objecting to
any and all air service restrictions proposed by this agreement. Also enclosed is a position
statement by the Greenville Chamber of Commerce.

Thank you for your service and [eadership.
Respectfully yours,

/5&/%

Karen Daly
City Manager

2821 Washington Street 903457-3116
P.O. Box 1049 903457-3132 fax
Greenville, Texas 75403-1049 903450-1492 metro
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PRCIRPRv e oy fdanagers  Ofnce 9034573132 p.2

RESOLUTIONNO. (06-49

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
GREENVILLE, TEXAS, OBJECTING TO ANY AND ALL AIR SERVICE
RESTRICTIONS PROPOSED BY THE LOCAL AGREEMENT
PRESENTED TO THE US CONGRESS BY THE CITIES OF DALLAS
AND FORT WORTH, SOUTHWEST AND AMERICAN AIRLINES, AND
DFW INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT TO REPEAL “THE WRIGHT
AMENDMENT.

WHEREAS, the City of Greenville owns and operates Greenville Municipal Airport
“Majors Field”, a General Aviation airport located within a 55-mile radius of Dallas Love Field
and within a 65-mile radius of DF W International Airport; and

WHEREAS, it is every community’s right and responsibility to develop a balanced
economy and transportation infrastructure that benefits its citizens; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Greenville may wish 1o study the feasibility of commercial air
carrier service in the future to serve Hunt County’s growing population and business base; and

WHEREAS, the cities of Dallas and Fort Worth have proposed in a written agreement
that they will join together to support legislation to prevent any commercial air passenger service
at airports within an 80-mile radius of Love Field for the next eight (8) years; and,

WHEREAS, the cities of Dallas and Fort Worth and DFW International Airport propose
that Southwest and American Airlines be penalized if they initiate service at an airport within an
80-mile radius of Love Field for nineteen (19) years; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Greeaville views the proposed Local Agreement as
unnecessarily restrictive, arbitrary, anticompetitive and an expansion and extension of the Wright
Amendment throughout North Texas that threatens the economic development freedoms of the
City of Greenville and other North Texas communities;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENVILLE, TEXAS
RESOLVES THAT:

SECTION t: The City of Greenville opposes the emactment of any legislation that
restricts commercial air service at Greenville Municipal Airport “Majors Field” and other
airports in North Texas.

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 11th day of July 2006.

UM

Thomas B. Oliver, Mayor

Objecting to repesd the Wright Amendment

cciin Pageiof2
L3ty Counail Meeting Documents\20062006-07-1 14 E Wright dos
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ATTEST:

[ &wm

Debra Newel}, City Secxeta@

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Sl Bom

J. Andrew Bench, City Attorney

Objecting to repest the Wright Amendment
LACity Council Meeting Ix 2006-07-1 NOrdi i Wright

doc

Pagelof2
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07/06/2006 12:04 FAX 0038927355 CITY MANAGER o L @ool

MAYOR DERUTY MAYOR CURT HUGHES

BILL MAGERS . TERRENCE R STEELE JOHN MARRKL
S — s iy Py
{. SCOTTWALL . CHIP ADAMI CAROLYN 8. WACKER

Tuge 30, 2006
Vis FACSIVILE NO. (202) 225-3332

The Honorable Ralph M. Hall
U.S. House of Representatives
2405 Rayburn House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515-4304

‘Re:  The Wright Amendment
Dear Congressman Hall:

After reading the attached Joint Statement released by the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth,
Southwest- and American Airlines, and the DFW International Airport, addressing issues
concerning the “Wright Amendment,” I wish to express my opposition to any attempt to expand
artificially imposed market restrictions, or any atterpt to legislate an agreement that does the
same, on Grayson County’s ability to attract commercial air service to Grayson County Airport
in Sherman/Denison, Texas.

The efforts of the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth, joined by their partners, Southwest Airlines,
American Airlines and DFW International Airport, are 2 deliberate attempt to restrict air service
at area airports outside of their jurisdiction through the legislative process.

1 must respectfully ask that you oppose the enactment of any legislation that restricts commercial
air service outside of the city limits of the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth.

Please accept our appreciation in advance for your consideration and assistance and, if you need
any additional information to pursue this matter, please do not hesitate to contact me or City
Manager L, Scott Wall at (903) 892-7201.
Respectfully yours,
oy, L=
Bill Magers
Sherman Mayor
BM:pc

attachment (Joint Statement)

£.0. BOX 1108 + SHERMAN, TEXAS 75001-1106 « (303) 882-7201
www el shermen s
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07/11/2006 11:58 FAX 8038927335 CITY MANAGER o063
SHeRx nan MAYOR © DEPUTY MAYOR CURT HUGHES
BILL MAGERS TERRENCER, STEELE  * JOHN MARKL
CITY MANAGER CITY COUNCIL JOE N. SMITH
L. SCOTT WaALL CHIP ADAMI CAROLYN §, WACKER
Tuly 11, 2006

Via FACSIMILE No. (202) 225-3332

The Honorable Ralph M. Hall

U 8. House of Representatives -

2405 Rayburn House Office Building
Washington, DC 205154304

Re:  The Wright Amendment
Dear Copgressman Hall:

In follow-up to my letter of June-30, 2006, I am pleased .to share with you a copy of the
resolution passed by the Sherman City Council at today’s meeting, wherein we formally object
to any and all air service restrictions proposed by the local agreement presented to the US.
Congress by the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth, Southwest and American Axrlmes, and the
DFW International Airport to repeal The Wright Amendment.

Once again, ] want to stress the importance of this matter to your constituents, as, if the proposed
legislation is permitted to pass, it would serve to restrict our ability to attract commercial air
service to the Grayson County Airport in Sherman/Denison, Texas.

s

We sincerely appreciate your ct fon ‘and assi in this matter and, should you need
any other information, please do not hesitate to contact me or City Manager L. Scott Wall at
(903) 892-7201.

Respectfully yours, W

‘ \ .
f@%ﬁﬁ PkZ/' : - e 5
Bill- Magers \{- 00 TO

Sherman Mayor \Mﬁ & i
SULS
BM:pc . ‘ %

attachment (Resolution 4833)

PO, BOX H108 » SHERMAN, TEXAS 75081-1106 « (803) 8927201
Ww.CLsherman b us
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©7/11/2008 11:55 FAX 2038027355 CITY MANAGER 75002/003

RESOLUTION 4833

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
SHERMAN, TEXAS, OBJECTING TO ANY AND ALL AIR
SERVICE RESTRICTIONS PROPOSED BY THE LOCAL
AGREEMENT PRESENTED TO THE US CONGRESS BY
THE CITIES OF DALLAS AND FORT WORTH,
SOUTHWEST AND AMERICAN AIRLINES, AND DFW
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT TO REPEAL THE WRIGHT
AMENDMENT; FINDING AND DETERMINING THAT THE
MEETING AT WHICH THIS RESOLUTION IS PASSED WAS
NOTICED AND IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS REQUIRED
BY LAW.

WHEREAS, Grayson County owns and operates Grayson County Airport, a
General Aviation Reliever airport located within a 59-mile radius of Dallas Love Field
and within a 62~mile radius of DFW International Airport.

WHEREAS, Grayson County has no immediate intentions to attract
commercial air service; and,

WHEREAS, Grayson County, joined by other communities in Grayson
County, may wish to study the feasibility of commercial air carrier service in the
future to serve Grayson County’s growing population and business base.

WHEREAS, it it every community’s right and responsibility to develop a
balanced economy and transportation infrastructure that benefits its citizens; and,

. WHEREAS, the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth have proposed in a written
agrecment that they will join together to support legislation to prevent any
commercial air passenger service at airports within an 80-mile radius of Love Field for
the next eight (8) years; and,

WHEREAS, the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth and DFW International
Airport propose that Southwest and American Airlines be penalized if they initiate
service at an airport within an 80-mile radius of Love Field for nineteen (19) years;
and,

WHEREAS, Grayson County views the proposed Local Agreement as
unnecessarly restrictive, arbitrary, anticompetitive and an expansion and extension of
the Wright Amendment throughout North Texas that threatens the economic
development freedoms of Grayson County and other North Texas communities;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF SHERMAN, TEXAS:

RESOLUTION 4833 Page 10f2
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0U7/11/2006 11:55 FAX 8038827355 CITY MANAGER 71003/00:

SECTION 1. The City of Sherman opposes the enactment of any legislation
that restricts comrmercial air service at Grayson County Airport and other airports in
North Texas.

SECTION 2. That it is hereby officially found and determined that the
meeting at which this resolution is passed is open to the public and that public notice
of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by law.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the _11th day of July

2006,
CITY OF SHERMAN, TEXAS
BY: % /m
BILL MAGERS, MAYOR
ATTEST:

B Sowder Medaboos

LINDA ASHBY, r
CITY CLERK

APPROVED AS TO FORM
AND CONTENT:

,,Y:(L@\/

DOREEN E. MCGOOKEY,
CITY ATTORNEY

RESOLUTION 4833 . Page2of2
-
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07/11/2008 11:51 FAX 8038927355 CITY MANAGER _ L . ) @oo1/005

MAYOR “DEPUTY NAYOR - CURTHUGHES -
. BIL MAGERS . TERRENCE R, STEELE  JOHN MARKL
I — Tl cheaom Pt
L. SCOTT WALL CHIP ADAM! CAROLYN 8, WACKER

June 30, 2006

'VIa FACSIMILE No, (202) 225-3332

The Honorable Ralph M. Hall

U.S. House of Representatives

2405 Raybumn House Office Building

Washington, DC 20515-4304

Re:  The Wright Amendrment

Dear Congressman Hall:

After reading the hed Joint § Teleased by the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth,

Southwest and American Airlines, and the DFW International Airport, addressing issues
concerning the “Wright Amendment,” T wish to express my opposition to any attempt to expand
artificially imposed market restrictions, or any attémpt to legislate an agreement that does the
same, on Grayson County's ability to attract commercial air service to Grayson County Airport
in Sherman/Denison, Texas,

The efforts of the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth, joined by their partners, Southwest Airlines,
American Afrlines and DFW International Airport, are a deliberate attempt to restrict air service
at area airports outside of their jurisdiction through the legislative process.

I must respectfully ask that you oppose the enactment of any legislation that restricts commercial
air service outside of the city limits of the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth.

Please accept our appreciation in advance for your consideration and assistance and, if you need
any additional information to pursue this matter, please do not hesitate to contact me or City
Manager L. Scott Wall at (903) 892-7201.

Respectfully yours,

Curt Hughes

Sherman Council Member

CH:pe

attachment (Joint Statement)

P 0. BOX 1106 « SHERMAN, TEXAS 75081-1106 » (803) 892-720%
.ol sherman s
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07/11/2008 11:48 FAX 9038927355 ___CITY MANAGER o @001
s HERIMAI l MAYOR DEPUTY MAYOR . GURT HUGHES - -
BiLL MAGERS " TERRENCE R STEELE  JOHN MARKL
CITY MANAGER ST COUNOIL JOE N. SMITH
1. 8COTT WalL. CHIP ADAMI CAROLYN S. WACKER
June 30, 2006

Via FACSIMILE No. (202) 225-3332

Thé Honorable Ralph M. Hall

U.S. House of Representatives

2405 Rayburn House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515-4304

Re:  The Wright Amendment
Dear Congressman Hall:

After reading the attached Joint Statement released by the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth,
Southwest and American Airlines, and the DFW International Airporf, ‘addressing issues
conceming the “Wright Amend > I wish to exp my opposition to any pt to expand
artificially imposed market restrictions, or any attempt to legxslatc an agreement that does the
same, on Grayson Cointy’s sbility fo attract commercial air service to Grayson County Airport
in Sherman/Denison, Texas.

The efforts of the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth, joined by their partners, Southwest Airlines,
American Airlines and DFW International Airport, are a deliberate attempt to restrict air service
at area airports outside of their jurisdiction through the legislative process.

1 must respectfully ask that you oppose the of any legislation that restriets commercial
air service outside of the city limits of the Cities of Dalles and Fort Worth,

"Please accept our appreciation in advance for your consideration and assi and, if you need
any additional information to pursue this matter, please do not hesitate to contact me or City
Manager L. Scott Wall at (903) 892-7201.

ttachment (Joint § )

20, BOX 1108 « SHERMAN, TEXAS 750811105 +{503) 852-7201
wewclsherman b.us .
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COLLINCOUNTY
a}( MC/KMV\Q\, June 20, 2006

VIA Facsimile (202) 225-3332

The Honorable Raiph M. Hall

U.S. House of Representatives
2405 Rayburn House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

Re'  DFW's Joint Statement to Resolve Wright Amendment Issues

Dear Congressman Hali:

During the past several months, the Coflin County Regionai Airport Board has
encouraged organizations and concerned leaders in our community to respect
the business of the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth as they negotiated a local
solution to resolve issues raised by the Wright Amendment. We continuously
asked that the City and its support organizations remained silent during the
negotiations out of respect for their difficuit situation.

However, after reading the joint statement released by the Cities, it's time we
express our opposition to any attempt to expand artificially imposed market
restrictions, or any attempt to legislate an agreement that does the same, on our
ability to aftract commercial air service to Collin County Regiona!l Airport. The
Airport Board considers the efforts of the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth as
deliberate attempts to restrict air service at area airports outside of their
jurisdiction through the legisiative process. We are constantly reminded that
America’s vibrant economy was built on free enterprise and market demand.
The Cities of Dallas and Ft. Worth and American Airlines have been meddling
with their market place for many years. With their most recent actions, we are
now convinced that it's time the market is freed to take its natural course.

We respectfully request that you strongly oppose any and all efforts by the Cities
of Dallas and Fort Worth to impose air service restrictions upon airports and
communities outside of their jurisdiction. Furthermore, we ask that you support
the total repeal of the Wright Amendment.

Thank you for your service and leadership.

Reppectiully yours,

hn Sowerby
Chairman

COLLIN COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT AT McKINNEY

1500 £. Industral Bivd., Suite 18 * McKinnay, TX 75069
Metro 972.562.4214 * Fax: 972.542.6686
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Dallas Business Journal

Love betrayed

DALLAS BUSINESS JOURNAL - JUNE 23, 2006

Opinion of the Dallas Business Journal

Congress should say not only no, but hell no, to the Wright Amendment compromise proposed last week.

The deal, unveiled in a self-congratulatory news conference hosted jointly by the mayors of Dallas and Fort
Worth, as well as American Airlines and Southwest Airlines, would fock in monopoly conditions for the North
Texas aviation industry and forever destroy Dallas Love Field's growth potential.

And it sends the biggest warning sign yet that the city of Dallas is in full retreat as an economic power within
the Metroplex.

The Wright Amendment is the 1979 federal law that restricts direct passenger traffic at Love Field to Texas
and a handful of surrounding states. lts purpose is to shield Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport (and, by
proxy, its chief tenant, American) from competition. Wright is an invisible tax on North Texas business fliers,
one which this newspaper long has opposed. So why aren't we happy about this new plan, which would ift
some restrictions right away and eventually phase out Wright altogether?

Simple: The deal would make it much more difficult for new airlines to enter this market and challenge
American or Southwest, because it would permanently destroy the infrastructure that new competitors would
need to establish a presence at Love.

The current Love Field masterplan, adopted just a few years back, aliows for 32 gates, which is itself a
reduction from previous capacity. The compromise plan would ratchet that down to 20 gates, of which
Southwest would get 16, American two and Continental two. How many gates does that leave for any other
airline that would like to compete at Love? Zero.

Small wonder Southwest Airlines likes this deal. lts through-ticketing provisions {(which would allow
passengers to buy a single ticket for any market Southwest serves, as long as one stop was made within the
existing Wright-defined perimeter) will help it sell more tickets. More importantly, it would forever knight
Southwest as the monopoly carrier at Love.

Like most everyone else, we think Southwest is a terrific company. But no company should be handed an
airport monopoly on a silver platter. That would be outrageously, scandalously wrong. indeed, this proposal
would be far more protectionist for Southwest than the Wright Amendment ever was for American. That is
saying something, and it illustrates with frightening clarity that the {ong fight for open skies here is going in
the wrong direction.

Moreover, the compromise deal would give American almost another decade to enjoy most of the
protectionist rules it never should have tasted in the first place. And with bulldozers remodeling Love Field,
American's "Fortress D/FW" will be all the more difficult to challenge.

The business community is being asked to support this fiasco because it will fikely lead to some lower fares
in the short-term. But we know free enterprise when we see it, and this isn't free enterprise, it's market fixing
~- a willful constriction of aviation capacity in a region that will grow by millions of citizens in the years ahead.
That is lunacy.

We're appalled by Dallas Mayor Laura Miller's eagerness to mothball a huge portion of Love Field. Just a few
years ago, under different leadership, Dallas welcomed expansion at Love with the construction of a new
terminal for ili-fated Legend Airfines. Now there is talk that the city might invoke eminent domain to seize and
destroy that terminal, as well as close forever many other gates at Love.

This is nothing short of an economic betrayal of a city by its mayor. Some pundits would have us believe that
the Wright compromise will help Miller get re-elected. Impeachment would be more appropriate.

All contents of this articie ©@ American City Business Journals inc. All rights reserved (Over >)
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Dallas Business Journal

Opinion of the Dallas Business Journal

Wright questions
DALLAS BUSINESS JOURNAL - JULY 7, 2006

People of conscience are waking up to the fact that the Wright Amendment compromise proposed for
Dallas Love Field is a disgrace.

A couple of weeks ago people were throwing bouquets at the feet of Dallas Mayor Laura Miller for
seemingly doing the impossible -- getting American Airlines and Southwest Airlines (not to mention Fort
Worth and Dallas) to play nicely together.

Of course, that's the problem -- they are playing nicely together, to the exciusion of other potential
competitors. Folks are starting to see the collusion for what it is. They smell a rat -- and that's because
this is one ratty proposal.

The Wright Amendment, which limits commercial passenger traffic at Love in order to protect Dallas/Fort
Worth International Airport from competition, has yielded a quarter century of typical protectionist fruit -
artificially high fares, especially for last-minute business fliers at D/FW, and a fortress market that scares
off airlines not named American or Southwest.

Congress can -- and should -- restore free-market principles to the North Texas aviation scene by simply
abolishing Wright -- completely and immediately. Instead, it is mulling a locally negotiated "compromise”
that would extend the protectionism for eight more years, amputate a big piece of Love, and make things
even less friendly for airlines not named American or Southwest.

The propaganda blitz for Miller's deal was so intense that many were sucked in. But now the right
questions are being asked:

Does it really make sense to destroy more than a third of the gates at Dallas Love Field? Can destroying
gates lead to more competition, lower fares or more economic growth for the city of Dallas? Will this
compromise encourage other airlines to expand here? Is it right for the city of Dallas to poison a $100
million, private-sector sale of Love's old Legend Airlines terminal and to literally seize and bulldoze that
terminal, just to keep a new airline from using it to compete against Southwest and American?

The answer to all those guestions is the same: No.

We're confident that the public, Congress and even the courts, if it comes to that, will see this deal for
the rubbish it is, and treat it accordingly.

All contents of this arficle © Amencan City Business Journals in¢ All nghts reserved.

www FreindsOfl oveField com supports these Opinions of the Dallas Business Journal {Over >)
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e Ballas Morning News

Audit finds gains in Aviation Department

11:46 AM CDT on Saturday, July 1, 2006
By DAVE LEVINTHAL / The Dallas Morning News

Dallas' Aviation Department has improved its fiscal operations during the past 18 months
despite fingering problems, according to a report released Friday night by the office of the city
auditor.

The audit comes after the Aviation Department had a $20 million budget shortfall in its two
most recent fiscal years combined; its bond rating decreased as a result. The department has
been using cash reserves to close funding gaps.

The Aviation Department should increase rental rates and fees at city-owned Dallas Love Field
"to make the airport self-sustaining,” the audit states.

Kim Tolbert, Aviation Department assistant director for finance and administration, agrees with
that recommendation, adding that City Hall should undertake an independent review of airport
rates and fees "and ought to do so as soon as possible." The city hasn’t conducted such a
review in 20 years, she said.

The audit cites the department for improperly reporting its bond ratings, failing to fully collecta
loan and not yet proposing a policy for tapping its contingency fund.

The department also should have increased Love Field aircraft landing fees in 2001, the report
says, and hasn't yet implemented a City Council order from this year to boost such fees to 55
cents per 1,000 pounds. But the Aviation Department has resclved numerous issues listed in
an audit from January 2005.

Ms. Tolbert says the department is working toward fixing unresolved issues.

Ms. Tolbert added that some concerns stated in the audit are either resolved — the Aviation
Department began charging 55-cent landing fees on April 1, she says — or are no longer valid.

For example, the audit states the Aviation Department failed to implement a fee on commercial
vehicles using Love Field, which may have earned the Aviation Department $250,000
annually. Ms. Tolbert says her department has scrapped the proposed concession fee system
in favor of trip-by-trip payments by commercial vehicles.

The audit also cites the Aviation Department for not collecting on a $2.3 miliion loan to Dallas’

911 Emergency Services from its aviation construction fund. The money shoulid have been
repaid by Sept. 30; $1.5 million remains unpaid.

htto://www dallasnews com/eni-hin/hilanld nrint red 714008
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Printed from dallasnews.com Page 2 of 2

"Management had and still has every intention of repaying this loan to the aviation fund within
three years," city officials wrote in their official response to the audit.

E-mail dlevinthai@dallasnews.com

Online at http //iwww.dallasnews com/sharedcontent/dws/news/locainews/stories/DN-
lovefield_01met ART.State Edition2 246¢3b8.him!

htto:/iwww dallasnews com/rai-hin/hilanid print roi 7 mana
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e Ballas Alorving News

Council raises Love landing fee

Miller meets with Hutchison on Wright amendment
01:25 PM CST on Thursday, February 23, 2006
By EMILY RAMSHAW / The Dallas Morning News

Dallas City Council members raised landing fees at Love Field by 57 percent Wednesday,
shutting down a substitute motion that would have quadrupled the fees.

The move came the same day Mayor Laura Miller lunched @&, ¢5/¢,ase
privately in her office with U.S. Sen. Kay Bailey Hutchison
to discuss Wright amendment flight restrictions at Love.
They declined to reveal details of their hourlong meeting.

"We just continued our ongoing discussion about the
Wright amendment,” Ms. Miller said. "We always have
good conversations, and this was no different.”

The approved landing fee increase — from 35 cents to 55
cents per 1,000 pounds — will go into effect April 1, and
bring in another $952,000 to the city annually. The money gMiLEY N. POOL / DMN

will be used to offset the airport's $3 million 2006 budget A Southwest airlines jet taxis to a

deficit. gate at Love Field airport.

Still, for three City Council members, 55 cents wasn't enough. They argued for raising the
landing fee to $1.40, which they said is the average landing fee for mid-size airports.

"I find it absolutely astounding, given the fact that over the last six years our airport has run at
a deficit between $11 million and $13 million, that we have not raised landing fees for 20
years,” council member Angela Hunt said.

in the mid-1980s, Love Field landing fees were 45 cents. In an effort to reduce plane noise, the
council offered 35-cent fees for quieter aircraft and penalized louder planes with 55-cent
landing fees. By 2000, Federal Aviation Administration officials required all aircraft to meet
lower-noise standards.

Council members Mitchell Rasansky and Pauline Medrano joined Ms. Hunt in voting for the
$1.40 landing fee.

District 3 representative Ed Oakley, who voted for the 55-cent fee, was the only councit
member to address the underlying issue: the Wright amendment, the federal law that limits
most commercial flights from Love to Texas and eight nearby states. Southwest Airlines Co.
wants to lift Wright. American Airlines Inc. opposes any changes to the law.

httn/iwww dallasnews com/eni-binfhifonld nrint rai THM21200R
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"The issue of the Wright amendment is something that has to be dealt with," he said. "ltis
beyond our total control what happens to it."

Ms. Miller said she didn't inform her colleagues about her lunch with Ms. Hutchison — which
was arranged on Monday.

The mayor said she simply "carried in two plates of food” to her private conference room from
the council's lunchroom: one for her, one for Ms. Hutchison.

Ms. Hutchison met with Fort Worth Mayor Mike Moncrief last Friday; Ms. Miller said she's set
to meet with him today.

While the mayor said there isn't "anything secret” about her meetings, she wouldn't say where
or when she's scheduled to visit with Mr. Moncrief.

"Both of the talks were productive,” said Chris Paulitz, Ms. Hutchison's spokesman.

"They talked about the Wright amendment along with other local issues. They are continuing to
discuss this so that Congress does not intervene without input from the local community
geared toward a local solution.”

Staff writer Robert Dodge in Washington contributed to this report.

E-mail eramshaw@dallasnews.com

Onling at

htn/waww daliasnews com/eaichin/hilnnid nrint cai 71492008
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FORTWORTH

)\?CHAMBER

July 11, 2006

The Hon. John Mica The Hon. Jerry F. Costello
Chairman Ranking Member

House Committee on House Committee on
Transportation and Infrastructure Transportation and Infrastructure
Subcommittee on Aviation Subcommittee on Aviation

2251 Rayburn HOB 2251 Rayburn HOB
Washington, D.C. 20515 Washington, D.C. 20515

Dear Mr. Chairman and Ranking Member:

I am writing on behalf of the Fort Worth Chamber of Commerce to place on the record our unequivocal
support of the June 15, 2006 Joint Stakeholders Agreement between the cities of Fort Worth and Dallas,
DFW Airport and American and Southwest Alrlines on the Wright Amendment.

In the 1960s, the federal government asked Fort Worth and Dallas to combine their individual commercial
air operations into one major airport. Both communities responded to this entreaty and as a result, what the
nation and the world have come to know as DFW Airport was established.

Since that time, the Wright Amendment also came into existence, thus, issues surrounding DFW and Love
Field commercial passenger service and this provision of federal law has long unsettled both communities,
the airport and the affected carriers.

Recently, Congress and the federal government again asked Fort Worth and Dallas to come together and
attempt 10, once and for all, resolve this long standing debate. Once again, both communities set aside their
individual interests and have worked together, taking the individual strengths both communities possess
and uniting them into one purpose for the public benefit, and that is, the agreement you have before you at
this time.

Thus, the Fort Worth Chamber of Commerce, our community and our region come to you today in strong
support of the local agreement as drafted and urge you and your colleagues to pass into law the legistation
necessary to codify the local agreement before December 31, 2006.

Thank you in advance for your consideration of this important request.
Sincerely,

Bill Thornton
President & CEO

FORT WORTH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE ¥+ www.fortworthchamber.com
777 TAYLOR STREET, SUITE 900 +x FORT WORTH, TEXAS 76102-4997 v (817) 336-2491 % FaX (817) 8774034
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of LOVE FIELD

July 11, 2006

Chairman John Mica

Subcommittee on Aviation

Transportation & Infrastructure Committee
2251 Rayburn House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

Ranking Member Jerry Costello
Subcommiittee on Aviation

Transportation & Infrastructure Committee
2251 Rayburn House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

Mr. Chairman & Ranking Member:

I would like to submit the following statement for the record for the
Subcommittee on Aviation Hearing on July 12, 2006.

While | had hoped to contribute oral testimony to this proceeding, 1 was
disappointed to learn that only the principal parties to the Wright Amendment
“agreement” have been invited to participate. That is a shame.

I believe that any political process works best when it invites the inclusion of the
community. I remain hopeful that this subcommittee feels the same way, and I am
optimistic it will embrace the principles of openness and equality under which its
members were elected.

I understand that the community was denied access to today's proceedings, in
part, because the subcommittee wasn’t aware that there was so much opposition to this
agreement. That seems unlikely, but perhaps not impossible since this agreement was

essentially an end run on the political process.



266

To be sure, there has been little time for your constituents — airlines companies,
affected businesses, travelers and community residents - to voice their disapproval of this
backroom deal. You probably do not know that, this agreement was sprung on an
unsuspecting public. The deal was shrouded in mystery before it was announced in
ceremonial fashion at a press conference at DFW Airport. As has been reported
extensively in the media, this dcal was engineered in secret sessions — without the
involvement of other airlines, businesses and community stakeholders. 1 suspect this
concerns many members of this esteemed subcommittee.

It concerns me for many reasons. As an 1 1-year resident of Dallas County /
Highland Park, business owner, and someone who lives adjacent to Dallas Love Field
Airport, | am a founding member of Friends of Love Field - an independent, grassroots
organization of local residents and business owners dedicated to repeal of the Wright
Amendment and the promotion of economic stability in neighborhoods surrounding Love
Field Airport.

Friends of Love Field’s dedication to this process is equaled only by its
commitment to independence. There is no other public interest or advocacy group
involved in this debate morce independent than our organization. We receive no funding
from any of the major economic players in this arena.

After studying this agreement closely, we believe it is unwise, unfair and
unacceptable.

It immediately and forever penalizes members of the flying public and the inner-
city Dallas community by limiting competition and ensuring higher fares. By rewarding
Southwest Airlines and American Airlines with virtual monopolies at Love Field and
DFW Airport, respectively. The deal further calls for the purchase and destruction of
existing gates at Love Field. Aside from limiting competition, driving up fares, and being
overtly anti-competitive, such an action limits economic gains of downtown Dallas and
especially South Dallas. Built in 1999, the six state-of-the-art gates at the Legend
Terminal are reportedly valued in excess of $100 million. It is also reported that several
airlines have expressed an interest in purchasing rights to use the facility, which would

generate new jobs, tax revenue and overall economic progress for the local community.
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None of these benefits have been addressed in an open forum.
In fact, this subcommittee should be aware that Dallas Mayor Laura Miller

commented publicly on June 3 that she planned to demolish the Legend Terminal. Her

comments were made in response 1o news that the Legend facility was about to be

acquired by an airline that would begin service to the local community and came several

days before a June 7 vote by the Dallas City Council to empower the Dallas City
Manager Mary Suhm to study this issue. And while the city manager’s analysis on this
facility isn’t due until August 16, the mayor continues to publicly comment that the city
will demolish the gates. (During the June 15 press conference announcing the Wright
agreement, Mayor Miller again boldly declared these gates would come down.)

The public has tried, somewhat unsuccessfully, to share its concerns about the lost
economic benefit associated with destroying this terminal. For example, I was a
registered speaker on this topic at the June 7 City Council meeting to vote on the city
manager’s proposed analysis, but | was only given the opportunity to address the council
after the vote had been taken.

The abrasive manner in which Mayor Miller considers her personal intentions to
destroy this facility a foregone conclusion have drawn the ire of everyone from business
associations to minority community groups to members of the Fourth Estate.

One of Dallas’ most respected news publications, the Dallas Business Journal,
recently reported, “We're appalled at Dallas Mayor Laura Miller’s eagemess to mothball
a huge portion of Love Field. Just a few years ago, under different leadership, Dallas
welcomed expansion at Love with the construction of a new terminal...now there is talk
that the city might invoke eminent domain to seize and destroy the terminal, as well as
close forever many other gates at Love. This is nothing short of economic betrayal of a
city by its mayor.”

No matter the amount of frustration being felt by the community, the principals in
this deal still refuse to conduct open forums on the issue. And while [ am disappointed in
their apparent lack of regard for the community and flying public, | remain confident in
the hope that such shortcomings will not befall this subcommittee. I urge you to not
support this agreement until the process can appropriately benefit from a level of debate,

socioeconomic analysis and focused discussion worthy of such an important decision.
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You would never know it from the manner in which this agreement has been
forced upon us all, but this issue is bigger than any two airlines, two airports or two cities.
Thousands of jobs and hundreds of millions of dollars are at stake.

Thank you for your time and consideration of this testimony.

Regards,

W

William H. Foster, Il
Friends of Love Field
4504 North Versailles Ave
Dallas, Texas, 75205
214-477-7077
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GRAYSON COUNTY AIRPORT
S

June 28, 2006

VIA Facsimile (202) 225-3332
The Honorable Ralph M. Hall
U.S. House of Representatives
2405 Rayburn House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

RE: Wright Amendment
Dear Congressman Hall:

After reading the joint statement released by the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth addressing
issues concerning the Wright Amendment, I wish to express my opposition to any attempt to
expand artificially imposed market restrictions, or any attempt to legislate an agreement that does
the same, on Grayson County’s ability to attract commercial air service to Grayson County
Airport in Sherman/Denison, Texas.

The efforts of the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth, joined by their partners, Southwest Airlines,
American Airlines and DFW International Airport is a deliberate attempt to restrict air service at
area airports outside of their jurisdiction through the legislative process.

I must respectfully ask that you oppose the enactment of any legislation that restricts commercial
air service outside of the City Limits of the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth.

Thank you for your service and leadership. R e v
Respectfully yours, - =

Mike Shahan ‘ e

Airport Director o

4700 Airport Drive @ Denison, Texas 75020 # Phone: 903/786-2004 # FFax: SO3/786-9185
ArpoON@CO.grayson.ix.us & www.co.grayson.ix. us/airporvairmamn. him
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THE GREENVILLE CHAMBER
CONVENTION &
ViISITORS BUREAU

A 4

Position Statement 706-1
Wright Amendment Settlement

The Greenville Chamber of Commerce is dedicated to the enhancement of our
economy and the guality of life enjoyed by its citizens—without one, there cannot be
the other.

As our community grows, the importance of utilizing all our available resources
cannot be overemphasized. We are blessed with an excellent airport facility with
incredible potential to have a significant impact on the growth and health of our local
economy.

In any rational discussions about the economy of Greenville and surrounding
communities, Majors Field Municipal Airport is recognized as a jewel for which we
should be thankful. That is especially true if we have the freedom to expand the service
it is capable of providing.

The current wording of the Wright Amendment settlement would prove
detrimental to the development of Majors Field, and by extension, injurious to the
development of Greenville’s economy. For Greenville and surrounding communities
and counties to pay the price for an argument that has never been of our doing is
blatantly unfair.

Therefore. the Board of Directors of the Greenville Chamber of Commerce
strongly opposes the settlement language and urges the Greenville City Council to take

whatever measures necessary to ensure that our voice is heard.
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July 11, 2006

VIA Facsimile (202) 225-3332
The Honorable Ralph M. Hall
U.S. House of Representatives
2405 Raybum House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

RE: Wright Amendment
Dear Congressman Hall:

After reading the joint statement released by the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth addressing
issues concerning the Wright Amendment, I wish to express my opposition to any attempt to
expand artificially imposed market restrictions, or any attempt to legislate an agreement that does
the same, on Grayson County’s ability to attract commercial air service to Grayson County
Airport in Sherman/Denison, Texas.

The efforts of the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth, joined by their partuers, Southwest Airlines,
American Airlines and DFW International Airport is a deliberate attempt to restrict air service at
area aixports outside of their jurisdiction through the legislative process.

I must respectfully ask that you oppose the enactment of any legislation that restricts commercial
air service outside of the City Limits of the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth.

Thaok you for your service and leadership.

State Farm Insurance Agent - Pottsboro



272

jeiBlue

STATEMENT OF DAVID NEELEMAN
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, JetBlue AIRWAYS
IN OPPOSITION TO
THE AGREEMENT REACHED IN DALLAS

CONCERNING LOVE FIELD AND
THE WRIGHT AMENDMENT

JULY 12, 2006

BEFORE

The Subcommittee on Aviation
Committee on Transportation and Infrastructure

United States House of Representatives
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STATEMENT
OF
DAVID NEELEMAN
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
JETBLUE AIRWAYS CORPORATION

Before the
Subcommittee on Aviation
Committee on Transportation and Infrastructure

United States House of Representatives

July 12, 2006

Chairman Mica, Congressman Costello and distinguished members of the subcommittee:

[ am grateful for the opportunity to submit this written testimony, on behalf of JetBlue
Airway’s 10,500 crewmembers, expressing our opposition to the Agreement recently

announced in Dallas concermning the future of Love Field and the Wright Amendment.

Introduction

JetBlue Airways is New York's low fare hometown airline. Our goal has always been
simply to bring humanity back to air travel. Since launching the airline in February 2000,
JetBlue has brought affordable airfares and award-winning customer service to millions
of customers. Some attribute our success and accolades to our new planes, low fares,
leather seats and free live television. However, we believe our success is attributable to
our crewmembers who deliver the JetBlue Experience each and every day, with a smile

and an endless pursuit of excellent customer service.
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JetBlue now operates 110 jets on 448 daily flights carrying more than 50,000 daily
customers to 40 destinations. In fact, this morning we inaugurated service at our 40"
destination, Charlotte, North Carolina. We also have firm orders and options for an

additional 324 aircraft as we continue our growth.

In every market JetBlue serves, we have made sure the market fits our formula. Our
formula is to serve city pairs that are either over priced, under-served or both. JetBlue
doesn’t shy away from large markets nor do we favor small markets; rather, we fly in
markets that fit the formula. JetBlue proudly serves smaller markets like Buffalo-JFK
with 8 daily large-jet flights just as proudly as we serve the large Los Angeles market, via
three area airports, with 32 daily flights. Whether from our JFK home, our growing cities
of Boston, Washington Dulles, Orlando and Fort Lauderdale, or our new smaller markets
such as Raleigh Durham, Nashville, Jacksonville and Austin, JetBlue always strives to

liberate markets from high airfares.

Our business model might ring familiar to you today as you hear from the nation’s largest
and most successful low fare carrier, Southwest Airlines. Southwest’s admirable record
of liberating markets from high fares, while maintaining profitability, is one JetBlue and
others have sought to emulate. Southwest’s founding philosophy of enabling more travel
through low fares is precisely why JetBlue and Southwest agree to date on so many

issues facing the airline industry.

For nearly two years, since Delta Air Lines announced it was de-hubbing Dallas-Fort
Worth International Airport (“DFW?), Southwest has effectively argued, with JetBlue’s
full and public support, for the immediate repeal of the Wright Amendment. Against this
background, you can understand our surprise at being compelled to submit this testimony
in total opposition to our friends at Southwest and the Agreement they have recently

signed onto concerning the future of Dallas Love Field.
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The Wright Amendment

Less than one year after the Congress passed the Airline Deregulation Act in 1978,
designed to take the government out of the business of regulating which routes airlines
could fly and from what airports, Congress approved the Wright Amendment, named for
its backer, Majority Leader Jim Wright of Fort Worth, and designed to protect the new,
growing and nearby DFW International Airport. This legislation, which represented the
culmination of more than a decade of intense local battling between cities and hometown
airlines, put the federal government right back into the business of regulating airlines by
prohibiting any interstate flights to or from Dallas Love Field except for the four states
that border Texas. Over time, this outdated vestige of aviation regulation has been
modified by Congress to permit nonstop flights between Love Field and Alabama,
Kansas and Mississippi (the Shelby Amendment, 1997) and Missouri (2005).

One can safely presume that, but for the eventual success of Southwest’s campaign to
remove the Wright Amendment, members of Congress would continue to modify the
artificial restrictions on Love Field as fares rose between their home states and Dallas as

a result of being deprived of Southwest’s low fares and price discipline.

Wright is Wrong,

In yet another stroke of marketing genius, Southwest Airlines coined and marketed the
phrase “Wright is Wrong™ as part of its “Set Love Free” campaign aimed at convincing
Congress to fully repeal the Wright Amendment. In kicking-off this campaign,
Southwest CEO Gary Kelly stated:
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The Wright Amendment is protectionist, anti-competitive and anti-consumer. Itis
outdated too. . . Love has idle gates and an underutilized new parking garage. . .
More competition is good. Lower fares are good. . . More jobs are good.
Utilizing idle facilities is good. This is simple. Don 't let someone try to tell you
this is complicated. Times change, as do laws. This is a free country. Let’s give

North Texans the freedom to fly... (emphasis added)
Southwest CEQ Gary Kelly, published in the Dallas Morning News, Nov. 28, 2004.

When I read Southwest’s views on the Wright Amendment, as quoted above, I began to
believe that for the first time since JetBlue sought an operating certificate, our
longstanding desire to serve Dallas', from Love Field, might become possible. I agreed
with Southwest’s statement that the Wright Amendment was an “anti-competitive relic™’
and with their legislative repeal effort. I was proud to tell everyone we worked with in

Congress that JetBlue supported Southwest.

The Deal in Dallas

The Agreement on Love Field reached on June 15, 2006, can better be described as
lucrative deal for two airlines coming at the direct expense of those Southwest has long
represented, the traveling public of both North Texas and the nation. Southwest joined
American Airlines and the cities of Dallas, Forth Worth and DFW Airport in striking a
deal that is even more anti-competitive than the Wright Amendment it seeks to eventually

repeal.

' As long ago as February 1999, New Air Corporation (later renamed JetBlue Airways) submitied an
application for slot-exemptions at JFK in which we listed cities we desired to serve from New York,
including the Dallas-Fort Worth region. See Application of New Air Corporation, Docket OST-99-5085,
App. D,

* Southwest Airlines, The Case for Repeal, at http/www.setlovefree.com/caseforrepeal.com (last visited

July 10, 2006).
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The key provisions of the Agreement reached in \ ilas include:

- Repeal of the flight restrictions at Love Field would be delayed for eight years

- Immediately permit Southwest, American and Expresslet d/b/a Continental
(the three airlines currently serving Love Field) to market and offer through
ticketing to all 50 states

- Permanently demolish 12 of Love’s 32 existing gates

- Assign the remaining 20 gates to Southwest (16), American (2) and Express

Jet (2) within four years.

By agreeing to this deal with American Airlines (the only airline ever sued by the Federal
Government for engaging in anti-competitive behavior against new entrant carriers),
Southwest has dramatically altered its traditional position. 1t is indeed a mystery how
Southwest can turn its back on the best interests of the traveling public after engaging in
an intensive campaign to repeal the Wright Amendment for nearly two years. The words
of Southwest’s co-founder and Executive Chairman Herb Kelleher shed some light on the

sudden reversal in direction:
The essence of our agreement [is] . . . certainty, stability and tranquility.

Southwest Airlines Statement quoting Herb Kelleher at the June 15, 2006, Dallas news

conference announcing the Agreement.

Who can argue with Herb Kelleher? He’s right. If Congress rubber stamps the local
agreement, it will fundamentally change federal law and abrogate its role to serve the
interests of the entire nation on what Southwest itself has argued is a truly “national
issue.” > Then the airport will be free from meaningful competition and Southwest wil

indeed enjoy years of “certainty, stability and tranquility.”

* “The Wright Amendment . . . 1s truly a national i1ssue.” Press Release, Southwest Airlines press release
“Southwest Airlines Applauds Senate Bill to Repeal Wright Amendment” (July 19, 2005) at
http://www southwest.com/about_swa/press/prindex.htm (last visited Jul. 10, 2006).




278

The Deal Violates Federal Law

Why is the Congress holding a hearing and considering enacting into federal law the
provisions of a local agreement which favors two local airlines, calls for the demolition
of valuable gates in one of the nation’s largest aviation markets and effectively blocks
meaningful competition? The answer is simple: if the parties to this Agreement were to
try to implement all of its anti-competitive terms (but for the repeal of the Wright
Amendment’s flight restrictions which require an act of Congress), the Federal Aviation
Administration (“FAA”) and the courts would likely strike it down as contrary to federal

law governing fair access to airports.

Since Congress called for the deregulation of the airline industry in 1978, federal courts,
the Department of Transportation (“DOT”) and the FAA have all recognized that
commercial aviation involves interstate commerce and thus local authority over airports
is extremely limited. As such, the FAA will “closely scrutinize™ local regulations to
ensure they do not run afoul of federal law.* The Airline Deregulation Act of 1978
placed “maximum reliance on competitive market forces and on actual and potential
competition.” All locally imposed regulations must be “‘reasonable, nondiscriminatory,
nonburdensome to interstate commerce and designed to accomplish a legitimate State

objective in a manner that does not conflict with” federal law.®

Over the years, the City of Dallas as the operator of Love Field, by accepting federal
money for the airport, covenanted with the FAA that it would remain open to all carriers
on “reasonable conditions and without unjust discrimination.”” The DOT and FAA have
unequivocally stated that airport managers have an affirmative obligation to
accommodate all qualified airlines that wish to serve their airports and that “manipulating

the standards to protect the interest of an existing tenant or tenants is unacceptable.”®

* Arapahoe County Public Airport Auth. v. FAA, 242 F.3d 1213, 1220-21 (10th Cir. 2001).

349 U.S.C. 40101(a)6).

“ British Airways v. Port Auth. of New York, 558 ¥.2d 75, 84 (2d Cir. 1977).

T49 US.C. §47107(a) (1).

¥ Airport Business Practices and Their Impact on Airline Competition, FAA/OST Task Force Study,
October 1999, at 22 (citing FAA Order 5190.1A. Exclusive Rights (1985)).




279

These federal obligations cannot be overridden, altered or diminished by local laws or

private contractual obiigations.g

Nothing agreed to by the parties to the Agreement in Dallas, nor approved by the
legislative bodies in Dallas or Fort Worth, without a fundamental change in federal law
as sought by the parties, would excuse Dallas, as the operator of Love Field, from acting
in a fair and non-discriminatory manner. Any violation of these unambiguous federal
obligations, again absent the fundamental change in federal law now being sought by the
parties to this deal, would put at risk all federal funding heretofore received by the

airport. "’
Thus, it seems reasonably certain that expecting the FAA would find the terms of this
anti-competitive deal to be in violation of federal law, the parties have taken their

agreement to this Committee for approval.

No Room for New Entrants

The deal agreed to in Dallas and now being examined by this subcommittee has a
provision that the parties view as somehow providing for meaningful and unfettered

future competition at Love Field. This provision reads:

To the extent a new entrant carrier seeks to enter Love Field, the City of Dallas
will seek voluntary accommodation from its existing carriers to accommodate the
new entrant service. If the existing carriers are not able or are not willing to
accommodate the new entrant service, then the City of Dallas agrees to require the
sharing of preferential lease gates, pursuant to Dallas’s existing lease agreements.

(emphasis added)

° Arapahoe, 242 F.3d at 1213,
"% City and County of San Francisco v FAA. 942 F.2d 1391, 1394 (9th Cir. 1991).
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The notion that somehow American Airlines would choose to voluntarily accommodate
JetBlue or any other new entrant on one of its Love Field gates is pure folly. Further, if
Congress approves this deal, Southwest will be operating at an airport constrained by
fewer gates though afforded far greater service opportunities than it has today. Insucha
scenario, how could JetBlue or any new entrant ever expect to be accommodated in a
reasonable fashion as required by current federal law? More likely, if we requested,
hypothetically, to operate twenty flights off of two gates, JetBlue would be fortunate if
the airport and the parties to the Agreement, with their gate arrangements, would be able
or willing to accommodate less than half that many over an extended period of time.
Based on past experiences at gate-constrained airports, we know that any
~accommodation” would be on unreasonable terms and at the whim of the incumbent,

gate-holding carrier."'

The Deal is Bad for Competition

In the midst of its own campaign to repeal the Wright Amendment, Southwest applauded
two Texas congressmen for introducing a bill to immediately do just that. " Southwest
stated it had as an “ultimate goal” the opening of “skies for greater access to low fares
through unfettered airline competition.”””” Southwest’s “ulumate goal” of achieving
“unfettered airline competition™ is not what the Agreement with American accomplishes.
Southwest cannot believe that it is exclusively entitled, or even able, to provide all the
low fare competition for North Texas? Certainly this subcommittee and the United States

Congress know better.

"' DOT observed that new entrant carriers face “inconvenuent and frequent gate reassignments in
circumstances not favorable to . . . * their operational needs. Airport Business Practices and Theur Impact
on Airline Competition, FAA/OST Task Force Study, October 1999, at i. DOT went on to state “Airhine
deregulation can work well only if market forces can discipline the pricing behavior of all air carriers™ went
on to caution that “if airlines cannot gain access to gates, baggage claim areas, passenger check-in and hold
rooms. and other essential airport facilities on reasonable terms, they will be unable to compete
successfully...” Id.. at i1

'* Representatives Jeb Hensarling and Sam Johnson introduced “The Right to Fly Act” (HR-2646) on May
26, 2005.

"% Press Release. Southwest Airlines “Southwest Airlines Applauds House Bill to Repeal Wright
Amendment”. May 26, 2005 at hitp://www.southwest.com/about_swa/press/prindex html (last visited Jul.
10. 2006).
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One of the most disturbing aspects of the Agreement is that while blocking meaningful
new entrant competition at Love Field, the Agreement fails to address the crux of what
Southwest was fighting for: the immediate repeal of the artificial flight restrictions
imposed by the Wright Amendment. Rather, it calls for the flight restrictions to be lifted
in the year 2014. Thus, while Southwest and American immediately gain the ability to
market direct flights to all 50 states from Love Field, competitors are blocked from
gaining meaningful access. Worse, even if new entrants somehow gained meaningful
access via a “voluntary” accommodation from one of the parties to the Agreement, only
the current eight states exempt from Wright’s restrictions can be served on a nonstop
basis. Thus, Southwest gains an enormous advantage and the citizens of North Texas
remain restricted by Washington in their ability to freely travel from Love Field, nonstop,
to many of Dallas’s top markets, such as Los Angeles, San Francisco, New York and

Boston.

In 1993, the DOT issued a report entitled: The Airline Deregulation Evolution Continues
- The Southwest Effect."” The phrase “The Southwest Effect” has become synonymous
in aviation with the great benefits associated with the introduction of low fare airline
service. Yet while Southwest may have been nearly alone in its class as a major low fare
provider when the phrase was introduced 13 years ago, today other low fare carriers are
national in their scope, including JetBlue and AirTran Airways. In fact, within our first
year of operations, on one of our earliest routes, JetBlue’s low fare entry into the Buffalo-
JFK market produced such a strong rise in traffic and decline in prices, that The Buffalo

News ran an article with a headline about the “JetBlue Effect™.'’

Congress has regularly supported, with few exceptions, Southwest’s purported goal of
free and unfettered airline competition. This longstanding belief allowed JetBlue to
begin i 2000 operations at New York’s JFK, an airport that had long been an
underutilized though federally slot-controlled airport. Through the slot-exemption
process enacted as part of the FAA Reauthorization Act of 1994, Congress provided the

" The Airline Deregulation Evolution Continues: The Southwest Effect, US DOT, Office of Aviation
Analysis (May 1993).
" Patrick Lakamp, JerBlue Effect Creates Airport Rainbow, The Buffalo News (December 28, 2000).



282

10

means for JetBlue and others to gain access to a key, constrained airport. * Now, as a
major carrier, JetBlue’s success in providing award-winning, low fare service to million
of travelers has demonstrated the wisdom in Congress’s policy of promoting, not stifling,

free and unfettered competition in the airline industry.

I do not understand how this subcommittee and Congress could seriously consider
enacting into law the anti-competitive provisions of the Agreement reached in Dallas
when it blocks JetBlue and other interested new entrants from freely choosing to compete

in a meaningful fashion at a major city airport with ample gate space: Love Field.

Monopolies are Bad

The same report that coined the phrase “the Southwest Effect” and examined the benefits
of Southwest’s low fares, sounded a loud warning from the DOT which is quite pertinent
to today’s hearing. In discussing how Southwest’s lower cost structure lead to its low

fare success in driving out competitors, DOT cautioned that this:

... creates an even greater need for the government to encourage ]()W-COSt, new

entry, as a discipline for Southwest’s pricing behavior in the future . . .

The Airline Deregulation Evolution Continues: The Southwest Effect, US DOT. Office of
Aviation Analysis (May 1993).

49 US.C.§41714 (c).
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Specifically observing the impacts of Southwest’s successful entry into the market

between southern California and northern California in the early 1990s, DOT added:

Southwest's demonstrated ability to quickly dominate markets and force out
competitors may not be perceived as a problem in the near term because
Southwest offers lower prices, even as a monopolist, than other major airlines . . .
Without a competitive discipline, over time, Southwest s fares will increase to
cover cost inefficiencies that will creep in, and to extract monopoly profits. We
already see Southwest’s prices beginning to increase where it has forced out its

competition... {(emphasis added)

The Airline Deregulation Evolution Continues: The Southwest Effect, US DOT, Office of
Aviation Analysis (May 1993).

If Congress enacts into law the Agreement reached in Dallas, Southwest will dominate a
smaller Love Field, become effectively protected by federal law from meaningful new
entrant competition and have the entire nation to eventually serve on a nonstop basis —
virtually alone. Other than Southwest, who can possibly benefit from this? The DOT
warned more than a decade ago that even low-fare Southwest, as a monopolist in a
market, will seek to extract monopoly fares unless there 1s meaningful new entrant
competition. Congress is now being asked to block JetBlue and future low fare
competitors from meaningfully entering Love Field while granting Southwest the
scenario DOT cautioned on years ago. This is bad public policy and contrary to the goals

of Congress in deregulating the airline industry.
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Conclusion

The sincere and historic “good guy” of aviation, Southwest Airlines, has been strenuously
lobbying for nearly two years to right a wrong, to fully and immediately repeal the
outdated and anti-competitive Wright Amendment. JetBlue remains supportive of

Southwest in this worthy effort.

Today, the same historic “good guy™ of aviation, Southwest, along with others, comes
before this subcommittee asking for something completely different than that which

Southwest has sought in its Set Love Free, Wright is Wrong campaign to Congress.

Simply because the same “good guy” Southwest is here today to seek Congress’s
approval of a local agreement, you should not be fooled. The Agreement is one which
will violate existing federal law, fly in the face of the founding principles of airline
deregulation and lessen competition for the traveling public in North Texas and the
nation. What Southwest lobbied for, with JetBlue’s support, was good and right, but it is

NOT what Southwest and American Airlines are asking you for today.

Southwest Airlines was founded on the premise that “all Americans deserve the ability to

17 JetBlue admires and shares this

enjoy affordable air fares, no matter where they fly.
core philosophy. Southwest has stated that the “citizens of North Texas deserved the
Freedom to Fly” and that these citizens rightly want Love Field to become a “budding
competitive niche that is not dependent upon monopoly...”"® If this subcommittee and
Congress enact into law the provisions of the Agreement reached in Dallas, everything
Southwest’s effective campaign advocated on behalf of the traveling public will fail and
the fears expressed by DOT about a Southwest monopoly may take hold at Love Field -

at the expense of North Texas, and indeed the nation’s travelers.

" Southwest Airlines. The Case for Repeal, at htp://www setlovefree.com/caseforrepeal.html (last visited
Jul. 10, 2006).

" Southwest Airlines, History of the Wright Amendment, at http://www setlovefree.com/caseforrepeal.com
(last visited July 10, 2006).
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I urge you to reject the effort to make the anti-competitive terms of the Agreement
recently announced in Dallas, the law of the land, and instead immediately and fully

repeal the outdated, restrictive Wright Amendment.

Thank you for your consideration of the views of JetBlue Airways.
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LAW OFFICES OF
LIPPE & ASSOCIATES
ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW A
PROFESSIONAL CORPOR ATKIN

EMIL LIPPE, JR.J 600 R PEARL STREET "BOARD CERTIFIED
SUITE S2460 CIVIL TRIAL LAW AND
SOUTH TOWER CIVIL APPELLATE LAW,
OF COUNSEL PLAZA OF THE AMERICAS TEXAS BOARD
ROBERT B. HUCHAN DALLAS, TEXAS 75200 OF LEGAL SPECIALIZATION

(214)885-1850
FACSIMILE: (214} 720 6074 {ALSO ADMITTED

INCOLOR ADQ AND
URL; bop: Wyww.temsliw.com DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

July 11,2006

VIA FACSIMILE AND FIRST CLASS MAIL
Kenneth H. Gwyn, Director

Department of Aviation

Dallas Love Field Dallas,

Texas 75235

Re:  Small Community Airlines, Inc., request for access to Gates 21 or 22 Dear
Mr. Gwyn:

This law firm has been retained to represent Small Community Airlines, Inc. ("SCA™), in
response to your letter dated August 19,2005, and further in connection with the recently announced
compromise between and among the City of Dallas, the City of Fort Worth, Southwest Airlines,
American Airlines, and DFW International Airport concerning Wright Amendment issues. Please
direct all future correspondence to the undersigned as counse! for SCA.

Small Community Airlines, Inc., is a preeertiilcation air carrier, having been issued
Precertifi cation No. QYGA450P, and anticipates issuance of its requested certification within the
next six (6) months. It currently owns and plans to operate two Jetstream 3100/3200 Jetprop planes
capable of carrying fifteen (15) to nineteen (19) passengers each, and is planning to provide
commuter airline service between Dallas Love Field and small communities throughout Texas and
other southwestern states. Both because of the number of airplanes which SCA has and is likely to
operate in the foreseeable future, and because of the size and characteristics of its aircraft, they will
have little if any measurable impact on either noise or traffic patterns in and out of Love Field.

Further, because of the communities which SCA will be servicing, it will not create any
competition or disruption of the service provided by Southwest Airlines, but in fact will serve as a
feeder for Southwest Airlines from the communities which are too small to be serviced by that
carrier, Because of the size of SCA and its aircraft, operations at DFW Airport are impractical and
would be uneconomical.

Please be advised that we have reviewed your letter and the Airport Master Plan for Love
Field, and respectfully disagree with your comments concerning the alleged unavailability of Gates 21
and 22. Both the diagrams of existing and historic gates, and the written text of the Master Plan,
specifically recognize the existence and historic usage of Gates 21 and 22. See, e.g, Figures 1-4 and 4-
2, and pages 1-12, 1-25, and 1-21, of the Master Plan. The owners of SCA formerly operated Casino
Airlines, which in the past operated out of Gate 21 as a ground-level gate. After Casino Airlines
ceased operations, Delta Airlines, through its commuter service known as ComAir, operated out of Gate

1 of 4
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21 as a ground-level gate. The existing Master Plan recognizes Comn Air-Delta Airlines
as an existing tenant in the North Concourse as of the date of the issuance of the Master Plan.
I

I am sure that you are aware that airlines such as those operated by SCA and other small
commuter carriers cannot utilize skybridges, and instead need to operate through ground-level gates.
Nothing, to my examination of the Master Plan, and nothing in any promulgated rulings of the
Federal Aviation Administration of which w'e are aware contemplates that ground-level gates are to be
prohibited and never utilized in the future at Love Field. Historical usage of Gates 21 and 22 has
demonstrated the recognition of this necessity, which is confirmed by the language, diagrams, and
contents of the Master Plan.

Your refusal as evidenced by your August 19, 2005, plan is, we believe, directly in conflict
with the promulgated Airport Compliance Requirements in Order 5190.6A. promulgated by the
Federal Aviation Administration on October 2, 1989, In paragraph 4-13 of the Order, the FAA
stated:

The owner of any airport developed with Federal grant assistance is required to
operate it for the use and benefit of the public and to make it available to all types,
kinds and classes of aeronautical activity on fair and reasonable terms and without
unjust discrimination.

Also, in paragraph 4-15 of the Order, the FAA stated further;

The prime obligation of the owner of a federally-assisted airport is to
operate it for the use and benefit of the public. The public benefit is
not assured merely by keeping the runways open to all classes of
users. While the owner is not required to construct hangars and
terminal facilities, it has the obligation to make available suitable
areas or space on reasonable terms to those who are willing and
otherwise qualified to offer flight services to the public (i.e., air
carrier, air taxi, charter, flight training, crop dusting, etc.) or support
services (i.c., fuel, storage, tie down, flight line maintenance, etc.) to
aircraft operators, This means that unless it undertakes to provide
these services itself, the airport owner has a duty to negotiate in good
faith for the lease of such premises as may be available for the
conduct of aeronautical activities.

Obviously, since Gates 21 and 22 exist, were recognized as existing by the Dallas Love Field
Master Plan, and historically have been used for ground-level passenger loading and unloading by
small airlines such as ComAir and Casino Airlines, continued availability of Gate 21 and 22 is not
only possible, but in fact is mandated by Order 5190.6A of the Federal Aviation Administration.
Elimination of such gates will utterly destroy access to Love Field of an entire class of equipment, in
direct violation of Order 5190.6A.

Our client is further gravely concerned regarding the recent announcements made regarding the
so-called compromise concerning the Wright Amendment controversy. The published
information concerning the purported "compromise” has included language that seems to indicate that
"hardstand" operations will not be allowed at all, which is apparently directed at airlines such as
SCA, and the “compromise” further purports to restrict the number of gates to be maintained at
Dallas Love Field, reducing them to a total of twenty (20) and giving Southwest Airlines almost
complete and unfettered monopolistic control over the same. Such reduction in numbers of gates
would almost certainly mean the elimination of Gates 21 and 22,

Not only would these aspects of the purported "compromise” violate relevant provisions of
Order 5190.6A, the same have apparently been "agreed 10" on behalf of the City of Dallas without
compliance with any of the same procedures utilized to consider, adopt, and implement the current
Dallas Love Field Master Plan. Mayor Miller does not have the authority, with the mere stroke of a

2 of 4



288

pen, to amend the Master Plan and single-handedly eliminate ground-level gates at Love Field,
discriminating against small carriers such as SCA,

We therefore believe that the "compromise” to the extent that it purports to eliminate existing and
historic gates at Love Field, and to eliminate "hardstand” operations of airlines at Dallas Love Field,
will violate numerous provisions of state and federal law, including but not limited to Order 1590.6A,
and Sections 1 and 2 of the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C.§§1 and 2 commonly known as the Federal
Antitrust Laws. The refusal to recognize the historic usage of Gates 21 and 22, the refusal to comply
with applicable provisions of Order 5190.6A, and the implementation of the "compromise” to the
extent that it eliminates Gates 21 and 22 and essentially forever destroys all access of small carriers
to the Love Field terminal, will violate numerous provisions of state and federal law, and cannot be
allowed in its present form.

This letter is being sent for the purpose of initiating a dialog to avoid the necessity of
litigation, such that the historic usage of Gates 21 and 22 will be recognized and confirmed, and that
SCA will be allowed to enter into an appropriate lease on fair and reasonable terms for the usage of
Gates 21 or 22. Such reasonable accornmodation would be perfectly consistent with the Dallas Love
Field Master Plan as currently promulgated, would be consistent with historic usage, will do no
violation either to the essential provisions of the proposed compromise on the Wright Amendment
issues, will cause no adverse competitive consequences for Southwest Airlines, and furnish no
adverse noise or other undesirable impact upon Dallas Love Field operations.

We trust that you will appreciate the urgency of this matter, and we look forward to a
constructive dialog with you immediately in order to avoid the necessity of litigation concerning
these issues,

Very truly yours,
LAW OFFICES OF LIPFE & ASSOCIATES
1
& r
By: Emil Lippe, J ¢/
El:em
cc:  Hon. Laura Miller, Mayor
Ryan. S, Evans, Assistant City Manager Bob

Sims, Assistant City Attorney Tommy
Poole, Real Estate Manage

3 of 4
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6/28/2006 Wed 13:37 Grayson County Judge 9038924085 iD: #2377 Pagetof1

Tim McGRrRAW
CounTY JUDGE

June 28, 2006

VIA Facsimile (202)223-3332

The Honorable Ralph M. Hall

LS. House of Representatives

2403 Rayburn ouse Office Building
Washington. DC 20515

RE:  Wright Amendment

Dear Congressman Hall:

After reading the joint statement released by the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth addressing
isstes concerning the Wright Amendinent, | wish to express my opposition to any atempt to
expand artificially imposed market restrictions. or any atterpt to legislate an agreement that docs
the same. on Grayson County's ability 10 attract commercial air service to Grayson County
Airport in Shermun/Denison. Texas.

The efforts of the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth. joined by their partners, Southwest Airlines,
Amcrican Airlines and DFW [nternational Airport is a deliberate attempt to restrict air service at

arca airports outside of their jurisdiction through the legislative process.

1 must respectfully ask that you oppose the enactment of any legislation that restricts commercial
air serviee outside of the City Limiis of the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth,

Thank you for your service and Jeadership.

Respectfully yours,

/
un McGraw

Grayson County Judge

PHONE (803) 813-4228 100 W, HOUSTON, SUITE #15 E-MAIL.
FAx (903) 8924085 SHERMAN, TEXAS 75090-5958 mcgrawt@co.grayson.tx‘us
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7/110/2006 Mon 15:30 Grayson County Judge 9038924085 1D: #2391 Page 1of1

RESOLUTION FOR OPPOSITION TO THE WRIGHT AMENDMENT

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF THE
COUNTY OF GRAYSON, TEXAS, OBJECTING TO ANY AND
ALL AIR SERVICE RESTICTIONS PROPOSED BY THE LOCAL
AGREEMENT PRESENTED TO THE US CONGRESS BY THE
CiTIES OF DALLAS AND FORT WORTH, SOUTHWEST AND
AMERICAN AIRLINES, AND DFW INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT
TO REPEAL THE WRIGHT AMENDMENT.

WHEREAS, Grayson County owns and operates Grayson County Airport, a General
Aviation Reliever airport located within a 59-mile radius of Dallas Love Field and within
a §2-mile radus of DFW International Airport

WHEREAS. Grayson County has no immediate :nfentions to atfract commercial air
service, and.

WHEREAS, Grayson County, joined by other communities in Grayson Gounty County,
may wish to study the feasibifity of commercial air carrier service in the future to serve
Grayson County's growing popuiation and business base.

WHEREAS. 1t is every community's right and responsibiity to develop a balanced
economy and transporiation infrastructure that benefits s citizens: and,

WHEREAS, the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth have proposed in a written agreement
that they will join together to suppol legisiaticn to prevent any commercal ar
passenger service at arports withtn an 80-mile radius of Love Field for the next efght (8)
years, and.

WHEREAS, the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth and DFW International Airport propose
that Southwest and American Alrtines be penalized if they initiate service at an airport
within an 80-mife radius of Love Field for ninsteen (19) years; and.

WHEREAS, Grayson County views the proposed Locai Agreement as unnecessarily
restrictive, arbitrary. anlicompetitive and an expansion and extension of the Wnght
Amendment throughout North Texas that threatens the economic develepment
freedoms of Grayson County and other Norih Texas communities

NOW, THEREFORE, GRAYSON COUNTY, TEXAS RESOLVES THAT:

it opposes the eraciment of any legislation that restricts commercial air service at
Grayson County Airport and other airports in North Texas

DULY PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 10th DAY OF JULY 2006,

GRAYSON COUNTY, TEXAS

=
Sy

T

e

Tim McGraw Colnty Judge

ATTEST.
;/.x,:' :
Wilma Bush. County Clerk
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RESOLUTION

A RESOLUTION OF THE POTTSBORO AREA CHAMBER
OF COMMERCE, OBJECTING TO ANY AND ALL AR
SERVICE RESTICTIONS PROPOSED BY THE LOCAL
AGREEMENT PRESENTED TO THE UNITED STATES
CONGRESS BY THE CITIES OF DALLAS AND FORT
WORTH, SOUTHWEST AIRLINES, AMERICAN AIRLINES,
AND DFW INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT TO REPEAL THE
WRIGHT AMENDMENT.

WHEREAS, the Potisboro Area Chamber of Commerce supports the development of
the Grayson County Airport, a General Aviation Reliever airport located within a 59-mile
radius of Dallas Love Field and within a 62-mile radius of DFW International Airport and
3-miles of the City of Poltsboro, Texas.

WHEREAS, Grayson County has no immediate intentions to attract commercial air
service; and,

WHEREAS, the Pottsboro Area Chamber of Commerce, joined by other communities in
Grayson County, may wish to study the feasibility of commercial air carrier service in the
future to serve Grayson County’s growing population and business base.

WHEREAS, it is every community's right and responsibility to develop a balanced
economy and transportation infrastructure that benefits its citizens; and,

WHEREAS, the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth have proposed in a written agreement
that they will join together to support legislation to prevent any commercial air
passenger service at airports within an 80-mile radius of Love Field for the next eight (8)
years; and,

WHEREAS, the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth and DFW Intemnational Airport propose
that Southwest and American Airlines be penalized if they initiate service at an airport
within an 80-mile radius of Love Fieid for nineteen (19) years; and,

WHEREAS, the Pottsborc Area Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors views the
proposed Local Agreement as unnecessarily restrictive, arbitrary, anticompetitive and
an expansion and extension of the Wright Amendment throughout North Texas that
threatens the economic development freedoms of Grayson County and other North
Texas communities;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE POTTSBORO AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS RESOLVES THAT:

It opposes the enactment of any legislation that restricts commercial air service at
Grayson County Airport and other airports in North Texas.

ooz
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DULY PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 10th DAY OF JULY 2006,
GRAYSON COUNTY, TEXAS
4 mﬂ@%
\JUQan_

Susan McHorse, President
Pottshboro Area Chamber of Commerce

ATTEST:

Lo A

Pam Straus, Secretary
Pottsboro Area Chamber of Commerce
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June 20, 2006

The Honorable Ralph M. Hall

U.8. House of Representatives

2405 Rayburn House Office Building
Washington, D.C. 20515

RE: DFW’s Joint Statement to Resolve Wright Amendment
Issues :

Dear Representative Hall,

As Dallas, Fort Worth and other interested parties have been
recently negotiating a joint resolution to resolve Wright
Amendment “issues,” the Metroplex has been anxiously
awaiting their conclusions.

Those conclusions, however, do more than just affect Dallas
and Fort Worth ™~ they could negatively affect the surrounding
area.

The Joint Statement issued by the City of Dallas, Fort Worth,
Southwest Airlines, American Airlines and DFW International
Airport is flawed to the detriment of the Metroplex, including
the City of McKinney. The resolution delays an appeal to the
Wright amendment for eight years. In that time period, the
resolution states, Dallas and Fort Worth would oppose
expansion to any air service in an 80 mile radius.

The McKinney Chamber of Commerce is respectfully asking
that you strongly oppose any and all efforts by the City of
Dallas and the City of Fort Worth to impose air service
restrictions upon airports and in communities outside of their
jurisdiction.

The McKinney Chamber of Commerce, a voice of over 1,000
businesses in the McKinney area and an advocate of business
development, adamantly opposes any legislation that would
limit the opportunity for the Collin County Regional Airport to
host scheduled commercial airline service.

The Chamber appreciates your service and leadership and
believes that you will make the right decision in supporting
business growth and development.

Sincerely,

Robert 8. Clark
Chairman, McKinney Chamber of Commerce

Phone: 972-542-0163
Fax: 972-542-6341
www.mckinneytx.org

s——
Bponeriv our members o deheve eeonomic suecess ..
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McKINNEY

Unigue by nature.

June 30, 2006

The Honorable Ralph M. Hall

U.S. House of Representatives

2405 Rayburn House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

Re: DFW Joint Statement to Resolve Wright Amendment Issues
Dear Congressman Hall:

The Board of Directors of the McKinney Economic Development Corporation (MEDC) has been
interested in following the on-going discussions among regional officials in trying to resolve their
differences over the possible repeal of the Wright Amendment.

Upon reading the Joint Statement, the intent and implications of this Statement are obvious. The
authors of the Statement are attempting to dictate to Congress that the Wright Amendment be
“frozen” for another eight years, thus depriving North Texas passengers of the lower fares that
would result from free enterprise. These officials are also trying to use Congress to give DFW
even more of a monopoly by restricting surrounding airports (not within their jurisdiction) from
offering competitive commercial air service. This is restraint of trade for the Collin County
Regional Airport, and the proposed 80-mile limit was designed with no input from regional
aviation representatives.

Collin County Regional Airport is a viable economic engine for Collin County and its
surrounding neighbors. Millions of dollars have been invested in this facility to make it one of
the best regional reliever airports in the country. The above agreement would result in a serious
restraint to the growth of our airport and our economic development.

We vigorously oppose the passage of legislation that would support this joint statement.

The 80-mile radius restriction is not in the best interest of the Collin County Regional Airport, or
in the best interest of the rapidly growing population in this area. We ask that Legislation
supporting this agreement be opposed by you.

This position and letter received unanimous approval by the MEDC Board during the MEDC
Board of Directors meeting on June 28, 2006.

Thank you for your time and consideration in this matter, and all matters that effect our airport
and our economic viability.

McKinney Economic Development Corporation

321 N.Central Expressway, Suite 200 McKinney, TX 75070
Metro 972.562.5430 « Toil Free 800.639.6259 » Fax 972.562.1222

www.mckinneytxedc.com
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July 11, 2006

Chairman John Mica

Subcommittee on Aviation

Transportation & Infrastructure Committee
2251 Rayburn House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

Ranking Member Jerry Costello
Subcommittee on Aviation

Transportation & Infrastructure Committee
2251 Rayburn House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

Mr. Chairman & Ranking Member:

I am submitting the following statement for the record for the July 12, 2006
Subcommitiee on Aviation Hearing.

As background, I am an economist and Principal with MiCRA, an economics consulting
and research firm located in Washington, D.C. lreceived a B.A. degree from Yale University, a
M.P.A. from the Woodrow Wilson School of Princeton University, and a Ph.D. in Economics
from Princeton University. From 1972 to 1983 [ was an Assistant and then Associate Professor
of Economics at Washington University in St. Louis. From 1983 to 1989, | served as the chief
economist for the Antitrust Division of the U.S. Department of Justice, first as Director of its
Economic Policy Office and then as Deputy Assistant Attorney General for Economic Analysis.

Since leaving the government, [ have served as a Resident Scholar at the American
Enterprise Institute, a Visiting Lecturer of Public and International Affairs at the Woodrow
Wilson School at Princeton University, and as a Research Associate Professor of Psychology at
the American University. 1 have served as an expert witness or consultant on a number of
antitrust matters, including as an expert witness for the Department of Justice in US v. AT&T, for

the Federal Trade Commission in FTC v. Staples and Office Depot, and for the States in US and
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States v. Microsoft.

I have been retained by counsel for the Love Field Partners to review the agreement
signed on June 15, 2006 by the City of Dallas, the City of Fort Worth, Southwest Airlines,
American Airlines, and DFW International Airport to “resolve the ‘Wright Amendment’ issues”™
{henceforth denoted as the Joint Agreement). Based on the materials 1 have reviewed, 1 believe
that this agreement would significantly reduce competition for airline services and harm airline
customers in Texas and other parts of the United States. | find it deeply troubling that an
agreement that appears to be anticompetitive on its face and which would have such significant
potential effects on airline competition at Dallas” Love Field (DLF) and Dallas Forth Worth
Airport (DFW), has received so little public discussion, debate, or analysis.

The Joint Agreement begins by stating a laudable goal, i.e., “to ultimately seek its [the
Wright Amendment’s] repeal”™. As economic studies have shown, the Wright Amendment has
reduced competition between airlines at DLF and DFW and increased air fares significantly,
especially for non-stop flights between Dallas/Fort Worth and other cities outside the perimeter
of the nine states encompassed by the travel restrictions in the Wright Amendment.'

The Joint Agreement would immediately allow airlines serving DLF to offer through
ticketing throughout the 50 United States and to market those services. This provision would
not, however, allow increased competition for non-stop flights, which appeal primarily to higher
paying business travelers whose demand is less elastic and where increased competition would
thus be particularly effective in lowering fares.

In addition, the Joint Agreement has some troubling provisions that are likely to have
deleterious effects on atrline competition at DLF and DFW and could harm consumers in North

Texas and elsewhere in the country that utilize airline services from these airports.  As such, the

" A number of studies have cxamincd the adverse effects of the Wright Amendment on air fares and competition:
Federico Ciliberto and Elie Tamer, “Market Structure and Multiple Equilibria in Awrhne Markets,” working paper,
February 2006; the testimony of Dr. Brian M. Campbell before the Scnate Commerce, Science & Transportation
Committee, Subcommittee on Aviation, 1n support of S.1424, November 10, 2005; Steven Morrison and Chfford
Winston, “Foul Regulatory Weather Grounds Arrline Competinon™, Wall Street Journal (WSJ), December 3, 1997,
and the statement of Steven Morrison, “The Effect of Airport Restrictions on Air Fares™, Hearing Before the
Subcommuttee on Transportation and Related Agencies, October 21, 1997, There have also been a number of
articles m the business press about the adverse effects of the Wright Amendment. Sec Scott McCartney, “Wright
Amendment is Wrong”, WSJ, November 30, 2004,

(33
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potential effects of the Joint Agreement require careful study and discussion.

The Joint Agreement does not call for the immediate end to all of the Wright Amendment
provisions. Instead, it calls for phasing out the Wright restrictions. While restrictions on through
ticketing would be immediately lifted, the restrictions on non-stop flights would continue for
another eight years. Importantly, the Joint Agreement calls for Southwest and American Airlines

to continue the Wright restrictions for another eight years even if “Congress passes legislation

that is inconsistent with the Parties’ agreement herein, or subsequently amends that legislation fto

allow flights from DLF to a state outside the Wright perimetcrl”.2 In effect, these two airlines

have agreed not to compete for non-stop flights outside the current perimeter of the Wright
Amendment for another eight years. Thus, even if Congress were to repeal the Wright
Amendment tomorrow, consumers would not receive the full benefits for another eight years.3

It is clear that American Airlines benefits by maintaining the current Wright restrictions
(either through legislation or voluntarily by Southwest), because these restrictions prevent
Southwest Airlines from competing with American, which is primarily based out of DFW
airport, for non-stop flights from DLF to cities outside the Wright Perimeter. But the Joint
Agreement is beneficial to Southwest Airlines as well because it contains provisions that would
deter entry by other low-cost carriers at DLF, effectively preserving Southwest Airlines’
monopoly power over passengers that prefer to fly from DLF, while at the same time protecting
American Airlines from low-cost entrants at DLF that might compete with American’s flights out
of DFW.

Entry at DLF would be precluded because the Joint Agreement calls for a substantial and
permanent reduction in the number of available gates at DLF and an allocation of the remaining

gates to incumbent carriers at DLF roughly in proportion to their current share of available gates.*

% If Southwest or American daes not voluntanly abide by the Wright restrictions, they could lose half their gates at
DLF  See paragraph 13 of the Joint Agreement.

3 Paragraph 16 of the Jomt Agreemcent states that the agreement 1s null and void without enabhng legislation by
Congress — unless the parties agree to extend the agreement. Thus, the provisions of the Joint Agreement could
survive regardless of how Congress modifics the Wright Amendment.

4 There are currently 32 gates available at DLF. Southwest Awrlines has 21 gates, Amernican has 3 gates, Continental
has 2 gates, and Legend has 6 gates. The number of gates at DLF would go from 32 gates down to 20 gates, a
reduction of 12 gates. Of these 12 gates, six are located in the Legend terminal. Moreover, these 12 gates, including
the Legend terminal, would be modificd or demolished so that they could never be used for passenger service again.
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This agreement would effectively prevent potential competitors from entering DLF and lock into
place the current market shares of existing carriers at DLF for the foreseeable future.” Even if
one believed that there was an overriding public interest in reducing capacity at DLF, this method
of allocating the remaining capacity is at best an attempt by the dominant incumbent carriers,
Southwest Airlines and American Airlines, to preserve their existing market shares and the large
fare premium (estimated at about 22%) for flying out of DFW.® In plain language, this
agreement has all the earmarks of a naked market allocation agreement between Southwest and
American, an agreement that would normally be considered as per se illegal under the antitrust
laws.

Some may argue that such an agreement could be justified as a way to address noise or
other environmental concerns at DLF. While such concerns are, of course, perfectly legitimate
and understandable, there are other policies that can and have been implemented to address these
concerns that would preserve airline competition and which would be more efficient than
permanently reducing the number of gates. For example, restrictions could be imposed on the
types of planes allowed to land at the airport and on the hours of operation of the airport.
Alternatively, landing fees could be set based on the time of day or pollution generated by the
aircraft.

Even if Dallas wanted to reduce capacity at DLF, it could do so unilaterally without the
participation of Southwest or American Airlines and without Southwest agreeing not to initiate
non-stop long-haul flights for another eight years, and thus, without depriving passengers of the
benefits of greater competition in long-haul flights. However, even if one accepted the premise
that capacity had to be reduced at DLF (which is not at all apparent), there are far more socially
beneficial ways to allocate the reduced capacity than by giving it to the existing carriers at DLF

based on their current share of gates. For example, one could auction off the remaining gates.

I'he rematning 20 gates would be allocated as follows: 16 to Southwest, 2 to American Airlines, and 2 to
Continental Asrlines.

" Consequently, the Jomnt Agreement would reduce any benefit from repealing the Wright Amendment becausc the
substantial reduction 1n gate capacity at DLF would Timit Southwest’s ability to expand at DLF and would bar entry
at DLF.

& Derived by taking the average of the annual fare premium for DFW from 1995-2004 from Tabie 2 of Severin
Borenstein, “US Domestic Airhne Pricing. 1995-2004", Working Paper—Compeutive Policy Center—UC Berkeley,
2003,
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This would at least ensure that the City of Dallas, rather than American Airlines or Southwest
Airlines, received some of the expected profits from the higher air fares and reduced competition
that would result if capacity was substantially reduced at DLF.

Nor should Congress simply defer to local governments in this matter, even if they were
acting on behalf of their local constituents. Many actual and potential passengers at DFW and
DLF are citizens of other states or of other counties in Texas. As such, local residents would pay
only a portion of the anticompetitive price increases that would flow from the Agreement.

Allocating gates at DLF based on the current market shares of incumbent carriers at DLF
can be expected to harm consumers because it deprives them of competition from new carriers
that were in the process of entering and offering new service at DLF. There are reports that, just
prior to the signing of the Joint Agreement, Love Terminal Partners was close to a deal to sell its
lease at Legend Terminal at DLF to Pinnacle Airlines for approximately $100 million dollars.
After the Mayor announced that the city would take steps to prevent use of that facility for
commercial transport, the deal apparently fell through. If that deal had been consummated,
passengers at DLF would have had another low-cost airline competing with Southwest and
American Airlines at DLF.

Under the provisions of the Joint Agreement, however, Southwest Airlines will be
guaranteed a position as the dominant carrier at DLF, with leases on approximately 80% of the
gates at DLF until 2028, even though the Joint Agreement calls for all flight restrictions of the
Wright Amendment to end by 2014. Thus, the Joint Agreement would lock in the advantages of
the incumbent carriers until at least 2028. Because the Joint Agreement would essentially
foreclose entry at DLF, there would be nothing to prevent Southwest from charging higher fares

to passengers at DLE. Moreover, passengers will be deprived of more vigorous competition

" The Joint Agrecment contains vague language that entry will be accommodated at DLF (sec footnote 2) but not the
terms. 1t is revealing that the agreement says that Dallas will first seek voluntary accommodation by existing
carriers. Given their vocal opposition to the Agreement, potential entrants appear 10 beheve that they will be
disadvantaged compared to incumbent carriers, It is mstructive to note that a number of potential competitors on the
affected routes, such as Northwest Airlines and JetBlue, have complained that the Joint Agrecment is cxclusionary
and will prevent them from entering at DLF. In fact, JetBluc had sent a letter to Love officials requesting two gates
if the Wnight Amendment was repealed.  Thus, the threat of entry at DLF 1s very real.

Morcover, since the Agreement destroys gate capacity that would support new entry at DLF, and all the remamnmg
gates are allocated by the Agreement to existing carmiers, it 1s far from clear how competitively meaningful entry at
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between airlines at DLF and DFW, both because Southwest Airlines would not be able to
provide non-stop service outside the Wright Perimeter for another eight years and because entry
by other carriers at DLF would be foreclosed for the foreseeable future.

The Joint Agreement thus appears to be no more than a naked attempt by the dominant
carriers in the region, Southwest Airlines and American Airlines, to preserve their market shares
and fare premiums in the face of potential competition from each other and from rival airlines.
One should be skeptical of basing public policy on an agreement that on its face appears to raise
serious antitrust and competitive issues. I believe a thorough review of the Joint Agreement is

required before it is given any further consideration by this subcommittee.

Sincerely,

T A

Frederick R. Warren-Boulton, PhD.
Principal, MiCRA, Inc.

DLF could occur under the Agrecment.
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Statement of Dan S. Petty
President/CEO of the North Texas Commission
Submitted to the
United States House of Representatives Aviation Subcommittee
July 12, 2006

Mr. Chairman, members, thank you for the opportunity to submit
this written statement for the record to express strong support of
the Dallas Fort Worth Compromise Agreement on the Wright
Amendment on behalf of the North Texas Commission.

The North Texas Commission believes strongly that the best
scenario for the health of the North Texas regional economy, its
citizens and business community, is for the local compromise
agreement of the Wright Amendment to be implemented which
we believe will help keep DFW Airport strong.

Founded in 1971, the North Texas Commission is a regional non-
profit consortium of businesses, cities, counties, chambers of
commerce, economic development entities and higher education
institutions in the North Texas Region. The Commission is the
one and only public-private regional organization committed to
enhancing the overall economic vitality and quality of life of North
Texas.

The mission of the North Texas Commission is to enhance and
promote the economic vitality and quality of life of the Dallas/Fort
Worth Metroplex by:

1) providing leadership;

2) acting as the catalyst for regional cooperation; and,

3) identifying regional problems and issues and helping
create solutions for these problems and issues.

NTC Statement, Page 1
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DFW Airport's annual economic impact to the North Texas region
is $14 billion. Clearly, this is not just an issue that is critical to the
businesses and employees that depend on DFW Airport,
including 268,000 jobs supported directly or indirectly, it's also
critical to the entire region.

North Texas is home to 22 FORTUNE 500 companies that
collectively generated $565 billion in revenue. Most of the 22
FORTUNE 500 companies headquartered here list DFW
International Airport as one of the primary reasons to establish
and expand operations in the Metroplex and depend upon easy
access it offers to both domestic and international flights to
sustain their business status and continue to expand.

DFW International Airport is a key reason North Texas has
become a top destination for corporate relations and a global
business leader that has seen continued growth and prosperity.
In fact, a recent study by Conway New Plant Database and Site
Selection magazine found that Dallas-Fort Worth experienced
more corporate relocations and expansions than any other U.S.
metropolitan market in 2004.

An example of DFW'’s strong influence and appeal to corporations
considering relocation was the May, 2005 decision of the Fluor
Corporation to move to North Texas. Fluor's CEO stated publicly
that the Dallas/Fort Worth Metroplex was selected for its new
home because of its accessibility to global clients through DFW
Airport’'s optimal travel connections to customers in all other
global locations.  Similar rationale applies to EDS, Texas
Instruments, Exxon Mobil, RadioShack and others.

The North Texas Commission recognizes that a strong DFW
Airport is the engine that drives the North Texas regional
economy, and with that in mind, we strongly advocate
implementation of the agreed to compromise on the Wright

NTC Statement, Page 2
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Amendment that is jointly presented to you by Southwest Airlines,
American Airlines, DFW International Airport, the City of Dallas
and the City of Fort Worth.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman

Contact Information:

Dan S. Petty

President and CEO
North Texas Commission
www.ntc-dfw.org
972.621.0400

NTC Statement, Page 3
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@6/20/2006 15:15 4634241855 KEITH SELF SAIC PAGE 81
Keith Self
Collin County Judge (Elect)
8324 Beech Lane

McKinney, Texas 75070

June 20, 2006

The Honorable Ralph M. Hall

U.S. House of Representatives

2405 Rayburn House Office Building
‘Washington, DC 20515

Re:  Joint Statement on Wright Amendment
Dear Congressman Hall:

T watched with intense interest, as did many others, as the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth
negotiated a local solution to resolve isstues raised by the Wright Amendment. While I will
not take office as the County Judge until January 1, 2007, I believe that the agreement that
they negotiated severely restrices the future of Collin County Regional Airporr in
McKinney, hence the furure of Collin County as a whole.

1 write to express my opposition to any arempr to expand arificially imposed markes
restrictions, or any attempt to legislate an agreement that does the same, on the ability to
attract commercial aix service to Collin County Regional Airport.

The Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth should not be allowed to dictate positions that will
restrict air service at area airports outside of their jurisdiction through the legislative
process. This is an expansion of the Wright Amendment; an expansion that does grave
harm to the North Central Texas region. I respectfully request that you strongly oppose
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86/28/2096 15:15 4694241855 KEITH SELF SAIC PAGE 82
The Honorable Ralph Hail
June 20, 2006
Page 2

any and all effores by the Civies of Dallas and Fort Worth to impose air service restrictions
upon aixports and communities outside of their jurisdiction.

1 thank you for your attention to this matter and look forward to working with you on this
and other issues that impact the growth and development of Collin County and our

comumumnity’s economic vitality.

R y yor

Keith Self
Collin County Judge (Elect)
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Texas Logistics

UNIVERSITY,f (&>
NORTH TEXAS )

College of Business Administration
Center for Logistics Education and Research Education Foundation

Chairman John Mica

Subcommittee on Aviation

Transportation & nfrastructure Commitiee
2251 Rayburn House Office Building
Washington. DC 20515

Ranking Member Jerry Costello
Subcommittee on Aviation

‘Transportation & Infrastructure Committee
2251 Rayburn House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

July 10,2006

Mr. Chairman & Ranking Member:

| request the following statement be submitted for the record for the Hearing which the Subcommittee
on Aviation will hold on July 12, 2006.

As a professor at the University of North Texas, 1 have closely studied and analyzed the potential
impact of the Wright Amendment and its repeal on the surrounding community and the City of Dallas.
I have authored several articles on the subject and presently have additional research in progress.

To fairly evaluate the current agreement for repeal — and its potential impact on the local and national
community — one should evaluate the plan in the overall context of national transportation regulation.

I Background

As the United States has developed, transportation regulation has been an important factor in economic
and societal advancement. Transportation regulation has evolved from the Granger Movement of the
1870s (which initiated transportation regulation to protect farmers) to the actions in the early 1900s to
promote the development of new transportation modes and then the regulation of their actions; and now
to deregulation of the transportation industries to allow free-market forces to guide further
development.

Academics and historians trace the movement of deregulation to the 1961 Doyle Report. On June 26,
1961, the United States Senate Committee on Commerce issued a staff report on National
Transportation Policy, commonly known as the Doyle Report, that concluded that regulatory policy
“has produced a general program of preserving the status quo which is in direct opposition 1o the
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overall objective of a dynamic transporiation system which can best serve the economy and defense of
the country” (pages 405-407).

Distracted by the presidential assassination, the civil rights movement and military actions in Southeast
Asia, efforts to begin moving transportation toward a free-market system was delayed until the mid-
1970s. Legistative efforts since that time, oo numerous o cite, have emphasized releasing the
regulatory handeuffs on the transportation industry. The result has been to increase competition, and
foree transportation providers to operate efficiently, effectively, and to address customer needs with the
potential reward of potential economic profit.

The results of deregulation have shown this to be a proper course of action. In 1964, the transportation
industry represented 9.1% of nominal gross domestic product. It now represents 6.0% of nominal gross
domestic product (17" Annual State of Logistics Report, Council of Supply Chain Management
Professionals, June 19, 2006).

‘This significant improvement has helped fuel economic growth and expansion of trade. Important for
this discussion is a report released in June 2006, by the General Accounting Office, GAO-06-630,
“Airline Deregulation: Reregulating the Airline Industry Would Likely Reverse Consumer Benefits and
not save Airline Pensions” that report concluded {as a result of regulatory changes] “airfares have
fallen in real terms while service ~ as measured by industry connectivity and competitiveness — has
improved slightly.” “The report goes on to say that this evidence suggests that reregulation of airline
entry and fares would likely reverse much of the benefits that consumers have gained.”

Against this background, it is wise each time we entertain regulatory changes, to consider the economic
and societal impact of the entire constituency served. It is this precept that raises concern regarding the
current direction of the modification of the International Air Transportation Competition Act of 1979,
Pub. L. No. 96-192, § 29, 94 Stat. 48, commonly known as the Wright Amendment.

1L The Wright Amendment

The Wright Amendment was passed in 1979 as a means of protecting the development of a regional
airport in the Dallas-Fort Worth Metroplex. Since then, DFW International Airport has grown to be the
second-biggest and the third-busiest airport in the world.

After Southwest Airlines announced its intent to seek repeal of the Wright Amendment, a volley of
claims and counterclaims occurred between y American Airlines, DFW International Airport, and
Southwest Airlines. The debate is summarized in my Journal of Transportation Law, Logistics, and
Policy article, “Repeal or Retain? The Wright Amendment Debate.” (M. Theodore Farris 11 and
Stephen M. Swartz, “Repeal or Retain? The Wright Amendment Debate,” Journal of Transportation
Law, Logistics, and Policy. Volame 73, Number 1, 2006, pp. 86-95.) In an effort to guide this debate,
Congressional representatives from Texas apparently asked the cities of Dallas and Fort Worth to
prepare a local solution.

The “local” effort comprised intense discussion between a limited number of participants including the
mayors of Dallas, Fort Worth, DFW International Airport, American Airlines and Southwest Airlines
to develop the compromise currently under consideration. While the compromise appears to represent
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the participating five parties, numerous other parties were excluded from those discussions that are
affected both socially and economically.

These other parties, including other airlines considering adding routes through Love Field, property
owners at Love Field such as Legend Terminal Partners, a multitude of small businesses around Love
Field, and the neighborhood homeowners and area labor force, were excluded from the meetings and
have not had their concerns addressed in the compromise.

1H. Recommendation — Striking a Proper Balance

Further analysis is essential to incorporate the social and economic cost- and benefit- analysis which 1
believe would improve the legislative repeal to offer a more cost effective, free-market solution
promoting the transportation industry and address the concerns of the entire constituency.

For example, while results of the study we have underway are pretiminary, the potential economic
benefit of utilizing the existing six gates of the Legend Terminal could add 499 new jobs to the
surrounding area, which contains a high concentration of Hispanic (over 67% of residents) and
African-American (over 15% of residents) citizens with an average household income approximately
30% below the average household income for Dallas County. The potential increase to the Dallas
County economy is in excess of $360 million per year. Instead, the current compromise involves an
estimated expenditure of up to $60 million to destroy that facility — and its tax revenue generating
infrastructure presently in place.

Congressional representatives have received what they asked for - a local solution. But it is one which
does not fully encompass the costs and benefits of the local economy. The compromise also fails to
consider how the repeal would affect the national community and fit into the national transportation
system. History has shown economic development is enhanced through improved transportation.
Representatives from numerous states have expressed their interest in the opportunity for air service
from Southwest out of Love Field so their consumers can benefit from the lauded “Southwest Effect”
as well as the resulting access to other nodal locations served by Southwest.

Under the compromise, the eight-year restriction of air service expansion within an §0-mile radius
around Love Field is anti-competitive and imposes a minimum of an eight-year stranglehold on
economic growth stemming from new air service to the D/FW Metroplex. It also imposes an economic
girdle nationally on any of the states seeking improved air service from any airline related to Love
Field and the resulting lower rates that would to help spur their economic growth. Implementing the
tocal “solution™ to the repeal of the

Wright Amendment is economically sub-optimizing the DFW market at the expense of the national
economy and is a disservice to the constituency of legislators outside of the state of Texas.

V.  Conclusion
Parts of the compromise may be sound. Sub-optimizing the regional and national economies, imposing

stricter regulation in place of current regulation, and spending substantial public monies to destroy an
employment and tax-generating infrastructure assets already in place make little sense.



309

The repeal of the Wright Amendment should seek to promote transportation competition while
addressing the social and economic advancement of the constituency. Future analysis and invited
involvement of all parties affected is imperative to address the true cost and benefits to various
compromise elements.

For these reasons, | urge you not to support the proposed agreement.

Sincerely,
Vi 4- "

M. Theodore Farris H C. T.L. Ph.D.

Associate Professor

Director of Logistics & Supply Chain Management Programs
Department of Logistics and Marketing

University of North Texas

321 Avenue A # 236

PO Box 311396

University of North Texas

Denton TX 76203-1396
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MAYOR BILL WHITFIELD
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Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee, thank you for the opportunity to submit this
written testimony on behalf of the City of McKinney, Texas, concerning the recent agreement
(“Agreement”) among the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth, Southwest Airlines, American
Airlines and Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport ("“DFW”) relating to the Wright
Amendment.

The City of McKinney owns and operates the Collin County Regional Airport, a general
aviation airport that is approximately 27 miles from Love Field and serves as a reliever airport
for DFW. Our airport has a 7,000 foot runway and has met most of the FAA’s Part 139
certification requirements that an airport must satisfy in order to provide scheduled commercial
air service. I would also like to point out that Collin County with a population of 700,000 and
the City of McKinney, in particular, with a population of 107,000 have been growing rapidly and
this strong growth is expected to continue. Thus, it is possible that carriers may want to provide
service out of Collin County Regional Airport in the foreseeable future. In fact, McKinney plans
to begin an air service feasibility study in early 2007.

For the reasons that I will discuss, the City of McKinney strongly opposes any
Congressional legislation that would impose anti-competitive restrictions on commercial air
service for communities within an 80-mile radius of Love Field. Specifically, under Section 6 of
the Agreement, Dallas and Fort Worth agree to oppose any new commercial service within 80
miles of Love Field for the next 8 years. As we read Section 7 of the Agreement, the cities will
seek legislation to implement this plan along with other provisions of the Agreement. This
proposal will harm the people and businesses of McKinney and other communities throughout
North Texas by unfairly blocking the development of commercial air service at Collin County

Regional Airport and other airports within 80 miles of Love Field.
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Now, we understand that a city can take steps to market the air service at its airport and to
bring new air service to its community. We also understand that cities compete with each other
in trying to get a carrier to provide new or additional air service. Consequently, if McKinney
were to seek to bring commercial air service to the Collin County Regional Airport, we would
not be surprised to face competition from other communities, including Dallas and Fort Worth.
However, we would expect to operate under the same rules as any other community in the
country. We would expect a level playing field. We would not want Congress to give Dallas
and Forth Worth special legislative authority that would give them a competitive advantage in
competing with McKinney just because McKinney happens to be within 80 miles of Love Field.

Mr. Chairman, we would like to note that the Wright Amendment has been around for 27
years. It was initially designed to protect the development of a relatively small airport, DFW,
that is now one of the world’s largest airports. The Dallas/Fort Worth parties announced their
agreement on June 15, 2000, only a few weeks ago and now seek legislation on an expedited
basis. The Agreement could effect Federal law and policies that ensure that we have an open and
competitive national aviation system based on free market principles. The Agreement could
impose anti-competitive restrictions on air service in North Texas. These new conditions go
beyond the narrow issue of the Wright Amendment. Accordingly, we urge the Committee to
take a careful look at these restrictions and their negative impacts.

Specifically, as Congress considers legislation on the Wright Amendment, we ask that it
be made clear that Dallas and Fort Worth are not being given any special legislative advantage in
competing for commercial air service within 80 miles of Love Field.

Thank you for your consideration of our concerns.
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THE HONORABLE BILL WHITFIELD
Tune 20, 2006

VIA Facsimile (202)225-3332

‘The Honorable Ralph M. Hall

U.S. House of Representarives

2405 Rayburn House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

Re:  DFW's Joint Statement to Resolve Wright Amendment Issues
Dear Congressman Hall:

The City of McKinney watched with interest as the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth
negotiated a local solution to resolve issues raised by the Wright Amendment. We
remained silenc during the negotiations out of respect for their difficult situation and the
business of the communitics.

However, after reading the joint statement released by the Cities, it's time we express our
opposition to any attermnpt to expand artificially imposed market restrictions, or any attempt
to legislate an agreement that does the same, on our ability to attract commercial air service
to Collin County Regional Airport in McKinney, Texas.

The City of McKinney considers the efforts of the Cities of Daflas and Forr Worth as
deliberate attempts to restrict air service at area airports outside of their jurisdiction through
the legislative process. We view the suggestion that airpotts within an 80-mile radius be
restricted from initiating air service for eighr years as an expansion of air service restrictions
similar to those imposed by the Wright Amendment. In this regard, we tespectfully request
that you strongly oppose any and all effores by the Cities of Dallas and Fort Worth o

{mpose air service restrictions upon airports and communities outside of their jurisdiction.

222 N. Tenncssee * P.O. Box 517 « McKinney, Texas * 75070
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The Honorable Ralph M, Hall
Tune 20, 2006
Page 2

As always, we thank you for your setvice and leadership and look forward to working with
you on this and other issues that impact the growth and development of our airport, the
services it offers and our community’s economic vitality.

Respectfully yours,

Bill Whicfield
Mayor



